Blochman Union School District
Benjamin Foxen School * 4949 Foxen Canyon Road
Santa Maria, CA 93454 * (805) 937-1148

BOARD OF TRUSTEES AGENDA
Tuesday, February 8, 2022
Library
5:00 p.m. — Closed Session; 5:30 p.m. — Regular Session

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

e If you wish to participate in this public meeting through a Zoom webinar, please register in
advance at the following address:

https://usQ06web.zoom.us/meeting/register/tZIvd--pgDwrHtA i6t34ACDEBm9vBaU zIU

After registering, you will receive a confirmation email containing information about joining the
meeting.

o Ifyou do not have internet access, please call 805-937-1148 ext. 113 to arrange for participation
via telephone.

Any materials required by law to be made available to the public prior to a meeting of the Board of
Education of the District can be inspected at the above address during normal business hours.
Individuals who require special accommodations including, but not limited to, American Sign Language
interpreter, accessible seating or documentation in accessible formats should contact the superintendent
or designee within a reasonable time before the meeting date.

Governing Board Members
Shannon Clay, President
Kelly Salas-Ernst, Clerk
Thomas Gibbons, Trustee
Daniella Pearce, Trustee
Jeania Reasner, Trustee

L Closed Session
A. Certificated and Classified Personnel Actions
i. The Board will be asked to review and approve hiring, transfers, promotions,
evaluations, terminations, and resignations.

IL Convene in Open Session

III. PUBLIC SESSION: 5:30 p.m. Call to Order and Flag Salute
A. Welcome Guests
B. Announce Closed Session Action
C. Reports

February 8, 2022 Regular Meeting Board Agenda



i. Charter School Reports
a. Family Partnership Charter School
b. Trivium Charter School
¢. Trivium Charter School: Adventure
d. Trivium Charter School: Voyage
ii. Teacher Reports
iii. Principal’s Report

IV.  ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR INFORMATION

A. Facilities use — none.

B. Form 700 filing deadline is April 1,2022. Please log on to eDisclosure at
https://www.southtechhosting.com/SantaBarbaraCounty/eDisclosure to complete
your form.

C. Santa Barbara County Education Office First Interim Financial Report Analysis and
Recommendations

D. School Accountability Plans

i. Family Partnership Charter School
i. Trivium Charter School

ili. Triviam Charter School: Adventure
iv., Trivium Charter School: Voyage

ot o

V. ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR DISCUSSION

A. Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) Mid-Year Review
i. Supplement to the Annual Update to the LCAP
ii. LCAP Actions and Services Mid-Year report
iii. Updated Budget Overview for Parents

B. Local Control and Accountability Plan

C. Facilities
i. General maintenance

VI. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS
A. Approval of Minutes
i. Minutes of January 11, 2022 Regular Meeting

*** IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve the Minutes as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

February 8, 2022 Regular Meeting Board Agenda
~ 2 ~



B. Approval of Monthly Warrants — January 2022

i. Payroll $170,332.98
ii. Commercial Warrants $171,422.35
iii. Revolving Fund S 0.00

TOTAL $ 341,755.33

*** IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve the Warrants as
presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

C. Approval of the 2021/2022 charter school P-1 attendance reports:
i. Trivium Charter School
ii. Trivium Charter School: Adventure
iii. Trivium Charter School: Voyage

*** IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve the 2021/2022 charter
school P-1 attendance reports as presented.

MOVED: SECOND:
VYOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

D. Approval of the 2020/2021 Family Partnership audit report

**% IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve the 2020/2021 Family
Partnership audit report as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

VII. ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR ACTION

A. Approval of Benjamin Foxen Elementary School’s January 2022 attendance report.

**% IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve the January 2022
attendance report as presented.

February 8, 2022 Regular Meeting Board Agenda



MOVED: SECOND:

VOTE:
Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

B. Approval of the fourth quarter 2021 Williams Report.

*** IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve the fourth
quarter 2021 Williams Report as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
YOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

C. Approval of Blochman Union School District’s 2020/2021 School Accountability
Report Card.

*** IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve Blochman
Union School District’s 2020/2021 School Accountability Report Card as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:
Thomas Gibbons:

D. Approval of Blochman Union School District’s Revised Reopening Plan.

*** JT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve the
Blochman Union School District’s Revised Reopening Plan as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:
Thomas Gibbons:

E. Approval of the contract with Moss, Levy & Hartzheim, LLP to provide audit
services for the 2021/2022 fiscal year.

*** JT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve the contract
with Moss, Levy & Hartzheim, LLP as presented:

February 8, 2022 Regular Meeting Board Agenda



MOVED: SECOND:

VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:
Thomas Gibbons:

F. Approval of the 2021/2022 Consolidated Application.

*** IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve the
2021/2022 Consolidated Application as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:
Thomas Gibbons:

G. Approval of Resolution 2022-02-08 to designate authority for the disposition of assets

**% IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve Resolution
2022-02-08 to designate authority for the disposition of assets as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENTS

PUBLIC COMMENTS ARE WELCOME
The Blochman Union School District will receive public comments about items not appearing on
today’s agenda, as well as other matters within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. All such
comments will be received during the Public Comments section of the agenda. Individuals who
address the Board are limited to three (3) minutes to speak on any item and a total of 10 minutes on all
items for their presentation. The Board may limit the total time for all public comment to 30 minutes.
Persons needing additional time are requested to submit the information in writing.
For comments concerning matters not on the agenda, open meeting laws and fairness to other
residents who may have an interest in your topic prohibit the Board from taking action or engaging in
extended discussion of your concerns. The Board may direct staff to meet at a later date with speakers
who have specific concerns or needs. The Board may also direct that an issue be placed on a future
agenda for discussion and consideration. This permits the Board and staff members to prepare and
receive necessary information and for the public to be aware that a topic is being formally considered.
We appreciate your cooperation.

IX. MISCELLANEOUS AGENDA ITEMS
A. Items Proposed for Future Action or Discussion
B. Blochman Union School District Board Member Items

February 8, 2022 Regular Meeting Board Agenda
~ 5 ~



C. Items not on the Agenda
D. Next Scheduled Board Meeting: March 8, 2022; closed session at 5:00 p.m.; open
session at 5:30 p.m., Library

X. Adjourn

TIME:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannen Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

February 8, 2022 Regular Meeting Board Agenda












First Interim Report Analysis and Recommendations
January 14, 2022

SBAS-9477

Page 2

Due to purposeful budgeting and planning, the district has healthy reserves that will be able to
mitigate the projected loss of revenue in 2022-23. However, reserves are a one-time funding
source and continued use will begin to deplete the reserve balance. We ask that the district
remain adaptable and flexible in providing educational services while also continuing to focus on
fiscal solvency, cash liquidity, and maintaining its reserve for economic uncertainty.

General Fund (Fund 01)

General Fund - unrestricted reserve

The district is projecting an operating surplus in its unrestricted funds of approximately
$205,000, exclusive of contributions and interfund transfers. In addition, the district is projecting
approximately $21,000 in contributions to categorical programs to cover encroachment (that is,
deficits in the district's restricted or categorical programs).

The net effect of these transactions is an increase in unrestricted reserves of approximately
$184,000. This increase, when added to the beginning balance of approximately $3,023,000,
results in a projected unrestricted ending balance of approximately $3,207,000.

General Fund - restricted reserve . . .

With regard to its restricted funds, the district is projecting an operating surplus of approximately
$76,000. Additionally, the district is projecting to make a contribution of approximately $21,000
from the unrestricted General Fund (see above).

The net effect of these transactions is an increase in restricted reserves of approximately $97,000.
This increase, when added to the beginning balance of approximately $145,000, results in a
projected restricted ending balance of approximately $242,000.

Multiyear projections

The district has seen a decline in enrollment and corresponding attendance mainly as a result of
the pandemic. Due to restrictions related to the coronavirus, the district is currently unable to
offer Home-to-School transportation, which has caused interdistrict attendance loss. While the
district saw a slight increase in enrollment of four students over 2020-21, overall enrollment has
decreased 31 students since 2019-20. The district indicates it will be reviewing its transportation
program and hopes to reinstate the service if feasible. Future deficits may be mitigated if Home-
to-School transportation is reinstated and enrollment increases.

The expiration of the attendance hold harmless provision results in a loss of LCFF revenue of
approximately $303,000 in 2022-23. Enrollment and attendance projections are held flat in the
subsequent years, resulting in LCFF revenue increases in those years as a result of projected
COLA. While unrestricted revenue will increase in 2023-24, projected expenditures will outpace
revenue growth, resulting in deficit spending. The district projects an unrestricted deficit of
$209,000 in 2022-23 and $405,000 in 2023-24. Unrestricted reserves will decrease from
$2,557,000, or 87.91%, in 2021-22, to $2,347,000, or 85.52%, in 2022-23, to $1,942,000, or
69.10%, in 2023-24.

The district has been fiscally prudent and maintained strong reserves over a number of years. We
encourage the district to continue reviewing and revising its budget frequently and consider



First Interim Report Analysis and Recommendations
January 14, 2022

SBAS-9477

Page 3

taking action to reduce its projected future years' deficit spending. Expenditure reductions made
now will have a compounding beneficial effect over the multiyear per thereby reducing the need
for cuts in future years.

Cash

Based on the cashflow analysis submitted with its First Interim Report, the district is projecting
that the General Fund will maintain a positive cash balance in each month of the current fiscal
year. Due to the rapidly changing fiscal environment, the district should monitor and analyze
cash flow, revising its projections as necessary during the year to ensure cash solvency. Should
any updated cash flow projections indicate a shortfall that cannot be covered through local means
(i.e., interfund borrowing), we ask that the district notify our office immediately.

Conclusion

Thank you for providing documentation, particularly the board-approved multiyear projections,
that supports the district's positive certification. The multiyear projections were helpful in our
analysis of the First Interim Report and in verifying the district's fiscal condition.

We are aware that the information provided reflects the district's financial position and
assumptions at a point in time and that further adjustments will be made during the year as
additional data becomes available. We hope that these comments will be helpful to the district
administration and governing board as you plan for the remainder of this year and further
develop your multiyear projections.

We wish to express our appreciation to the district staff for their cooperation during this review.
If our office can be of further assistance, please call us.

c Nancy Shafer, Interim Business Manager
Bill Ridgeway, Assistant Superintendent
Dr. Susan Salcido, County Superintendent of Schools






Family Partnership Charter School
2021 School Accountability Report Card

FAMILY PARTNERSHIF
CHARTER SCHOOL

General Information about the School Accountability Report Card (SARC)

SARC Overview By February 1 of each year, every school in California is required by state law to
publish a School Accountability Report Card (SARC). The SARC contains
information about the condition and performance of each California public school.
Under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) all local educational agencies
(LEAs) are required to prepare a Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP),
which describes how they intend to meet annuat school-specific goals for all pupils,
with specific activities to address state and local priorities. Additionally, data
reported in an LCAP is to be consistent with data reported in the SARC.

For more information about SARC requirements and access to prior year reports,
see the California Department of Education (CDE) SARC web page at
www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/

For more information about the LCFF or the LCAP, see the CDE LCFF web page
at www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/

For additional information about the school, parents/guardians and community
members should contact the school principal or the district office.

DataQuest DataQuest is an online data tool located on the CDE DataQuest web page at
da.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/ that contains additional information about this school and
comparisons of the school to the district and the county. Specifically, DataQuest is

I\ ATA QU EST a dynamic system that provides reports for accountability (e.g., test data,

enrollment, high schoo! graduates, dropouts, course enroliments, staffing, and data

1« DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION regarding English learners).
California School Dashboard The California School Dashboard (Dashboard) www.caschooldashboard.org/
reflects California’'s new accountability and continuous improvement system and
California School provides information about how LEAs and schools are meeting the needs of

l : ‘ DASHBOARD California’s diverse student population. The Dashboard contains reports that

display the performance of LEAs, schools, and student groups on a set of state
and local measures to assist in identifying strengths, challenges, and areas in
need of improvement.

Internet Access Internet access is available at public libraries and other locations that are publicly
accessible (e.g., the California State Library). Access to the Internet at libraries and
public locations is generally provided on a first-come, first-served basis. Other use
restrictions may include the hours of operation, the length of time that a workstation
may be used (depending on availability), the types of software programs available
on a workstation, and the ability to print documents.

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 1 of 28 Family Partnership Charter School



2021-22 School Contact Information

School Name Family Partnership Charter School
Street 1157 E. Clark Avenue, Suite H
City, State, Zip Santa Maria, CA 93455

Phone Number (805) 348-3333

Principal Stephanie Eggert

Email Address stephanie.eggert@fpcharter.org
School Website www.fpcharter.org
County-District-School (CDS) Code 4269112 0111773

2021-22 District Contact Information

District Name Blochman Union School District
Phone Number (805) 937-1148
Superintendent Doug Brown

Email Address dbrown@blochmanusd.org
District Website Address www.sbceoportal.org/blochman/

2021-22 School Overview

Family Partnership Charter School (FPCS) opened In Solvang, during the summer of 2006, a group of education innovators led
by Tom Goodman, were persuaded to write a charter petition for a new independent study charter school. Together they
worked with experienced charter school administrative assistant, Suzanne Clark, to plan, organize and develop a school
dedicated to providing a learning environment in which students and their teachers could develop the kind of one on one
relationships that promote deeper learning and motivated students. The school is authorized by the Blochman Union School
District and provides services in Santa Barbara and San Luis Obispo counties. FPCS serves students and families in grades K-
12 who are seeking alternative, personalized educational programs.

FPCS is a public school and follows the same State Laws as a traditional public school. However, public charter schools are
structured differently than traditional public schools. The primary goal of our charter school is to maximize individualized
learning opportunities for students to guarantee our students can master the necessary skills to succeed. FPCS allows for wide
differences in student learning styles, abilities, and interests. Unlike a traditional public school, in partnership with parents
FPCS personalizes the learning environment to meet the unique needs of each student.

FPCS programs offer non-classroom based instruction through learning centers that focus on personalized learning through
blended in-person and independent study programs with K-5 centers providing Montessori Teachings. Through all programs, a
partnership between the school, teacher, family, and student is built to support student learning. FPCS is a WASC Accredited,
direct-funded, blended/independent study charter school. FPCS serves students that reside in Santa Barbara and San Luis
Obispo Counties. FPCS remains committed to their purposeful Mission, Vision, and Motto.

MISSION: Provide a personalized and nurturing learning environment to inspire lifelong learners.

VISION: Creating innovators with skills to thrive in the 21st century.

MOTTO: Bringing the best together for student success.

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 2 of 28 Family Partnership Charter School



About this School

Grade Level

Kindergarten
Grade 1
Grade 2
Grade 3
Grade 4
Grade 5§
Grade 6
Grade 7
Grade 8
Grade 9
Grade 10
Grade 11
Grade 12

Total Enrollment

2020-21 Student Enroliment by Grade Level

Number of Students

33
32
37
34
30
29
20
46
35
28

2020-21 Student Enrollment by Student Group

Female

Male

American Indian or Alaska Native
Asian

Black or African American

Filipino

Hispanic or Latino

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander
Two or More Races

White

English Learners

Foster Youth

Homeless

Migrant

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged
Students with Disabilities

Student Group Percent of Total Enroliment

54.4
456
0%
1%
1%
0.4%
27.4%
0.4%
6.9%
62%
3.5%

0.0%
0.8%

0.0%
33.1%
8.9%

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 3 of 28

Family Partnership Charter School



A. Conditions of Learning State Priority: Basic

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Basic
(Priority 1):

* Degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in
the subject area and for the pupils they are teaching;

¢ Pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials; and

+ School facilities are maintained in good repair

Note: For more information refer to the Updated Teacher Equity Definitions web
page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/teacherequitydefinitions.asp

2019-20 Teacher Preparation and Placement
m

Fully (Preliminary or Clear) Credentialed for Subject and Student Placement (properly assigned)

Intern Credential Holders Properly Assigned

Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (“ineffective” under ESSA)

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (“out-of-field” under ESSA)

Unknown 0

Total Teaching Positions 22

Note: The data in this table is based on Full Time Equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one staff member working full time;
one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as
a position that an educator is assigned to based on setting, subject, and grade level. An authorization is defined as the services
that an educator is authorized to provide to students.

2019-20 Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA)

Authorization/Assignment m

Permits and Waivers 0
Misassignments 0
Vacant Positions 0

0

Total Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments

2019-20 Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA)

ndear | 20020 |

Credentialed Teachers Authorized on a Permit or Waiver 0
Local Assignment Options 0
Total Out-of-Field Teachers 0

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 4 of 28 Family Partnership Charter School



2019-20 Class Assignments

[ e [ wea ]

Misassignments for English Learners 13%
(a percentage of all the classes with English learners taught by teachers that are misassigned)
No credential, permit or authorization to teach 0

(a percentage of all the classes taught by teachers with no record of an authorization to teach)

2021-22 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other instructional Materials

Year and month in which the data were collected May/June 2021

From Percent
Most Students
Recent | Lacking Own
Adoption Assigned
? Cop

Reading/Language Arts All students are provided access to their own set of state Yes 0
aligned textbooks, or online curriculum. Supplemental
curriculum may be provided by school or parent in support of
student's individual learning plan (ILP). Journeys and
Collections CCSS aligned textbooks were purchased for K-
8th ELA. Edgenuity CCSS aligned courseware licenses were
purchased for 9-12 ELA.

Mathematics All students are provided access to their own set of state Yes 0
aligned textbooks, or online curriculum. Supplemental
curriculum may be provided by school or parent in support of
student's individual learning plan (ILP). Math in Focus
(Singapore) CCSS aligned textbooks were purchased for K-
8th Math. Edgenuity CCSS aligned courseware licenses
were purchased for 9-12 math.

Science All students are provided access to their own set of state Yes 0
aligned textbooks, or online curriculum. Supplemental
curriculum may be provided by school or parent in support of
student's individual learning plan (ILP). Amplify NGSS
aligned instructional material and student workbooks were
purchased for 6-8 Science. Edgenuity NGSS aligned
courseware licenses were purchased for 9-12 science.

History-Social Science All students are provided access to their own set of state Yes 0
aligned textbooks, or online curriculum. Supplemental
curriculum may be provided by school or parent in support of
student's individual learning plan (ILP). Edgenuity CCSS
aligned courseware licenses were purchased for 9-12 social
studies.

Foreign Language All students are provided access to their own set of state No 0
aligned textbooks, or online curriculum. Supplemental
curriculum may be provided by school or parent in support of
student’s individual learning plan (ILP).

Health All students are provided access to their own set of state No 0
aligned textbooks, or online curriculum. Supplemental
curriculum may be provided by school or parent in support of
student's individual learning plan (ILP).

Visual and Performing Arts Al} students are provided access to their own set of state No 0
aligned textbooks, or online curriculum. Supplemental

Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials/year of
Adoption

Subject

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 5 of 28 Family Partnership Charter School



curriculum may be provided by school or parent in support of
student's individual learning plan (ILP).

Science Laboratory Equipment All students in state approved A-G science courses are Yes 0
(grades 9-12) provided access to online laboratory material. Supplemental
curriculum may be provided by school or parent in support of
| student's individual learning plan (ILP).

School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements

Family Partnership Charter School leases space for each of its Learning Centers from a variety of management groups
including local school districts, private landowners, community organizations, and property management companies. Each
Learning Centers has been selected for its appropriateness for the students, families, community and instructional methods
that it serves. Projected improvements planned for 2021-22 include grounds clean-up, plumbing upkeep, fencing, a walkway
and gate installation for safe drop-off and pick-up at various centers for ongoing safety and facility upkeep.

All learning centers are clean and in good repair. Inspection by a representative from the schools' sponsor and the insurance
carrier is conducted to identify areas of concern and no serious facility issues were noted. FPCS has sufficient student
curricular materials and teachers appropriately assigned. No Williams/Valenzuela Act complaints have been submitted and a
report is presented to the Governing Board each quarter.

Year and month of the most recent FIT report 10/31/2021

System Inspected cl;g(t)% Repair Needed and Action Taken or Planned
Systems: X
Gas Leaks, Mechanical/HVAC, Sewer At the Santa Maria learning center we plan to

install an attic fan to control an upstairs
classroom afternoon's temperature which rises
into 90 degrees many days.

Interior: X
Interior Surfaces

Cleanliness: . ‘ X Installed screen doors at the Santa Maria learning
Overall Cleanliness, Pest/\Vermin Infestation center to keep cats from entering the classrooms.

Electrical X

Restrooms/Fountains: X One learning center required plumbing repairs in
Restrooms, Sinks/ Fountains restrooms and kitchen areas.

Safety: X
Fire Safety, Hazardous Materials
Structural: X

Structural Damage, Roofs

External: _ X Removal logs/stumps plus a new walkway and
Playground/School Grounds, Windows/ gate installation at the Santa Maria learning
Doors/Gates/Fences
center. A new pathway was created for students
to enter/exit school due to a new preschool
opening at the center.

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 6 of 28 Family Partnership Charter School



Overall Facility Rate

L X

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 7 of 28 Family Partnership Charter School



B. Pupil Outcomes

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card

State Priority: Pupil Achievement

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Pupil
Achievement (Priority 4):

Statewide Assessments

(i.e., California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress [CAASPP]
System includes the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for students in
the general education population and the California Alternate Assessments [CAAS]
for English language arts/literacy [ELA] and mathematics given in grades three
through eight and grade eleven. Only eligible students may participate in the
administration of the CAAs. CAAs items are aligned with alternate achievement
standards, which are linked with the Common Core State Standards [CCSS] for
students with the most significant cognitive disabilities).

The CAASPP System encompasses the following assessments and student
participation requirements:

1. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for ELA in grades
three through eight and grade eleven.

2. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for mathematics
in grades three through eight and grade eleven.

3. California Science Test (CAST) and CAAs for Science in grades five, eight,
and once in high school (i.e., grade ten, eleven, or twelve).

SARC Reporting in the 2020-2021 School Year Only

Where the most viable option, LEAs were required to administer the statewide
summative assessment in ELA and mathematics. Where a statewide summative
assessment was not the most viable option for the LEA (or for one or more grade-
level[s] within the LEA) due to the pandemic, LEAs were allowed to report results
from a different assessment that met the criteria established by the State Board of
Education (SBE) on March 16, 2021. The assessments were required to be:

¢ Aligned with CA CCSS for ELA and mathematics;

e Available to students in grades 3 through 8, and grade 11; and

e Uniformly administered across a grade, grade span, school, or district to all
eligible students.

Options

Note that the CAAs couid only be administered in-person following health and
safety requirements. If it was not viable for the LEA to administer the CAAs in
person with health and safety guidelines in place, the LEA was directed to not
administer the tests. There were no other assessment options available for the
CAAs. Schools administered the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for
ELA and mathematics, other assessments that meet the SBE criteria, or a
combination of both, and they could only choose one of the following:

¢ Smarter Balanced ELA and mathematics summative assessments;

¢ Other assessments meeting the SBE criteria; or

¢ Combination of Smarter Balanced ELA and mathematics summative
assessments and other assessments.

The percentage of students who have successfully completed courses that satisfy

the requirements for entrance to the University of California and the California State
University, or career technical education sequences or programs of study.

Page 8 of 28 Family Partnership Charter School



Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP

This table displays CAASPP test results in ELA and mathematics for all students grades three through eight and grade eleven
taking and completing a state-administered assessment.

The 2019-2020 data cells with N/A values indicate that the 2019-2020 data are not available due to the COVID-19 pandemic and
resulting summative test suspension. The Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the assessment, accountability, and
reporting requirements for the 2019-2020 school year.

The 2020-2021 data cells have N/A values because these data are not comparable to other year data due to the COVID-19
pandemic during the 2020-2021 school year. Where the CAASPP assessments in ELA and/or mathematics is not the most viable
option, the LEAs were allowed to administer local assessments. Therefore, the 2020-2021 data between school years for the
school, district, state are not an accurate comparison. As such, it is inappropriate to compare results of the 2020-2021 school year
to other school years.

Subiect School School District District State
) 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21
English Language Arts/Literacy N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
(grades 3-8 and 11)

Mathematics N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
(grades 3-8 and 11)

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 9 of 28 Family Partnership Charter School



2020-21 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group

This table displays CAASPP test results in ELA by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking
and completing a state-administered assessment. The CDE will populate this table for schools in cases where the school
administered the CAASPP assessment. In cases where the school administered a local assessment instead of CAASPP, the
CDE will populate this table with “NT” values, meaning this school did not test students using the CAASPP. See the local
assessment(s) table for more information.

CAASPP | cAAsPP | caaspp | caaspp | CAASPP
CAASPP Percent
Student Groups Total Number Percent Percent Met or
Enroliment Tested Tested Not Tested Exceeded
All Students
Female
Male

American Indian or Alaska Native
Asian

Black or African American

Filipino

Hispanic or Latino

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander
Two or More Races

White

English Learners

Foster Youth

Homeless

Military

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services

Students with Disabilities

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 10 of 28 Family Partnership Charter School



2020-21 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group

This table displays CAASPP test results in Math by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking
and completing a state-administered assessment. The CDE will populate this table for schools in cases where the school
administered the CAASPP assessment. In cases where the school administered a local assessment instead of CAASPP, the
CDE will populate this table with “NT” values, meaning this school did not test students using the CAASPP. See the local
assessment(s) table for more information.

CAASPP | CAASPP | cAAsPP | caaspp | CAASPP
CARSPP Total Number Percent Percent Percent
Student Groups Enrollment lbyes Tisctzd (Foroent Mot or
Exceeded
All Students
Female
Male

American Indian or Alaska Native
Asian

Black or African American

Filipino

Hispanic or Latino

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander
Two or More Races

White

English Learners

Foster Youth

Homeless

Military

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services
Students with Disabilities

2020-21 Local Assessment Test Results in ELA by Student Group

This table displays Local Assessment test results in ELA by student group for students grades three through eight and grade
eleven. LEAs/schools will populate this table for schools in cases where the school administered a local assessment. In cases
where the school administered the CAASPP assessment, LEAs/schools will populate this table with “N/A” values in all cells,
meaning this table is Not Applicable for this school.

Scantron Sc_?ntron Scantron Scantron Scantron S;:r':ggtn
Student Groups Enrocl)lt::ent Nl'l:;z?ir F':l'zrscti?it NcF:te 'rl'(;esrtltted At or Above
Grade Level
All Students 247 227 92 8 61%
Female 125 120 96 4 63%
Male 122 107 88 12 59%
American Indian or Alaska Native 8 6 75 25 *
Asian 5 5 100 0 *

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 11 of 28 Family Partnership Charter Schoo!



Black or African American 5 4 80 20 *
Filipino 0 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Hispanic or Latino 31 29 94 6 38%
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 2 2 100 0 *
Two or More Races 28 23 82 18 96%
White 186 174 94 6 *
English Learners 10 7 70 30 *
Foster Youth 0 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Homeless 0 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Military 0 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 73 59 81 19 59%
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Students with Disabilities 28 23 82 18 87%
*At or above the grade-level standard in the context of the local assessment administered.

2020-21 Local Assessment Test Results in Math by Student Group

This table displays Local Assessment test results in Math by student group for students grades three through eight and grade
eleven. LEAs/schools will populate this table for schools in cases where the school administered a local assessment. In cases
where the school administered the CAASPP assessment, LEAs/schools will populate this table with “N/A” values in ali cells,
meaning this table is Not Applicable for this school.
Scantron Scantron Scantron Scantron Scantron
Scantron Percent
Total Number Percent Percent
Student Groups Enroliment Tested Tested Not Tested At or Above
Grade Level
All Students 247 228 92 8 61%
Female 125 121 97 3 58%
Male 122 107 88 12 64%
American Indian or Alaska Native 8 6 75 25 *
Asian 5 5 100 0 *
Black or African American 5 5 100 0 *
Filipino 0 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Hispanic or Latino 31 29 94 6 69%
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 2 2 100 0 0%
Two or More Races 26 23 88 12 83%
White 186 174 94 6 63%
English Learners 10 7 70 0 *
Foster Youth 0 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Homeless 0 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Military 0 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 73 61 84 16 82%
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0 N/A N/A N/A N/A

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 12 of 28 Family Partnership Charter Schoo!



Students with Disablilities 28 24 86 14 75%
*At or above the grade-level standard in the context of the local assessment administered.

CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students

This table displays the percentage of all students grades five, eight, and High School meeting or exceeding the State Standard.

The 2019-2020 data cells with N/A values indicate that the 2019-2020 data are not available due to the COVID-19 pandemic and
resulting summative testing suspension. The Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the assessment, accountability,
and reporting requirements for the 2019-2020 school year.

For any 2020-2021 data cells with N/T values indicate that this school did not test students using the CAASPP Science.

Subiect School School District District State State
J 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21
N/A N/T N/A NT N/A

Science
(grades 5, 8 and high school)

2020-21 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group

This table displays CAASPP test results in Science by student group for students grades five, eight, and High School. For any
data cells with N/T values indicate that this school did not test students using the CAASPP Science.

Percent
comamment | omodl | Toment | ooty | _wetor
All Students
Female
Male

American Indian or Alaska Native
Asian

Black or African American

Filipino

Hispanic or Latino

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander
Two or More Races

White

English Learners

Foster Youth

Homeless

Military

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services
Students with Disabilities

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 13 of 28 Family Partnership Charter School



2020-21 Career Technical Education Programs

FPCS continues to increase Career Technical Education courses and pathways for it's high school students. Three pathways
have been established within the Edgenuity courseware and provide students with online curriculum and training in the areas of
Patient Care, Biotechnology, and Information, Communication, and Technology. Additional career technical education
programs, courses, and experiences are being explored at local colleges and institutions in order to increase the students'
access to career exploration and preparation opportunities. FPCS will continue to build pathways and programming that not
only enhance the career pathways at the school, but that also provide students with a foundation for and a connection to the
career technical education programs at other high schools, colleges, and institutions. In addition, the school will proceed with
establishing a CTE Advisory Committee to help guide the programs and opportunities that are made available to the students.

2020-21 Career Technical Education (CTE) Participation
W [ v program Pareeor

Number of Pupils Participating in CTE 1
Percent of Pupils that Complete a CTE Program and Earn a High School Diploma 0
Percent of CTE Courses that are Sequenced or Articulated Between the School and 0

Institutions of Postsecondary Education

Course Enroliment/Completion

This table dispiays the course enrollment/completion of University of California (UC) and/or California State University (CSU)

admission requirements. .

2020-2021 Pupils Enrolled in Courses Required for UC/CSU Admission 7
2019-2020 Graduates Who Completed All Courses Required for UC/CSU Admission ' 11.6
B. Pupil Outcomes State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Other
Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8): Pupil outcomes in the subject area of physical
education.

2020-21 California Physical Fitness Test Results

Due to the COVID-19 crisis, the Physical Fitness Test was suspended during the 2020-2021 school year and therefore no data
are reported and each cell in this table is populated with “N/A."

Grade Level Percentage of Students Meeting { Percentage of Students Meeting | Percentage of Students Meeting
eve Four of Six Fitness Standards Five of Six Fitness Standards Six of Six Fitness Standards
N/A N/A N/A

Grade 5
Grade 7 N/A N/A N/A
Grade 9 N/A N/A N/A

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 14 of 28 Family Partnership Charter School



C. Engagement State Priority: Parental Involvement

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Parental
Involvement (Priority 3): Efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in
making decisions regarding the school district and at each school site.

2021-22 Opportunities for Parental Involvement

FPCS is a non-classroom based charter school that offers a variety of educational models designed to support the individual
learning needs of each student while ensuring the acquisition of the skills necessary for success in the 21st century. Family
input and participation are at the core of each educational model and require families and teachers to work closely together on
activities such as the creation of a student learning plan, providing support to the student during the learning process,
monitoring student progress, identification of needs, with implementation of interventions or enrichment opportunities for the
student. The collaboration and communication between the teachers and families are vital not only to the success of the
student, but also to ensure that families have the information and resources that they need to remain active and effective in
their child(ren)'s education.

Families are also provided with several opportunities to engage in the decision-making process throughout the year on
programs and student progress. Family meetings with school leadership are conducted regularly in both small and large group
settings to address school components such as the allocation of resources, additional learning opportunities for students,
instructional resources and material, and the evaluation of the school's progress toward goals and outcomes. In addition, the
family involvement opportunities range in the level of commitment required in order to increase participation and the amount of
feedback received from parents. Formal parent committees such as the FPCS Advisory Committee (FAC) and the Science
Fair Committee are established annually, while individual meetings focused on a specific topics are also conducted for families
who have particular areas of interest or concern. Due to school closures and safety guidelines, some events and activities were
cancelled. Whenever possible a virtual option was created. Stakeholders are also invited and encouraged to complete surveys
to give input on school climate and another about instruction and FPCS programs.

C. Engagement State Priority: Pupil Engagement

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Pupil
Engagement (Priority 5):

o High school dropout rates;
¢ High school graduation rates; and
e Chronic Absenteeism

Dropout Rate and Graduation Rate (Four-Year Cohort Rate)

Indicator School School School District District District State State State
2018-19 | 2019-20 | 2020-21 | 2018-19 | 2019-20 | 2020-21 | 2018-19 | 2019-20 | 2020-21
Dropout Rate 1.9 1.5 1.7 2.6 2.1 9 8.8

Graduation Rate 94.2 89.7 94.9 94.7 89.6 84.5 86.3 83.6

2020-21 Graduation Rate by Student Group (Four-Year Cohort Rate)

This table displays the 2020-21 graduation rate by student group. For information on the Four-Year Adjusted Cohort Graduation
Rate (ACGR), visit the CDE Adjusted Cohort Graduation Rate web page at www.cde.ca.gov/ds/ad/acgrinfo.asp.

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 15 of 28 Family Partnership Charter School



Number of Number of Cohort
Student Group Students in Cohort Cohort Graduates Graduation Rate

All Students

Female

Male

American Indian or Alaska Native
Asian

Black or African American
Filipino

Hispanic or Latino

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander
Two or More Races

White

English Learners

Foster Youth

Homeless

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services

Students with Disabilities

29
25
0

23

= O

a O

94.5
54
46

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card

Page 16 of 28

Family Partnership Charter School



2020-21 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group

Cumulative Chronif: Chronif: Chronis:
Student Group Enroliment ) Absenteelsm Absenteeism Absenteeism

Eligible Enrollment Count Rate
All Students 481 9 1.8
Female 261 5 1.9
Male 220 4 1.8
American Indian or Alaska Native * * * *
Asian * * * *
Black or African American * * * *
Filipino * * * *
Hispanic or Latino 141 140 2 14
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander * * * *
Two or More Races 37 35 0 0
White 315 312 7 2.2
English Learners * * * *
Foster Youth * * * *
Homeless * * * *
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged * * * *
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services * * * *

Students with Disabilities

C. Engagement

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card

State Priority: School Climate

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: School
Climate (Priority 6):

¢ Pupil suspension rates;
¢ Pupil expulsion rates; and
e Other local measures on the sense of safety

Page 17 of 28 Family Partnership Charter School



Suspensions and Expulsions

This table displays suspensions and expulsions data collected between July through June, each full school year respectively.
Data collected during the 2020-21 school year may not be comparable to earlier years of this collection due to differences in
learning mode instruction in response to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Subiect School School District District State State
: 2018-19 2020-21 2018-19 2020-21 2018-19 2020-21
2 0 1 1.6 3.5 2

Suspensions

Expulsions 0 0 0 0 0.08 0

This table displays suspensions and expulsions data collected between July through February, partial school year due to the
COVID-19 pandemic. The 2019-2020 suspensions and expulsions rate data are not comparable to other year data because the
2019-2020 school year is a partial school year due to the COVID-19 crisis. As such, it would be inappropriate to make any
comparisons in rates of suspensions and expulsions in the 2019-2020 school year compared to other school years.

. School District State
Subject 2019-20 | 2019-20 | 2019-20

Suspensions 0 .5 3.5

Expulsions _ 0 0 A

2020-21 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group
Student Group Expulsions Rate
0 0

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services

All Students
Female 0 0
Male 0 0
American Indian or Alaska Native 0 0
Asian 0 0
Black or African American 0 0
Filipino 0 0
Hispanic or Latino 0 0
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0
Two or More Races 0 0
White 0 0
English Learners 0 0
Foster Youth 0 0
Homeless 0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0

Students with Disabilities

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 18 of 28 Family Partnership Charter School



2021-22 School Safety Plan

FPCS complies with all applicable state and federal laws. Each Learning Center is unique in location and facilities. Their
specific Disaster Plans are reviewed with staff on an annual basis and includes instructions for evacuation procedures,
evacuation posters, family emergency notifications, and contact logs related to students and staff present at a time a disaster
may occur. FPCS has updated and adopted policies related to health, safety and risk management issues including but not
limited to:

* Arequirement that all enrolling student and staff provide records documenting
medical needs or food allergies.

o Aroster of students with emergency contact information updated monthly in center
safety binder.

» Policies and procedures for response to natural disasters and emergencies
including fires and earthquakes.

¢ Training and notification of child abuse reporting protocols that conform to current law.

o A set of student-related policies that cover, the administration of medication to
students while at school, that address food allergies/special dietary needs, an
allergy action plan, and suicide prevention. In addition, an individua! health care
plan have been adopted.

* A policy that the school will be housed in facilities that comply with State Fire
Marshal standards and adhere to Title 24 of the Uniform Building code.

o Policy stating that the school functions as a drug, alcohol and tobacco free workplace.

* A requirement that each employee of the school submits to a criminal background
check and furnish a criminal record summary as required by Educational Code
Section 44237, 45122.1, and 45125.1.

¢ FPCS requires initial and ongoing tuberculosis screenings of employees.

These policies are incorporated as appropriate into the school’s student and staff handbooks. The protocols are reviewed on
an ongoing basis, revised and adopted by the Governing Board as required by changes to law or statute. The school requires
staff to be certified in first aid and CPR, as well as a variety of protocols which include but are not limited to: sexual
harassment, blood born pathogens, and mandated reporting. Families understand that FPCS complies with all applicable laws
concerning immunizations, health and safety, child abuse reporting, and all related issues for both employees and students.

D. Other SARC Information Information Required in the SARC

The information in this section is required to be in the SARC but is not included in
the state priorities for LCFF.

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 19 of 28 Family Partnership Charter School



2018-19 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution

This table displays the 2018-19 average class size and class size distribution. The columns titled “Number of Classes”

indicates how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class). The “Other” category is for multi-
grade level classes.

Class Size 1-20 Students 21-32 Students 33+ Students
1 12 0 2 0
2 13 0 2 0
3 12 0 2 0
4 13 0 2 0
5 12 0 2 0
6 10 3 0 0
Other 0 0 0 0

2019-20 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution

This table displays the 2019-20 average class size and class size distribution. The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates

how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class). The “Other” category is for multi-grade level
classes.

Grade Level Average Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with
Class Size 1-20 Students 21-32 Students 33+ Students

12
13
12
13
12
11

A N A WON
w O O O o o
o N N N N DN
o O O O O o

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 20 of 28 Family Partnership Charter School



2020-21 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution

This table displays the 2020-21 average class size and class size distribution. The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates

how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class). The “Other” category is for multi-grade level
classes.

Class Size 1-20 Students 21-32 Students 33+ Students
1
2
3
4
5
6
Other 17 3 8

2018-19 Secondary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution

This table displays the 2018-19 average class size and class size distribution. The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates
how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per classroom). At the secondary school level, this
information is reported by subject area rather than grade level.

Subject Aéf;:ge Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with
Size 1-22 Students 23-32 Students 33+ Students
English Language Arts 13 3 0 0
Mathematics 13 3 0 0
Science 13 3 0 0
Social Science 13 3 0 0

2019-20 Secondary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution

This table displays the 2019-20 average class size and class size distribution. The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates
how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per classroom). At the secondary school level, this
information is reported by subject area rather than grade level.

Subject Aéf;:ge Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with
Size 1-22 Students 23-32 Students 33+ Students
English Language Arts 14 3 0 0
Mathematics 14 3 0 0
Science 14 3 0 0
Social Science 14 3 0 0

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 21 of 28 Family Partnership Charter School



2020-21 Secondary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution

This table displays the 2020-21 average class size and class size distribution. The columns titied “Number of Classes” indicates
10w many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per classroom). At the secondary school level, this
information is reported by subject area rather than grade level.

Subiect Aéf;:ge Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with
! o 1-22 Students 23-32 Students 33+ Students

English Language Arts 17

Mathematics 13 16 2 0
Science 18 10 0 0
Social Science 23 17 4 0

2020-21 Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor

This table displays the ratio of pupils to Academic Counselor. One full time equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working
full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time.

Tite I

Pupils to Academic Counselor 0

2020-21 Student Support Services Staff
This table displays the number of FTE support staff assigned to this school. One full time equivalent (FTE) equals one staff

member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time.

Title Number of FTE Assigned to School
Counselor (Academic, Social/Behavioral or Career Development) 0
Library Media Teacher (Librarian) 0
Library Media Services Staff (Paraprofessionalt) 0
Psychologist 5
Social Worker 0
Nurse .25
Speech/Language/Hearing Specialist 1.5
Resource Specialist (non-teaching) 0.0
Other 1.5

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 22 of 28 Family Partnership Charter School



2019-20 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries

This table displays the 2019-20 expenditures per pupil and average teach salary for this school. Cells with N/A values do not
‘equire data.

Total Expenditures Expenditures Average
Level Expenditures Per Pupil Per Pupil Teacher
Per Pupil Restricted Unrestricted Sala

School Site $8,073.28 787.36 $7,285.92 $66,406.65
District N/A N/A
Percent Difference - School Site and District N/A N/A
Percent Difference - School Site and State N/A N/A

2020-21 Types of Services Funded

FPCS provides students with supplemental services to address their specific learning needs. Instructional assistants in the K-8
classrooms work with small groups and individual students to support their skill development and differentiate instruction.
Tutors in grades 6-12 provide one-on-one direct instruction and guidance to students in the areas of reading, English language
development, and math. Both instructional assistants and tutors are assigned to students based on their individual progress
with the intensity and frequency of services are determined through progress monitoring.

FPCS also uses educational technology/programs to support students in the classroom and remote learning environments as
an independent study charter school. Programs such as Reading Plus, Read Naturally, Lexia Core 5 are used to address and
build skills in phonics and reading. Services related to specific, unique student needs are provided to students both in-person
and through teletherapy. Services include speech, occupational therapy, and mental health services.

2019-20 Teacher and Administrative Salaries

This table displays the 2019-20 Teacher and Administrative salaries. For detailed information on salaries, see the CDE
Certification Salaries & Benefits web page at http.//www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/.

State Average
for Districts
in Same Catego

Category District

Amount

Beginning Teacher Salary

Mid-Range Teacher Salary

Highest Teacher Salary

Average Principal Salary (Elementary)
Average Principal Salary (Middle)
Average Principal Salary (High)
Superintendent Salary

Percent of Budget for Teacher Salaries

Percent of Budget for Administrative Salaries

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 23 of 28 Family Partnership Charter School



2020-21 Advanced Placement (AP) Courses

This table displays the percent of student in AP courses at this school.

Percent of Students in AP Courses 0
Tthi: tatble displays the number of AP courses offered at this school where there are student course enroliments of at least one
student.

Computer Science 0

English 0

Fine and Performing Arts 0

Foreign Language 0

Mathematics 0

Science 0

Social Science 0

Total AP Courses Offered 0

Professional Development

FPCS is committed to providing teachers with ongoing professional development in their individual areas of professional
interest and growth, as well as in areas that have been collectively identified by the teachers. The professional development
process begins prior to the start of the school year, with an alignment of professional development opportunities and resources
to the FPCS goals and student learning outcomes. In collaboration with an administrator, teachers identify the specific
strategies and activities that they will obtain from each professional development (i.e. training, workshop, resource, coaching,
etc.) and the impact on the students’ skills and behaviors that is expected as a result of the implementation of those strategies
and activities. Throughout the school year, teachers and administrators continue to work closely together to monitor the
implementation and the effectiveness of the strategies and activities obtained from the professionai development opportunities
and to also determine ways in which impactful practices can be shared with other teachers.

FPCS also utilizes collaborative teacher teams to provide teachers with additional opportunities to reflect on instructional
practices and strategies for improving student learning. Professional Learning Communities (PLC) of teachers meet regularly
to further explore the Common Core State Standards (CCSS) and to evaluate individual student progress. During these
meetings, grade-level teacher groups review instructional plans and coursework in order to develop a common articulation of
each standard and to establish an example of acceptable evidence of learning for each standard. The deeper understanding
of the CCSS and evidence of learning gained from the PLC, enables teachers to better evaluate the progress of each student
and to provide immediate and appropriate interventions and support to those students who need it.

Classroom assessments and Scantron benchmark tests are used to monitor student progress throughout the school year and
to inform instructional practices and professional development areas of focus. In addition, CAASPP assessments measure
student performance at the end of each school year and the information obtained about student groups (i.e. whole schoo!,
grade/class, subgroups, etc.) is used to evaluate the equity and effectiveness of the teaching strategies and instructional
support provided during the current school year and plan professional development areas of focus for the following school year.
This school year, the decision was made to switch the local benchmark to iReady which is used nationally and has the largest
database of comparable data. iReady is also listed as an approved benchmark assessment according to AB1505. Staff
received PD to administer the first benchmark with he second in spring to create baseline data for the LCAP. The FPCS
professional development calendar includes 5 All-Staff Professional Development Days, monthly half-day PLC Meetings,
monthly half-day Committee Meetings, and at least one day of off-site professional development for each teacher.

This table displays the number of school days dedicated to staff development and continuous improvement.

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 24 of 28 Family Partnership Charter School



Professional Development

Subject 2019-20 | 2020-21 m

Number of school days dedicated to Staff Development and Continuous Improvement

—

Blochman Union School District
2020-21 Local Accountability Report Card (LARC) Addendum

Local Accountability Report Card (LARC) Addendum

2020-21 Local Accountability Report  On July 14, 2021, the California State Board of Education (SBE) determined that
Card (LARC) Addendum Overview the California Department of Education (CDE) will use the SARC as the mechanism
to conduct a one-time data collection of the LEA-level aggregate test results of all
school’'s local assessments administered during the 2020-2021 school year in
order to meet the federal Every Students Succeeds Act (ESSA) reporting
requirement for the Local Educational Agency Accountability Report Cards
(LARCs).

Each local educational agency (LEA) is responsible for preparing and posting their
annual LARC in accordance with the federal ESSA. As a courtesy, the CDE
prepares and posts the LARCs on behalf of all LEAs.

Only for the 2020-2021 school year and the 2020-2021 LARCs, LEAs are required
to report their aggregate local assessments test results at the LEA-level to the CDE
by populating the tables below via the SARC. These data will be used to meet the
LEAs’ federal requirement for their LARCs. Note that it is the responsibility of the
school and LEA to ensure that all student privacy and suppression rules are in
place when reporting data in Tables 3 and 4 in the Addendum, as applicable.

The tables below are not part of the SBE approved 2020-2021 SARC template but
rather are the mechanism by which these required data will be collected from LEAs.

For purposes of the LARC and the following tables, an LEA is defined as a school
district, a county office of education, or a direct funded charter school.

2021-22 District Contact Information

District Name Biochman Union School District
Phone Number (805) 937-1148
Superintendent Doug Brown

Email Address dbrown@blochmanusd.org
District Website Address www.sbceoportal.org/blochman/

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 25 of 28 Family Partnership Charter School



2020-21 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group

This table displays CAASPP test results in ELA by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking
and completing a state-administered assessment. The CDE will populate this table for schools in cases where the school
administered the CAASPP assessment. In cases where the school administered a local assessment instead of CAASPP, the
CDE will populate this table with “NT” values, meaning this school did not test students using the CAASPP. See the local
assessment(s) table for more information.

CAASPP | CAASPP | cAAsPP | caaspp | CAASPP
CAASPP Percent
Total Number Percent Percent
Student Groups Enroliment Tested Tested Not Tested Wet or
€ Exceeded
All Students
Female
Male

American Indian or Alaska Native
Asian

Black or African American

Filipino

Hispanic or Latino

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander
Two or More Races

White

English Learners

Foster Youth

Homeless

Military

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services
Students with Disabilities

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 26 of 28 Family Partnership Charter School



2020-21 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group

This table displays CAASPP test results in Math by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking
and completing a state-administered assessment. The CDE will populate this table for schools in cases where the school
administered the CAASPP assessment. In cases where the school administered a local assessment instead of CAASPP, the
CDE will populate this table with “NT” values, meaning this school did not test students using the CAASPP. See the local
assessment(s) table for more information.

CAASPP | CAASPP | CAASPP | caaspp | CAASPP
CAASPP Percent
Total Number Percent Percent
Student Groups Enrollment Tested Tested Not Tested Met or
Exceeded
All Students
Female
Male

American Indian or Alaska Native
Asian

Black or African American

Filipino

Hispanic or Latino

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander
Two or More Races

White

English Learners

Foster Youth

Homeless

Military

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services
Students with Disabilities

2020-21 Local Assessment Test Results in ELA by Student Group

This table displays Local Assessment test results in ELA by student group for students grades three through eight and grade
eleven. LEAs/schools will populate this table for schools in cases where the school administered a local assessment. in cases
where the school administered the CAASPP assessment, LEAs/schools will populate this table with “N/A” values in all cells,
meaning this table is Not Applicable for this school.

*At or above the grade-level standard in the context of the local assessment administered.

2020-21 Local Assessment Test Results in Math by Student Group

This table displays Local Assessment test results in Math by student group for students grades three through eight and grade
eleven. LEAs/schools will populate this table for schools in cases where the school administered a local assessment. In cases
where the school administered the CAASPP assessment, LEAs/schools will populate this table with “N/A” values in all cells,
meaning this table is Not Applicable for this school.

*At or above the grade-level standard in the context of the local assessment administered.

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 27 of 28 Family Partnership Charter School



2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 28 of 28 Family Partnership Charter School






Trivium Charter School
2021 School Accountability Report Card

weneral Information about the School Accountability Report Card (SARC)

SARC Overview

DataQuest

[>ara Quuest

« DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

California School Dashboard

\ California School

l :f A DASHBOARD

Internet Access

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card

By February 1 of each year, every school in California is required by state law to
publish a School Accountability Report Card (SARC). The SARC contains
information about the condition and performance of each California public school.
Under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) all local educational agencies
(LEAs) are required to prepare a Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP),
which describes how they intend to meet annual school-specific goals for all pupils,
with specific activities to address state and local priorities. Additionally, data
reported in an LCAP is to be consistent with data reported in the SARC.

For more information about SARC requirements and access to prior year reports,
see the California Department of Education (CDE) SARC web page at
www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/

For more information about the LCFF or the LCAP, see the CDE LCFF web page
at www.cde.ca.qov/fg/aallc/

For additional information about the school, parents/guardians and community
members should contact the school principal or the district office.

DataQuest is an online data tool located on the CDE DataQuest web page at
da.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/ that contains additional information about this school and
comparisons of the school to the district and the county. Specifically, DataQuest is
a dynamic system that provides reports for accountability (e.g., test data,
enrollment, high school graduates, dropouts, course enrollments, staffing, and data
regarding English learners).

The California School Dashboard (Dashboard) www.caschooldashboard.org/
reflects California’s new accountability and continuous improvement system and
provides information about how LEAs and schools are meeting the needs of
California’s diverse student population. The Dashboard contains reports that
display the performance of LEAs, schools, and student groups on a set of state
and local measures to assist in identifying strengths, challenges, and areas in
need of improvement.

Internet access is available at public libraries and other locations that are publicly
accessible (e.g., the California State Library). Access to the Internet at libraries and
public locations is generally provided on a first-come, first-served basis. Other use
restrictions may include the hours of operation, the length of time that a workstation
may be used (depending on availability), the types of software programs available
on a workstation, and the ability to print documents.

Page 1 of 25 Trivium Charter School



2021-22 School Contact Information

School Name Trivium Charter School
“treet 1305 North H Street A/332
vity, State, Zip Lompoc

Phone Number (805) 291-9110

Principal Trisha Vais

Email Address tvais@triviumcharter.org
School Website www.triviumcharter.org
County-District-School (CDS) Code 42 69112 0124255

2021-22 District Contact Information

District Name Trivium Charter School
Phone Number (805) 291-1303
Superintendent Trisha Vais

Email Address tvais@triviumcharter.org
District Website Address www.triviumcharter.org

2021-22 School Overview

-S offers project-based learning in a classroom environment combined with a customized, self-paced, home-study setting
with a Classical Education focus. California credentialed teachers collaborate with parents/guardians to develop and deliver an
educational program based on each student’s unique and changing needs. Trivium Charter follows a four-year, Classical
Education model using history and science as the central theme for the classroom days. Students are able to proceed at their
own appropriate pace while also having the option to join group classes online or in-person for a more traditional classroom
experience. Students may receive instruction for their home-study courses through our virtual Connect Program with
synchronous classes taught by credentialed teachers, asynchronous online curriculum, traditional textbook curricula, college
classes, or a customized approach blending various elements,

The vast majority of students attend learning center classes two days a week (these are considered “"ACE” days- or “A
Classical Experience”), where the best of Classical Methodologies and Project-Based Learning are blended. In response to the
pandemic, we have now introduced a fully virtual program “ACE-D" (ACE-Distance), where the on-campus class content taught
by our credentialed teachers is now offered virtually, twice a week- so those students who want to remain at home are able to
access the well-developed lesson plans previously only available to those in person. A smaller number of students enroll in our
Full Independent Study Program “ACE-R” (ACE-Remote), in which they do not attend in-person or synchronous online classes
with our credentialed teachers, but progress through approved curricula and access the “ACE" content for history and science.

Students learn to apply their math and language arts skills within the context of history and science during the ACE days
whether they join online or in-person. Our students study poetry, short stories, and literature from the year’s assigned time
period as a cross-curricular aspect to enhance their understanding. Practical math units are also embedded within history and
science, supporting cross-disciplinary connections. All components of the learning program are outlined for each student in
their Personalized Learning Plan (PLP). Students and their families work with their teachers and members of the Trivium
curriculum team to choose, direct, and implement appropriate personalized curriculum for each student. Each year Trivium has
a theme, which enables students to form connections across disciplines and a deeper understanding of the time period. This
themed approach cycles every 4 years allowing students to revisit a given time period at greater depth as they mature in
content understanding.

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 2 of 25 Trivium Charter School



About this School

2020-21 Student Enroliment by Grade Level

.ndergarten 45
Grade 1 29
Grade 2 29
Grade 3 30
Grade 4 34
Grade 5 25
Grade 6 15
Grade 7 31
Grade 8 22
Grade 9 23
Grade 10 19
Grade 11 11
Grade 12 13
Total Enroliment 326

2020-21 Student Enroliment by Student Group

Female 44.5
Male 55.5
Asian 0.3
Black or African American 1.2
Filipino 0.9
Hispanic or Latino 24.5
Two or More Races 5.2
White 65
English Learners 0.6
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 29.4
Students with Disabilities 10.7

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 3 of 25 Trivium Charter School



A. Conditions of Learning State Priority: Basic

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Basic
(Priority 1):

o Degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in
the subject area and for the pupils they are teaching;

¢ Pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials; and

¢ School facilities are maintained in good repair

Note: For more information refer to the Updated Teacher Equity Definitions web
page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/teacherequitydefinitions.asp

2019-20 Teacher Preparation and Placement
Authorization/Assignment 2019-20

Fully (Preliminary or Clear) Credentlaled for Subject and Student Placement (properly assigned)

Intern Credential Holders Properly Assigned 0
Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (“ineffective” under ESSA) 0
Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (“out-of-field” under ESSA) 0
Unknown 0
Total Teaching Positions 28

Note: The data in this table is based on Full Time Equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one staff member working full time;

3 FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as
« position that an educator is assigned to based on setting, subject, and grade level. An authorization is defined as the services
that an educator is authorized to provide to students.

2019-20 Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA)

Permits and Waivers 0
Misassighments 0
Vacant Positions 0
Total Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments 0

2019-20 Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA)

Credentialed Teachers Authorized on a Permit or Waiver 0
Local Assighment Options
Total Out-of-Field Teachers

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 4 of 25 Trivium Charter School



2019-20 Class Assignments

Misassignments for English Learners 0
percentage of all the classes with English learners taught by teachers that are misassigned)
No credential, permit or authorization to teach 0

(a percentage of all the classes taught by teachers with no record of an authorization to teach)

2021-22 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials

All Trivium students have their own instructional materials.

Year and month in which the data were collected

From Percent
. . Most Students
Subject Textbooks and Other‘ll:’sotrttlicc:)t;onal Materials/year of Recent Lacking Own

P Adoption Assigned
? CO .
Reading/Language Arts various grade level, standards aligned instructional materials Yes 0
Mathematics various grade level, standards aligned instructional materials Yes 0
Science various grade level, standards aligned instructional materials Yes 0
History-Social Science various grade level, standards aligned instructional materials Yes 0
Jreign Language various grade level, standards aligned instructional materials Yes 0
Health various grade level, standards aligned instructional materials Yes 0
Visual and Performing Arts various grade level, standards aligned instructional materials Yes 0
Science Laboratory Equipment various grade level, standards aligned instructional materials Yes 0

(grades 9-12)

School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements

Trivium is a non-classroom-based school that rents facilities.
Year and month of the most recent FIT report August 2021
Rate | Rate | Rate . .
System Inspected Repair Needed and Action Taken or Planned
Systems: X
Gas Leaks, Mechanical/HVAC, Sewer
Interior: X
Interior Surfaces
Cleanliness: X
Qverall Cleanliness, Pest/Vermin Infestation
ectrical X
Restrooms/Fountains: X

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 5 of 25 Trivium Charter School



School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements

Restrooms, Sinks/ Fountains

Safety: X
Sire Safety, Hazardous Materials

_«ructural: ' X
Structural Damage, Roofs

External: X
Playground/School Grounds, Windows/
Doors/Gates/Fences

Overall Facility Rate

Bomplary | Good | fr | poor |
X

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 6 of 25 Trivium Charter School



B. Pupil Outcomes

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card

State Priority: Pupil Achievement

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Pupil
Achievement (Priority 4):

Statewide Assessments

(i.e., California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress [CAASPP]
System includes the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for students in
the general education population and the California Alternate Assessments [CAAS]
for English language arts/literacy [ELA] and mathematics given in grades three
through eight and grade eleven. Only eligible students may participate in the
administration of the CAAs. CAAs items are aligned with alternate achievement
standards, which are linked with the Common Core State Standards {CCSS] for
students with the most significant cognitive disabilities).

The CAASPP System encompasses the following assessments and student
participation requirements:

1. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for ELA in grades
three through eight and grade eleven.

2. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for mathematics
in grades three through eight and grade eleven.

3. California Science Test (CAST) and CAAs for Science in grades five, eight,
and once in high school (i.e., grade ten, eleven, or twelve).

SARC Reporting in the 2020-2021 School Year Only

Where the most viable option, LEAs were required to administer the statewide
summative assessment in ELA and mathematics. Where a statewide summative
assessment was not the most viable option for the LEA (or for one or more grade-
level[s] within the LEA) due to the pandemic, LEAs were allowed to report results
from a different assessment that met the criteria established by the State Board of
Education (SBE) on March 18, 2021, The assessments were required to be:

¢ Aligned with CA CCSS for ELA and mathematics;

¢ Available to students in grades 3 through 8, and grade 11; and

e Uniformly administered across a grade, grade span, school, or district to all
eligible students.

Options

Note that the CAAs could only be administered in-person following health and
safety requirements. If it was not viable for the LEA to administer the CAAs in
person with health and safety guidelines in place, the LEA was directed to not
administer the tests. There were no other assessment options available for the
CAAs. Schools administered the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for
ELA and mathematics, other assessments that meet the SBE criteria, or a
combination of both, and they could only choose one of the following:

o Smarter Balanced ELA and mathematics summative assessments;

¢ Other assessments meeting the SBE criteria; or

¢ Combination of Smarter Balanced ELA and mathematics summative
assessments and other assessments.

The percentage of students who have successfully completed courses that satisfy

the requirements for entrance to the University of California and the California State
University, or career technical education sequences or programs of study.

Page 7 of 25 Trivium Charter Schocl



Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP

This table displays CAASPP test results in ELA and mathematics for all students grades three through eight and grade eleven
taking and completing a state-administered assessment.

.1e 2019-2020 data cells with N/A values indicate that the 2019-2020 data are not available due to the COVID-19 pandemic and
resulting summative test suspension. The Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the assessment, accountability, and
reporting requirements for the 2019-2020 school year.

The 2020-2021 data cells have N/A values because these data are not comparable to other year data due to the COVID-19
pandemic during the 2020-2021 school year. Where the CAASPP assessments in ELA and/or mathematics is not the most viable
option, the LEAs were allowed to administer local assessments. Therefore, the 2020-2021 data between school years for the

school, district, state are not an accurate comparison. As such, it is inappropriate to compare results of the 2020-2021 school year
to other school years.

School School District District State State
201 9 20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

English Language Arts/Literacy
(grades 3-8 and 11)

Mathematics N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
(grades 3-8 and 11)

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 8 of 25 Trivium Charter School



2020-21 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group

This table displays CAASPP test results in ELA by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking
and completing a state-administered assessment. The CDE will populate this table for schools in cases where the school

ministered the CAASPP assessment. In cases where the school administered a local assessment instead of CAASPP, the
~JE will populate this table with “NT” values, meaning this school did not test students using the CAASPP. See the local
assessment(s) table for more information.

CAASPP CAASPP | CAASPP | CAASPP | CAAsPP | GAASPP
Student Groups Enrollment | Testod | Tested | Not Tosted | Metor
Exceeded

All Students 159 NT NT NT NT
Female 61 NT NT NT NT
Male 98 NT NT NT NT
American Indian or Alaska Native 0 0 0 0 0
Asian 0 0 0 0 0
Black or African American - NT NT NT NT
Filipino - NT NT NT NT
Hispanic or Latino 38 NT NT NT NT
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0 0 0 0
Two or More Races 14 NT NT NT NT
White 103 NT NT NT NT
English Learners -- NT NT NT NT

ster Youth 0 0 0 0 0
Homeless 0 0 0 0 0
Military 0 0 0 0 0
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 38 NT NT NT NT
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0 0 0 0 0
Students with Disabilities 20 NT NT NT NT

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 9 of 25 Trivium Charter School



2020-21 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group

This table displays CAASPP test results in Math by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking
and completing a state-administered assessment. The CDE will populate this table for schools in cases where the school

ministered the CAASPP assessment. In cases where the school administered a local assessment instead of CAASPP, the
~JE will populate this table with “NT” values, meaning this school did not test students using the CAASPP. See the local
assessment(s) table for more information.

CAASPP | CAASPP | CAASPP | caaspp | CAASPP
CAASPP Percent
Total Number Percent Percent
Student Groups Enrollment |  Tested Tested | Not Tested | _Metor
en este es o Exceeded

All Students 159 NT NT NT NT
Female 61 NT NT NT NT
Male 98 NT NT NT NT
American Indian or Alaska Native 0 0 0 0 0
Asian 0 0 0 0 0
Black or African American - NT NT NT NT
Filipino -- NT NT NT NT
Hispanic or Latino 38 NT NT NT NT
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0 0 0 0
Two or More Races 14 NT NT NT NT
White 103 NT NT NT NT
English Learners - NT NT NT NT

sster Youth 0 0 0 0 0
Homeless
Military 0 0 0 0 0
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 38 NT NT NT NT
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0 0 0 0 0
Students with Disabilities 20 NT NT NT NT

2020-21 Local Assessment Test Results in ELA by Student Group

This table displays Local Assessment test results in ELA by student group for students grades three through eight and grade
eleven. LEAs/schools will populate this table for schools in cases where the school administered a local assessment. In cases
where the school administered the CAASPP assessment, LEAs/schools will populate this table with “N/A” values in all cells,
meaning this table is Not Applicable for this school.

. iReady iReady iReady iReady IReady
iReady Percent
Total Number Percent Percent
Student Groups Enrollment Tested Tested Not Tested At or Above
Grade Level
All Students 155 150 97 3 49
Female 59 56 95 5 57
Male 96 94 98 2 44
nerican Indian or Alaska Native 0 0 0 0 0
Asian 0 0 0 0 0

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 10 of 25 Trivium Charter School



Black or African American

Filipino

Hispanic or Latino

“ative Hawaiian or Pacific Islander
1+wo or More Races

White

English Learners

Foster Youth

Homeless

Military

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services
Students with Disabilities

38

12
100

N/A
46
0
20

35

12
99

N/A
45
0
18

100
67
92

100
99

N/A
98
0
90

33

100

N/A

50
100
46

58
47

N/A
38

22

*At or above the grade-level standard in the context of the local assessment administered.

2020-21 Local Assessment Test Results in Math by Student Group

This table displays Local Assessment test results in Math by student group for students grades three through eight and grade
eleven. LEAs/schools will populate this table for schools in cases where the school administered a local assessment. In cases
where the school administered the CAASPP assessment, LEAs/schools will populate this table with “N/A” values in all cells,
meaning this table is Not Applicable for this school.

iReady

Percent
At or Above
Grade Level

iReady
Student Groups
All Students
Female
Male

American Indian or Alaska Native
Asian

Black or African American
Filipino

Hispanic or Latino

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander
Two or More Races

White

English Learners

Foster Youth

Homeless

Military

“acioeconomically Disadvantaged

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services

iReady iReady iReady iReady
Total Number Percent Percent
Enrollment Tested Tested Not Tested

155 151 97 3
59 57 97 3
96 94 98 2

0 0 0 0

0 0

100 0
3 2 67 33

38 37 97 3

0 0 0 0

12 12 100 0
100 98 98 2

1 1 100 0

0 0 0 0

N/A N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A N/A

46 46 100 0

0 0 0 0

31
25
35

100
22

25
36
100

N/A
N/A
33

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card

Page 11 of 25

Trivium Charter School




Students with Disabilities 20 18 90 10 22
*At or above the grade-level standard in the context of the local assessment administered.

IAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students

This table displays the percentage of all students grades five, eight, and High School meeting or exceeding the State Standard.

The 2019-2020 data cells with N/A values indicate that the 2019-2020 data are not available due to the COVID-19 pandemic and
resulting summative testing suspension. The Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the assessment, accountability,
and reporting requirements for the 2019-2020 school year.

For any 2020-2021 data cells with N/T values indicate that this school did not test students using the CAASPP Science.
Subiect School | School | District | District State
) 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21
Science N/A NT N/A NT N/A 28.72
(grades 5, 8 and high school)

2020-21 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group

This table displays CAASPP test results in Science by student group for students grades five, eight, and High School. For any
data cells with N/T values indicate that this school did not test students using the CAASPP Science.

Percent
Total Number Percent Percent
Student Group Met or
— Enrofment totTested | Exceeded
NT

All Students

Semale 33 NT NT

wale 23 NT NT

American Indian or Alaska Native 0 0 0 0
Asian 0 0 0 0
Black or African American 0 0 0 0
Filipino 0 0 0 0
Hispanic or Latino 13 NT NT NT NT
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0 0 0 0
Two or More Races - NT NT NT NT
White 41 NT NT NT NT
English Learners -- NT NT NT NT
Foster Youth 0 0

Homeless 0 0

Military ' 0 0 0 0 0
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 15 NT NT NT NT
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0 0 0 0 0
Students with Disabilities - NT NT NT NT

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 12 of 25 Trivium Charter School



2020-21 Career Technical Education Programs

We offer CTE classes through online providers but do not have any full pathways. Currently, the dual enrollment option at
community colleges is a more popular option for our students.

2020-21 Career Technical Education (CTE) Participation

Number of Pupils Participating in CTE 0
Percent of Pupils that Complete a CTE Program and Earn a High School Diploma 0
Percent of CTE Courses that are Sequenced or Articulated Between the School and 0

Institutions of Postsecondary Education

Course Enrollment/Completion

This table displays the course enroliment/completion of University of California (UC) and/or California State University (CSU)
admission requirements.

2020-2021 Pupils Enrolled in Courses Required for UC/CSU Admission 35
2019-2020 Graduates Who Completed All Courses Required for UC/CSU Admission 4
R. Pupil Outcomes State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Other
Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8): Pupil outcomes in the subject area of physical
education.

2020-21 California Physical Fitness Test Results

Due to the COVID-19 crisis, the Physical Fitness Test was suspended during the 2020-2021 school year and therefore no data
are reported and each cell in this table is populated with “N/A.”

Grade Level Percentage of Students Meeting | Percentage of Students Meeting | Percentage of Students Meeting
Four of Six Fitness Standards Five of Six Fitness Standards Six of Six Fithess Standards

Grade 5 N/A N/A N/A
Grade 7 N/A N/A N/A
Grade 9 N/A N/A N/A

C. Engagement State Priority: Parental Involvement

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Parental
Involvement (Priority 3): Efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in
making decisions regarding the school district and at each school site.

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 13 of 25 Trivium Charter School



2021-22 Opportunities for Parental Involvement

Trivium engages parents through such means as Parent Square contact, email communication, parent surveys, conferences,
parent coffees, orientations, parent-run talks about independent study, and feedback after independent study checks. Before
*~hool begins each year, parents are invited to attend orientations on campus and virtually. They are able to meet with their

Jdent’s teacher, pick up curriculum, sign paperwork, get familiar with the center, and ask questions as needed. Throughout
the year, each teacher provides their families with a weekly agenda that communicates important school news, due dates, and
detailed information about what their students will be learning in the upcoming week. Parent Coffees are held at each center
by Trivium staff to support parents in their efforts, review recent research, and share personal experiences. Parents are not
only supported by the Trivium staff, but also find Parent Coffees a valuable time where they are able to support one another
and share ideas to enhance their experience. Since March of 2020, most in-person activities and meetings, outside of in-
person classroom attendance, have been curtailed due to the COVID Pandemic. Trivium will resume all in-person activities as
State and County regulations allow.

C. Engagement State Priority: Pupil Engagement

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Pupil
Engagement (Priority 5):

¢ High school dropout rates;
¢ High school graduation rates; and
¢ Chronic Absenteeism

Dropout Rate and Graduation Rate (Four-Year Cohort Rate)

Indicator School School School District District District State State State
2018-19 | 2019-20 | 2020-21 2018-19 | 2019-20 | 2020-21 2018-19 | 2019-20 | 2020-21
Dropout Rate 0 0 0 0 0 0 9.0 8.9 9.4
Graduation Rate 100 100 100 100 100 100 84.5 84.2 83.6

2020-21 Graduation Rate by Student Group (Four-Year Cohort Rate)

This table displays the 2020-21 graduation rate by student group. For information on the Four-Year Adjusted Cohort Graduation
Rate (ACGR), visit the CDE Adjusted Cohort Graduation Rate web page at www.cde.ca.gov/ds/ad/acgrinfo.asp.

Student Grou Number of Number of Cohort
P Students in Cohort Cohort Graduates Graduation Rate
14 14

All Students 100
Female 11 11 100
Male - - -
American Indian or Alaska Native 0 0 0.00
Asian 0 0 0.00
Black or African American 0 0 0.00
Filipino 0 0 0.00
Hispanic or Latino -- -- --
ative Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0 0.00
Two or More Races 0 0 0.00

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 14 of 25 Trivium Charter School



White

Students with Disabilities

11 11 100
English Learners 0.0 0.0 0.0
Foster Youth 0.0 0.0 0.0
Yomeless 0.0 0.0 0.0
wocioeconomically Disadvantaged - - --
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0.0 0.0 0.0

2020-21 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group

Student Group

Cumulative Chronic Chronic Chronic
Enrollment Absenteeism Absenteeism Absenteeism
Eligible Enrollment Count Rate

All Students 338 329 4 1.2
Female 152 146 0 0.0
Male 186 183 4 22
American Indian or Alaska Native 0 0 0 0.0
Asian 1 1 0 0.0
Black or African American 4 4 0 0.0
Filipino 3 3 0 0.0
Hispanic or Latino 79 79 2 25

ative Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0 0 0.0
Two or More Races 17 17 1 5.9
White 226 217 1 0.5
English Learners 2 2 0 0.0
Foster Youth 0 0 0.0
Homeless 0 0 0.0
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 100 96 2 21
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0 0 0 0.0
Students with Disabilities 38 38 2 5.3

C. Engagement

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card

State Priority: School Climate

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: School
Climate (Priority 6):

e Pupil suspension rates;
¢ Pupil expulsion rates; and
e Other local measures on the sense of safety

Page 15 of 25 Trivium Charter School



Suspensions and Expulsions

This table displays suspensions and expulsions data collected between July through June, each full school year respectively.
Data collected during the 2020-21 school year may not be comparable to earlier years of this collection due to differences in
“rning mode instruction in response to the COVID-19 pandemic.

School School District District State State

2018-19 2020-21 2018-19 2020-21 2018-19 2020-21
Suspensions 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.47 0.20
Expulsions 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.08 0.00

This table displays suspensions and expulsions data collected between July through February, partial school year due to the
COVID-19 pandemic. The 2019-2020 suspensions and expulsions rate data are not comparable to other year data because the
2019-2020 school year is a partial school year due to the COVID-19 crisis. As such, it would be inappropriate to make any
comparisons in rates of suspensions and expulsions in the 2019-2020 school year compared to other school years.

. School District State

Subject 2019-20 | 2019-20 | 2019-20
Suspensions 0.00 0.00 2.45
Expulsions 0.00 0.00 0.05

2020-21 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group

All Students 0.00 0.00
Female 0.00 0.00

.ale 0.00 0.00
American Indian or Alaska Native 0.00 0.00
Asian 0.00 0.00
Black or African American 0.00 0.00
Filipino 0.00 0.00
Hispanic or Latino 0.00 0.00
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0.00 0.00
Two or More Races 0.00 0.00
White 0.00 0.00
English Learners 0.00 0.00
Foster Youth 0.00 0.00
Homeless 0.00 0.00
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 0.0 0.0
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0.00 0.00
Students with Disabilities 0.0 0.0

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 16 of 25 Trivium Charter School



2021-22 School Safety Plan

All guests of Trivium’s Learning Centers must sign in to the guest register which is located in each center's administration
office. Emergency training is provided to all employees annually, including fire, earthquake, lock-down, and violent intruder
~rotocols. Included in that training is a segment on being aware of, and how to engage, “strangers” who may be on or near the
smpus. Further, emergency drills are performed at each center, putting into practice each center's emergency plan,
individually covering fire, earthquake, lock-down, and violent intruder protocols. As well, Trivium subscribes to the
ParentSquare emergency alert system, “Smart Alert.” This system allows employees and parents to be quickly and efficiently
notified in case of a general emergency affecting any Trivium Learning Center. The aforementioned emergency procedures
are posted in every Trivium office and classroom. Emergency supplies are located in each classroom inclusive of water, food
bars, a flashlight, and toilet necessities. Trivium has developed a Comprehensive School Safety Plan in accordance with
California Education Code 32281. This plan is updated annually and is available for viewing at each Learning Center office.

Upkeep and cleanliness of each Learning Center is generally maintained by Trivium Learning Center support staff. At the end
of student lunch recess, predesignated classes are responsible for clean-up, which helps instill pride and ownership for the
involved students. At the conclusion of each ACE day, support staff and teachers sweep, empty the trash and recycle, and
clean the restrooms. Also, before every ACE Day, a safety inspection is conducted. This safety inspection includes the
following: checking for tripping hazards, inspecting playground equipment, and ensuring all ingress and egress points are free
of obstructions. Should an issue be discovered, an emergency work order is submitted, facilitating a rapid repair of the
problem.

Regarding internet safety, our school utilizes Meraki Security Appliance at all five Centers, which allows us to filter any
inappropriate internet content for our students. Trivium also deploys a student safety program named Securly, which is round-
the-clock auditing, shielding, and cloud-based web filtering for every student device. In addition, teachers constantly monitor
student internet activity physically and by utilizing Securly's Classroom Management feature. Furthermore, students are
forbidden to access personal electronic devices without a staff member's permission. All of our school's staff members hold
current First Aid and CPR certifications. Training is held biennially, and new hires must present proof of completion before
beginning employment.

D. Other SARC Information Information Required in the SARC

The information in this section is required to be in the SARC but is not included in
the state priorities for LCFF.

2018-19 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution

This table displays the 2018-19 average class size and class size distribution. The columns titled “Number of Classes”
indicates how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class). The “Other” category is for multi-
grade level classes.

Grade Level Average Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with
Class Size 1-20 Students 21-32 Students 33+ Students

1
2
3
4
5

6
[ Other 16 11

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 17 of 25 Trivium Charter School



2019-20 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution

This table displays the 2019-20 average class size and class size distribution. The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates

how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class). The “Other” category is for multi-grade level
‘“sses.

Grade Level Average Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with
Class Size 1-20 Students 21-32 Students 33+ Students

g HhWN -

Other 18 10

2020-21 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution

This table displays the 2020-21 average class size and class size distribution. The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates

how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class). The “Other” category is for multi-grade level
classes.

Grade Level Average Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with
Class Size 1-20 Students 21-32 Students 33+ Students

N A WN A

Other 18 1

2018-19 Secondary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution

This table displays the 2018-19 average class size and class size distribution. The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates

how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per classroom). At the secondary school level, this
information is reported by subject area rather than grade level.

Average

Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with

Caass 1-22 Students 23-32 Students 33+ Students
English Language Arts 3 27
Mathematics 2 52
“cience 1 3
3 22

[ social Science

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 18 of 25 Trivium Charter School



2019-20 Secondary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution

This table displays the 2019-20 average class size and class size distribution. The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates

how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per classroom). At the secondary school level, this
“ormation is reported by subject area rather than grade level.

Subject Aé‘::ge Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with
Size 1-22 Students 23-32 Students 33+ Students

English Language Arts 3 27
Mathematics 2 36
Science 4 16
Social Science 2 11

2020-21 Secondary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution

This table displays the 2020-21 average class size and class size distribution. The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates

how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per classroom). At the secondary school level, this
information is reported by subject area rather than grade level.

Subject Aéf;:ge Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with
Size 1-22 Students 23-32 Students 33+ Students
English Language Arts 4 21
Mathematics 2 30
Science 5 13
ycial Science 4 18

2020-21 Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor

This table displays the ratio of pupils to Academic Counselor. One full time equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working
full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time.

rite e

Pupils to Academic Counselor 141

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 19 of 25 Trivium Charter School



2020-21 Student Support Services Staff

This table displays the number of FTE support staff assigned to this school. One full time equivalent (FTE) equals one staff
member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time.

Title Number of FTE Assigned to School

Counselor (Academic, Social/Behavioral or Career Development) 3.4
Library Media Teacher (Librarian)

Library Media Services Staff (Paraprofessional)
Psychologist
Social Worker

Speech/Language/Hearing Specialist

0
0
4

0
4
1

Resource Specialist (non-teaching)

2019-20 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries

This table displays the 2019-20 expenditures per pupil and average teach salary for this school. Cells with N/A values do not
require data.

Total Expenditures Expenditures Average
Level Expenditures Per Pupil Per Pupil Teacher
Per Pupil Restricted Unrestricted Salar

School Site 10,433.69 2288.29 8145.40 59,187.67
Nistrict N/A N/A
. ercent Difference - School Site and District N/A N/A
Percent Difference - School Site and State N/A N/A

2020-21 Types of Services Funded

Analysis of student achievement data is built into our personalized learning model. Each month, teachers and staff alike are
given time to meet in their Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) with their grade level or subject level. California
Dashboard indicators, individual student data, student achievement (and student struggles) are discussed. Solutions to
challenges and needed differentiation for lessons are discussed and solved during these meetings. The groups share their
findings with the Academic Leadership which helps drive needed changes and further inquiry.

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 20 of 25 Trivium Charter School



2019-20 Teacher and Administrative Salaries

This table displays the 2019-20 Teacher and Administrative salaries. For detailed information on salaries, see the CDE
Certification Salaries & Benefits web page at http://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/.

State Average
for Districts
in Same Categor

District
Amount

Category

Beginning Teacher Salary

Mid-Range Teacher Salary

Highest Teacher Salary

Average Principal Salary (Elementary)
Average Principal Salary (Middle)
Average Principal Salary (High)
Superintendent Salary

Percent of Budget for Teacher Salaries

Percent of Budget for Administrative Salaries

2020-21 Advanced Placement (AP) Courses

This table displays the percent of student in AP courses at this school.
Percent of Students in AP Courses

This table displays the number of AP courses offered at this school where there are student course enrollments of at least one
dent.

Computer Science 0
English

Fine and Performihg Arts
Foreign Language
Mathematics

Science

Social Science

o O o o o o o

Total»AP Courses Offered

Professional Development

Analysis of student achievement data is built into our personalized learning model. Each month, teachers and staff alike are

given time to meet in their Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) with their grade level or subject level. California

Dashboard indicators, individual student data, student achievement (and student struggles) are discussed. Solutions to

~hallenges and needed differentiation for lessons are discussed and solved during these meetings. The groups share their
.dings with the Academic Leadership which helps drive needed changes and further inquiry.

This table displays the number of school days dedicated to staff development and continuous improvement.

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 21 of 25 Trivium Charter School



Professional Development

Number of school days dedicated to Staff Development and Continuous Improvement

Trivium Charter School
2020-21 Local Accountability Report Card (LARC) Addendum

Local Accountability Report Card (LARC) Addendum

2020-21 Local Accountability Report  On July 14, 2021, the California State Board of Education (SBE) determined that
Card (LARC) Addendum Overview the California Department of Education (CDE) will use the SARC as the mechanism
to conduct a one-time data collection of the LEA-level aggregate test results of all
school's local assessments administered during the 2020-2021 school year in
order to meet the federal Every Students Succeeds Act (ESSA) reporting
requirement for the Local Educational Agency Accountability Report Cards
(LARCs).

Each local educational agency (LEA) is responsible for preparing and posting their
annual LARC in accordance with the federal ESSA. As a courtesy, the CDE
prepares and posts the LARCs on behalf of all LEAs.

Only for the 2020—-2021 school year and the 2020-2021 LARCs, LEAs are required
to report their aggregate local assessments test results at the LEA-level to the CDE
by populating the tables below via the SARC. These data will be used to meet the
LEAs' federal requirement for their LARCs. Note that it is the responsibility of the
school and LEA to ensure that all student privacy and suppression rules are in
place when reporting data in Tables 3 and 4 in the Addendum, as applicable.

The tables below are not part of the SBE approved 2020-2021 SARC template but
rather are the mechanism by which these required data will be collected from LEAs.

For purposes of the LARC and the following tables, an LEA is defined as a school
district, a county office of education, or a direct funded charter school.

2021-22 District Contact Information

District Name Trivium Charter School
Phone Number (805) 291-1303
Superintendent : Trisha Vais

Email Address tvais@triviumcharter.org
District Website Address www.triviumcharter.org

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 22 of 25 Trivium Charter School



2020-21 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group

This table displays CAASPP test results in ELA by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking
and completing a state-administered assessment. The CDE will populate this table for schools in cases where the school
ministered the CAASPP assessment. In cases where the school administered a local assessment instead of CAASPP, the

~JE will populate this table with “NT” values, meaning this school did not test students using the CAASPP. See the local
assessment(s) table for more information.

CAASPP | CAASPP | CAASPP | caaspp | CAASPP
CAASPP Percent
Total Number Percent Percent
Student Groups Enrollment |  Tested Tested | Not Tested | . Metor
es este Exceeded
All Students 118 NT NT NT NT
Female 54 NT NT NT NT
Male 64 NT NT NT NT
American Indian or Alaska Native - NT NT NT NT
Asian

Black or African American

Filipino 0 0 0
Hispanic or Latino 61 NT NT NT NT
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0 0 0 0
Two or More Races - NT NT NT NT
White 51 NT NT NT NT
English Learners -- NT NT NT NT
“aster Youth 0 0 0 0 0
Homeless -- NT NT NT NT
Military : 0 0 0 0 0
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 57 NT NT NT NT
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0 0 0 0 0
Students with Disabilities 21 NT NT NT NT

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 23 of 25 Trivium Charter School



2020-21 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group

This table displays CAASPP test results in Math by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking
and completing a state-administered assessment. The CDE will populate this table for schools in cases where the school
ministered the CAASPP assessment. In cases where the school administered a local assessment instead of CAASPP, the

~OE will populate this table with “NT” values, meaning this school did not test students using the CAASPP. See the local
assessment(s) table for more information.

CAASPP CAASPP | CAASPP | CAASPP | caaspp | CAASPP
conamont | e | Toreent | e | _ator
Exceeded

All Students 118 NT NT NT NT
Female 54 NT NT NT NT
Male 64 NT NT NT NT
American Indian or Alaska Native -- NT NT NT NT
Asian 0 0 0 0 0
Black or African American
Filipino 0
Hispanic or Latino 61 NT NT NT NT
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0 0 0 0
Two or More Races - NT NT NT NT
White 51 NT NT NT
English Learners -- NT NT NT NT

‘»ster Youth 0 0 0 0 0
Homeless -- NT NT NT NT
Military 0 0 0 0 0
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 57 NT NT NT NT
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0 0 0 0 0
Students with Disabilities 21 NT NT NT NT

2020-21 Local Assessment Test Results in ELA by Student Group

This table displays Local Assessment test results in ELA by student group for students grades three through eight and grade
eleven. LEAs/schools will populate this table for schools in cases where the school administered a local assessment. In cases
where the school administered the CAASPP assessment, LEAs/schools will populate this table with “N/A” values in all cells,
meaning this table is Not Applicable for this school.

|*At or above the grade-level standard in the context of the local assessment administered.

2020-21 Local Assessment Test Results in Math by Student Group

This table displays Local Assessment test results in Math by student group for students grades three through eight and grade

eleven. LEAs/schools will populate this table for schools in cases where the school administered a local assessment. In cases

where the school administered the CAASPP assessment, LEAs/schools will populate this table with “N/A" values in all cells,
raning this table is Not Applicable for this school.

| Ator above the grade-level standard in the context of the local assessment administered.

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 24 of 25 Trivium Charter School



2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 25 of 25 Trivium Charter School



Trivium Charter School Adventure
2021 School Accountability Report Card

weneral Information about the School Accountability Report Card (SARC)

SARC Overview

DataQuest

[DataQuest

Coigorsa DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

California School Dashboard

S California School
4 é?‘\ DASHBOARD

Internet Access

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card

By February 1 of each year, every school in California is required by state law to
publish a School Accountability Report Card (SARC). The SARC contains
information about the condition and performance of each California public school.
Under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) all local educational agencies
(LEAs) are required to prepare a Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP),
which describes how they intend to meet annual school-specific goals for all pupils,
with specific activities to address state and local priorities. Additionally, data
reported in an LCAP is to be consistent with data reported in the SARC.

For more information about SARC requirements and access to prior year reports,
see the California Department of Education (CDE) SARC web page at
www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/

For more information about the LCFF or the LCAP, see the CDE LCFF web page
at www.cde.ca.gov/fa/aa/lc/

For additional information about the school, parents/guardians and community
members should contact the school principal or the district office.

DataQuest is an online data tool located on the CDE DataQuest web page at
dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/ that contains additional information about this school and
comparisons of the school to the district and the county. Specifically, DataQuest is
a dynamic system that provides reports for accountability (e.g., test data,
enroliment, high school graduates, dropouts, course enrollments, staffing, and data
regarding English learners).

The California School Dashboard {Dashboard) www.caschooldashboard.org/
reflects California’s new accountability and continuous improvement system and
provides information about how LEAs and schools are meeting the needs of
California’s diverse student population. The Dashboard contains reports that
display the performance of LEAs, schools, and student groups on a set of state
and local measures to assist in identifying strengths, challenges, and areas in
need of improvement.

Internet access is available at public libraries and other locations that are publicly
accessible (e.g., the California State Library). Access to the Internet at libraries and
public locations is generally provided on a first-come, first-served basis. Other use
restrictions may include the hours of operation, the length of time that a workstation
may be used (depending on availability), the types of software programs available
on a workstation, and the ability to print documents.

Page 1 of 27 Trivium Charter School Adventure



2021-22 School Contact Information

School Name
“treet

City, State, Zip
Phone Number
Principal

Email Address
School Website

Trivium Charter School Adventure
1305 North H Street A/332
Lompoc, CA 93436
805-291-1303

Trisha Vais
tvais@triviumcharter.org

www.triviumcharter.org

County-District-School (CDS) Code 4269112 0137877

2021-22 District Contact Information

District Name Trivium Charter School Adventure
805-291-9110

Trisha Vais

Phone Number
Superintendent

Email Address

District Website Address

tvais@triviumcharter.org

www.triviumcharter.org

021-22 School Overview

. >SA offers project-based learning in a classroom environment combined with a customized, self-paced, home-study setting
with a Classical Education focus. California credentialed teachers collaborate with parents/guardians to develop and deliver an
educational program based on each student’s unique and changing needs. Trivium Charter follows a four-year, Classical
Education model using history and science as the central theme for the classroom days. Students are able to proceed at their
own appropriate pace while also having the option to join group classes online or in-person for a more traditional classroom
experience. Students may receive instruction for their home-study courses through our virtual Connect Program with
synchronous classes taught by credentialed teachers, asynchronous online curriculum, traditional textbook curricula, college
classes, or a customized approach blending various elements.

The vast majority of students attend learning center classes two days a week (these are considered “ACE” days- or “A
Classical Experience”), where the best of Classical Methodologies and Project-Based Learning are blended. In response to the
pandemic, we have now introduced a fully virtual program “ACE-D” (ACE-Distance), where the on-campus class content taught
by our credentialed teachers is now offered virtually, twice a week- so those students who want to remain at home are able to
access the well-developed lesson plans previously only available to those in person. A smaller number of students enroll in our
Full Independent Study Program “ACE-R” (ACE-Remote), in which they do not attend in-person or synchronous online classes
with our credentialed teachers, but progress through approved curricula and access the “ACE” content for history and science.

Students learn to apply their math and language arts skills within the context of history and science during the ACE days
whether they join online or in-person. Our students study poetry, short stories, and literature from the year’s assigned time
period as a cross-curricular aspect to enhance their understanding. Practical math units are also embedded within history and
science, supporting cross-disciplinary connections. All components of the learning program are outlined for each student in
their Personalized Learning Plan (PLP). Students and their families work with their teachers and members of the Trivium
curriculum team to choose, direct, and implement appropriate personalized curriculum for each student. Each year Trivium has
a theme, which enables students to form connections across disciplines and a deeper understanding of the time period. This
themed approach cycles every 4 years allowing students to revisit a given time period at greater depth as they mature in
content understanding.

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 2 of 27

Trivium Charter School Adventure



About this School

2020-21 Student Enroliment by Grade Level

.«indergarten 23
Grade 1 27
Grade 2 18
Grade 3 16
Grade 4 19
Grade 5 21

Grade 6 19
Grade 7 21

Grade 8 21
Grade 9 11
Grade 10 5

Grade 11 8

Grade 12 12
Total Enrollment 221

2020-21 Student Enroliment by Student Group

Female 51.1
Male 48.9
Black or African American 23
Filipino 0.9
Hispanic or Latino 19.9
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0.5
Two or More Races 14.5
White 56.1
English Learners 0.5
Homeless 0.5
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 22.6
Students with Disabilities 12.2

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 3 of 27 Trivium Charter School Adventure



A. Conditions of Learning State Priority: Basic

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Basic
(Priority 1):

» Degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in
the subject area and for the pupils they are teaching;
Pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials; and
School facilities are maintained in good repair

Note: For more information refer to the Updated Teacher Equity Definitions web
page at hitps://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/teacherequitydefinitions.asp

2019-20 Teacher Preparation and Placement
m

Fully (Preliminary or Clear) Credentialed for Subject and Student Placement (properly assigned)

Intern Credential Holders Properly Assigned 0
Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (“ineffective” under ESSA) 0
Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (“out-of-field” under ESSA) 0
Unknown 0
Total Teaching Positions 22

Note: The data in this table is based on Full Time Equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one staff member working full time;

2 FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as
a position that an educator is assigned to based on setting, subject, and grade level. An authorization is defined as the services
that an educator is authorized to provide to students.

2019-20 Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA)

Authorization/Assignment m

Permits and Waivers

Misassignments

Vacant Positions

o O O O

Total Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments

2019-20 Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA)

b | a0

Credentialed Teachers Authorized on a Permit or Waiver 0
Local Assignment Options 0
Total Out-of-Field Teachers 0

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 4 of 27 Trivium Charter School Adventure



2019-20 Class Assignments

e 1w

“isassignments for English Learners 0
. percentage of all the classes with English learners taught by teachers that are misassigned)
No credential, permit or authorization to teach 0

(a percentage of all the classes taught by teachers with no record of an authorization to teach)

2021-22 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials

All Trivium students have their own instructional materials.

Year and month in which the data were collected

From Percent
. . Most Students
Textbooks and Other'Ll:’s;)trLtuic(.;trllonal Materials/year of Recent | Lacking Own
P Adoption Assigned
? Cop

Reading/Language Arts Various, standards-aligned instructional materials Yes 0
Mathematics Various, standards-aligned instructional materials Yes 0
Science Various, standards-aligned instructional materials Yes 0
History-Social Science Various, standards-aligned instructional materials Yes 0

Jreigh Language Various, standards-aligned instructional materials Yes 0
Health Various, standards-aligned instructional materials Yes 0
Visual and Performing Arts Various, standards-aligned instructional materials Yes 0
Science Laboratory Equipment Various, standards-aligned instructional materials Yes 0

(grades 9-12)

School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements

Trivium is a non-classroom-based school and rents facilities.
Year and month of the most recent FIT report August 2021
Rate | Rate | Rate . .
System Inspected Repair Needed and Action Taken or Planned
Systems: X
Gas Leaks, Mechanical/HVAC, Sewer
Interior: X
interior Surfaces
Cleanliness: X
Overall Cleanliness, Pest/Vermin Infestation
ectrical X
Restrooms/Fountains: X

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 5 of 27 Trivium Charter School Adventure



School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements

Restrooms, Sinks/ Fountains

Safety: X
Fire Safety, Hazardous Materials

-tructural: X
Structural Damage, Roofs

External: X
Playground/School Grounds, Windows/
Doors/Gates/Fences

Overall Facility Rate

X

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 6 of 27 Trivium Charter School Adventure



B. Pupil Outcomes

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card

State Priority: Pupil Achievement

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Pupil
Achievement (Priority 4):

Statewide Assessments

(i.e., California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress [CAASPP]
System includes the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for students in
the general education population and the California Alternate Assessments [CAAs]
for English language arts/literacy [ELA] and mathematics given in grades three
through eight and grade eleven. Only eligible students may participate in the
administration of the CAAs. CAAs items are aligned with alternate achievement
standards, which are linked with the Common Core State Standards [CCSS] for
students with the most significant cognitive disabilities).

The CAASPP System encompasses the following assessments and student
participation requirements:

1. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for ELA in grades
three through eight and grade eleven.

2. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for mathematics
in grades three through eight and grade eleven.

3. California Science Test (CAST) and CAAs for Science in grades five, eight,
and once in high school (i.e., grade ten, eleven, or twelve).

SARC Reporting in the 2020-2021 School Year Only

Where the most viable option, LEAs were required to administer the statewide
summative assessment in ELA and mathematics. Where a statewide summative
assessment was not the most viable option for the LEA (or for one or more grade-
level[s] within the LEA) due to the pandemic, LEAs were allowed to report results
from a different assessment that met the criteria established by the State Board of
Education (SBE) on March 16, 2021. The assessments were required to be:

» Aligned with CA CCSS for ELA and mathematics;

e Available to students in grades 3 through 8, and grade 11; and

+ Uniformly administered across a grade, grade span, school, or district to all
eligible students.

Options

Note that the CAAs could only be administered in-person following health and
safety requirements. If it was not viable for the LEA to administer the CAAs in
person with health and safety guidelines in place, the LEA was directed to not
administer the tests. There were no other assessment options available for the
CAAs. Schools administered the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for
ELA and mathematics, other assessments that meet the SBE criteria, or a
combination of both, and they could only choose one of the following:

¢ Smarter Balanced ELA and mathematics summative assessments;

e Other assessments meeting the SBE criteria; or

e Combination of Smarter Balanced ELA and mathematics summative
assessments and other assessments.

The percentage of students who have successfully completed courses that satisfy

the requirements for entrance to the University of California and the California State
University, or career technical education sequences or programs of study.

Page 7 of 27 Trivium Charter School Adventure



Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP

This table displays CAASPP test results in ELA and mathematics for all students grades three through eight and grade eleven
taking and completing a state-administered assessment.

.1e 2019-2020 data cells with N/A values indicate that the 2019-2020 data are not available due to the COVID-19 pandemic and
resulting summative test suspension. The Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the assessment, accountability, and
reporting requirements for the 2019-2020 school year.

The 2020-2021 data cells have N/A values because these data are not comparable to other year data due to the COVID-19
pandemic during the 2020-2021 school year. Where the CAASPP assessments in ELA and/or mathematics is not the most viable
option, the LEAs were allowed to administer local assessments. Therefore, the 2020-2021 data between school years for the
school, district, state are not an accurate comparison. As such, it is inappropriate to compare results of the 2020-2021 school year

to other school years.
School School District District State State
2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Mathematics N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
{grades 3-8 and 11)

English Language Arts/Literacy
(grades 3-8 and 11)

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 8 of 27 Trivium Charter Schoot Adventure



2020-21 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group

This table displays CAASPP test results in ELA by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking
and completing a state-administered assessment. The CDE will populate this table for schools in cases where the school

‘ministered the CAASPP assessment. In cases where the school administered a local assessment instead of CAASPP, the
-JE will populate this table with “NT” values, meaning this school did not test students using the CAASPP. See the local
assessment(s) table for more information.

CAASPP CAASPP | CAASPP | CAASPP | caaspp | CAASPO
covmment | oo | ogent | fereert |t
Exceeded

All Students 117 NT NT NT NT
Female 58 NT NT NT NT
Male 59 NT NT NT NT
American Indian or Alaska Native 0 0 0 0
Asian 0 0 0 0 0
Black or African American - NT NT NT NT
Filipino -- NT NT NT NT
Hispanic or Latino 19 NT NT NT NT
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander -- NT NT NT NT
Two or More Races 28 NT NT NT NT
White 66 NT NT NT NT
English Learners -- NT NT NT NT
“aster Youth 0 0 0 0 0
Homeless

Military 0

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 20 NT NT NT NT
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0 0 0 0 0
Students with Disabilities 17 NT NT NT NT

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 9 of 27 Trivium Charter School Adventure



2020-21 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group

This table displays CAASPP test results in Math by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking
and completing a state-administered assessment. The CDE will populate this table for schools in cases where the school

‘ministered the CAASPP assessment. In cases where the school administered a local assessment instead of CAASPP, the
-JE will populate this table with “NT” values, meaning this school did not test students using the CAASPP. See the local
assessment(s) table for more information.

CAASPP | CAASPP | CAASPP | caAspp | CAASPP
CAASPP Percent
Total Number Percent Percent
Student Groups Enrollment | Tested Tested | NotTested | _Metor
e este este e Exceeded

All Students 117 NT NT NT NT
Female 58 NT NT NT NT
Male 59 NT NT NT NT
American Indian or Alaska Native 0
Asian 0 0 0

Black or African American - NT NT NT NT
Filipino -- NT NT NT NT
Hispanic or Latino 19 NT NT NT NT
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander -- NT NT NT NT
Two or More Races 28 NT NT NT NT
White 66 NT NT NT NT
English Learners _ -- NT NT NT NT

“vster Youth 0 0 0 0 0
Homeless 0
Military
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 20 NT NT NT NT
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0 0 0 0 0
Students with Disabilities 17 NT NT NT NT

2020-21 Local Assessment Test Results in ELA by Student Group

This table displays Local Assessment test results in ELA by student group for students grades three through eight and grade
eleven. LEAs/schools will populate this table for schools in cases where the school administered a local assessment. In cases
where the school administered the CAASPP assessment, LEAs/schools will populate this table with “N/A” values in all cells,
meaning this table is Not Applicable for this school.

: iReady iReady iReady iReady iReady
iReady Percent
Total Number Percent Percent
Student Groups Enroliment Tested Tested Not Tested At or Above
Grade Level
All Students
Female 54 48 89 1 54
Male 58 56 97 3 39
nerican Indian or Alaska Native 0 0 0 0
Asian 0 0 0 0 0

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 10 of 27 Trivium Charter School Adventure



Black or African American 2 2 100 0 50
Filipino 1 1 100 0 0
Hispanic or Latino 18 17 94 6 35
- Mative Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 1 1 100 0 0
«wo or More Races 16 15 94 6 47
White 74 68 92 8 50
English Learners 1 1 100 0 0
Foster Youth 0 0 0 0 0
Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Military N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 20 19 95 5 32
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0 0 0 0 0
Students with Disabilities 14 13 93 7 54
*At or above the grade-level standard in the context of the local assessment administered.

2020-21 Local Assessment Test Results in Math by Student Group

This table displays Local Assessment test results in Math by student group for students grades three through eight and grade
eleven. LEAs/schools will populate this table for schools in cases where the school administered a local assessment. In cases
where the school administered the CAASPP assessment, LEAs/schools will populate this table with “N/A” values in all cells,
meaning this table is Not Applicable for this school.
iReady iReady iReady RCETY ;zﬁgg:t
covamen et | ooy |Ator Above
Grade Level
All Students 112 106 95 5 34
Female 54 49 91 9 41
Male 58 57 98 2 28
American Indian or Alaska Native 0 0 0 0 0
Asian 0 0 0 0 0
Black or African American 2 2 100 0 0
Filipino 1 1 100 0 0
Hispanic or Latino 18 17 94 6 35
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 1 1 100 0 0
Two or More Races 16 15 94 6 20
White 74 70 95 5 39
English Learners 1 1 100 0 0
Foster Youth 0 0 0 0 0
Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Military N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
“acioeconomically Disadvantaged 20 19 95 5 21
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0 0 0 0 0

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 11 of 27 Trivium Charter School Adventure



Students with Disabilities 14 13 93 7 38
*At or above the grade-level standard in the context of the local assessment administered.

BAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students

This table displays the percentage of all students grades five, eight, and High School meeting or exceeding the State Standard.

The 2019-2020 data cells with N/A values indicate that the 2019-2020 data are not available due to the COVID-19 pandemic and
resulting summative testing suspension. The Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the assessment, accountability,
and reporting requirements for the 2019-2020 school year.

For any 2020-2021 data cells with N/T values indicate that this school did not test students using the CAASPP Science.

School School District District State State
2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21
Science N/A NT N/A NT N/A 28.72

{(grades 5, 8 and high school)

2020-21 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group

This table displays CAASPP test results in Science by student group for students grades five, eight, and High School. For any
data cells with N/T values indicate that this school did not test students using the CAASPP Science.

Percent
All Students 48 NT NT NT NT
“emale 28 NT NT NT NT
~iale 20 NT NT NT NT
American Indian or Alaska Native 0 0 0 0 0
Asian 0 0 0 0
Black or African American - NT NT NT NT
Filipino 0 0 0 0 0
Hispanic or Latino - NT NT NT NT
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0 0 0 0
Two or More Races -- NT NT NT NT
White 33 NT NT NT NT
English Learners 0 0 0 0 0
Foster Youth 0 0 0 0
Homeless 0 0 0 0
Military 0 0 0 0
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged -- NT NT NT NT
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0 0 0 0 0
Students with Disabilities - NT NT NT NT

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 12 of 27 Trivium Charter School Adventure



2020-21 Career Technical Education Programs

2020-21 Career Technical Education (CTE) Participation
T ————— T

Number of Pupils Participating in CTE

Percent of Pupils that Complete a CTE Program and Earn a High School Diploma 0

Percent of CTE Courses that are Sequenced or Articulated Between the School and 0
Institutions of Postsecondary Education

Course Enroliment/Completion

This table displays the course enroliment/completion of University of California (UC) and/or California State University (CSU)
admission requirements.

2020-2021 Pupils Enrolled in Courses Required for UC/CSU Admission 47
2019-2020 Graduates Who Completed All Courses Required for UC/CSU Admission 0
B. Pupil Outcomes State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Other
Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8): Pupil outcomes in the subject area of physical
education.

2020-21 California Physical Fitness Test Results

Due to the COVID-19 crisis, the Physical Fitness Test was suspended during the 2020-2021 school year and therefore no data
are reported and each cell in this table is populated with “N/A.”

Grade Level Percentage of Students Meeting | Percentage of Students Meeting | Percentage of Students Meeting
Four of Six Fitness Standards Five of Six Fltness Standards Six of Six Fitness Standards

Grade 5

Grade 7 N/A N/A N/A

Grade 9 N/A N/A : N/A
C. Engagement State Priority: Parental Involvement

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Parental
Involvement (Priority 3): Efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in
making decisions regarding the school district and at each school site.

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 13 of 27 Trivium Charter School Adventure



2021-22 Opportunities for Parental Involvement

Trivium engages parents through such means as Parent Square contact, email communication, parent surveys, conferences,
parent coffees, orientations, parent-run tatks about independent study, and feedback after independent study checks. Before
“~hool begins each year, parents are invited to attend orientations on campus and virtually. They are able to meet with their

Jdent’s teacher, pick up curriculum, sign paperwork, get familiar with the center, and ask questions as needed. Throughout
the year, each teacher provides their families with a weekly agenda that communicates important school news, due dates, and
detailed information about what their students will be learning in the upcoming week. Parent Coffees are held at each center
by Trivium staff to support parents in their efforts, review recent research, and share personal experiences. Parents are not
only supported by the Trivium staff, but also find Parent Coffees a valuable time where they are able to support one another
and share ideas to enhance their experience. Since March of 2020, most in-person activities and meetings, outside of in-
person classroom attendance, have been curtailed due to the COVID Pandemic. Trivium will resume all in-person activities as
State and County regulations allow.

C. Engagement State Priority: Pupil Engagement

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Pupil
Engagement (Priority 5):

¢ High school dropout rates;
¢ High school graduation rates; and
o Chronic Absenteeism

opout Rate and Graduation Rate (Four-Year Cohort Rate)

School School School District District District State State State
2018-19 | 2019-20 | 2020-21 2018-19 | 2019-20 | 2020-21 2018-19 | 2019-20 | 2020-21
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 9.0 8.9 9.4

Dropout Rate

Graduation Rate 100 100 100 100 100 100 84.5 84.2 83.6

2020-21 Graduation Rate by Student Group (Four-Year Cohort Rate)

This table displays the 2020-21 graduation rate by student group. For information on the Four-Year Adjusted Cohort Graduation
Rate (ACGR), visit the CDE Adjusted Cohort Graduation Rate web page at www.cde.ca.qov/ds/ad/acgrinfo.asp.

Student Grou Number of Number of Cohort
p Students in Cohort Cohort Graduates Graduation Rate

All Students 12 12 100
Female 11 11 100
Male -- -- --

American Indian or Alaska Native 0 0 0.00
Asian 0 0 0.00

Black or African American - —

lipino 0 0 0.00
Hispanic or Latino -

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 14 of 27 Trivium Charter School Adventure



Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0 0.00

Two or More Races 0 0 0.00
White - - -

“nglish Learners 0.0 0.0 0.0
roster Youth 0.0 0.0 0.0
Homeless 0.0 0.0 0.0
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged - -- -

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0.0 0.0 0.0
Students with Disabilities 0.0 0.0 0.0

2020-21 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group

Student Group Enrollment .A.bsenteelsm Absenteeism | Absenteeism

Eligible Enroliment Count Rate
All Students 236 222 9 41
Female 124 115 5 4.3
Male 112 107 4 3.7
American Indian or Alaska Native 0 0 0 0.0
Asian 0 0 0 0.0
Black or African American 5 5 0 0.0
Jdipino 3 3 0 0.0
Hispanic or Latino 48 44 3 6.8
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 1 1 0 0.0
Two or More Races 31 28 1 3.6
White 148 141 5 3.5

English Learners 1 1 1 100.0
Foster Youth 0 0.0
Homeless 4 4 2 50.0
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 56 51 7 13.7
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0 0 0 0.0
Students with Disabilities 33 31 2 6.5

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 15 of 27 Trivium Charter School Adventure



C. Engagement State Priority: School Climate

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: School
Climate (Priority 6):

¢ Pupil suspension rates;
¢ Pupil expulsion rates; and
¢ Other local measures on the sense of safety

Suspensions and Expulsions

This table displays suspensions and expulsions data collected between July through June, each full school year respectively.
Data collected during the 2020-21 school year may not be comparable to earlier years of this collection due to differences in
learning mode instruction in response to the COVID-19 pandemic.

School School District District State State
2018-19 2020-21 2018-19 2020-21 2018-19 2020-21
Suspensions 0.00 0.00 0 0 3.47 0.20
Expulsions 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.08 0.00

This table displays suspensions and expulsions data collected between July through February, partial school year due to the
CQOVID-19 pandemic. The 2019-2020 suspensions and expulsions rate data are not comparable to other year data because the
2019-2020 school year is a partial school year due to the COVID-19 crisis. As such, it would be inappropriate to make any
comparisons in rates of suspensions and expulsions in the 2019-2020 school year compared to other school years.

School District State
2019-20 2019-20 2019-20
“uspensions 0.00 0 245
| cxpulsions 0.00 0.00 0.05

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 16 of 27 Trivium Charter School Adventure



2020-21 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group

I Students 0.00 0.00
Female 0.00 0.00
Male 0.00 0.00
American Indian or Alaska Native 0.00 0.00
Asian 0.00 0.00
Black or African American 0.00 0.00
Filipino 0.00 0.00
Hispanic or Latino 0.00 0.00
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0.00 0.00
Two or More Races 0.00 0.00
White 0.00 0.00
English Learners 0.00 0.00
Foster Youth 0.00 0.00
Homeless 0.00 0.00
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 0.00 0.00
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0.00 0.00
Students with Disabilities 0.00 0.00

2021-22 School Safety Plan

All guests of Trivium’s Learning Centers must sign in to the guest register which is located in each center's administration
office. Emergency training is provided to all employees annually, including fire, earthquake, lock-down, and violent intruder
protocols. Included in that training is a segment on being aware of, and how to engage, “strangers” who may be on or near the
campus. Further, emergency drills are performed at each center, putting into practice each center's emergency plan,
individually covering fire, earthquake, lock-down, and violent intruder protocols. As well, Trivium subscribes to the
ParentSquare emergency alert system, “Smart Alert.” This system allows employees and parents to be quickly and efficiently
notified in case of a general emergency affecting any Trivium Learning Center. The aforementioned emergency procedures
are posted in every Trivium office and classroom. Emergency supplies are located in each classroom inclusive of water, food
bars, a flashlight, and toilet necessities. Trivium has developed a Comprehensive School Safety Plan in accordance with
California Education Code 32281. This plan is updated annually and is available for viewing at each Learning Center office.

Upkeep and cleanliness of each Learning Center is generally maintained by Trivium Learning Center support staff. At the end
of student lunch recess, predesignated classes are responsible for clean-up, which helps instill pride and ownership for the
involved students. At the conclusion of each ACE day, support staff and teachers sweep, empty the trash and recycle, and
clean the restrooms. Also, before every ACE Day, a safety inspection is conducted. This safety inspection includes the
following: checking for tripping hazards, inspecting playground equipment, and ensuring all ingress and egress points are free
of obstructions. Should an issue be discovered, an emergency work order is submitted, facilitating a rapid repair of the
problem.

Regarding internet safety, our school utilizes Meraki Security Appliance at all five Centers, which allows us to filter any
inappropriate intemet content for our students. Trivium also deploys a student safety program named Securly, which is round-
the-clock auditing, shielding, and cloud-based web filtering for every student device. In addition, teachers constantly monitor
udent internet activity physically and by utilizing Securly’s Classroom Management feature. Furthermore, students are
.orbidden to access personal electronic devices without a staff member's permission. All of our school's staff members hold
current First Aid and CPR certifications. Training is held biennially, and new hires must present proof of completion before

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 17 of 27 Trivium Charter School Adventure



2021-22 School Safety Plan

beginning employment.

D. Other SARC Information Information Required in the SARC

The information in this section is required to be in the SARC but is not included in
the state priorities for LCFF.

2018-19 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution

This table displays the 2018-19 average class size and class size distribution. The columns titled “Number of Classes”
indicates how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class). The “Other” category is for multi-
grade level classes.
Class Size 1-20 Students 21-32 Students 33+ Students

K

1

2

3

4

5

6

Other 16 11

2019-20 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution

This table displays the 2019-20 average class size and class size distribution. The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates
how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class). The “Other” category is for multi-grade level
classes.

Grade Level Average Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with
Class Size 1-20 Students 21-32 Students 33+ Students
K

1
2
3
4
5

6
Other 17 11

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 18 of 27 Trivium Charter School Adventure



2020-21 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution

This table displays the 2020-21 average class size and class size distribution. The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates

how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class). The “Other” category is for multi-grade level
‘asses.

Grade Level Average Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with
Class Size 1-20 Students 21-32 Students 33+ Students
K

N S W N =

»

Other 17 11

2018-19 Secondary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution

This table displays the 2018-19 average class size and class size distribution. The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates
how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per classroom). At the secondary school level, this
information is reported by subject area rather than grade level.

Average

Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with

Class 1-22 Students 23-32 Students 33+ Students
aglish Language Arts 3 15
Mathematics 2 34
Science 1 5
Social Science 3 14

2019-20 Secondary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution

This table displays the 2019-20 average class size and class size distribution. The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates
how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per classroom). At the secondary school level, this
information is reported by subject area rather than grade level.

Subject Aé?ar:ge Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with
Size 1-22 Students 23-32 Students 33+ Students
English Language Arts 3 14
Mathematics 2 17
Science 4 10
Social Science 1 7

2021-22 School Accountability Repert Card Page 19 of 27 Trivium Charter School Adventure



2020-21 Secondary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution

This table displays the 2020-21 average class size and class size distribution. The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates
how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per classroom). At the secondary school level, this
rmation is reported by subject area rather than grade level.

Subiect A(\;(Ie;:ge Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with
! 1-22 Students 23-32 Students 33+ Students

English Language Arts 3 14
Mathematics 2 20
Science 3 15
Social Science 2 17

2020-21 Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor

This table displays the ratio of pupils to Academic Counselor. One full time equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working
full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time.

Title Ratio
Pupils to Academic Counselor 138

2020-21 Student Support Services Staff

This table displays the number of FTE support staff assigned to this school. One full time equivalent (FTE) equals one staff
:mber working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time.

Counselor (Academic, Social/Behavioral or Career Development) 3.3
Library Media Teacher (Librarian) 0
Library Media Services Staff (Paraprofessional) 0
Psychologist 3
Social Worker 0
Speech/Language/Hearing Specialist 3
Resource Specialist (non-teaching) 67

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 20 of 27 Trivium Charter School Adventure



2019-20 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries

This table displays the 2019-20 expenditures per pupil and average teach salary for this school. Cells with N/A values do not
require data.
Total Expenditures Expenditures Average
Level Expenditures Per Pupil Per Pupil Teacher
Per Pupil Restricted Unrestricted Salar

School Site 10,259.75 1542.82 8716.93 59187.67
District N/A N/A
Percent Difference - School Site and District N/A N/A
Percent Difference - School Site and State N/A N/A

2020-21 Types of Services Funded

Trivium provides an array of online and in-person classes, tutoring, study halls, aide support, project-based learning, self-paced
learning, special education support, advanced student support, and a wide selection of curricula to meet individual student
levels and preferred delivery of instruction.

2019-20 Teacher and Administrative Salaries

This table displays the 2019-20 Teacher and Administrative salaries. For detailed information on salaries, see the CDE
Certification Salaries & Benefits web page at http://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/.

District State Average
category Amount for Districts
in Same Categor

Average Principal Salary (Elementary)

—eginning Teacher Salary
Mid-Range Teacher Salary
Highest Teacher Salary

Average Principal Salary (Middle)
Average Principal Salary (High)
Superintendent Salary

Percent of Budget for Teacher Salaries

Percent of Budget for Administrative Salaries

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 21 of 27 Trivium Charter School Adventure



2020-21 Advanced Placement (AP) Courses

This table displays the percent of student in AP courses at this school.
Percent of Students in AP Courses 0

This table displays the number of AP courses offered at this school where there are student course enrollments of at least one
student.

L sweet | Numberor AP Courses ofers

Computer Science 0
English

Fine and Performing Arts
Foreign Language
Mathematics

Science

Social Science

o O o o o o o

Total AP Courses Offered

Professional Development

Analysis of student achievement data is built into our personalized learning model. Each month, teachers and staff alike are

ren time to meet in their Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) with their grade level or subject level. California
—ashboard indicators, individual student data, student achievement (and student struggles) are discussed. Solutions to
challenges and needed differentiation for lessons are discussed and solved during these meetings. The groups share their
findings with the Academic Leadership which helps drive needed changes and further inquiry.

This table displays the number of school days dedicated to staff development and continuous improvement.
25 25 25

Number of school days dedicated to Staff Development and Continuous Improvement

Trivium Charter School Adventure
2020-21 Local Accountability Report Card (LARC) Addendum

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 22 of 27 Trivium Charter School Adventure



Local Accountability Report Card (LARC) Addendum

2020-21 Local Accountability Report
Card (LARC) Addendum Overview

2021-22 District Contact Information

District Name Trivium Charter School Adventure
one Number 805-291-9110

Superintendent Trisha Vais

Email Address tvais@triviumcharter.org

District Website Address www.triviumcharter.org

On July 14, 2021, the California State Board of Education (SBE) determined that
the California Department of Education (CDE) will use the SARC as the mechanism
to conduct a one-time data collection of the LEA-level aggregate test results of all
school’s local assessments administered during the 2020-2021 school year in
order to meet the federal Every Students Succeeds Act (ESSA) reporting
requirement for the Local Educational Agency Accountability Report Cards
(LARCs).

Each local educational agency (LEA) is responsible for preparing and posting their
annual LARC in accordance with the federal ESSA. As a courtesy, the CDE
prepares and posts the LARCs on behalf of all LEAs.

Only for the 2020-2021 school year and the 2020-2021 LARCs, LEAs are required
to report their aggregate local assessments test results at the LEA-level to the CDE
by populating the tables below via the SARC. These data will be used to meet the
LEASs' federal requirement for their LARCs. Note that it is the responsibility of the
school and LEA to ensure that all student privacy and suppression rules are in
place when reporting data in Tables 3 and 4 in the Addendum, as applicable.

The tables below are not part of the SBE approved 2020-2021 SARC template but
rather are the mechanism by which these required data will be collected from LEAs.

For purposes of the LARC and the following tables, an LEA is defined as a school
district, a county office of education, or a direct funded charter school.

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card

Page 23 of 27 Trivium Charter School Adventure



2020-21 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group

This table displays CAASPP test results in ELA by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking
and completing a state-administered assessment. The CDE will populate this table for schools in cases where the school
‘ministered the CAASPP assessment. In cases where the school administered a local assessment instead of CAASPP, the
~JE will populate this table with “NT” values, meaning this school did not test students using the CAASPP. See the local
assessment(s) table for more information.
CAASPP | CAASPP | CAASPP | caaspp | CAASPP
CAASPP Percent
Total Number Percent Percent
Student Groups Enrollment | Tested Tested | NotTested | _Metor
rollm ste este e Exceeded
All Students 118 NT NT NT NT
Female 54 NT NT NT NT
Male 64 NT NT NT NT
American Indian or Alaska Native -- NT NT NT NT
Asian 0 0 0 0 0
Black or African American 0 0 0
Filipino 0 0 0 0 0
Hispanic or Latino 61 NT NT NT NT
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0 0 0 0
Two or More Races -- NT NT NT NT
White 51 NT NT NT NT
English Learners - NT NT NT NT
ster Youth 0 0 0 0 0
Homeless -- NT NT NT NT
Military 0 0 0 0 0
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 57 NT NT NT NT
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0 0 0 0 0
Students with Disabilities 21 NT NT NT NT

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 24 of 27 Trivium Charter School Adventure



2020-21 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group

This table displays CAASPP test results in Math by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking
and completing a state-administered assessment. The CDE will populate this table for schools in cases where the school

“ministered the CAASPP assessment. In cases where the school administered a local assessment instead of CAASPP, the
-JE will populate this table with “NT” values, meaning this school did not test students using the CAASPP. See the local
assessment(s) table for more information.

CAASPP | CAASPP | CAASPP | caaspp | CAASPP
CAASPP Percent
Student Groups Total Number Percent Percent Met or
Enroliment Tested Tested Not Tested
Exceeded
All Students 118 NT NT NT NT
Female 54 NT NT NT NT
Male 64 NT NT NT NT
American Indian or Alaska Native - NT NT NT NT
Asian

Black or African American

Filipino 0 0 0 0

Hispanic or Latino 61 NT NT NT NT
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0 0 0 0
Two or More Races - NT NT NT NT
White 51 NT NT NT
English Learners - NT NT NT NT
“sster Youth 0 0 0 0 0
Homeless - NT NT NT NT
Military 0 0 0 0 0
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 57 NT NT NT NT
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0 0 0 0 0
Students with Disabilities 21 NT NT NT NT

2020-21 Local Assessment Test Results in ELA by Student Group

This table displays Local Assessment test results in ELA by student group for students grades three through eight and grade
eleven. LEAs/schools will populate this table for schools in cases where the school administered a local assessment. In cases
where the school administered the CAASPP assessment, LEAs/schools will populate this table with “N/A" values in all cells,
meaning this table is Not Applicable for this schoaol.

iRead iReady iReady iReady iReady I;I:(:::r)\/t
Student Gg’ou s Total Number Percent Percent At or Above
P Enrollment Tested Tested Not Tested

Grade Level

All Students 112 104 46

Female 54 48 89 11 54

Male 58 56 97 3 39
.nerican Indian or Alaska Native 0 0

Asian

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 25 of 27 Trivium Charter School Adventure



Black or African American 2 2 100 0 50
Filipino 1 1 100 0 0
Hispanic or Latino 18 17 94 6 35
Mative Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 1 1 100 0 0
+ wo or More Races 16 15 94 6 47
White 74 68 92 8 50
English Learners 1 1 100 0 0
Foster Youth 0 0 0 0 0
Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Military N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 20 19 95 5 32
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0 0 0 0 0
Students with Disabilities 14 13 93 7 54
*At or above the grade-level standard in the context of the local assessment administered.

2020-21 Local Assessment Test Results in Math by Student Group

This table displays Local Assessment test resuits in Math by student group for students grades three through eight and grade
eleven. LEAs/schools will populate this table for schools in cases where the school administered a local assessment. In cases
where the school administered the CAASPP assessment, LEAs/schools will populate this table with “N/A” values in all cells,
meaning this table is Not Applicable for this school.
Ready iReady iReady iReady iReady Ready
covopent | ameer | Fercent | Percent | ator above
Grade Level

All Students 112 106 95 5 34
Female 54 49 91 9 41

Male 58 57 98 2 28
American Indian or Alaska Native 0 0 0 0

Asian 0 0 0 0

Black or African American 2 2 100 0

Filipino 1 1 100 0 0
Hispanic or Latino 18 17 94 6 35
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 1 1 100 0 0

Two or More Races 16 15 94 6 20
White 74 70 95 5 39
English Learners 1 1 100 0 0
Foster Youth 0 0 0 0 0
Homeless N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Military N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
“acioeconomically Disadvantaged 20 19 95 5 21
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0 0 0 0 0

2021-22 Schoo! Accountability Report Card Page 26 of 27 Trivium Charter School Adventure



Students with Disabilities 14 13 93 7 38
*At or above the grade-level standard in the context of the local assessment administered.

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 27 of 27 Trivium Charter Schoo! Adventure



Trivium Charter School, Voyage
2021 School Accountability Report Card

Leneral Information about the School Accountability Report Card (SARC)

SARC Overview By February 1 of each year, every school in California is required by state law to
publish a School Accountability Report Card (SARC). The SARC contains
information about the condition and performance of each California public school.
Under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) all local educational agencies
(LEAs) are required to prepare a Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP),
which describes how they intend to meet annual school-specific goals for all pupils,
with specific activities to address state and local priorities. Additionally, data
reported in an LCAP is to be consistent with data reported in the SARC.

For more information about SARC requirements and access to prior year reports,
see the California Department of Education (CDE) SARC web page at
www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/

For more information about the LCFF or the LCAP, see the CDE LCFF web page
at www.cde.ca.qgov/fa/aallc/

For additional information about the school, parents/guardians and community
members should contact the school principal or the district office.

DataQuest DataQuest is an online data tool located on the CDE DataQuest web page at
dg.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/ that contains additional information about this school and
comparisons of the school to the district and the county. Specifically, DataQuest is

I\ ATA QUEST a dynamic system that provides reports for accountability (e.g., test data,

enroliment, high school graduates, dropouts, course enroliments, staffing, and data

 wiyorats DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION regarding English learners).
California School Dashboard The California School Dashboard (Dashboard) www.caschooldashboard.org/
reflects California’s new accountability and continuous improvement system and
California School provides information about how LEAs and schools are meeting the needs of

‘ ) DASHBOARD California’s diverse student population. The Dashboard contains reports that

display the performance of LEAs, schools, and student groups on a set of state
and local measures to assist in identifying strengths, challenges, and areas in
need of improvement.

Internet Access Internet access is available at public libraries and other locations that are publicly
accessible (e.g., the California State Library). Access to the Internet at libraries and
public locations is generally provided on a first-come, first-served basis. Other use
restrictions may include the hours of operation, the length of time that a workstation
may be used (depending on availability), the types of software programs available
on a workstation, and the ability to print documents.

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 1 of 22 Trivium Charter School, Voyage



2021-22 School Contact Information

School Name Trivium Charter School, Voyage
Ttreet 1305 North H Street A/332
City, State, Zip Lompoc

Phone Number 8052911303

Principal Trisha Vais

Email Address tvais@triviumcharter.org
School Website www.triviumcharter.org
County-District-School (CDS) Code 42 69112 0137885

2021-22 District Contact Information

District Name Trivium Charter School: Voyage
Phone Number 805-291-9110

Superintendent Trisha Vais

Email Address tvais@triviumcharter.org
District Website Address www.triviumcharter.org

D21-22 School Overview

. =S offers project-based learning in a classroom environment combined with a customized, self-paced, home-study setting
with a Classical Education focus. California credentialed teachers collaborate with parents/guardians to develop and deliver an
educational program based on each student’s unique and changing needs. Trivium Charter follows a four-year, Classical
Education model using history and science as the central theme for the classroom days. Students are able to proceed at their
own appropriate pace while also having the option to join group classes online or in-person for a more traditional classroom
experience. Students may receive instruction for their home-study courses through our virtual Connect Program with
synchronous classes taught by credentialed teachers, asynchronous online curriculum, traditional textbook curricula, college
classes, or a customized approach blending various elements.

The vast majority of students attend learning center classes two days a week (these are considered “ACE” days- or “A
Classical Experience”), where the best of Classical Methodologies and Project-Based Learning are blended. In response to the
pandemic, we have now introduced a fully virtual program “ACE-D” (ACE-Distance), where the on-campus class content taught
by our credentialed teachers is now offered virtually, twice a week- so those students who want to remain at home are able to
access the well-developed lesson plans previously only available to those in person. A smaller number of students enroll in our
Full Independent Study Program “ACE-R” (ACE-Remote), in which they do not attend in-person or synchronous online classes
with our credentialed teachers, but progress through approved curricula and access the “ACE" content for history and science.

Students learn to apply their math and language arts skills within the context of history and science during the ACE days
whether they join online or in-person. Our students study poetry, short stories, and literature from the year’s assigned time
period as a cross-curricular aspect to enhance their understanding. Practical math units are also embedded within history and
science, supporting cross-disciplinary connections. All components of the learning program are outlined for each student in
their Personalized Learning Plan (PLP). Students and their families work with their teachers and members of the Trivium
curriculum team to choose, direct, and implement appropriate personalized curriculum for each student. Each year Trivium has
a theme, which enables students to form connections across disciplines and a deeper understanding of the time period. This
themed approach cycles every 4 years allowing students to revisit a given time period at greater depth as they mature in
content understanding.

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 2 of 22 Trivium Charter School, Voyage



About this School

2020-21 Student Enroliment by Grade Level

.«indergarten 32
Grade 1 24
Grade 2 32
Grade 3 23
Grade 4 29
Grade 5 22
Grade 6 21

Grade 7 22

Grade 8 26
Grade 9 12
Grade 10 18
Grade 11 17
Grade 12 11

Total Enroliment 289

2020-21 Student Enroliment by Student Group

Student Group Percent of Total Enrollment

Female 51.6
Male 47.8
American Indian or Alaska Native 0.3
Asian 2.1

Black or African American 0.3
Filipino 0.7

Hispanic or Latino 13.5
Two or More Races 5.5
White 74.4
English Learners 0.7
Homeless 0.7
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 20.8
Students with Disabilities 121

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 3 of 22 Trivium Charter School, Voyage



A. Conditions of Learning State Priority: Basic

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Basic
(Priority 1):

» Degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in
the subject area and for the pupils they are teaching;

» Pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials; and

* School facilities are maintained in good repair

Note: For more information refer to the Updated Teacher Equity Definitions web
page at hitps://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/teacherequitydefinitions.asp

2019-20 Teacher Preparation and Placement
__ AuhorizatiomAssignment | 201920 |

Fully (Preliminary or Clear) Credentialed for Subject and Student Placement (properly assigned)

Intern Credential Holders Properly Assigned

Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (“ineffective” under ESSA)
Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (“out-of-field” under ESSA)
Unknown

Total Teaching Positions

Note: The data in this table is based on Full Time Equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one staff member working full time;

2 FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as
a position that an educator is assigned to based on setting, subject, and grade level. An authorization is defined as the services
that an educator is authorized to provide to students.

2019-20 Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA)

Authorization/Assignment m

Permits and Waivers
Misassignments
Vacant Positions

Total Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments

2019-20 Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA)

Credentialed Teachers Authorized on a Permit or Waiver

Local Assignment Options
Total Out-of-Field Teachers

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 4 of 22 Trivium Charter School, Voyage



2019-20 Class Assignments
e | won

*Misassignments for English Learners

percentage of all the classes with English learners taught by teachers that are misassigned)
No credential, permit or authorization to teach
(a percentage of all the classes taught by teachers with no record of an authorization to teach)

2021-22 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials

All Trivium students have their own instructional materials.
Year and month in which the data were collected
From Percent
. . Most Students
Subject Textbooks and Otherllr;sotrltxic(:’t;onal Materials/year of Recent | Lacking Own
P Adoption Assigned
? CO D
Reading/Language Arts Various, standards aligned instructional materials are used to Yes 0
meet student needs.
Mathematics Various, standards aligned instructional materials are used to Yes 0
meet student needs.
Science Various, standards aligned instructional materials are used to Yes 0
meet student needs.
‘'story-Social Science Various, standards aligned instructional materials are used to Yes 0
meet student needs.
Foreign Language Various, standards aligned instructional materials are used to Yes 0
meet student needs.
Health Various, standards aligned instructional materials are used to Yes 0
meet student needs.
Visual and Performing Arts Various, standards aligned instructional materials are used to Yes 0
meet student needs.
Science Laboratory Equipment Various, standards aligned instructional materials are used to Yes 0
(grades 9-12) meet student needs.

School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements

Year and month of the most recent FIT report

Rate Rate Rate
System Inspected Repair Needed and Action Taken or Planned

Systems:
Gas Leaks, Mechanical/HVAC, Sewer

Interior: X
Interior Surfaces

Cleanliness: X
“werall Cleanliness, Pest/Vermin Infestation

—lectrical X

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 5 of 22 Trivium Charter School, Voyage



School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements

Restrooms/Fountains:
Restrooms, Sinks/ Fountains

Safety:
‘re Safety, Hazardous Materials

structural:
Structural Damage, Roofs

External:
Playground/School Grounds, Windows/
Doors/Gates/Fences

X

X

Overall Facility Rate

X

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card

Page 6 of 22

Trivium Charter School, Voyage



B. Pupil Outcomes

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card

State Priority: Pupil Achievement

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Pupil
Achievement (Priority 4):

Statewide Assessments

(i.e., California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress [CAASPP]
System includes the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for students in
the general education population and the California Alternate Assessments [CAAS]
for English language arts/literacy [ELA] and mathematics given in grades three
through eight and grade eleven. Only eligible students may participate in the
administration of the CAAs. CAAs items are aligned with alternate achievement
standards, which are linked with the Common Core State Standards [CCSS] for
students with the most significant cognitive disabilities).

The CAASPP System encompasses the following assessments and student
participation requirements:

1. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for ELA in grades
three through eight and grade eleven.

2. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for mathematics
in grades three through eight and grade eleven.

3. California Science Test (CAST) and CAAs for Science in grades five, eight,
and once in high school (i.e., grade ten, eleven, or twelve).

SARC Reporting in the 2020-2021 School Year Only

Where the most viable option, LEAs were required to administer the statewide
summative assessment in ELA and mathematics. Where a statewide summative
assessment was not the most viable option for the LEA (or for one or more grade-
level[s] within the LEA) due to the pandemic, LEAs were allowed to report results
from a different assessment that met the criteria established by the State Board of
Education (SBE) on March 16, 2021. The assessments were required to be:

o Aligned with CA CCSS for ELA and mathematics;

e Available to students in grades 3 through 8, and grade 11; and

» Uniformly administered across a grade, grade span, school, or district to all
eligible students.

Options

Note that the CAAs could only be administered in-person following health and
safety requirements. If it was not viable for the LEA to administer the CAAs in
person with health and safety guidelines in place, the LEA was directed to not
administer the tests. There were no other assessment options available for the
CAAs. Schools administered the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for
ELA and mathematics, other assessments that meet the SBE criteria, or a
combination of both, and they could only choose one of the following:

e Smarter Balanced ELA and mathematics summative assessments;

o Other assessments meeting the SBE criteria; or

e Combination of Smarter Balanced ELA and mathematics summative
assessments and other assessments.

The percentage of students who have successfully completed courses that satisfy

the requirements for entrance to the University of California and the California State
University, or career technical education sequences or programs of study.

Page 7 of 22 Trivium Charter School, Voyage



Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP

This table displays CAASPP test results in ELA and mathematics for all students grades three through eight and grade eleven
taking and completing a state-administered assessment.

€ 2019-2020 data cells with N/A values indicate that the 2019-2020 data are not available due to the COVID-19 pandemic and
resulting summative test suspension. The Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the assessment, accountability, and
reporting requirements for the 2019-2020 school year.

The 2020-2021 data cells have N/A values because these data are not comparable to other year data due to the COVID-19
pandemic during the 2020-2021 school year. Where the CAASPP assessments in ELA and/or mathematics is not the most viable
option, the LEAs were allowed to administer local assessments. Therefore, the 2020-2021 data between school years for the

school, district, state are not an accurate comparison. As such, it is inappropriate to compare results of the 2020-2021 school year
to other school years.

Subiect School School District District State State
) 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

English Language Arts/Literacy
(grades 3-8 and 11)

Mathematics N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
(grades 3-8 and 11)

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 8 of 22 Trivium Charter School, Voyage



2020-21 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group

This table displays CAASPP test results in ELA by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking
and completing a state-administered assessment. The CDE will populate this table for schools in cases where the school

‘ministered the CAASPP assessment. In cases where the school administered a local assessment instead of CAASPP, the

JE will populate this table with “NT” values, meaning this school did not test students using the CAASPP. See the local
assessment(s) table for more information.

CAASPP | CAASPP | caasPp | caaspp | CAASPP
CAASPP Percent
Total Number Percent Percent
Student Groups Enroliment | Tested Tested | Not Tested | _Metor
ollme este este ot Te Exceeded

All Students 135 NT NT NT NT
Female 76 NT NT NT NT
Male 59 NT NT NT NT
American Indian or Alaska Native 0] 0 0] 0] 0
Asian - NT NT NT NT
Black or African American 0] 0 0 0] 0
Filipino 0] 0 0 0] 0
Hispanic or Latino 18 NT NT NT NT
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0] 0 0 0 0
Two or More Races 17 NT NT NT NT
White 97 NT NT NT NT
English Learners - NT NT NT NT
“aster Youth 0 0 0 0 0
Homeless - NT NT NT NT
Military 0 0] 0 0 0
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 24 NT NT NT NT
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0 0 0 0 0
Students with Disabilities 17 NT NT NT NT

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 9 of 22 Trivium Charter School, Voyage



2020-21 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group

This table displays CAASPP test results in Math by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking
and completing a state-administered assessment. The CDE will populate this table for schools in cases where the school
"ninistered the CAASPP assessment. In cases where the school administered a local assessment instead of CAASPP, the
- JE will populate this table with “NT” values, meaning this school did not test students using the CAASPP. See the local
assessment(s) table for more information.
CAASPP | cAAsPP | caaspp | caaspp | CAASPP
CAASPP Percent
Total Number Percent Percent
Student Groups Enroliment Tested Tested Not Tested Met or
este este Exceeded
All Students 135 NT NT NT NT
Female 76 NT NT NT NT
Male 59 NT NT NT NT
American Indian or Alaska Native 0 0 0 0 0
Asian - NT NT NT NT
Black or African American 0 0 0 0
Filipino 0 0 0 0 0
Hispanic or Latino 18 NT NT NT NT
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0 0 0 0
Two or More Races 17 NT NT NT NT
White 97 NT NT NT NT
English Learners -- NT NT NT NT .
“aster Youth 0 0 0 0 0
Homeless - NT NT N_T NT
Military 0 0 0 0 0
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 24 NT NT NT NT
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0 0 0 0 0
Students with Disabilities 17 NT NT NT NT

2020-21 Local Assessment Test Results in ELA by Student Group

This table displays Local Assessment test results in ELA by student group for students grades three through eight and grade
eleven. LEAs/schools will populate this table for schools in cases where the school administered a local assessment. in cases
where the school administered the CAASPP assessment, LEAs/schools will populate this table with “N/A” values in all cells,
meaning this table is Not Applicable for this school.

. i-Ready i-Ready i-Ready i-Ready I-Ready
i-Ready Percent
Total Number Percent Percent
Student Groups Enroliment Tested Tested Not Tested At or Above
Grade Level
All Students 135 132 2 55
Female 75 74 99 1 58
Male 60 58 97 3 50
nerican Indian or Alaska Native 0 0 0 0 0
Asian 3 3 100 0 100

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 10 of 22 Trivium Charter School, Voyage



Black or African American 0 0 0 0

Filipino 0 0 0 0

Hispanic or Latino 21 21 100 0 43
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0 0 0 0
. wo or More Races 10 9 90 10 89
White 101 99 98 2 53
English Learners 1 1 100 0 0
Foster Youth 0 0 0 0 0
Homeless 1 1 100 0 100
Military n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 27 27 100 0 41
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0 0 0 0 0
Students with Disabilities 19 18 95 5 28
*At or above the grade-level standard in the context of the local assessment administered.

2020-21 Local Assessment Test Results in Math by Student Group

This table displays Local Assessment test results in Math by student group for students grades three through eight and grade
eleven. LEAs/schools will populate this table for schools in cases where the school administered a local assessment. In cases
where the school administered the CAASPP assessment, LEAs/schools will populate this table with “N/A” values in all cells,
meaning this table is Not Applicable for this school.
-Ready i-Ready i-Ready -Ready | prcady
Student Groups Enrofiment Tosted | Not Tasted | ALor Above
Grade Level

All Students 135 132 98 2 42
Female 75 74 99 1 46

Male 60 58 97 3 38
American Indian or Alaska Native 0 0 0 0
Asian 3 100 0 67
Black or African American 0 0 0
Filipino 0 0

Hispanic or Latino 21 21 100 0 29
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0 0 0

Two or More Races 10 9 90 10 67
White 101 99 98 2 42
English Learners 1 1 100 0 0
Foster Youth 0 0 0 0 0
Homeless 1 1 100 0 100
Military n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
~ocioeconomically Disadvantaged 27 27 100 0 19
students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0 0 0 0 0

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 11 of 22 Trivium Charter School, Voyage



Students with Disabilities 19 18 95 5 17
*At or above the grade-level standard in the context of the local assessment administered.

BAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students

This table displays the percentage of all students grades five, eight, and High School meeting or exceeding the State Standard.

The 2019-2020 data cells with N/A values indicate that the 2019-2020 data are not available due to the COVID-19 pandemic and
resulting summative testing suspension. The Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the assessment, accountability,
and reporting requirements for the 2019-2020 school year.

For any 2020-2021 data cells with N/T values indicate that this school did not test students using the CAASPP Science.

Subiect School School District District State State
) 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21
N/A NT N/A NT N/A

Science 28.72
{(grades 5, 8 and high school)

2020-21 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group

This table displays CAASPP test results in Science by student group for students grades five, eight, and High School. For any
data cells with N/T values indicate that this school did not test students using the CAASPP Science.

Percent
Total Number Percent Percent
Student Group Met or
— Enrollment Tested Tested NotTested | g ceeded

All Students 53 NT NT NT NT
Female : | 32 NT NT NT NT
ale 20 NT NT NT NT
American Indian or Alaska Native 0 0 0 0 0
Asian - NT NT NT NT
Black or African American 0 0 0

Filipino 0 0 0 0 0
Hispanic or Latino -- NT NT NT NT
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0 0 0 0
Two or More Races -- NT NT NT NT
White 36 NT NT NT NT

English Learners 0 0 0 0
Foster Youth 0 0 0 0
Homeless 0 0 0 0
Military 0 0 0 0 0
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged - NT NT NT NT
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0 0 0 0 0
Students with Disabilities - NT NT NT NT

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 12 of 22 Trivium Charter School, Voyage



2020-21 Career Technical Education Programs

2020-21 Career Technical Education (CTE) Participation
T ——

Number of Pupils Participating in CTE

Percent of Pupils that Complete a CTE Program and Earn a High School Diploma 0

Percent of CTE Courses that are Sequenced or Articulated Between the School and 0
Institutions of Postsecondary Education

Course Enroliment/Completion

This table displays the course enrollment/completion of University of California (UC) and/or California State University (CSU)
admission requirements.

2020-2021 Pupils Enrolled in Courses Required for UC/CSU Admission 31
2019-2020 Graduates Who Completed All Courses Required for UC/CSU Admission 0
B. Pupil Outcomes State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Other
Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8): Pupil outcomes in the subject area of physical
education.

2020-21 California Physical Fitness Test Results

Due to the COVID-19 crisis, the Physical Fithess Test was suspended during the 2020-2021 school year and therefore no data
are reported and each cell in this table is populated with “N/A."

Grade Level Percentage of Students Meeting | Percentage of Students Meeting | Percentage of Students Meeting
Four of Six Fltness Standards Five of Six Fithess Standards Six of Six Fitness Standards

Grade 5

Grade 7 N/A N/A N/A

Grade 9 N/A N/A N/A
C. Engagement State Priority: Parental Involvement

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Parental
Involvement (Priority 3): Efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in
making decisions regarding the school district and at each school site.

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 13 of 22 Trivium Charter School, Voyage



2021-22 Opportunities for Parental Involvement

Trivium engages parents through such means as Parent Square contact, email communication, parent surveys, conferences,
parent coffees, orientations, parent-run talks about independent study, and feedback after independent study checks. Before
~<hool begins each year, parents are invited to attend orientations on campus and virtually. They are able to meet with their

ddent’s teacher, pick up curriculum, sign paperwork, get familiar with the center, and ask questions as needed. Throughout
the year, each teacher provides their families with a weekly agenda that communicates important school news, due dates, and
detailed information about what their students will be learning in the upcoming week. Parent Coffees are held at each center
by Trivium staff to support parents in their efforts, review recent research, and share personal experiences. Parents are not
only supported by the Trivium staff, but also find Parent Coffees a valuable time where they are able to support one another
and share ideas to enhance their experience. Since March of 2020, most in-person activities and meetings, outside of in-
person classroom attendance, have been curtailed due to the COVID Pandemic. Trivium will resume all in-person activities as
State and County regulations allow.

C. Engagement State Priority: Pupil Engagement

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Pupil
Engagement (Priority 5):

s High school dropout rates;
¢ High school graduation rates; and
e Chronic Absenteeism

Dropout Rate and Graduation Rate (Four-Year Cohort Rate)

School School School District District District State State State
2018-19 | 2019-20 | 2020-21 | 2018-19 | 2019-20 | 2020-21 | 2018-19 | 2019-20 | 2020-21
Dropout Rate - 27.3 2.6 2.1 8.5 9.0 8.9 9.4
Graduation Rate -- 727 94.7 89.6 90.4 84.5 84.2 83.6

2020-21 Graduation Rate by Student Group (Four-Year Cohort Rate)

This table displays the 2020-21 graduation rate by student group. For information on the Four-Year Adjusted Cohort Graduation
Rate (ACGR), visit the CDE Adjusted Cohort Graduation Rate web page at www.cde.ca.gov/ds/ad/acgrinfo.asp.

Student Grou Number of Number of Cohort
P Students in Cohort Cohort Graduates Graduation Rate

All Students 11 8 72.7
Female - -- -
Male - - -
American Indian or Alaska Native 0 0 0.00
Asian 0 0 0.00
Black or African American 0 0.00
Filipino 0 0.00
Hispanic or Latino - - -
itive Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0 0.00

Two or More Races -

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 14 of 22 Trivium Charter School, Voyage



White

English Learners 0.0 0.0 0.0
Foster Youth 0.0 0.0 0.0
Yomeless 0.0 0.0 0.0

wocioeconomically Disadvantaged --

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0.0 0.0 0.0

Students with Disabilities - - -

2020-21 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group

Chronif: Chronif: Chronig
Student Group Enrollment _Absenteelsm Absenteeism | Absenteeism
Eligible Enroliment Count Rate

All Students 300
Female 155 152 4 2.6
Male 143 139 4 2.9
American Indian or Alaska Native 1 1 0 0.0
Asian 6 6 0 0.0
Black or African American 1 1 0 0.0
Filipino 2 2 0 0.0
Hispanic or Latino . 45 44 3 6.8

.ative Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0 0 0.0
Two or More Races 18 18 3 16.7
White 224 218 3 1.4
English Learners 3 2 0 0.0
Foster Youth 0 0 0 0.0
Homeless 3 3 0 0.0
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 61 61 6 9.8
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0 0 0 0.0
Students with Disabilities 39 39 3 7.7
C. Engagement State Priority: School Climate

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: School
Climate (Priority 6):

¢  Pupil suspension rates;

o  Pupil expulsion rates; and
¢ Other local measures on the sense of safety

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 15 of 22 Trivium Charter School, Voyage



Suspensions and Expulsions

This table displays suspensions and expulsions data collected between July through June, each full school year respectively.
Data collected during the 2020-21 school year may not be comparable to earlier years of this collection due to differences in
'rning mode instruction in response to the COVID-19 pandemic.

School School District District State State

2018-19 2020-21 2018-19 2020-21 2018-19 2020-21
Suspensions 0.00 0.00 0.14 0.19 3.47 0.20
Expulsions 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.08 0.00

This table displays suspensions and expulsions data collected between July through February, partial school year due to the
COVID-19 pandemic. The 2019-2020 suspensions and expulsions rate data are not comparable to other year data because the
2018-2020 school year is a partial school year due to the COVID-19 crisis. As such, it would be inappropriate to make any
comparisons in rates of suspensions and expulsions in the 2019-2020 school year compared to other school years.

School District State

2019-20 2019-20 2019-20
Suspensions 0.00 0.13 2.45
Expulsions 0.00 0.00 0.05

2020-21 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group

All Students 0.00 0.00
Female 0.00 0.00

.ale 0.00 0.00
American Indian or Alaska Native 0.00 0.00
Asian 0.00 0.00
Black or African American 0.00 0.00
Filipino 0.00 0.00
Hispanic or Latino 0.00 0.00
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0.00 0.00
Two or More Races 0.00 0.00
White ' 0.00 0.00
English Learners : 0.00 0.00
Foster Youth 0.00 0.00
Homeless 0.00 0.00
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 0.00 0.00
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0.00 0.00
Students with Disabilities 0.00 0.00

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 16 of 22 Trivium Charter School, Voyage



2021-22 School Safety Plan

All guests of Trivium’s Learning Centers must sign in to the guest register which is located in each center's administration
office. Emergency training is provided to all employees annually, including fire, earthquake, lock-down, and violent intruder
~rotocols. Included in that training is a segment on being aware of, and how to engage, “strangers” who may be on or near the
impus. Further, emergency drills are performed at each center, putting into practice each center's emergency plan,
individually covering fire, earthquake, lock-down, and violent intruder protocols. As well, Trivium subscribes to the
ParentSquare emergency alert system, “Smart Alert.” This system allows employees and parents to be quickly and efficiently
notified in case of a general emergency affecting any Trivium Learning Center. The aforementioned emergency procedures
are posted in every Trivium office and classroom. Emergency supplies are located in each classroom inclusive of water, food
bars, a flashlight, and toilet necessities. Trivium has developed a Comprehensive School Safety Plan in accordance with
California Education Code 32281. This plan is updated annually and is available for viewing at each Learning Center office.

Upkeep and cleanliness of each Learning Center is generally maintained by Trivium Learning Center support staff. At the end
of student lunch recess, predesignated classes are responsible for clean-up, which helps instill pride and ownership for the
involved students. At the conclusion of each ACE day, support staff and teachers sweep, empty the trash and recycle, and
clean the restrooms. Also, before every ACE Day, a safety inspection is conducted. This safety inspection includes the
following: checking for tripping hazards, inspecting playground equipment, and ensuring all ingress and egress points are free
of obstructions. Should an issue be discovered, an emergency work order is submitted, facilitating a rapid repair of the
problem.

Regarding internet safety, our school utilizes Meraki Security Appliance at all five Centers, which allows us to filter any
inappropriate internet content for our students. Trivium also deploys a student safety program named Securly, which is round-
the-clock auditing, shielding, and cloud-based web filtering for every student device. In addition, teachers constantly monitor
student internet activity physically and by utilizing Securly’'s Classroom Management feature. Furthermore, students are
forbidden to access personal electronic devices without a staff member's permission. All of our school’s staff members hold
current First Aid and CPR certifications. Training is held biennially, and new hires must present proof of completion before
beginning employment.

D. Other SARC Information Information Required in the SARC

The information in this section is required to be in the SARC but is not included in
the state priorities for LCFF.

2018-19 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution

This table displays the 2018-19 average class size and class size distribution. The columns titted “Number of Classes”
indicates how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class). The “Other” category is for muilti-
grade level classes.
Class Size 1-20 Students 21-32 Students 33+ Students

K

1

2

3

4

5

6

l Other 15 10

2021-22 School Accountabitity Report Card Page 17 of 22 Trivium Charter School, Voyage



2019-20 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution

This table displays the 2019-20 average class size and class size distribution. The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates

how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class). The “Other” category is for muiti-grade level
‘“sses.

Grade Level Average Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with
Class Size 1-20 Students 21-32 Students 33+ Students
K

vn A WN =

[=2]

Other 16 10

2020-21 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution

This table displays the 2020-21 average class size and class size distribution. The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates

how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class). The “Other” category is for multi-grade level
classes.

Grade Level Average Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with
Class Size 1-20 Students 21-32 Students 33+ Students

n Hh W N -

[=2]

Other 18 10

2018-19 Secondary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution

This table displays the 2018-19 average class size and class size distribution. The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates

how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per classroom). At the secondary school level, this
information is reported by subject area rather than grade level.

Average

Class Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with
Size 1-22 Students 23-32 Students 33+ Students
English Language Arts 3 13
Mathematics 2 41
“cience 1 3
Jocial Science 3 12

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 18 of 22 Trivium Charter School, Voyage



2019-20 Secondary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution

This table displays the 2019-20 average class size and class size distribution. The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates
how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per classroom). At the secondary school level, this
“armation is reported by subject area rather than grade level.

Subject Aéf;:ge Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with
Size 1-22 Students 23-32 Students 33+ Students

English Language Arts 3 18
Mathematics 2 24
Science 3 15
Social Science 1 8

2020-21 Secondary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution

This table displays the 2020-21 average class size and class size distribution. The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates
how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per classroom). At the secondary school level, this
information is reported by subject area rather than grade level.

Average

Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with

Class 1-22 Students 23-32 Students 33+ Students
English Language Arts 4 20
Mathematics 2 32
Science 4 13
)cial Science 4 18

2020-21 Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor

This table displays the ratio of pupils to Academic Counselor. One full time equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working
full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time.

rite I

Pupils to Academic Counselor 88

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 19 of 22 Trivium Charter School, Voyage



2020-21 Student Support Services Staff

This table displays the number of FTE support staff assigned to this school. One full time equivalent (FTE) equals one staff
member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time.

Title Number of FTE Assigned to School

Counselor (Academic, Social/Behavioral or Career Development) 3.3
Library Media Teacher (Librarian)

0
Library Media Services Staff (Paraprofessional) 0
Psychologist 3
Social Worker 0
Speech/Language/Hearing Specialist 3
Resource Specialist (non-teaching) .67

2019-20 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries

This table displays the 2019-20 expenditures per pupil and average teach salary for this school. Cells with N/A values do not
require data.

Total Expenditures Expenditures Average
Level Expenditures Per Pupil Per Pupil Teacher
Per Pupil Restricted Unrestricted Salar

School Site 9988.55 1470.74 8517.81 59,187.67
Nistrict N/A N/A
. ercent Difference - School Site and District N/A N/A
Percent Difference - School Site and State N/A N/A

2020-21 Types of Services Funded

Analysis of student achievement data is built into our personalized learning model. Each month, teachers and staff alike are
given time to meet in their Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) with their grade level or subject level. California
Dashboard indicators, individual student data, student achievement (and student struggles) are discussed. Solutions to
challenges and needed differentiation for lessons are discussed and solved during these meetings. The groups share their
findings with the Academic Leadership which helps drive needed changes and further inquiry.

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 20 of 22 Trivium Charter School, Voyage






Professional Development

Number of school days dedicated to Staff Development and Continuous Improvement

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 22 of 22 Trivium Charter School, Voyage






L0 | abeg 10U1SIQ 100UIS LOIUN UBLIYOG 10} Iuswaiddng dvD] Z2-1202Z

:Spunj 8soyj JO ash 3y} pue panIsdal spunj Jo isi| e sI Buimolioy ay}
‘JOAOMOH “dvDT Ino ui papnjpul aq AjieaidA} pjnom jey} spunj Jou ale | Z0Z J0 1oy 19bpng aui Aq pepinoid spunj jo asn ay] 'spunj 8soyj jo
ash ay} pue | Z0z Jo 19V 196png oy} ybnouy) papinoid sem ey} Buipuny sy} passnosip saanejuasaidal Joulsig “1LZ0zZ ‘6 JequisAoN uo bupsaw
pseoq a1qnd paonou Aedoid e Buunp pue 120z ‘G JoquiaAoN uo Bupasw yejs jje ue Buunp sisuped jeuoyeonpa sy pabebua jJouysip ay L

‘(dvD1) ueld Aiqejunodoy pue [0juo) (B30T Zg- 120z SUl Ul papnjoul Jou 819M Jey) LZ0Z 0 1V 19bpng
ay; ybnouy; papinosd spuny Jo asn sy} uo siauped jeuonieonpa s} ‘abebus o} sue|d 1o ‘pabebus Y37 8y} usym pue moy jJo uonduossp v

"$1oVy 9say} ‘Jo uonejuswaldwi pue ‘uo juswabebus 0} pajejal sisuped jeuoneanps pue Apoq Jo pieoq Buiuienob jeoo
oy} 0} podai Jeak-pil awi-auo e s Buimoj|o) oy "sjuspn}s uo Buiuies| asuelsip jo sjoedwt 8y} ssaippe o} pue diwapued §L-GIAQD dy} woly
BulIoA0Da1 Ul SSIIUNWILIOD JIoY} pue ‘yels ‘siayoes) ‘sjuspnis poddns o} Buipuny u asealoul Juesyiubis e yim (sy31) seiouabe jeuoneonps
|e20| pepinoid SAey S}oe Joi|91 |BISPa) PUB 3]s J1aYJ0 PUE ‘| Z0Z JO 1OV Ueld 9ndsay ueduswy [elapa) ay) ‘1oy Jobpng zz—120z s.eluioje)

81 1-,£6-908 juspuauadng
Bio psnuewyoo|g@umoigp umo.ig bnog 1011SI( |O0YOS uolun uewyoolg

auoyd pue jlews 3[jiL pue aweN }o0Bjuo) awepN (v31) Aouaby Jeuonyeonp3 |20

ueid Ajljiqejunodoy
pue |0Jju09) |20 ZZ—120Z @U} 0} ajepdn jenuuy ayj o} Juswajddng




L0 Z abeg JOUISIQ 100YDS UOIUN UBWYIO]g 104 Juswalddng dvDT 22-1202
Bunjuup ssayyono} aseyaind jim ‘welboid Aep jooyds papusixa pue welboid Buipeal jowwns e pajuswajdwi - €10°'921$ - 1l ¥3SS3 ¢
saljiwe} pue sjuapnls

1o} yoddns yjjeay jejusw apinoid ‘saiddns Buijosyuisip pue juswdinba aajosjold jeuosiad siayiind Jie aseyoind - 690°96$ - 11 ¥3SS3 'L

:spuny
asoy} jo abesn ay} pue paniaoal spuny jeiapa} ay} Jo 1sij B st mojag “s|idnd uo Buluies| asue)sip jo sjoedwi ayj pue owuspued 61-QIAOD
ay} wou} A1anooal yoddns 0} papusjul aJe Jeyj Spuny [B1apa} sWi}-auo 3y} passnasip sanljejuasaldal Joulsiq "LZ0zZ ‘6 JaquanopN uo bBujesw
pJeoq 21qnd paoijou Apadoud e Buunp pue LZoz ‘S JequanoN uo Bunasw yeis |je ue Buunp siauped jeuoneonpa sy pabebus jouysip syl

‘sjidnd uo Buiules| aouejsip Jo sjoedw ay) pue anspued gL-AQIAQD dY) wolyy Atanodal poddns
0} papusajul aJe Jey} paAIadal Spuny [ei1apa) aWi-auo JO asn ayj uo siauped jeuonednps sy pabebus y37] ay} usym pue moy jo uonduoasap v

"2202/120z 10} Juelb uonesusduod
ou Y)m sh Ja} SAYd VD Ui pauodal siaquinu [enjoe ‘JOASMOH €6/ S$ JO Junowe juelb uoijejuasuod e pajesausb aney pjnom yoiym
jenjoe uey) Jaybiy Apybis aq pjnom abejusosad jidnd pajesijdnpun 1no jey; pajosloid am ‘pasedald Ajjeuiblo sem 4y 2202/1 202 @Yl USUAA

"Juadiad gg uey) Jsjealb sijey) YyinoA 19)soy
Jlojpue ‘s1aules] ysi|bug ‘owooul-mo| 18 OYym SJUSPN]S JO JUSW|0IUD Ue Yim sasndwed [0oYds UO SjUSpn)s 0} SDIAISS Joallp apiroid oym yels
JO Jaquinu 8y} asealtoul 0} paAiadal )i Buipuny uo-ppe juelb uonesuasuod jeuociiippe ayj ‘asn o} suejd 1o ‘pasnh y3] sy} moy jo uonduosap v

‘sbunjesw pireoq anqnd paonou Ajadosd pue ‘sbunesw 4y ‘sbunesw ounos a)g jooyos ‘sbunssw yeys ybnoiyy pajeyjioe;
aq [IIM SIYL "2zZ0zZ Jo judy ybnoiyy Arenuep woly siseq Ajyjuow e uo aoe|d aye} |im saiunpoddo juswabebus ssuped jeuoleonps ainjnd

Bunsa) yrewyouaq uoddns apie jeuooniisu| - €6/ '8¢ - alels - saiunpoddo Buluses pspuedx3 6

Buiuadoai jooyss |n} 8y} 03 Joud Buiyoes) uosiad ul 0} pauin}al OYm SI1ayoes) 10} Salejes - 6/€'28¢$ - JUBIS uolonIIsuj uosiad uj ‘g
Buiuses| aouesip yoddns djay 0y saljddns jeuononisui pue Jajndwod aseyaind - gG'glL$ - 49 uonebiy sso buiutes 2

Hoddns aoueusjuiew enxa apiaoid oiwspued ay) Aq Aiessaoau apew $8j01 Mau 0} saakojdwa palyisse|d asodindas ‘saakojdwa 10} Bunsal
AIAOD @pinoid ‘Buluses) aouejsip poddns djay o} saijddns jeuononiisut pue siapndwod aseydind - 6E1°801L$ - ¥ uonebiy ssoq buiuies] "9
saljiwe} pue sjuapnjis Joj poddns yjeay [ejusy - 9¢€1°G$ - | Y339 ‘seniunpoddp Butuies] pspuedx3y g

saljiwey

pue sjuapnjs 1o} yoddns yjjesy jejusaw ‘poddns apie [eUolONISU| - €60°29$ - 11l PUB ‘|| | ¥3SST ‘seunpoddp buluies papuedx3 4
Buiutes| aouejsip poddns djay 0} salddns jeuononiisul pue si9ndwod paseyaind - 08501 $ - ¥339 - uonebiy sso buiuiea ‘¢
suiejunoj

Bunjuup ssajyonoy aseyoind [im ‘weiboid Aep [ooyos papusixa pue welboid Buipeas jowwns e pajuswajdw| - €10°9Z1$ - 111 ¥3SS3 ¢
Sal|ile) pue sjuapnis

Joj poddns yjeay |ejusw apinoid ‘saiddns Guosjuisip pue juawdinba aaosjoud jeuosiad siayund Jie aseyaind - 690°96$ - Il ¥3SS3 'L



Lo ¢ abed 1PUISIA 10040 uoluN uewydolg 1o} Juswslddng dvO1 221202
ag |Im sjuapn)g ‘10algns Aue ui uonuanlajui Buipaau se payljuapl Juapnys Aue 1o} welboid Aep pepuslxe ue pajuswaljdwl sey JouIsip ay |

‘weliboud sy} ul JuswaAsiyoe JuspN)S S)eljSUOLUBP 0} SoLYBLW Aue aABY Jou op am 0s ejep ajqesedwod apinoid Jou soop sieak apeib

$8s5040 JeY) Bunsa) jey) aiemeun ajem am pue Lzoz o Buuds ayy ui weiboid Apeay-| ayy Buisn pape)s jsnfoumsip oyl ‘weiboid Apeay

-] ayy Buisn ||} 8y} ui pa)sa)-ai a1aMm SJUSPNIS “JBWILLINS 3y} JAAO [00yos 0} Buiod 0} Juuwod o} sjuapnis Bujab sabusjeys awos ade) pip SAA
‘welboid Apeay-| ay) wols Bunsa) yewyouaq paseq-aouapine Buisn uonuania)ul o) payjuapl alam sjuapn)g “uonuanisiul buipeal jeuonippe
Buipaau se paynuapl alam oym € — M sapelb ui syuapnls 1oy 107 ¥ peay dwe)) pajjed ‘welboid Buipess Jjswwns e pajsoy Joulsip ay |

‘spuny (1] ¥3SST Y1 Yim apinoid JjIm 10 sey JOL)SIP Sy} S80IAISS pue suofjoe ay) jo uoiduosap e st mojag

IGEVVIVEGL=] £JPd 1202 ¢ b 0102%PoA0IddY0Z %PIE0H0Z %2c60 1202

PISIg [0040S ATBJUSWS[T Uojun UBWyoolg UBlg SInipusdxg |l Y3553 120¢/93SS3/S90IN8S02%SSouIsSng/orISI(a/Speojdn/jusjuod
-dm/BI10° pSNUBIYD0|q MMM//-Sd)Y

:ssaIppe gam BuIMOo||o) 3y} e a)isgam uewyoojg 3y} UO punoy

aq ueo ueid ay| ‘ueld ay) Jo g abed uo spasu Juapn}s Buissaippe ale SUOUBAIBUI MOY SMOYS UB|d ainyipuadx3 ||| ¥ISST S1oulsIp 8y |

‘uonejuawsajdun Buunp pasusuiadxe sabuajeyd pue sassa29ns sy} pue ‘ue|d ainjipuadxe jaley Aousbisw3
|jooyog Alepuodag pue Alejuswiajg [elapa) pue Joy Ueld 9nosay uedlaly |elapaj) ay) Bunyuswsaldwi s1 Y37 ay) moy Jo uonduosap vy

IGEPPIPEaL=1 ¢IPd 1202 ¢} 0102%PoA0IadY0Z %PIB0T0Z %c601 20C

IS 1004y0S ATeJUSWS|S UolU(y UBWYO0[g Ul aInipusdx3 [I] W35S 120¢/d3SS /SNBSS 0L %SSeuIsng/Aomsi(/Speo|dnjusjucd
-dm/Blo"pSnuewiyo0|q MMM//:SdY

'ssalppe Buimo|jo) 3y} Je a)ISqam uewIyd0|g 3y} Uo punoy aq ued uejd ay| ‘ssaooid Juswabebus ay) Jo uonduossp

e 1o} ue|d ay) jo ¢ abed aas ases|d "ueld ainypuadx] ||| YISST ay) Jo wawdojansp ay) Buunp pabebus os|e asem siouped [euoljeonp]

8920180291 =1 ¢Jpd ddy

-pieog-1¢£¢01202-asSNig ue|d juels saniunpodd( buiuiea] papuedx3 | ¢0c/Si9Ald/Sspeojdnaualuod-dm/bio’ psnueiydojq mmm// sdiy
:ssalppe BuIMoj|of 3y} 1B 3)iIsgam uewyo0jg 8y} uo punoj aq ued ueld ay ‘ssaocoid juswabebuas ay; jo uonduosep e ioy ueid

ay} Jo ¢z abed aas asea|d "ue|d Juels) sanunpoddo Buiuies] papuedxg ayy jo Juswdojanap ay} buunp pabebus aiam sisuped jeuoneosnpl

yoddns soueusjulew eixae apinoid oiwspued ay) Aq Aiessasau apell sajos mau 0} saakojdwa payisse|d asodindal seakojdws 10§ Bunss}
QINOD @pinoid Buluses| aouelsip poddns djay o} saljddns jeuononssul pue siayndwod aseyaind - 6£1°801$ - ¥ uonebniyy sso butuiea g
sal|ilWe} pue sjuapnys 1o} yoddns yyjeay jelusiy - 9€1°G$ - | Y339 ‘saiiunpoddo bBujuies| papuedx3y ‘g

S3aljiwey

pue sjuapnjs 10} poddns yyeay |eyusw ‘Loddns apie jeuononisul - €60°29$ - 11 PUe ‘| ‘1 ¥3SS3 ‘senunpoddQ bBuluies papuedxy v
Buiuses| soue)sip poddns djay o} sainddns jeuononiisui pue siayndwod paseyaind - 08501 $ - Y339 - uonebiypy sso buluiesy ‘¢

suleyunoy



4o ¥ abed PUISIJ 10040 UoUN UBWYDO(G Joj Juswlddng dvD1 22-1202

‘610" psnuewyo0|q mmm }e pajeso| abed
awoy ,s}oulsIp 8y} uo punoy aq |je ued ueld |j] ¥Y3SSJ INO pue ‘ue|d SAOIAISS JO AJinuiuO) 8Y] ‘Ue|d UOIJONIISU| UOSIDd-U| 0} WIN}ay ajes ay ]

(77 120D 4vD7) siauped uonieanpa Ino yym juswabebus anoidwi 0} S821n0sal |easy Jno Buisn osje

ale app (€ 1e0S dvD1) siautes| abenbue; ysijbug 1no 10} anaiyoe anoidwi pue (G [eoS) 4¥D7) spe abenbue| ysibug (2 1o dy)7) aouslos
‘(1 120D dvD1) yrew ul Juswanalyoe Juapnis burnoidwi jo sjeob 4D Jno yum subije ‘uiny ul ‘siy] -uononsisu; uosiad-ul u ajedioiued

0} JUSWIUOIIAUD 9jes B 9ABY JBJS puUB SJuapn}s Jno ey} ainsua 0} uejd ainypuadx3y ||} Y3ISST 1IN0 pue ‘uejd S3IAI9S Jo Anuiuo) 1no ‘ue|d
uolonisu] uosiad-uj 0y uin}ay ajesg Uno Jo sjeob ay) Juswsajdwi 0} Jeak |00Yds 2202/ 1202 2} 10} paniadal Buipuny ay) Buisn s jousip sy

‘ajepdn [enuuy pue 4y Z2—120Z S.¥31 Ul Uim paubife s pue sue|d sjqeodde
3U} YlIM JUS)ISISUOD SI Jey} Jouuew e Ul Jeak [00yds ZZ—120Z SY) 1o} paAIsoas sa2In0sal jeasly sy Buisn s w37 ay) moy jo uondiuosap vy

*1oyoes) ay} pue ‘sjualed Jiay) ‘uapn)s ay} oy Jnoyip si iy "Apnjs Juspuadapul 0} SAOW pue
aunuelenb o) Buipaau sjuapn}s aWos pey aABY SAA "SHE3IGINO 61-GIAOD Aue BUIpIOAR Ul [N}SS8I2NS USSP SABY M ‘JB) 0S “JUSLIUOIIAUD djeS
B Ul ale Uaip|iyd 3y} Jey) 9|qeHojWOoD alow |99} sjualed djay osje pm siy] "Buiuses) uosiad-ui o} sndwed uo ‘ajgissod juajxa }sajealb ay} o}
‘urewsal o0} Jje}s pue sjuapnis mojje iim weiboid siy| ‘weisboid Bunss} gL-QIAQD € ulejuiew pue juswajdwi 0} Spun} apiSe }8s Sey 10U)SIp ay |

‘sabusjjeyd swos asod pjnod Buipjing 1no jo abe ay) ‘Janamoy ‘1oaloid siyj jJo sjielap
ay} 1no Bupjiom |[iis a1e app “sadid Jajem Ino Jo swos aoe|dal 0] pasu am ‘sjuawipas yum Buibbojo wouy suoness ||yel Jayem ay) desy 0} JapIo
ul ‘oS|y ‘Suolje]s [jyal Jajem Bupuup ssa|yono] yim way) aoejdal pue suleyunoy Bupjuup Jualind Jno dA0WAI 0} paau am ‘dlwspued ay) 0} ang

‘weiboid ayj Yyum Jsisse 0} sinoy Jiay) puaixa 0} Buljjim usaqg sey Je}s Jualind Ino pue papuaje ||om si welboid ay} ‘JaAOMOH JusWwaAalyoe
Japn}s buinoidwi ui [nyssa2ons aq jim weisboud siy; Ji 193 03 Aluea 00} s} ‘woddns yjew pue Buipeal pazi|enpiAipul 810W 10} SIelS

Buleag pue peay 10alold ‘Sjuapnis 10} SUOSS3| Apeay-| pazijeuosiad apnjoul jjIm pasn SUONUBAISIUI pased-22uaping "Alessadau se ‘pajsnipe
aq |im saibajels uonuaAIalul pue 1a)sawi) Yyoes aouo Buysa) yiewyouaq Apeay-| Buisn painseaw aq |im ssaiboud juapng “weiboud
Apeay-| ay} wouy bunsa) yJewyosuaq paseq-aouspina Buisn pue suoiepualwIWodal Jayoea} uo paseq weiboid Aep papualxa ay) 10} payiuapl



L1406 abey JoUSIQ [00YDS UOIUN UBWY0lg 10} Juswiddng dv0T 22-1202
0} S9S00YD 1By} Y3 Uy ‘Sjuawnoop Buluue|d Jayio Ul papircid uoneulIojul 8oualayas 0} AYjIqixaly sey Y31 ay; ‘sidwold asayy o} Buipuodsal uj

‘sjualed 0} ajgissad2e pue 3|qepue)siapun si jey) abenbue| asn ‘sjqesijoeld Jus)xa jsejealb ayj 0} ‘ysnwi
pue oqnd Japeolq ay pue sisuped jeuoneoanpa s,\y37 9l 1o} 3|qIsSadoe pue |njbuiueaw aq [jim Jey) [Ie}ap JO |9A8| e uiejuod jey} sesuodsal
1ouPons apinold ‘sjqeanoeld Jusixe jsajealb ayj 0} ‘ysnw sy37 ‘sidwold asayy 03 Buipuodsal u| “palinbai se ‘sydwoid Buimoljoy ay} 0} puodsay

suoljonJisuj

'dvD71 £€2-2202 S.v31 2y} jo Hed se jeroidde pue malAal 10j papiLgNs o [jIm Juswalddng gz—1z0zZ 8y} ‘yons sy

alejdwa] 4yD7 9yl Joj suononysujay| e

dvO1 €2—¢c0c¢ au} 10} sejge| uoloy ay| e

dvOT1€C—CC0CdBYL

Juswalddng zz—120Z YL

sjualed Jo} MaIAIBAQ }obpng €2—220Z 9yl e
:SMOJ|0} SB VDT a4l ylim
papnjoul 8q jsnw pue ‘[eaoidde pue ‘mainal ‘uondope jo sasodind ay} 10} dv D1 £2—2202 Y} Jo Hed pasepisuod st jJuswe|ddng gg—1202 9ul
‘siauped
feuoneonpa s,\y37 ayj Jo} 9|qissadoe pue [njbuiueaw si jey} [Iejap JO |9A3] B SUIBJUOD PUB JoUIdaNs S|}l Jey} papiaoid ‘Ixajuo9 |ed0] ay) sins
1saq se uonewojur siyj apiaoid oy Ajjiqixal) aAeY sy ‘elep uonejuswaldwi pue ‘ainjipuadxa ‘awodino Jeak-piw a|qejieAe Buipodal usypp

‘dVD1 221202 9y} Ul payiuapl suonoe jje uo eyep uoiejuswajdwi pue ainjipuadxs Jesk-piN e

pue :dyD1 ZZ—120Z 2} Ul payiluspl SoujaW 0} paje(al ejep awooino Jeak-piw SjqefieAe ||y e

‘(Quaws|ddng 22—1202) dvO1 Z2—1202 2U} Joj Sjepdn [enuuy ay} o} jJuswaddng ayy e
:Buimojjoy ayy Jo jie apnjoul Ishw Y37 @y} ‘Bunsaw siy} I "v31 @Y} Jo Apoq Jo pieoq Buiuianob ay} jo Buiaaw pajnpayos Apejnbal
e Je ‘zz0zZ ‘gz Aieniga 21049Q 10 UO Sjualed 1o} MAIAIBAQ 1abpng pue 4y 2Z2—120Z @y} 0} ajepdn jenuuy ay} uo ajepdn ue juasald 0}
sy31 sainbal gg| (119 Alqwiassy Jo (8)pz] uonoag sjuapnys uo Buiutes) aouelsip jo spoedwi ay) ssalppe o0} pue owapued 6L-QIAOD 94l woly
BuaA02as Ul SaIIUNWWOD JIdY) pue ‘Yels ‘siayoes) ‘sjuapnis Hoddns 0} Buipuny ul asealoul Juesyiubis e yum (sy37) saiousbe jeuojeonpa
|eoo] papinoid aABY S)OB Jaljal [BISP3) PUB 3)B)S J9YJ0 PUB ‘| Z0Z O 10V Ue|d 9nosay UedlsWwy [elapa) ay) 1oy 1obpng zz—120¢ S.elulojje)

uoi3oNpoJu|

"AOB B0 2pOYI] jE [rewd Aq 10 6080-6LE-9L6 je suoyd Aq ‘@o1yO poddns sweisAS Aouaby 8207 (S,30D)
s,uoneonp3 Jo jJuswipeds( eiuioijeD ayj 10 (300) uoeanpa Jo 8140 AJunod [eo0| 8y} Jorjuoo aseald (4yD7) ueld AjIgejunoddy pue jo4uo)
12207 22—1L20Z dY} 0} 8jepdn |enuuy ayj o} Juswalddng ayj jo uoys|dwiod sy} o} pajejald souejsisse [Bojuyos] 10 suoisanb jeuoRippe 1o

Jea ) uejd AJljiqejunoooy
pue |oJjuo9) |e207] ZZ—120Z @Y} 10} ajepdn jenuuy ayj} o} jJuswdjddng ayj 10} suoljoniisuj




L 30 9 abed 101ISIQ 100UOS LIOIN UBWLR0IG 10} Juaw?aiddng 4D 2Z-120Z
Juonejuswa|dwi Buunp pasusuadxa sabuajieyd pue sassa09ns ay) pue ‘ue|d ainjipuadxs joiay Aouabiawz jooyos
Kiepuooag pue Aigjuswa|] [eI9pa} PUB 10V Ue|d 9Nasay Ueduswy |el1apa} sy} Bujusws|dw si Y37 ay) moy Jo uonduossp v, 1 Jdwoid

‘Spuny a)ej}s 0} paje|al

aoe|d uaye) sey jey) Juswabebus aquosap 0} pasinbal Jou Sl Y37 8y "Spunj 8say} uo uoljewsojul jeuolippe 1o} (j13/Bj/A0H B3 apd” MMM/ SANY)
abed gom Buipung snjnwis [e1epa- ay) pue Buipuny Jaial 6L-QIAOD Jo Buys| e Joy (dSe spunjal21/15/6}/A0b 3 9pd"MMM//Sd)Y) abed gam
199y Aewwing Buipun4 jaiay 6 L-AIAOD Yl 995 "sjuapnis uo Buiules; aouelsip jo sjoedwi ay} pue djwapued 6L-GIAOD 9u) woly Alanodal
yoddns o} papuajul ale Jey) paAIadal )l SPUNy [BIaPa} SWI}-auo Jo asn ay) uo siauped jeuoneanpa sy pabebue y37 ayj usym pue moy aquasag

‘uonjeue|dxe siyj apinoid ‘syusapnis
uo Buiules| aouejsip Jo syoedwi ay) pue siwapued §1L-GIAQD 2} woly Auanodal poddns o) Buipuny [e1apa) SWi}-8uU0 8AI8231 JoU PIP Y37 8yl i

spdnd uo Buiuies| souejsip jo spoedw ay) pue siwspued 6L-GINOD 8y woly Aienodai poddns o) papusjul
aJe Jey) panIaoal Spuny [eiepa) euul-auo JO 8sn ey} uo sisuped jeuoieonpa sj pabebus Y37 8y} usym pue moy Jo uonduosep v, :¢ ydwoid

‘Juadiad GG uey) Jajealb sijey) sjuapn)s pajedljdnpun JO JUSWI|OIUS UB YIIM JOOYDS B Je sjuapn}s o} $a0InIes Joauip Buipinocid
Jels ulejal 0} spuny ay} buisn si 37 8yl moy aquasap ‘Jusdiad GG uey) Jajealb si jey) sjuspnis pajedljdnpun Jo JuslW|0JUd UB U}IM |OOYIS B je
Sjuapn}s 0} SadIAISS Joallp Buipinoid yels Jo Jaquuinu ay) 8Sealoul 0} JUSIOIYNS JOU Si UO-ppe Juelb uoesuaduod [eUOIHIPPE 3} ey} JuaAs ay) U]

‘Juaasad GG uey) ssa| Jo 0} jenba si jey) sjuapnis pajedljdnpun jo Juswijolud

ue Yyim sjooydss o) pasedwod se ‘yuswijjolua |idnd pajesldnpun juaoiad GG uey) Jajealb yum sasndwed [00yIS UO SjUapn)s 0} S8DIAISS JoalIp
apiaold oym ‘Yels [eipoysnd Buipnjoul ‘Yyioq Jo ‘Jels palisse|d ‘Yejs pajediiiad Jo Jaquinu ay) asealoul o) ‘papusawie se ‘g0'8ege Uoloas
8p01 uoNEoNPT BIUIOY|ED UM JU3)SISUOD PaAIadal spuny uo-ppe juelb uoiesuadsuod ayj ‘asn o} sueld 1o ‘Buisn sI y37 8yl moy aquosag

‘uonjeuejdxa siy} apinoid ‘uo-ppe Juelb uoleUSOUOD BY} JO Juelb UOHEIIUSIUOD B DAIS03I JOU S90p Y37 JI

JJusaied GG ueyj ssjeaib si jey) yinoA isjso}
10/pue ‘sialies] Ysibug ‘eLIOdUI-MO| 818 OYM SJUSPNJS JO JUBLUJJOJUS UB UM S8Sndued [00YIS UO SJUSPN}S 0] S8IAISS Joallp 8pir0id oym
JJBJS JO Jaquunu 8y} aSeaioul 0] Paaledal JI Buipuny uo-ppe juelb uonesusduod ay) ‘esn o} sueid Jo ‘pasn Y37 moy Jo uondiiossp v, :Z ydwodd

‘uoljeue|dxa siy} apinoid ‘dyDT 22—1.Z0Z Paldope si ul spuny sjqesljdde ey} papnjoul Y37 ue §| “spuny

Jo asn ay) uo siauped jeuoneonpa sy pabebua sey y37 syl Moy jo uonduosap e apiaoid pue 4y ayj ut papnjoul jJou a1am ey} | Z0Z 40 1Y
yaBpng ay) ul papiaoid spuny ay) Anuap! ‘gD SH ulyum papnjoul AjjeaidA) eaey pinom )i 1ey} LZ0Z 40 1oV 1eBpng aui ybnouyy Buipuny paaeoal
V37 @Y} J| “pPapnjoul a1e Spunj aSOy) Jua)Xa JEYM 0} PuB 4D 8y} Ui papnjoul ale spuny Jeym Buipioap ui Ajjiqixsyy sAey sy37 ‘|esausab y

. (dVD7) ueld Ajjiqejunoaoy pue j01JuoD 8907 LZ—0Z0Z 8Y} Ul Papnjoul Jou 8ism jey) LZ0Z 40 JoY 1ebpng ey} ybnouy;
papinroid spunj jo asn ayj uo siauped jeuoneanpa sy ‘ebebus o} sueyd 1o ‘pabebus Y37 8y} usym pue moy jo uonduossep vy, :} ydwoud

. ‘punoy} aq Aew pasuaiajal Buiaq uonjewsoyul ay} ueid ayj uj a1eym pue ‘(sbed qam e o} juij e
se yons) pajeoo) ale (s)ueid ay) aseym ‘pasualaal Butaq (s)uejd ay) Auapl Jsnw sjuswnoop Butuueld Jayjo ui papiroid uoljewlojul 8oualayel



140 [ abed 10UISIQ 004D UolUN UBWYDoIg Joj juswalddns dv DT 22-1202

1 202 JoqWIBAON
uoneonp3 Jo Juswpeda( eluioje)

‘ue|d ainypuadx3 ||} YISST 9y} pue uejd SO21ASS JO AliNullUOY pue UOoIoNJISU| Uosiad-u| 01 uinjay
ajeg ay) apnjoul sueld ajqeoijdde, ‘Jdwoud siy} o3 Buipuodsal jo sasodind 104 "dvD1 2Z2—120Z SV 92Ul Yiim psaubife si jeyy Jsuuew e u
sueld ajqeoljdde jo syuswalinbal ay} Juswajdwi 0} JeaA |00YIS ZZ—1Z0Z 2U} Jo} POAISIaI S32In0sal |edsl sii buisn st 37 syl moy azlewwng

. lepdn [enuuy pue 4y 2Z—120Z S.v31 aui yim paubije st pue sued sjqedijdde sy
YliM JUS]SISUOD SI Jey} Jauuew B ul Jeak [00Yds ZZ—1Z0Z SY} 10} PaAlaoal saoinosal [eosl s) Buisn si w37 ayi moy jo uonduasap vy, ;6 ydwoud

-sabuajjeyo pue sass229ns Buipnjoui ‘ajep o} uejd ainyipuadxa (Y3SST) 219y Aousbisw3 jooyos Aepuodsg
pue Alejuswa|g jeiapa} ay) Jo uonejuawsa|dwi S)i pue ‘1 Z0Z JO 1OV UBld 3ndsay Uedlawy [elapa) ay; Aq palinbai se ‘Sad1aIas Jo Ajnunuod
83U} 2INSUS pue JB]S J3YJ0 pue ‘SI0jeonpa ‘syuapn)s jo AJajes pue yjeay ay} uiejuiew o} spoys sj jo uopeuawaldwi s,y37 9yl aquasag

‘uoijeuejdxa siyj apiaold ‘Buipuny jj| Y3JSST SAI9081 JoU S0P Y3 ] Ue Y|



110day JBIA-PIA SIIIAIDS ] SUOIDY
113ISI [00YIS UOIU() UBWIYDO|g J0) UB[d All|IQRIUNOIDY |O4IU0)) B0 Z2-221C

{sawogjno idnd) sawoojno idnd 1ayl0 - 8
{sowo2ino dnd) Juswanaiyoe |idnd - ¥

L1 J0 T 98ed

:sanuoud ajels Buimoijoy

ay] sassalppe [eob SIy| “YJBW YjIm 9oUBISISSE [RUOIIPPE Paau Sjuspn)s Sajedipul Osje BJep |Bo0| 1202/020¢ JO SISAleUB Uy 'Snjejs Moji3 A e paulea sdnolbqns ajiym

pue djuedsiH Jno ayMm snjejs abuelQ UB Yim 1$amoj sy} palods dnoub juspnis pabejueapesip Ajjeo1wouooa0100s JnQ “Jeak soud ay) woy syulod g°G Ag pauljoap sa100s
uapn]s {|eiaAo pue sdnoib juspnis |je 10} aBueIQ SI 10j0D PIROQYSE(] ||BIBAC JNQO "Ujew Ui sjuatuasocidwl axew o} psau sjuspnis Ino jey} smoys sisAjeue pieoqyseq 6102

sjeuoney

‘posn aq |IIM Sainsesaul [eJ0] 194J0 Uayj d|(ejIeABUN Jle S3103S
Bunse) ajeys J| -(sjqepieAe J1) sa1o0as Bunse) ajeys ay) Aq painseaw se $Z0z Jeak jooyos Jo pua ayl Aq Ylew 10} S3JOIS }SI} 9)e)S UO SaWO0IIN0 Judpnis daosdui

L [B0D

81 1-/£6-G08 jediouLidauspusjuuadng
Bio psnuelIyzo|g@uUMOIgP umoug 9 BnoQ JoUlsI [00YDS uolun uewyoo|g

auoyd pue jlew3 9]}l pue aweN }orU0D aweN (v31) Aouaby [euoneonp3 |e207

110day Jed A-PIN SOIIAIDS R SUOI)IY
(dvD1) ueld A1j1gelunod9y [0J3u0) |20 22-120¢2




LT Jo ¢ 98ed

uioday JBIA-PIA S931AIDS 13 SUOIIIY
191351Q |O0YIS UOIUN UBWIYDO[g 10} Ue|d A1l|IqeIUN0IIY [0JIUOD) |8207 ZZ2-2Z1T

"yjew ul Ayunuoddo
juswdojaaap |euoissajold
aUO0 )JSe3| }e 9AI03l
Ajjenuue |jim s1ayoea] - eg

"SJUBPN]S ||e 10} SNje)S ay} Mojeq
S|oAs| aiow 1o om] sdnoibgns
OU Y}IM Yjew ul ‘siauleg)
ysibuz Buipnpoui ‘syjuspnis |je
loj pJeoqyseq |00yoS elulojijed
3y} Uo SNje}s Ul - ep

pue ‘sjeusnol |e}ibip 0} ssad2e
‘S9S1N02 paosed-}|as [enpliAlpul
sopinosd weisboud sy "weiboid
Soijewayie\ Jo slayoea |

3O [IouUN0Y JeucleN ay} ul
Pa||0Jud a1aM SI9YOEed)} |[e ‘1eak
00Y3s [ 20¢/020¢ a4} o pud
ay} v "ylew ui saniunpoddo
Buiurey; jeuoissajoid ypm
papinoid uaaq aAey siayoes) ||

1eak j0oyos zz0z/1202
3y} Jo pua ay} Je 9|94

ajepdn [enuue 4y |ewlIouU ay)
Buunp ylew ui ssaiboid juspnis
Ino podail jIM AN "Z202

J0 yasep Aldea jpun uosuedwod
J10j juiod ejep puooas e aney
JOU ||IM 9M ‘JDASMO} "Blep pied
podal pue welboid Juswssasse
Apeay-| ay} apnjoul s|00}
Juswainseaw |20} INQ "1LZ0Z
ul paysiignd a4 jou |jim pue
020z Ul paysiignd jou sem ejep
pJeoqyse( [00YdS eiuioye)
ay) ‘oiwapued ayj 0} sang ‘pasn
aq |jIM saInseaw |eo0| Jayjo
uay} ‘s|gejieAeun ale Sa109s
Bunsa) sje)s 4| “(s|qejiene

J1) sa109s Bunsa) ajels ayj Aq
painseaw Se pz(Qg JeaA |ooyds
JO pua ay} Aq yjew 1o} sa102s
1S9} 9}B}JS UO SBWO0I}NO0 JUIPNIS
anoldwi 0} S1 | [BOS) v 1IN0

"yjew ur Ayunuoddo
juawdojanap jeuolssajoid auo
aAIg0al Ajjenuue siayoea] - eg

‘sjutod /°0g pasealoul

‘piepue)s mojaq sjuiod GGl

ale syuapnjs Jaules} ysijbul

- Yjew Joj pieoqyseq 61/81 - ey
"sjuiod

Z'G Aq pauloap ‘piepuels mojaq
spujod G'L¢ ‘snje}s abueiQ
-yjew 104 pieoquseq 61/81 - ey

"yjew ui sapiunpoddo
juswdojanap jeuolssajold
pajuelb aq ||Im S18yoes} |y ‘e
sawoono jidnd Jayl0 '8

yjeuw Joj Jusuissasse

ddSvvO — pleoqyseq ‘e
JuswaAaIydy jidng ¢

$2-£€20¢ 10} sawoNnQ palsag

$S9160.d JBOA-PIN | JEOA

aujjoseg

SIL ]

Kongd

L [e09 10} saARoalqQO a|qelnses\ [enuuy pajoadxy




10day JEIA-PIA SIIIAIIS 7R SUOIIDY

LT jo € 93ed PLIISIQ |00Y2S UOIUN UewyDIO0[g 104 Ueld ANjIQeIuN0I3Y [0JIU0D 8307 ZZ-ZZTT
113y} yum Jed uo wiopad
0} 9|ge aq 0} paau uayo
sjidnd poddns jeuonippe
ay} apiaoud [im sjuelsisse
JEUOI}ONJISUI pUB Jayoea}
UOUSAISIUI PBJEDIPaP Y
"UOIJUBAIS]UI IO} SJUB]SISSE
[BUOONJISUI SWI}-|N) OM)
pue Jayoes} uoijusAaul
0% [eJopa |esopo4 Jids e apinoud
[{1m 9Mm ‘JusWaABIYOE
0% jeoo] [e207] juspnjs aaoidwi 0} Japlio u|
sjuejsisse
0% o1e1s J8yio 0% @1.1S J3y10 [BUOIIINIISUI pUE JOYDEa)
00958°0.$| 00CLLLPLS 0% 4401 LS 4401 S8A Bulobuo uoljusAseIul 314 G A
‘s|idnd pajeoaiidnpun
10} yoddns oiwepeose
|euoljippe apiaoid
0} Jayoea} WOOISSE|D
3y} 10} B} BI0W MoO|[B
SOSSE|O UONBUIGUIO-UON
"S9SSE[O UOIJBUIGUIOD 10}
0% |esopa+ jesopay pasu 8y} aonpal 0} Jayoea}
e Buizijyn a1e am ‘syuapnis
0% [eo07 {eoo | 1o} JusWwaAsIyOe
wapnys aaosdwi 0} JapJo )
0$ IS 1aYl10 0$ aMeIs J8Yl0 UORaNpa) Ssef
00¥09'¢¥$| 00'802'G8% 0% 4401 80Z'58$ 4407 S9A Buiobug | uoneuiquiod 10) Jaydeaj [y
j spuny sasuadx3y sasuadx3 uonduasaqg uonoy
Hoday JeaA-PIN lelol [9UUOSIog-UON |ouuosiog bupnqiyuod | uedsouy Jopi]1 uonoy /|eos
S3JIA19G pue Suol}oy
"yjew ui ssalboud
Juapnys yoel; 0) weiboid Apeoy
-] @Y} 9sn Aj|njss922ns 0} Moy
ul Buluiely aniadal [|IM S18Yyoed)
‘1894 |00yds zz0¢/120T
ayj ul Jaje “Aunwiwod
Hoddns auljuo ue 0} ssa22%e
¥2-£202 10} 3WO02INQ palisaq ssaibouad Jeaj-pIN | Jeda auljoseg BRI ETT Auoud




p0day JEIA-PIN SIS 7@ SUOIIY

LT Jo 7 98ed 12143517 [00YOS UOIUN UBWIYDIO|G 10} UB|4 AJI[IGRIUNOIIY |01JU0D) |BD07 22-2C1C
jeuoissajoid pue Bujuiely
0% [=zelol 0% [e007] apiAoid 0} anuUOD [jIM DA
juawdojanap
0% 9elIs 18yio 0¢$ 8je1s Jauio jeuoissoyoid
0$| 00°000'L$ 000°L$ 4407 0$ 4407 ON Buiobuo pue bulujesy sayseal | ¢l
‘sjuapnis

10} WojsAs jeliajal e se
SAJSS pUB SUOIJUBAJB]UL JO}
yoddns spiroid [jim (LSS)

wes | Apnig juepmig 8yl

‘Buisn aJe Aoy} swelboid
paseq-93udpIAd BU)

yym papirold sjuswissasse
ay} Buisn Buiobuo
passasse ale yjew

10} AioBajes Buiwiopad
MO| BY} Ul Sjuapnis

‘Bunsajiuew

s| Juapnis sy} AYnoup

J0 adA} pue soljsuaoBIBYD
ayj uo Buipuadap

sis9} 9|dwes ddSvyvo
PuE ‘yle|\ WeazZ ‘Yyiey
yono| ‘xe|y Aqo[ aJe
pasn saibojopoyjew paseq
-90UapIAG BY] ‘Jayoes)
UOIJUBAJBIUI PaJBIIINDD

B Aq papiroid uoijuanIsiul
SAISUBJUI BAI928l

{Im sjuspnis pajiiuapi
"SUOIBPUSLLIOIS]
Jayoes) pue

jualed pue sjuswissasse
ybnouyy buiyoea)

pajebie} pue uoljuanialul
10} payljuapt aq jlIm yiew
Jo} AioBajes Buiwiopad
O] 83U} Ui sjuapnig ‘siaad

uonduoasaqg uoloy
/el) 1 uonoy eoo

spung sasuadx3y sasuadx3

jejol |oUuuo0sSiIa4-uoN |2uuosiad m_.__u:n_h—:oo :NQwQE_._.

uoday teaA-pIN




LT j0 G 38ed

u0day JeaA-PIA SIIIAIBS 73 SUOIDY

1UISIJ JOOYIS UOIUMN UBWIYD0|g 104 UB|d A|IGRIUNOIDY [0JIU0D) [820T ZZ2-2ZTT

"90USI0S Ul pJepue)s aje)s

3y} popa29Xa 10 JaW SjuapN}s
N0 JO %0t ||BI9A0 JBY} MOYS
M 1 SO 9y} Wol} S)nsalisa)

B]Ep pUODJ3S B 9ARY JOU ||IM

OM ‘JONSMOH ‘Blep pied podal
uo Aja1 s|00} juawainseaw

[ed0] InQ "L 20¢ Ul d|qejiene

9Q jou |im pue (gZ0¢ ui s|qe|iene
JoU a1am synsal buysal | SYD
ay) ‘olwspued ayj 0} anqg ‘pasn
aq ||IM sainseaw |edo] 18yjo
uay} ‘s|gejieAeun ale sa100S
Bunsa) sjeys § “(s|qejiene

J1) s2100s Buisa) ajels ayj Aq
painseaw se $g(0g Jeah jooyos
JO pua ay} Aq a2UaI0s 10} S8109S
1S9} 9)B}S UO SAWO0I}NO0 Judpnis
anoidwi 0} si Z |eoS) 4vD14n0

"90UaI0s
Ul piepue)s 9}e}s 3y} papasdxa
10 J3W SjuapnIs Ino Jo

%G1 ¥E I[eJSA0 JelY} MOYsS | SYO
610¢-810¢ 94} WoJj s}nsal jsa|

ay} uo adcuewuopad juapnis
aq |im  Ajond Joj oupBw ay |

‘'1SVD

vZ-£2¢0¢ ._,Oh awodnQ palisag

$591604d 129 A-PIN | JB3A

aujjaseg

Ul Auoud

Z |eon) 10} saAnoalqo ajqeinses|y [enuuy pajoadxy

(sawo3ino idnd) Juswoasiyoe |idnd - ¢

:sanuoud aje)s Buimojjo} ay) sassalppe |eob
SIY] 'SJUSpN}s ||B 40} | SO Y UO S8109s 1S9} Juapn)s anoidwi 0 Si jeob JnO “plepuels ay) Jeaw Jou pIp S}USpN]s Ino Jo %9/°6 PUB ‘pJepue)s 8y} Jaw Ajeau sjuapnis
1IN0 JO %,01°9G ‘92UaIDS 10} PIEPUE)S 9Y) POPesIXa IO JoW SJUBPNIS INO JO %G| ¢ (|BISAC Jey) MOYs 6102-810Z 40} s)nsal (1SYD) 181 ouaIog eluiojied ay) o sishjeuy

sjeuoney

‘se109s Buiyse) ajeys oY) Aq painseaw se pz0z Jesh |ooyds jo pua 3y} Aq 30UIIDS 10} SAI0IS }SI) 9)BJS UO SAWOIINO Juapnys aAoldwyj

¢ |eod

03 |elspad

03 |esopad

‘Ylew u uonanJsul

Ayjenb ybiy saniep

0} Ajjige Jisy} aaosdwil way)
diay o} s18y2e3} InC 0}
sanjiunyoddo juawdojaaap

spung

yoday Jeap-pIy 101

sasuadxg
[9uuOSIad4-UON

sasuadx3y

jsuuosiag Bunnquuod

uedsow)

uonduasaqg
/81 L uondy

uondy
/feoo




10d3Y JRIA-PIA SIIIAIDS 7R SUOIIIY

LT j0 9 38eqd 1014351 |OOYIS UOIUN Uewyd0jg J0) Ue|d AljIgRIUNOIIY [043U0D |BI0T 22-221C
0$ KIS JauI0 0$ S¥elS J9UI0 u__mwﬂ__mmﬁwwn
0$| 000001$ 000'L$ 4401 03$ 4401 ON Buiobuo pue Buluren Jayseal | 2
1esk
|ooyss zz0z/1.20C du3 Jo}
uoijdope jelajew asinod
|eui} e axjeuwl 0} si _mom oyl
‘suondo Jayjo 1e Bujoo)
ale pue sjelajewl jusund
ay} yum pasesid jou aie
Aoy} ‘1ansmoH *1202/0202
pue 0zZ0z/6 10z Buunp
0% |elopo4 0% |eJopo+ [elS}eW 3SIN0D 32UBI0S
paubie spiepuels bunojid
0% |20 0% 1e207] u29q aAeyY sJayoea |
. sjellajewt
000°0S$ SIeIS JoUI0 0$ S1EIS 19U Sin05 85_8_ u.ocum__a
18°698'82$| 00°000°0€$ 0$ 44901 0% 4401 ON 220e/1202 spiepuejs maujdopy| 1T
S I
ModeN kPN | e | josseseion o [owmnauwoo| wedsawny | obesea U
S9JIAIDG pUk SUonoay
‘Ajojesedas padloAul jou
SEeM pue wn|na1LuN2 8y} JO }S09
ayj} ul papnjoul sem Buluiely siy}
J0 1502 3y "uondope wnjnoLInNo
Mau ay} jo ped se wnnouINg
22uaI9s 3y} Jo siaysignd
3y} wolj Juswdojonap
|jeuoissajoid paniadal siayoes |
"1eak jooyos Z20z/1202
ayj jo pua ay} Je ajoAd ajepdn
|[enuue 4y97 jewsou ay; buunp
yjew ui ssaiboud juapnys uno
podal jjim SN 2202 J0 yolely
Ajea yun uosuedwod Joj juiod
$Z-£202 10) dWoINQ palisag ssa4604d JeoA-PIN | JBOA auljoseg RIRETTT fuoud




[T J0 ¢ 98ed

Hoday JedA-PIA SDIIAIDS g SUOIIY
IDLISIQ [00YIS UOIU UBWYDO|g JO4 ueld A}|IGeIUNOIIY |0JIU0D |8207 22-2212

" "s1ouled) ysibug wusy-buo) Jo
3SU-}e Se payissed ale sjuapnis
ou jey} ainsua |im (d34Y) sel
uolnjesIsse|oal Juspnis 113 2
‘Aousioyoud abenbue|

ysibug piemoy ssaiboud Bunjew

94 ||IM SJUSpNIS 1113 40 %66 'L

JOU dJe Sou}dW pleoqyse(
‘oiwuapued ayj 0} anQg

‘S1aule9)| ysibug wusl-buo)

10 YSu-le se palisse|d sjuapn)s
JO Jagwinu - }sanp ejeq ‘2
Aouaiiyoid

abenbue) ys)bu3 spiemo)
ssaiboid Bunjew syuspnis

J0 Judouad - pieoqyseq |

:SMOJj0}
se ale [eob siy} Joj soulBwW
ay] ‘spuapnis (71713) Joulea
abenbue ysijbu] ioj sajel
uoljeoljisse|oal pue sa109s 1S9}
OVd13 anoidwi 0} si ¢ |BOD

"siaules)
ys1bug -buoj se payjisselo
dI9M SJUapNIS OU Hsu-je

SE payisse|o ale sjusapnis 113
JO %1l -1saND ejeq 02/61L ¢
‘Aousioioud

abenbue| ysijbug spiemo)
ssalboid Bupjew ale syuapnis

0 %SG GY - pleoqyseq 61/81 1

"s1oules) ysibuz wis)-buoj

10 YsSLI-}e se payisse[o sjuapnis
JO Jagwinu - }sanp ejeq ‘g
Aauaioyoud

abenbuej ysibug spiemoy
ssalboid Bujew sjuspnis

Jo Juaosad - pieoqyseq ‘|

$2Z-£20¢ 10} dw0IINQ palisag

$594601d JRIA-PIN | JRIA

aujjaseg

RITET

fuoug

¢ |eon) 10} saAslgO ajgeinses| |[enuuy pajoadx3

"$X00QqIX3]} 8100 3y} ul pajelodiodul sjeusiew 13 [eluswa|ddns pue 2109 sy} SZ||AN |[Im SI8Ydea) ‘A|[eUcIpPY "SSJIAISS UOHU3AIBIUI O}
$$829E U0 SISEYdWS UB ylim ‘SJUSPNIS ||B O} S|C.[IBAE SJB JBY) SSIIAISS SLUES 8y} 9AI8da) |[IM siauleaT] ysibu] ‘seale ojwapede |[e ul Jsuaq uuopad Jjim abenbue; ysiibug
8y) Jo dseub poob B aABY OYM SJUSPNIS "90UBI9S PUE ylew o} Bunejas s|jeob Jiusped. Jayj0 JNo aAdIyde sn diay |jim sjuspnis 113 Joy s||i4s abenbue| ysibug Buinosdw

ajeuoney

sjuapn)s (713) Jausea] abenbue] ysibug 10} s}k UOIIEIIJISSE|DAI PUB SAI0IS 1S3} DV 13 2A0iduwi|

€ |eod

"WIN[NJLIND 82UdI0S
Mau ayy azinn AjpAoaya
way) djay o} sisyoes)
JNo 0} saljjunpoddo
08 1esopad 0$ |esepad juswdojanap |euoissajoid
03 |E207] 03 [e207] pue Buiuiel; spiaoid [jim SpA

) spung sasuadx3y sasuadx3 uondiosag uonoy

Hoday Jesx-pI jejol jauuosiag-uoN jouuosiad Bupnquiuog | uedsouny /3111 uonoy /leos




L0daYy JBIA-PIA SIIIAIIS R SUOIIIY

LT jo g 98ed 01351 |OOYIS UOIUM uewWYdOo|g 40} ue]d AlljIGRIUN0IJY |0JIUO)) [BI0T 22-221C
0% |eJope |esapa4 SpJopn ‘Aeld PUiy SIS
sy abenbueysyibug
0% {ed07] 1Bd07] J1vy} aAoudwit syuapnis 113
diay o} sweiboid Buimoyjo}
0% ®.Is 18uI0 0% SILIS Jaul0 Sy} 9ZI|IN [jIM SJoyoea |
0$ 00'0$ 0$ 4301 4401 ON BuioBuo sweisbord suyruo g3 Z'E€
‘sjuspnis 1713
Ino AJisse[0al pue yoel}
Ajojendoidde 03 sn smoje
}l @sneoaq spuny Jo asn
aAI}03Y8 UE S| SI0jeuIpJood
OVd13 buirey "s|qissod
SE UOOS SE UOIJBOlISSEe|0al
0% |elopa4 |elepa yoeal 0} paau Aay) uoddns
. 3y} aAI90al Sjuspn)s 113
0% [ed07] [es07 ains Bupjew ui jsisse 0}
$10JBUIPICOD DY 41T [enbull
0$ 8|S BuI0 0$ ®¥els Jaylo -1q oM Sey JOLISIp Y|
06°299% 00°Gec'L$ 0% 4401 Gee'Ls 4401 ON BuiobuQ $l10jeulpiood DVd13 L'e
i spung sasuadx3 uonduasag uonody
Hoday Jea A-pIN €30 [oUUOSIa4-UON bupnquuon | uedsawil /OILL UOHOY /e0s
S9JIAI9S pUB Suol}ay
"1eak |ooyos siyj jO pud
ay} Aq payissejoal aq p|noys
Aiobajed toulea| ysibug wiag)
-Buoj ay} ui palyisse|o syuapnis
ay) Jo awos ‘osly "uonendod
Japnjs 1no ui abueys
B 0} anp s} asealoul siy} Jo
Hed "120¢/0c0¢ ul sjuspnis xis
01 020¢/610¢ Ul sjuapnjs aalyj
Wwolj pasealoul sey slaules)
ys!|bug wus}-6uoj 10 ysii-1e
SBe palyISSe|2 sjuapnjs Jo Jaquinu
3y} Jey} SMoYs uolewo}ul
1Sanpd Ble(] JO Malnal
V '120¢ 10 020Z 10} a|qejiene
$2-£Z0Z 104 2WO)INQ palsag s59160.4d Je9A-PIN | JBIA auleseg oo Auoud




H0oday JBIA-DIIA SIIIAIIS 73 SUOIIDY
[T jo 6 38ed 121351 [O0YIS UOJUN UBWYDO|g 10} UB|d AM|IGERIUNODdY |0JIU0D) [BI07 Z22-2212

(12/02) %¥S L6 sem
1NoYyip 3 dpew sey djwapued a]el 2oUBpUS)E JUSPNIS - BG
9y ‘Sjewl|d jooyds pue (jeo0)) pseoquse( - spiepuels
IO - ¢| ‘Juswabebus 1dnd ‘Juswaajoaul IBN-€| ajels ay; Jo uonejuswaidwi 'z
PN -2 juaied Buipnjoul Juswabebua JIBN -2
PN - L |[ooyds anoidwi 0} si {7 [BOS) PN- L (jeoo|) pieoqyse( - oiseg '|
$2-£202 10} dWO3INQ palisag ss34604d JB9A-PIN | JEIA auijaseg 2N Auond

y |09 10} saA32alqO d|qelnses]y jenuuy pajoadxy

$S9998 9SIN0D - /.
Sjewl|d |00Yds - 9

juswabebus pdnd - ¢

JUSLUBAJOAUI Judled - €

spiepuejs ajejs jo uonjejuswajdwy - 2
olseg - |

Juswebebus Buipiebal sanjuoud ajels Buimo)|o;
ay} sessalppe |eob siy| ‘passiw ale sefiunpoddo [euooniisul ou Jey) os siseq Jejnbal e uo jooyas Buipuaje jo souepodwi sy} puejsiapun o} sjuapnis Joj jueuodw osje
SI}| "uOllEINpPa S,UaIpP(IYd JIBY} Ul PBAJOAUL 3G O} saljiunpoddo aaey Aay} |98} 0} sjualed 1o} pue [00UIS JB SWOdjaM PUEB djes |99} O] SJUSPN]s 10j Juelodwil Si )i 8Aa1j2q SN

ajeuoney

*ajew}d jooyos pue ‘Juawebebua j1dnd ‘yuawaajoaul Juased Buipnjous Juswabebua jooyss saaoidw|

¥ 1809

"JS02 |Buol)ippe ou
s1 a1y} os swelboid asay}
umo Apealje app SiiS
V13 418y} aAoidwil spuapn}s
113 pe 0} Ajjeaytoads
paubisap welboid
paseqg-yaleasal e st Aejd
puiy “Buipeay uoueg pue
‘ap0Q 8u} apo|dx3 ‘Buitm
0} dn dais ‘souoyd
Aewnd ‘peay j08loid
‘AlleinieN peay ‘Aepp J1oyl

spung sasuadx3y sasuadx3 Bugnquiuos | uedsauwn) uondudsag uondy

Hoday JeaA-PIN fejol JouuOSIad-UoN Jauuosiad JORLL uonOY /jeoo




LT 30 0T 93ed

1oday JeaA-PIAl SBIIAISS 19 SUOIIY
31ISIJ [00YS UOIUM UBWIYDO|g 103 Ue|d A[IGBIUNOIDY [043UOD) [D07 ZZ-TCTT

BN -2

19N - 29
%0 29 |lim djel uoisindx3 - g9
%G @( [|IM 3}kl uoisuadsng - eg

%0 39 [lim

3jed Ino doup jooyos S|ppIN - 2
%¢ uey} ssgj aq [|Im

ajel wislaaquasge oluoiyd - gg
Jajealb 10 9,66

aq [jim S}kl dduepuayy - G

aoue)sip ul pajedioied syuapnys
ino jo Auepy -olwapued

3y} 0} anp Ajewoue ue

1 120¢2/020¢ Ul sjel sduepusje
ybiy ay; ‘Janamop ‘ojel
8duepuaje 1 20¢2/02¢0¢ 3y} wol
9SBaloap B SI YdIYM 9% 16°S6

S| 9jel sguepuale ¢¢oc/Lcoc
Juauno ayj — ajel aguepuaye
jusapnjs - ejep |eo07] e
Juswabebug dng g

‘olwapued ay} 0} anp sjqissod
Jua)xa 1sajealb sy} 0} Jow

sI oujew — (je2o]) pseoqyse(
- JUSWIDA|OAUI [BJUBIRd 'C

1eak

JuS.1InNd 3y} 10} Jaw Si duewW

— (jeo0)) pieogyse(] - spiepuels
aje}s ayj jo uoneyuswajdwi g

‘1eak
Jus.LINg By} 40} JaW S duewW
— (je20}) pieoqyseq - di1seqg |

:SMOJ|0}
se aJe |eoB siy} 10} soujaW 8y |

‘Aiessaoau se weiboid

auvs ayj Buisn ase app
‘sjuapnys pue sjualed }sisse 0}
a|qepene s jsibojoyoAsd jooyos
Y] "SOA)UIDUI ddUEBpUS)E
jusapnys ay} puadsns 0} pey

os|e aney apAn ‘i1sed ayy ul aaey
am se saljiunpoddo uonediomied
Juaied a}is-uo apiaoid 0} sn 10}

BN -2

BN - 99
(oz/61)
%0 Sem ajel uolsindx3 - q9

(61/81)
nxvm.o sem ajel Co_wcwaw:w - Bg

(02/61) %0 sem
ajel Jno doup |ooyos 3|ppIN - 96

(02/61) %S¥ sem
9)el wisiaajuasqe dluolyD - q4g

(Je20))
pieoqgyse - sseddke asino) '/

(jleoo]) pseoqyseq o

ajel uoisjndxa - }Jsanpejeq q
ajel uolsuadsns - pieoqyse(q ‘e
Sjewl|) |00Yyds ‘g

ajeJ 1no doup

|O0YDS S|ppIW - Blep |20 O
sajel wsidsjuasqe

21UoIYd - pJeoqyseq 'q

ajel asuepusje

juspnjs - ejep |eo07 ‘e
wawabebug pdnd ‘g

(jeoo)) pseoqyseq
- JUBWDA|OAU! |elusied ‘¢

¥2-£20€ 10} dWoNQ pasisaQ

ssaibold Jea\-pIN | Jeax

auljaseg

I

Kuoud




poday JeaA-pI S3IIAIIS 1 SUOHIY
LT 30 1T 38ed PLISIA [00YIS UOIUN UBWIYIO|G O} Ue|d AH[IGRIUNO0IIY [01IU0D [BI0T ZZ-22TT

"Jeak juaiing sy} 4o} Jow

sI oujBW — (|e20|) pseoqyseq o
"120¢-02¢0¢ 10 0¢0¢/6102

ul suois|ndxa ou aJam

919y} smoys ejep saAvdivo

— 9jel uoisjndxa - }sanpejeq ‘q
'020¢/610¢ woy

uoisuadsns asnoy-ui auo Jo
aseaoul ue si siyl "1¢0¢/020¢
Buunp suoisuadsns asnoy

-Ul poAIaJal SJUSpN]S d3aIY)

jeyl smoys ejep SQvd1vo
"3jel uoisuadsns - pieoqyse( ‘e

Sjewl|d [ooyds 9

%0 99 0}

sanuiuod ajel Jno doup jooyds
a|ppiw JnQ — d}el no doup
|[OOY2S 3jppIW - B}ep |B207
"9 pjnom

Ajlewsou Aay} ueyj asow juasqe
aq 0] SJUapN}s aWOSs pasned
yolym a2IAIas snq apinoad o}
a|geun ai1om am ‘Olwapued ay)
0} 9np ‘JOASMOH "ws|asjuasqe
oluoJyD Ul dsealoul Jybis

B SMOUS 120¢/0¢0¢ Ul psjo9jjod

ejep SQVd1vD ‘dlgejieae
Ajjua1no jou si pieoqyseq

ay | — sojel wsiddjuasqe
o1uoJy9 - pJeoqyse( ‘q

"S|9AS| [BWLIOU O} WINjal |jim

ajel aosuepuajje Jno sjediolue
aMm ‘spud olwapued ay)

aduQ '|o0oYIS pusje o} sjuapnjis
Auew Joj Jaises )i apew Yolym
1. 20T J0 Yyose |yun Bujuies)

¥Z-£20Z 10} 2WoaNQ palisaqg ssalbold JeoA-PIN | JeaA aujjoseg oo Auoud




LT 30 1 98ed

110d3y JEIA-PIA SIIAIDS 1B SUOIDY
1d13SI(] |00YIS UOIUN UeYd0|g 10} uejd A}|IQBIUNOIDY |0JIUOD |B30T 22-221C

0$| 0000SL$

0  lesspeq
0% |eco]
0$ 9IS Byl
00S'1$ 4401

0$ jeidspa
0$ |Bd307
0% 8’ s I8yl
0% 4401 ON

Buiobug

|00YDS 0} SWO0D 0} SjUapN}s
ajenlow o} Aem e sy
"|ooyos pusje 0} sjuapnis
Buibeinosus jJo poyaw
BAI28Yd ue aq 0} uaaoid
dABY SBAIJUADU| JUBPNIS
"JO0YIS pusje 0} SAAIJUdIUY
juspnis apiaoid jlim SpA
SIAIJUAIUI

aouepuapye jJuapnig

0% 0003

0$  |eiepa4
0$ |eco
0$ 8lels Jay1o
0$ 4407

0$  lesopad
0$ |eoo]
0$ 2BIS 18410
0$ 4401 ON

Buiobup

"$9IUOWBIDD

pieme Ajyjuow pue

‘Aeq pjai4 pue oel] ‘Aeq
Jajepp ‘Mmoys Jusle] ‘youni
Alwey saunuajep ‘Aeq

oy ‘sbunssw pieoq je
uolssas uado ‘siapajsmau
Alyauow ‘WBIN |ooyos

o) oeg ‘sAaains juaied
‘S9OUBIBJUOD JBYIED)
-juased ‘sbuesw 4y
‘sBunsaw j1ouno) S
{ooyas :apnjoul sajdwexy
“SBIJIAIJOR [00YDS Ul PAAJOAUL
2q 0} ‘spa3au [euoiydaoxa
ylim sjuapnis Jo sjualed
pue sjidnd pajediidnpun jo
sjuased Buipn|oui ‘syuased
[ie Jo} saniunuoddo
apinoad [Im Spn
saniunpoddo
uonedioiyed juaied

1 4

spung

oda 9 A-
HOddY Jed A-pIN je104

sasuadx3y
|auuosIag-uoN

sasuadx3y

jauuosiag Bupnqinuod

uedsawij

uonduasaq
/BNLL uonvy

uondy
Nleos

S92IAJ9S pue Suoloy

ualno
8y} 10} }oW S| oulBw — (jeao))
pleoqyse( - SS999e 3sIN0) 4

¥¢-£20¢ 10} dwonQ paisag

ssaiboid Jeai-piN | JeaA

auiaseg

L ETT

fsoug




110day JeaA-PIA SSIIAUBS ) SUOIDY
LT 40 €T 98eqd PLISIQ [O0YIS UOIUN UBWIYDO|g 10} Ueld AY|IqRIUN0IY [013U0D) 2207 ZZ2-2ZTT

00'816'62$| 00°9£8'65% 0% 4401 9£8'65$ 4401 ON Buiobup ysiBojoyohsd jooyog A 2

‘S|eAJBJUI ABp § puE

‘9 ‘¢ 1B $9oUasqe payLsAun
yiim sjuapnis Jo sjualed

0] JUaS 9q [|IMm SI18)19|

ayVyS "seouasqe g sayoeal
0% |esopa 0% lesapo Juspnis B aouo sjualed yum
1oBJUOD sayew |ediould

0% o0 0$ [8207] pue Juasge ale sjuapnis
uaym sjuaied o} apew
0% 9|Is 12yio 0% a.ls 1Byl0 aq |Im s|jeo auoydaja .

0% 00°0% 0$ 4401 0% 4401 ON Buiobup UOIUAAIBIUI GHVS 8 2

‘Yluow aiua

ayj Joj Apnys juapuadapul
uo jou ale pue ‘salple}

ou ‘souepuaye Joapad

peyY 2ABY OYMm sjuapnis

10} Ajuo si Buimelp Alyjuow
ay | "aAijuaoul Jobue|

B 9AI90a1 0} Juapnjs auo Jo}
sse|o Auans 1oy play aq [Im
Buimelsp e ‘yjuout e @dUQ
‘a}eoyiuad uoniuboosal

B 9AI903l ||IIS [[IM

Buimelp ayj uim jou op oym
SJUapN}S "PIEME SAIJUSDUI
ue 9AI9991 0] Uasoyd

aq [IIm |9A9] apelb yoea
WwioJj JUapn]s auQ ‘dAiUadUY
ue aAla03l o} Buimelp e
Ojui palaju? aq [{Im BlLBIID
2y} JoaW oym [aA9] apelb
yoea wouy suapnis Aepli4
yoe3 “Apnjs juspuadapui
UO JOU ale oym pue ‘sajpie}
ou ‘aouepuaye joapad

Uum sjuspnis 10} aq [iim
SOAIJUaDUI 8Y] Jno uaAIb
ag |jIm S2AIJUSDUI JUSPNIS

spung sasuadx3g sasuadx3 uonduasag uonoy
felol [9UUOSIad-UON |auuosiad Bugnqiyuod | uedsawiy JOPIL uonoy fleos

Hoday Jea-piN




110daY JeSA-PIN S9IIAIRS 7§ SUOIDY

LT 0 ¥T 98ed 1D1ISIQ [00YIS UOIUN UBLWIYDO|g 10} Ueld AM|IGBIUNOIDY [013UOD 8307 22-2ZTT

‘wesboud 19101RY2 INO 10§
wnnoINd juaiind Jno asn

0% [elapa 0% |eJapad 0} 9NURUOD pue ‘syussed
YlIm JoBjJUCO Urejulew
0$ Laed 0$ Lesd ‘1s1bojoyohsd jooyos
0% sleis 18Ul 0$ 9 IS 18YIo 314 G e apiroid [Im S
spuny sasuadx3y sasuadx3 Bupnquiuos | uedsawiy uonduaseq uonoy

uoday JeaA-pIN

jejol |ouuoSsIa4-UON |]auuosiad /oRLL uondy Neoo




LT 40 ST 33ed

10day JeIA-PIAI SDIIAIDS g SUOIIDY
PUISIA [00YIS UOIUN UBWIY0]g 10} UB|d A3l|IqeIun0ddy |043U0D) 8207 ZZ-2Z1T

"v13 u! flunpoddo
juswdo|anap jeuoissajoud
3UO }Sed| Je anI903l
Ajenuue |im siayoea ] - eg

"SJUapN}S ||e 10} Shiels ay} mojaq
S|aA9] alow 1o om) sdnoibgns
ou YjIm /13 ul ‘siaules)

ysiibug Buipnjoul ‘sjuspnis ||
1o} pJeoqyse(q |00yoS eluiolijen
3y} Uo SNjejs uadls) - By

ajepdn jenuue 4y jewlou ay}
Buunp y13 u ssaiboid Juspnis
Ino yodal [jim 3N 2202

JO yousey Auea jun uosuedwod
Joj juiod ejep puooas e aney
JOU ||IM dM ‘JOASMO}] ‘B}ep pJed
yodai pue weiboid Juswssasse
Apeay-| ay} apnjoul $|00}
juswiainseaw [e20] INO "LZ0Z
ul paystjqnd a4 jou ||im pue
020z ul paysiignd jou sem ejep
pieoqyse( jOOYoS eluiojle)
ay; ‘olwapued ayj 0} ang "pasn
aq ||Im sainseaw |Beo0| Jayjo
uay} ‘e|gejieAeun ale $3100S
Bunsa) ajels | “(s|qejene

J1) sa1092s Buiysa) ajels

ay} Ag painseaw se Qg Jeak
looyas jo pua ay} Aq (v13) sHY
abenbue ysibu3 Joj $3100S
1S9} 9JE]S UO SBWOIJNO0 Juapnis
anoidwi 0} sI G [e0S) ¥ InO

"v13 ut Alunpoddo
juswdojanap jeuoissajoid auo
aNId03l Ajjlenuue siaydes] - eg

‘sjuiod 4Gz pasealoul
‘pJepue)s mojaq syuiod g/

aJe sjuapnjs Jawies| ysijbuy

- Y13 10} pleoqyse(q 61/81 - By
‘sjuiod

'L L pasealioul :piepuels ayy
anoge sjuiod z'¢| ‘snjejs usalo
-V13 10} pieoqyse( 61/81 - By

V13 ul saijunpoddo
juswdojanap |euoissajoud
pajuelb aq [jim slayoeal ||y ‘e
sawoo}no jidnd 1ayl0 °g

V13 1o} Juswssasse

ddSvvO — pleoqyseq ‘e
Juswanalyay jidnd 4

¥2-£20¢ 10} 3WO0NQ palisag

ssalfoid Jedp-pIN | Jes A

auljaseg

LINETT

fuongd

G |eO95) 10} SaAR22[qO ajgelnses|y jenuuy pajoadx]y

(sewo9yno pdnd) sawooino idnd Jaylo - 8
(sewooino |idnd) Juswanaiyoe |idnd - ¢
:sonuoud a1e)s Buimoj|o} oy} sassalppe [eob siy] 13 ul [|om Buiwiopad aie sdnoib juapnis ||e Jey} sajedlpul osje ejep [eso)

1 202/020¢ Jo sisAjeue uy "piepuels ay) mojag sjulod g°g pa1oos dnoib juspnis pabejueApesip AJ|EDILIOUOID0I00S INQ “pJepue)s ayj mojag sjutod g'g patoas dnoibgns
ouedsiH JNQ “pJepuels oy} aaoge siuiod g ge palods dnoibgns ajym Ing “Jeah Joud ayj woyy sjuiod || | AQ pasealoul $a100s Juspn]s ||eJaAo pue sdnoib juspnis

[le 10} u9aI9) S| JOjOD pIEOqUSE(] |[BJOAC INO "PJEpuels alels ayl mojaq Apybis buiwiopad ale sjuapnis pabejueapesip A||BoIloUcI90190s pue diuedsiH tno ‘Jeak soud sy
JOAO0 $2103s 59} 419y} panosdwi sdnoib Juapnis jje ajiym (v13) sKy @benbueyysibug ui jlam Buiwiopad ase sjuapnis Ino [[BJsA0 Jeuy) smoys sisAjeue pieogused 61.0¢

ajeuoney

‘pasn aq ||IM Sainsealu |e20] JoYl0 Udy] djqejieAeUn ale sa109s Bunsa) ajels §| -(ajqejieae

J1) saloas Bupsay ajeys ayj Aq painseaw se yZoz Jeak [ooyas jo pua ay} Aq suy abenbBueysijbu3 Jo) S3109s }S3] 9Je)S UO SIAWOIINO JUIPN)S droldw]

g |[eoo




LT jo 9T 38eq

110d3Y JEA-PIA SIIIAIDS R SUOIIY

3101ISIQ JOOYIS UOIUN UBWYI0|g 40} Ueld AH|IQRIUN0DY [013U0) [e207 Z2-2ZTT

4401 rAL

VY13 ui uononJisul

Ayenb ybiy saniep

o} Aljige Jiay} ancidwil wiay}

d|ay 03 s1aydes} Jno 0}

0% |eJapaq 0% |esopo4 saiiunuoddo Juswdojensp

|euoissajold pue Buiuiesy

0% [es07] 0% |eooT] apiaold 0] SnuUIUOD [|IM SAA

juawdojanap

0% 9le1s 18/ylo 0% 8115 48yl jeuoissajoud

0$| 00°000°L$ 000°L$ 4401 0$ 4401 ON Buiob-uo pue Bujujesy Jayoeay  'g
. spung sasuadx3y sasuadx3 uonduoasaqg uonoy
tOQom JEIA-PIN jejoL J9UUO0SIad-UON [auuosiad m:_u—._n_._ucoo :mawoc.__._. /3L uondy /1eos
S92IAI0G pUe SUOl}dY
w13 ul ssaiboud
apnis yoel} o} welboid Apesy
-] 8y} 9sn A}|nyss929NnSs 0} MOy
ur Buluiel) anleoal ||IM SIBYOED)
‘1eaf jooyds 2z02/1202Z dy} Ul
Jaje] “Ajunwwos poddns aujjuo
ue 0} Ssa2o%e pue ‘sjeusnol
|enbip 03 ss9o0e ‘S9SIN0D
paosed-}|as [enpIAIpul sapinoid
weisboud siy| ‘weiboid ysijbug
JO SI18yoea| Jo [Iounoy jeuoijeN
3y} Ui pa||0Jud B1aM SIBYOeD) ||Be
‘1ea4 jooyos 1,20z/0202Z 3y} Jo
pus 8y} v "v13 ui saiiunpoddo
Buiuies; jeuoissajoid yim
papinoid uaaq aney siayoesy ||V
"Jeak jooyds gz0e/Le0e
3y} o pua ayj je ajoho
$Z-£20Z 10) 2Wwo3InQ paiseq ssai1boid Jeaj-pig | JeaA auljeseg olION KHuoud




poday JeaA-pIN SIIIAIRS B SUOIY

LT 40 /LT 38ed 121151 [0OYDS UOIUM UBWYDO0|g 1O} UBld A3|IGRIUNODDY [0J1U0D [8207 22-221T
spun4 sasuadx3gy sasuadx3 uonduosag uonoy
odoy JeaA-pl
H o A-PIN [elotL [2UuOoSIad-UoN jpuuosiad Bugnquiuod | uedsount JoL). uonoy /leoS)
















Blochman Union School District
Benjamin Foxen School * 4949 Foxen Canyon Road
Santa Maria, CA 93454 * (805) 937-1148

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
JANUARY 11, 2022

A regular meeting of the Board of Education of the Blochman Union School District was held at the
Benjamin Foxen Elementary School Library on January 11, 2022. Closed session was held at 5:00 p.m.
and open session at 5:30 p.m.

Members present: Shannon Clay, Thomas Gibbons, Daniella Pearce, and Jeania Reasner. Absent: Kelly
Salas-Ernst.

I

II.

IL.

PUBLIC SESSION: Mrs. Clay called the meeting to order and led the flag salute at 5:35 p.m.

and then welcomed guests. She noted no one attended via Zoom. There were no closed session
actions to report.

Reports

A. Charter School Reports

i.

il
ii.
iv.

Family Partnership Charter School — Stephanie Eggert reported that current
enrollment is 409. They just returned from winter break. They are continuing to
work on their WASC accreditation. They received free COVID test kits from the
county.

Trivium Charter Schools — none.

Teacher Reports — none.

Superintendent/Principal’s Report — Doug Brown reported that current
enrollment is 176 students. Basketball season has begun. The boys had their first
practice this week. The first game is Monday, January 24. Sara Canongo is
coaching the girls team and Mr. Gordillo is coaching the boys team. The Robotics
Team has expanded their season. They will be meeting one day per week
beginning January 18 until April 12. Donna Beal is the team coach. COVID
statistics: 69.3% of county residents, ages 5 and older, are vaccinated; 73% of staff
is vaccinated; the case rate is 187.78 per 100,000 and was last reported at 12.6 per
100,000 (per 7 days); we have had 27 students and 4 staff members test positive.
We also received free COVID testing kits from the county for students.

ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR INFORMATION

A.
B.

Facilities use — Jeania Reasner; 10 tables; 12/12/2021

Golden State Water Company Notice of Intent to Abandon Pipeline Easement and
Tank Easement — Mr. Gibbons requested that Mr. Brown send a letter to GSWC
requesting that they keep the tanks intact and that the tanks revert to the school.

Family Partnership Charter School Educator Effectiveness Block Grant

January 11, 2022 Regular Meeting Minutes



III. ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR DISCUSSION

A. LCAP Goals — Mr. Brown reviewed the LCAP goals and gave the board and community
members the opportunity to comment on them. He noted that there is definitely some
learning loss caused by the pandemic, especially in the lower grades. He noted that the
school climate is good and that students are well behaved.

i. Improve math, science, and English language arts test scores
ii. Improve our English Language Learner reclassification rate
iii. Improve school engagement and climate
B. Facilities
i. General maintenance — Mr. Brown noted that we are working on the bid for the
drinking fountains. The project will happen over the summer.

IV.  CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS
A. Approval of Minutes
i. Minutes of December 14, 2021 Regular Meeting

*** IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve the Minutes as presented:

MOVED: Thomas Gibbons SECOND: Jeania Reasner
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Aye Jeania Reasner: Aye

Daniella Pearce: Aye Kelly Salas-Ernst: Absent

Thomas Gibbons: Aye

B. Approval of Monthly Warrants — December, 2021

i. Payroll $ 185,366.96
ii. Commercial Warrants $177,410.29
iii. Revolving Fund $ 0.00
TOTAL $ 362,777.25
*** IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve the Warrants as
presented:
MOVED: Thomas Gibbons SECOND: Daniella Pearce
VOTE:
Shannon Clay: Aye Jeania Reasner: Aye
Daniella Pearce: Aye Kelly Salas-Ernst: Absent

Thomas Gibbons: Aye

C. Approval of the following Trivium Charter School reports:
i. Trivium Charter School 2021/2022 First Interim report
ii. Trivium Charter School: Adventure 2021/2022 First Interim report
ili. Trivium Charter School: Voyage 2021/2022 First Interim report
iv. Triviam Charter School 2020/2021 Audit Report

January 11, 2022 Regular Meeting Minutes



*** IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve the Trivium Charter
School reports as presented:

MOVED: Jeania Reasner SECOND: Thomas Gibbons
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Aye Jeania Reasner: Aye

Daniella Pearce: Abstain Kelly Salas-Ernst: Absent

Thomas Gibbons: Aye

D. Approval of Family Partnership Charter School’s reports:
i. Family Partnership Charter School 2021/2022 First Interim report
ii. Family Partnership Charter School 2021/2022 P-1 Attendance report

*** JT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve the Family Partnership
Charter School’s reports as presented:

MOVED: Daniella Pearce SECOND: Jeania Reasner
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Aye Jeania Reasner: Aye

Daniella Pearce: Aye Kelly Salas-Ernst: Absent

Thomas Gibbons:  Aye

V. ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR ACTION

A. Approval of December 2021 Benjamin Foxen Elementary Attendance Report

*** I'T IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve the attendance report as
presented:

MOVED: Thomas Gibbons SECOND: Daniella Pearce
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Aye Jeania Reasner: Aye

Daniella Pearce: Aye Kelly Salas-Ernst: Absent

Thomas Gibbons:  Aye

B. Approval of Blochman Union School District’s 2021/2022 P-1 Attendance Report

**% T IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve Blochman Union School
District’s 2021/21022 P-1 Attendance Report as presented:

MOVED: Thomas Gibbons SECOND: Jeania Reasner
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Aye Jeania Reasner: Aye

Daniella Pearce: Aye Kelly Salas-Ernst: Absent

Thomas Gibbons: Aye

January 11, 2022 Regular Meeting Minutes



C. Approval of the following revised board policies and administrative regulations: BP

0420.42; BP 1312.3; AR 1312.3; E 1312.3 (1); AR 3515.6; AR 4217.3; AR 5125; AR
5145.3; BP 5148.2; AR 5148.2; AR 6112; BP 6112; BP 6143; AR 6143; BP 6170.1; BB
9320 (note BP and AR 6158 were not revised at this time).

**% IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve the revised board policies
and administrative regulations as presented:

MOVED: Daniella Pearce SECOND: Jeania Reasner
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Aye Jeania Reasner: Aye

Daniella Pearce: Aye Kelly Salas-Ernst: Absent

Thomas Gibbons:  Aye

D.

Approval of donations:
i. $405.55; various parents to Blochman Union School District
ii. $40.00; various parents to Blochman ASB

**% T IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve the donations as

presented:

MOVED: Jeania Reasner SECOND: Daniella Pearce
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Aye Jeania Reasner: Aye

Daniella Pearce::  Aye Kelly Salas-Ernst: Absent

Thomas Gibbons: Aye

VL

VII.

VIIIL.

PUBLIC COMMENTS - Joelle Uvalle distributed two articles and asked the board for their
consideration. She distributed the following articles:

A.

Wells, S.D., ODMS: Oxygen Deprivation Mask Syndrome now sweeping across the globe,
NaturalNews.com, December 8, 2021, https://www.naturalnews.com/2021-12-08-oxygen-
deprivation-mask-syndrome-sweeping-the-globe.html

Cassie B., Shocker: COVID-19 vaccines have killed nearly twice as many children as the
virus itself, December 15, 2021, https://www.vaccines.news/2021-12-15-covid-vaccines-
killed-more-children-than-coronavirus.html

MISCELLANEOUS AGENDA ITEMS

SR>

Items Proposed for Future Action or Discussion - none

Blochman Union School District Board Member Items - none

Items not on the Agenda - none

Next Scheduled Board Meeting: February 8,2022; closed session at 5:00 p.m.; open
session at 5:30 p.m., Library

Adjourn

January 11, 2022 Regular Meeting Minutes



TIME:  6:10 p.m.

MOVED: Daniella Pearce SECOND: Jeania Reasner
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Aye Jeania Reasner: Aye

Daniella Pearce: Aye Kelly Salas-Ernst: Absent

Thomas Gibbons:  Aye

January 11, 2022 Regular Meeting Minutes






WYLZ:LL 2202 } 694 '(NY34VHSZ0) Jojeys Aouen Joj pajesauan 32UISiq |ooyd§ uotun uewysolg - 00

1 0 | abed

3dv2S3 | (zzoz/Le/L = @req Aed Buipuz ‘2z2oz/1/L = 8leq Aed Buess 'z = B10) Aq pasayig ‘610 Aq padnou  uoiposEs
o ¥8° 25998 Iviol
JON 0497
SP|oH %03yD
1oN aAneban 86°2¢E°0LL 86'22°0LL
HOV 19N eined SuoliNQUIUOD gy gEE'EY 9v'86£'cy Ayiqer pwisia
! G608l SHO3UD suonanNpsd g9'9/z'0v z5've6'9zL sBunwes ssoio
62 62 1.1'08 spusoda( Joand Aed 19N ¥8'759'98
13N]| | V1Va ONIONV1vVE
HOV PIOA 62 ¥1'529°c8
s)o8Y) |eoue) Gz 09'c22'28 safjijiqet JOpusA
panssioy ¥ PELSYL SY08YD JOPUBA
# 220Z/1€/10 9BQ SSIV0.1d 10} SNSSISY/IoUED _ _ ZZ0Z/1L£/10 9eQ Aed 104 Alewwing JOpudp
¥1'529'¢€8 9'86E°CH 89'9.Z°0¥ SIV10L
VL0 80°€09°cL 6£°80V'6 Iv1019nS 79'€90°6L 6L Z5've6'9zL (i} qviol
GL'109'cE 19°69¢ 19°'69¢ soxe|
29901 '¥S 08°G€8'L 08'6€8°L sBuineg Jowwng
00’6 86'20Z'L 86'202'L oSt 75°988'c2 L 85°205'8¢€ gL payIsse;)
80°€09'ClL 80°€09°€l sjyouag 0L221'GS 8 ¥6°LEP'88 14" pajediNal
sassour) Jaalgng jejol 19h0]dwgy aakojdwz SNOILOoNAa3a _ _ saafojdw3 sjeway adA] uosiag SONINYV3
81°306'S¢ ovr'sze've 81°6.9'L Tviolans Z5°¥€6'92L Iviol
9e°8ve 9e°8ve osInN
85°299'¢ 68'609 £17250'€ siyauag
05°'90L°LL 6€G/L'E ¥2°086'} G9v6L'L 29/s41s
9L'92g'0.L Z9°201'6l 81'668'L1 y¥'802°2 09/S¥1S 18°8%7. spuadig
0Z'¥80°2€ 16°1L60°LL 66'G6¥'8 26'665°2 29/S¥3d €8°GLY'L snosue|isasIy
00'vey's 2£'229'L yozve'l 89°6/€ Sy3d 88'69.'vZ| fed aseq
sassoun Joalqng  |ejol sakojdwz sakojdw3 SNOILONA3Y _ _ﬂssﬁa.e«. awoouj dnosg Aq SONINYVI
6v'sS2°LT 86°995°S 15°88L°9L Iviolans Z5°¥€6°'92L V10l
EV'EE9'ETL 12998 1Z¥98 dwod s1axiopm
£reeo'cel 81’819 81819 ins
EY'€E9'cTL 8€°G85'E 69'262'L 69262°) aiedipay
66'G96'9E 08'€8G'Y 06'162'2 06'162'2 Aunoag epog
vLYS2'2LL 226E0' 2T'6E0'E Buipjoyynm s1eIs
v/ ySe'ellL 0L¥90'6 02790'6 Buipjoyyim |esapag 25°'7£6'921 JejnBoy
sassol9 jaalqng |el0L 12hojdwiz aakojdw3 SaXVL _ _ﬂcwsams.ae. awoay| opo9 sbujuieg Aq SONINYVI

220zZ/1€/10 91eg Aed

610 Aq A1ewwing jjoiheg

eLoAed



ReqPay12a Board Report

Checks Dated 01/01/2022 through 01/31/2022

Check Check Pay to the Order of Expensed Check
Number Date Fund-Object Amount Amount
01-677354 01/10/2022 ALD TELECOM 01-5910 16.47
01-677355 01/10/2022 Cal-Coast Machinery 01-4300 103.78
01-677356 01/10/2022 California Dept. Of Education 13-4710 162.45
01-677357 01/10/2022 Demco Inc. 01-4300 70.37
01-677358 01/10/2022 Frontier Communications 01-5910 1,267.04
01-677359 01/10/2022 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 01-4300 443.08
01-677360 01/10/2022 Jordanos Food Service Division 13-4300 756.36

13-4710 936.73 1,693.09
01-677361 01/10/2022 Mission Linen Supply Inc. 13-4300 615.58
01-677362 01/10/2022 Nancy B Shafer, CPA 01-5800 7,870.00
01-677363 01/10/2022 O'Connor Pest Control 01-5800 75.00
01-677364 01/10/2022 Procare Janitorial Supply 01-4300 1,182.47
01-677365 01/10/2022  Sisc Ill Insurance 67-5450 18,197.40
01-677366 01/10/2022 So California Pizza Co 13-4710 619.65
01-677367 01/10/2022 SoCalGas 01-5510 609.19
01-677368 01/10/2022 TSA CONSULTING GROUP 01-5800 50.00
01-677369 01/10/2022 Verizon Wireless 01-5910 202.80
01-678245 01/14/2022 Capistran, Ernesto A 13-4300 5.32
01-678246 01/14/2022 805 Dairy Distributing LLC 13-4710 367.50
01-678247 01/14/2022 Amazon Capital Services 01-4300 423.41
01-678248 01/14/2022 Coast Networx, Inc. 01-4300 50.00
01-678249 01/14/2022 Culligan San Paso 01-5800 132.50
01-678250 01/14/2022 Farm Supply Company 01-4300 146.06
01-678251 01/14/2022 Golden State Water Company 01-5530 213.37
01-678252 01/14/2022 LogMeln Communications Inc. 01-5910 416.97
01-678253 01/14/2022 Pacific Gas & Electric 01-5520 17.25
01-678254 01/14/2022 Smart & Final 13-4300 70.18

13-4710 27.94 98.12
01-678255 01/14/2022 Staples Business Credit 01-4300 287.78
01-678256 01/14/2022 XEROX FINANCIAL SERVICES 01-5630 604.44
01-679097 01/24/2022 805 Dairy Distributing LLC 13-4710 280.00
01-679098 01/24/2022 Department Of Justice 01-5800 32.00
01-679099 01/24/2022  Frontier Communications 01-5910 2,034.48
01-679100 01/24/2022  Industrial Medical Group 01-5800 20.00
01-679101 01/24/2022 Mission Linen Supply Inc. 01-4300 113.61
01-679102 01/24/2022 Pacific Gas & Electric 01-5520 161.09
01-679103 01/24/2022 Ready Refresh by Nestle 01-4300 227.44
01-679104 01/24/2022 Smart & Final 13-4300 188.73

13-4710 111.70 300.43
01-679105 01/24/2022 So California Pizza Co 13-4710 305.80
01-679106 01/24/2022 Trudy Shank 01-4300 28.54
01-679107 01/24/2022 US Bank Corporate Payments 01-4300 587.52

01-5800 521.11

01-8699 300.00

13-4300 33.35

13-4400 3,331.76
The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization ‘Mm
of the Board of Trustees. It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved. Page 1 of 2

002 - Blochman Union School District Generated for Nancy Shafer (02SHAFERN), Feb 1 2022 11:20AM



ReqPay12a

Checks Dated 01/01/2022 through 01/31/2022

Board Report

Check Check Pay to the Order of Expensed Check
Number Date Fund-Object Amount Amount
01-679107 01/24/2022 US Bank Corporate Payments 13-4710 184.32
14-6200 166.07 5,124.13
01-679108 01/24/2022 Verizon Wireless 01-5910 202.80
01-679109 01/24/2022 WM CORPORATE SERVICES, INC. 01-5570 489.28
01-679986 01/31/2022 Dekorte, Holly J 01-4300 43.63
01-679987 01/31/2022 805 Dairy Distributing LLC 13-4710 157.50
01-679988 01/31/2022 ALD TELECOM 01-5910 15.84
01-679989 01/31/2022 Amazon Capital Services 01-4300 182.48
01-679990 01/31/2022 FAMILY PARTNERSIP CHARTER 01-8096 34,338.00
01-679991 01/31/2022 Frontier Communications 01-5910 1,100.00
01-679992 01/31/2022 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 01-4300 2,535.92
01-679993 01/31/2022 1XL Learning 01-4300 2,201.00
01-679994 01/31/2022 McGraw-Hill School Education 01-4100 10,787.10
01-679995 01/31/2022 Mission Linen Supply Inc. 01-4300 93.62
01-679996 01/31/2022 O'Connor Pest Control 01-5800 75.00
01-679997 01/31/2022 Smart & Final 13-4300 102.16
13-4710 96.28 198.44
01-679998 01/31/2022 SoCalGas 01-5510 1,153.55
01-679999 01/31/2022 Staples Business Credit 01-4300 272.13
01-680000 01/31/2022 Staples Credit Plan 01-4300 5.39
01-680001 01/31/2022 Trivium Charter School 01-8096 72,681.00
01-680002 01/31/2022 VITA PERSONA 01-4300 344.31
Unpaid Tax 23.25- 321.06
Total Number of Checks 58 171,422.35
Fund Recap
Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount
01 General Fund 45 144,728.82
13 Cafetena Spec Rev Fund 13 8,353.31
14 Deferred Maintenance Fund 1 166.07
67 Self-Insurance Fund 1 1 18,197.40
Total Number of Checks 58 171,445.60
Less Unpaid Tax Liability 23.25-
Net (Check Amount) 171,422.35

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization
of the Board of Trustees. It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.

002 - Blochman Union School District

ESCAPE
Page 2 of 2

Generated for Nancy Shafer (02SHAFERN), Feb 1 2022 11:20AM




| abeyg

00°0

aouejeq

Junowy

nds

Iviol

19 JUNo29Y owaw

wnN

ajeq adA)

zzoz Asenuep
leyaq 1opuap Aq sasuadxy

aNN4d SNIATOATY NYINHOO1d

siseg |enJooy
Z22/10/20

WV vZ:LL






SBA :UOHEPIEA BJRQg passed

BUON :uoneanpg jo 8310 AJunon 0 :sBuluiep jJo JaquinN

WV Z1:92:01 220Z/LL/L - TUMOIGP :39M3SIg [ooYdS 0 :s10113 JO JoquINN

WV 0£:2Z:0L 220Z/LL/| - STERBUSH] :3YBISIaAQ 30131 - [00YOS JapeyD 9 'sp1023Y jo JaquIinN
UoIJeWIOU| UOIIEIIID) uoljewoju uoiepijea

4d003106 ‘al ereq

Wd 6¥:L2G 220¢/./L 91 uonepl|eA jseq 6lEl daqunp Japeyd
STeAeysi) :Ag uoljepljen jse SSZPCL0 ZLL69 2V '8p0D SAD

Wd G0:12:G 220Z/./1 ‘91eQ PaAeS jseT Jsueyd wniAug jooyag
SieaeqsH) :Ag paAeg jse eleqleg ejues :Ayuno)

sjiejoq uogew.ojuj Apu3

uonewIoju] pJoooy

jooyog Jaueyo aosuepuspny

|O0OYOS Japey) sdUBpuUSlY / JOHBUD WNIAUL [/ |00YoS Jsueyn / Ajujejeq / SWwoH

L-d 22-1202 ‘pouad Buinoday ‘L-d ZZ-120¢ :919A) Buissasold
(0avd) uonoajjo) ejeq juawuoioddy |ediound



14q00d106 |

eG-v

ot~V

pPr-v

v

ar-v

ev-v

v

qe-v

eg-v

oV

pe-v

v

qc-v

ez-v

g-\/ 9U|T] 0} U0 SA0W ‘SBA Ji
S A £JeaA [eoasyy Jualind ay} Buunp uonaniysul
1o uonesado asead jooyos Japeyds ay} pig

3 ¥oell

a»ioedl

O yoeiL

gxoell

V Joed] poel) sibulg

pasuawwo) uononysuj (AAAA/ppjww) ajeq

‘G- 8UIT 0} UO BAOW ‘ON J|

ON
suoijerado Jo Jeak 3siiy S} ul JooydS JaMeYD SIY] S|

-V UIT] O} U0 SAOW ‘SOA §}

S3A
uonesado jo Jeak 3siiy s3I Ul jJooyds JaHeYa SIy} S|

3084
a el
O yoell
g oeiL

Y @oed

‘pPa1o9|as SHOBY) |[B Jo}

UOIJBUIIOUI UIBlUCD O} paau |iim Aius ejep juanbasqgns
:8JON “4aplo jeonaqeyd|e uj joeJ} [euolyippe

oD pue Yy }or4} 40} X0q 3y} §99Yd ‘}-y ul

Pa30ajas sem (MORNIINN) SIA I :SHoelL [rUOIONISU]
(xoell albuIS) ON é.S)o.J} [BUOIIONIISUL

ajdiyinw ajesado [ooyos 1apeyd SIy} seoQ

(1oennInN) SIA isyaes) jeuononsuy
ajdnynw asjesado jooyss 1apeY S1Y} sao(]

‘dl efeq@

snjejs Japeyo



98-V

a8-v

eg-v

8-v

9LV

pPL-v

oLV

v

el-v

9-v

Po-v

99V

as-v

eg-v

a5-v

uolBUIGWOD)
poseq-WO0ISSE|OUON
paseq-wooisse|)

uononJsuj jo adAj ayy ajyesipu)
ERELIT

apelL

oR eIl

g oel]

V Yord] poely ajbuig

‘|lenuuy Je S|ooYyds JoHeYd |je 1o}

palinbay “1eaAk |eas)j ay) Huunp uojjeiado pasead jooyos
1 Z-d pue |-d le palinbai AjuQ "uonesado jo sAeg

JoeiL

apelL

o ¥elL

g3oeiL

v yoelj poel] oibuis

paseas uoponisu Jo uonesad (ALAAppjuw) ajeqg
2-Y/ 9UIT] O} UO 9AOW ‘ON Ji

ON éJeak [easi Jualind ayy Buunp uononnsui
10 uonesado asead JooyISs Jap=1d ALY pIg



) ) -0

0 ) 0 0

[€5°60¢ L iTTTS LSk 126706 A4

0 o 0 L0 -

0 ) N h) o i

0 0 0 0 00 ﬂ

o Lo 0 ‘o 0 N

0 ) 0 0 ) H

elol Cl-6 sspeig 8-/ sspei 9-% sepelg AWML

LAY 913uts)]

A

-0

-8

€-d

g

VAV POSBg-WO0ISSEIOUON

SuoIN}ISuU| susIpliy) pasuadl - sjooyos
ueniejoasuoN ‘ofjqnduon Jospue [(2)(e)99g9s 4]
S|00YOS UBLIEIDSSUON ‘Oliqnduop - uojeonpd [e1oads
(521 JosInQ) VAV PaSEq-WOOISSBIOUON

[(e)(a)s£9G O3] uoneonp3 |eads JesA pepusixy

VAV PeSeq-uIooIsseouop Jenbay
VAV Poseq-wooIsSSe|ouoN

(¥-g ybnouy
1-9 10 wng) oel1] .o} sjeo) YAy pPeseq-wooisse|d)

(GZ1 Josing) YAV PesSeq-wooIsse|D suopsuy|
SUBIpPfIYD PasSuUoNT] - S|IO0YIS UBLIRIDSSUON ‘OljgnduoN
Jospue [(2)(8)99£95 D3] S|00Y0S UBLEOBSUON
‘aliqnduoy - uoneonpy |eadg JesA pspusixgy

vav psseq

-Wo0JSSe|D) SUONNISU| UaJpiy) pasu8sdl] - S|ooyss
uelejoasuoN "alignduon Jo/pue [(2)(e)99g9s O3]
S|00Yy2S UBLIRIOBSUON ‘Ollgqnduop - uopeonpd jeioads
(G2} J0sIMIQ) YAV POSEq-WOOISSE|D

[(e)(q)s¥£9s O3] uonednp3] |eads JesA pepusdixy

YAy paseq-wooisse|) Jeinbay

Vav paseq-wooisse|)

Moel] [euononisu|

‘qe| uoleso|ly yav sy

9191dwod osje 1snw (¥)509/1 uonoasg H3 o} uensind
uoneonp3 jo pleog aiels ay) Aq paaoidde siaueyd pue
9°509/¥ D3 01 Juensind pazuoyne SISUBYD IpIMAIUNOYD

‘g ybnouy) g splodal o) bupebireu Ag 3 ‘gD ‘g

syl 40} YAV Hodai pue (G Jo | piodal) V¥ MY /MY L
8Ibuig Ul  Joel] Joj QY Hodal syoel] [BUOnoONJisul
a|dnjnw Bunelado s|o0yds Jspey)) ‘PI0dAL Y MHIMHEL
81buig 8y} Ul YAV |ie Hodal sjooyos Jspeyo yoely ajbulg

vav peuoday

vav



0 i0 w

0 L0 0 0 0

0 ‘0 10 0 )
16y I o ) 16t
1£5°60€ | lTTes borsy - 17606 61Tl
0 [RD) 0 o

0 0 o 0 0

0 L0 10 ‘0 0
£6°60€ LiTTTS Sy | 7606 16T 1Tl
I£5°60¢ L TTTS TSy <1606 T leria
mo ©0 ; 0 - ;., O

-3

€3

-3

¥-a

70

¢-3 Ul papnpoul

‘9'S¥21S pue (4)5'21L9/.t O3 o) juensind ‘Bulpuny

10} 91q1648 Jou YAV ApniS Juapuadapu| paseg @sino)
G-D Ul pepndul ‘G'6YLLS

03 0} uensind ‘yay ApniS Juspuadapu| paseg asinoD
G-0 ul papnpoul

Jou pue 9'Gy/ LG pue (G)5°Z1L9.y 0T 03 juensind
Buipuny 1oy 9|q16ijo 10U YQY POSBG-WOOISSBIOUON

(Aluo vav JesA

Isdid ‘uwnjod €-M/M1 ) §-@ dur ug pepnjoul 00E9Y O3 0}
ensind uspebiapury [euoRISURI] Ul SJUBpn}S 1o} YAV

vav #yo
(#-q ubnoiyy |-q jo Wng) yoel| Jo} s[elol Yav

(7-0 + v~9) vav (G2 JosIAIQ) suolniisy|
SUAIP{IYD PasuUadIT - S|OOYDS ueuEedasSUoN ‘olignduoy

Jopue [(£)(e)99€9S O3] SI00YdS UBLEJOBSUON
‘onignduop - uonesnpg jeoadg JeaA papudlx] [ejoL

(e-0 + £-9) vav

SUOIIMIISU| UaJIp|iyd Pasuadl] - S|O0YIS UBLIBJOSSUON
‘olignduon Jojpue [(2)(e)g9g9s O3] slooyos
ueleloasuop ‘olignduop - uonesnp3 jeloads |ejot

(z-0 + z-9) (621 JosiniQ) vav

[(£)(a)steas O3] uoneonp [e10eds JesA papudlxd [ejol

(1-0 + 1-9) vav Jeinbey |ejoL
)oel] Joj sjejol vav

(-0 ybnoayy
1-D JO wng) yoel} 1o} s|ejol YAy POSEq-WOo0ISSBIOUON

(521 JOSIAIQ) YAV POSEG-WOOISSBIOUON SUOIINHISU|
SUBIp|IYD pPasuadi] - S|OOYIS UBEJOASUON ‘dljgnduon
Jojpue {(2)(e)99c9s OT] s|ooyoS ueHelOasuUoN
‘ojignduop - uojjeonp3 |eloadg Jest papualxy



=

i0

[ejoL

¢l-6 sspeiy

8-/ sepei9

9-i sopein

EMML

€90

-4

-4

VAV pPeseq-wooiSSeouoN

SUOHN}ISU| SUIPIYD Pasuadl - Sjooyds
uelLeOasUON ‘ognduo Jojpue [(£)}e)ggegs O3]
S|O0YOS UBLIBJOASUON ‘Olignduoy - uojjeonp3 [ensdg
(521 J0siAIQ) YAV POSEg-WO0ISSEDUON

[(e)Xa)sieas O3] uoneonp3 |eoadg JesA papus)x3

VAV Peseq-wooIssejouop Jeinbay
VAV POSEq-WOO0ISSBIOUON

(-4 uBnouy -4 jo wng)

92UapISaY JO JOLISI 40} S[elO0) YAV poseq-woolsse|)
(GZ1 J0SIAIQ) YAV Paseqg-wooissel suonnisu|
SUBIP|IYD PasuUadI - S|O0YDS UBLIBIOSSUON “OllqnduoN

Jojpue [(2)}(e)99£9G D3] S|00yIS UBLEJOSSUON
‘alignduop - uoleanp3 |e1adsg JesA popudix3

vay peseq

-WOO0USSE}D) SUOIIN}ISU| SUaIpiiy) pasudol - sjooyos
ueeloasuoN ‘algnduop Jospue [(2)(e)ggeos o4l
S|00UDS UBLIBIOASUON ‘olignduoy - uoljeonpd |e19adg
(521 JosinQ) vay peseg-wooisse|)

[(e)(a)steas O3] uoyeonps [eioadg Jesp papusixg
vav paseqg-woousse|) Jejnfioy

VAV pa2seq-tuooisse|)
20USpISOY JO IS
2ouapIsay jo AAuUnoy

*pJ029J JUBNDASYNS Yoea pue PUoOss
8U} 10} SOUBPISAI JO JOUISIP [004IS pue AJUNoD Jo3[9s 0}
MBN PPV ¥01j0 pUe ‘@ABS ‘pIooal Isily By} 10} ejep Jajug

vav payoday

soxe)] Auadoud

1O N3JJ-Ul JO UOIBINJ[BD 10} S2USPISAI JO JOUISIP |O0YOS
£q vav vodai 0} qe] uojedolly YAV au} 9ejdwod
Isnwi (%)509/ 1 uoloes 03 o0} Juensind uoyeonp3

10 pieog a)els ay} Aq pasoidde siapeyd pue 9'G09/
uooag N3 0} juensind paacidde siapeyd apIMAIUNOYD

uonjedol|y vav



.0

o

(-H ybnouyy
L-H JO WNg) eouapisey Jo JoHISIQ 104 S[ejoL YAV

(79 + p-d) vav (6.1 JosiaiQ) suonnysui

SUBIP|IYD PBSUSIIT - Sjooyds ueleasuc) ‘olgnduon
Jo/pue [(£)(e)99£95 O3] SI00UIS UBLIEIOSSUON
‘ollgnduoy - uoieonp3 [e10ads JeaA papuaixy [Bjol

(-9 + £-4) vav

SUONINJIISU| SUBIP|IYD POSUSIIT - S|OOYIS UBLIBJOSSUON
‘allgnduon Jojpue [(7)()99£9s D3] slooyas
ueLejoasuop ‘olignduop - uojeanp3 |eads [e1o)

(z-9 + z-3) (621 J10sinQ) VAV

[(e)(a)s¥e9s D3] uoneonp3 [eedg Jes) papusix3 [B10)

(1-9 + 1-4) vay Jenbey [ejor
a2uapisay Jo J2U)sIq 10} s[ejol vav

(#-9 ybnouy} 1-9 jo wng) souspisey
40 JoLISI(] 40} S|B10] YAV POSE]-WOOISSBIOUON

(G/1 J0SINQ) YAV POSBO-WO0ISSEIOUON SUCHNILSU|
SUBIPYIYD POESUBI - SJO0YDS UBLIEJDSSUON ‘OlignduoN

Jojpue [(£)(e)99€9S D3] SI00UIS UBLIEJOISUON
‘ofignduop - uoieoNp3 |e1oads Je” 1 papudlx]



1£6°60¢

iTTTS

TSy . 17606 HlerTar

=)

1£5°60¢

(TTTS

e . 2606 6T Tel

{£5°60¢

12778

‘S | 12606 6T 1Tl

[eloL

Cl-6 sspely

8-, S9peid 9-¥ SepelO EMML

S-r

r

cr

(€-H spJoday ||V jo WNS) VAV
SUOIINIISU| SUSIPJIYD PasuaoiT - S|00ydS UBLEJOSSUON

‘oyygnduon Jo/pue [(£)(e)99¢9s D3] slo0uds
uelIRDaSUON “ollgnducy - uoneanpd [eads [ejof

(z-H spiooay |1y 0 Wng) (521 JosiAg) VAV
[(e)(a)steas D3] uoneonp3 jeads JesA papusixy el
(L-H spio2al ||e jo wns) yqy Jeinbay |ejo

9oudpIsAY jJo spuISIq IV 10} sjejol vav

(-9 spJodal e

10 wns) spousiq | 40} S|ejo)l YAV PoSeq-wooisSSeOUON
(g-4 spJosal

Iie Jo wns) sjousid (v 40} S|ejo) YAV Peseq-wooisse|)
sJaueyo pazuoyne

uoRBONP3 JO pieOg 9JB}S PUB 9°G09.y D3 0} Juensind
paziioyine sjooyos Joueyd apimAlunod o} ajqedliddy

aouapiIsay
Jo s)oUISIg IV 10} YAV poyoday jo Aewwng
(¥-r ubnouyy |- Jo wng) syoei] IV Jo} s[ejol vav
(¥-Q spJodal jiy J0 WNS) YAV SUOHNHsU|

SUaIp|IYD PasuaI - S|00YDS UBLEJOaSUON ‘oljignduoN

Jo/pue [(2)(e)99£9S D3] S|004OS UBLIEIOBSUON
‘a11gnducy - uoneonpd [eoadg Jeas papualxd [ejof

(€-Q spJoday IV Jo wns) vav
SUCHN}IISU| SUBIPJIYD PesUa0IT - SJOOYDS UBLIEJOSSUON

‘olignduoN Jospue [(2)(e)99c9s O3] slooyos
uBlIRIOaSUON ‘Olignducp - uoneanpd [e1oads [elof

(z-Q spuocoey IV jo wns) vav
[(eXa)syE9s D3] uoneonp3 [eioads JBoA papudixy ejoL

(1-Q spJoo9y |V Jo WNg) vy Jeinbay ejol
syoed] {Iv 10} S[ejol vav

(g-D spiodal j|e
JO WNG) syoel] |y 10} S|ej0). YAV POSEq-LWOo0ISSRIOUON

(5-g sp1ooau
l[e JO WNg) syoel] ||V 10} S[elo). YAV Poseq-wooIsse|d

s)orl] ||V 10} VAV peuoday jo Adewwng

Aewwing



0 0 a0 o 0 - (7~ uBnoiy} 1-1 J0 WINS) SIOLISIA IV 10} SIBIOL YAV
o 0 30 0 G . $1 (+~H SpI009Y Il JO WINS) YAV (L 10SIAIQ) Suonnisy|
SUSIP|IYD POSUSIIT - S|O0YDS UBLIBIOSSUON ‘0llgnduop

Jojpue [(£)(e)99€9S O3] s|ooydS UeLejoasuoN
‘anignduop - uoneanpd je1oadg Jesp parusixy 1oL



SOA :UOlJBPIjeA Bleq passed

3UON :uonesNnp3 jo 9o Auno) 0 :sBulusepp Jo JaquinN

Nd €0:1€:1 2202/L1/) - TUROIGP :3oM3sIq [00YdS 0 :S4043 JO JoquInN

INY S0:00:1} 2202/LL/) - STEABUSH] :YBISIBAQ JO1ISIQ - [00YOS JopeYD G :SP4023Y JO JAquINN
uoljeWIOU] UOHEBDHIHRD uoIjeWIOjU| UOIIepIj_A

9€3842v¢ ‘Al eleq

WY 80:85:01 220Z/L1/1 :93eQq Uoljepi|eA jseT 61l JaquinN Japeyd
S[eABUSH] :Ag uolepijeA jse GGZrel0 2LL69 21 2P0 SAd

WV LE:LS:0L 220Z/1LL/1L -9jeq paAes Isen Japeyd WniALL (jooydg
SieAB(sH] :Ag paAeg jsen eieqeq ejueg :Ajuno)n

s|ielag uoneusioju] Ajpuz

uoneulioju] piodoy

uoijeso jesisAyd [ooyos iaueyn

uoneoo jeaisAud |00YsS JapeY) / JaHeyd WAL / [00YoS Japeyd / Alujeleqg / OWoH

L-d 22-120Z ‘pouad Buiuoday ‘|-d Z2Z-120Z :9j9AD Bulssadold

(pa@vd) uonoa|jon ejeq juswuoioddy jedioulld



payiun olopedsey

ods|gQ sin ueg

puIsIg [ooyog
Aunon

‘Z-d 1O se |euy ale (s)uoneoo| [esisAyd

papodai sy} (g)(2)(})20 8¢y UoHI9S D3 0} Juensing
"elep uonedof [eaisAyd podal jsnw ‘Ajpanoadsal
‘9'509. ¥ 10 §°509/ ¥ Suonoeg 53 o) juensind

Jayeyd spimAunod e Jo Jayeyd weisboid funod

e Sl JBy} [00yds Japeyd v "pajedo| AjjedisAyd si jooyos
JaeYD 8y} a19ym 1ou}sIp jooyos Ajuo ayj st uonied
$,|00U0S JaUeyD 8y} paluap Jey} JOUISIp [00YIs ay)

10 J8zZ1IoYINe 8y} JI Blep uoteoo] fedisAyd podal 0} aaey
J0U Op ‘JgS dy} Jo AJunod ay) Aq |eadde uo pancidde
a19M ey} JO ‘JoISIp [ooyos e AQ pazioyine sjooyos
Japreyo (g)(2)(3)z0"8gzey uonoag O3 ol juensing
‘HwX(2)#)20 8czzy uonoas O3] Juelb uonesuadsuod
4497 s.jooyos Japeyd ayy Bupenajeo yjo sesodind

10} pasn aq |m (s)uoneool [eoisAyd jooyods Japeyd

‘Blep uone20| [eaisAyd Jioyy ui

SJouIsIp |00Y2s yioq podal pinoys ‘JouisIp jooyos yby e
pue Aiejuswald ue Yjoq uiypm s||ey Ajjioe/uoijeao| Jivu)
usym Sse |yons ‘spujsip jooyds ajdiyinw jo sallepunod sy}
ulyim s|(ej jey} Uoedo| B Ylim [00YIs ISHBYD Y PUIsIp
jooyos Buiziioyine s,jo0Yds JOHBYD 2y} ‘WoJ) Jagip

10 0} UONIPPE Ul 8Je Jey} SIOUISIp [o0YDs apnjoul Aew
siyl "Ayjioey jooyos e sey Jo pajedo] AjjedisAud si jooyas
J19BYD 3y} a19ym (S)IOUISIp JOOYDS (B JO) SpJodal Jaju]

uoljeds01 [esisAyd jooyss Jayueyd



eluog-elB BJUBS

eleqieg ejues

pusiq |ooyds
Aunon

-Z-d 10 se jeuyj ale (s)uoneoo| jeaisAyd

papodes aus (9)(2)(4)20"8gZzy Uollvag O3 0} juensing
"BlEp uonedo| {eoisAyd Lodal isnw ‘Ajaanjoadsal
‘9509 40 §°G09/ ¥ suodeg O3 o) juensind

Jaueyd apmAlunod e Jo Jaueyd weiboid Ajunod

€ SI Jey] jooyos Jaueyo v "pajeoao) AjledisAyd si jooyos
J9uBYD 8y} aIaym Joulsip jooyos Ajuo ay) si uonijad
$,|00Y0s JaeYD 8y} paluap 1By} JOUISIP [00YIS dy}

10 JoZIIoyINe 2y} JI elep uolReooj |eaisAyd podal 0} aaey
J0U Op ‘JgS 9y 1o Alunoo ay) Aq jeadde uo paaoidde
aJam 1Y) JO ‘10UISIp |ooyos B Ag pazioyne sjooyos
Japeyd (g)(Z)(1)20 8eze uonoag O3 o} juensind
‘Uw)(2)3)20 8cZzt uohoes D] uelb uonelussuod
4497 s.Jooyos Jaueys ay} buienojes jo sasodind

104 pasn ag |m (s)uoneool jeaisAyd jooyos Japeyd

‘BlEp UoNeo0| [edisAyd sy} ut

S)OLISIP |o0Yos Yyiog wodal pjnoys ‘Jousip [ooyos ybiy e
pue Aigjuswusid UB Yiog UIYIm sije} AJI[I0.)/uonedo| sy}
usyM Se yons ‘sjoulsip [ooyos a|din Jo Seepunog syl
UiylIm s|iej 1eyl uoljedo] e Yylim |00YDs JSLBYD V¥ OUIsIp
Jjooyos Buizioyine s,Jo0yos JopeYD 8y} ‘Wolj JoYIp

10 ‘0] UOIIpPE Ui 81e JBY] SJOUISIP [O0YDS apnjoul Aew
siy| Ayjioe) [ooyos e sey Jo pajedo| AljeaisAyd si jooyos
J9UBYD 3y} a1aym (S)10UISIp [00YIS [[B JO} SPJoddl Jojug]

uonesoT jeaisAyd |jooyoss 1apeyd



ybi uolun JUIOr eUel ejues

eleqleg ejues

usig |ooyos
Auno)

‘Z-d 10 se [euy a.e (s)uoneoso| [eoisAyd

papodas sy} (a)2)(})20"8ECey UoKOaS O3 O} uensind
-ejep uoneoo| fesisAyd podas 1snw ‘Ajaanoadsas
‘9'509/ ¥ 10 6609/ SuoRoag O3 o} uensind

Japeyo apIMAIUNCD B 1o Jaueyd welboid funoo

e Sl 1eY) |o0Y9S JoHBYD Y ‘pajeso| AljesisAyd siI jooyss
J9HBYD 8y} 818ym JouIsIp jooyds Ajuo ay) si uoad
S,JO0YOS JSHBYD 3y} paluap Jey} JoulsIp [ooyds oy}

10 J19ZIoyne ay) JI ejep uoljeoo] jeaisAyd podal o} aaey
J0U op ‘J9S 8y} Jo Ajunoo ay} Ag |eadde uo paacidde
a1aMm Jey] Jo “JoLISIp [00YOS B AQ pazIoyIne Sjooyos
Japeyo (g)(2)1)20"8ezey uoioag O3 o) Juensing
‘[(wX2))z0 8ezzy uonoas O3] Jueldb uonenuaouod
44907 s.Jooyos Jspeyo ay) Buienoes jo sesodind

10} pasn aq |m (s)uoneoo; [eoisAyd [ooyos Japeyd

"B]ep uoneooj [eoisAud Jiayy ul

S)oSIP [o0YoSs yioq Jodal pjnoys ‘jou)sip looyos ybiy e
pue Auejuswsle ue yjog ulyym si|e} Alfioe)/uoieso] Jisy)
USYM SEB yons ‘Sjol)sIp Jooyos ajdijinw JO Salepunoq ey}
ulyim sjie} jey; uoneoso) e Yim jooyos Joeyo vy JouIsIp
jooyas Buizuoyine s,[00Yds JSHBYD Y] ‘Wol) Jayip

10 'O} UOIHPPE Ui 8Je By} SJoUIsIp Jooyos apnjoul Aew
siy| “Aujioe} |ooYyos B sey Jo pajeodot AjjedisAyd si jooyds
19HBYD 8y} a1aym (S)I0UISIp [OOYDS (B JO} SPI0d8l J8jul]

uonesoT |edishAyd |ooyos Jaueyd



paliun Jep eon

odsiqQ sin ueg

ousIq 100Y0S
Auno)

"Z-d JO sk jeuy ale (s)uoneso| jesisAyd

payodal au} (g)(2)(1)20'8€2zy Uoloas O3 O} Juensing
‘BjEp UONEDO| [eoisAyd uodal Jsnw ‘Ajaaloadsal
‘9609 10 G609/ {7 SUONORS D3 0} Juensind

J1apByD 9pIMAILNOD B Jo Japeyd welboid Ajunod

e Si JBY] [00UOS JOHBYD ¥ "pa)edo] AjleoisAyd si jooyos
181BYD ay) aiaym 10U)SIp [ooyos Ajuo sy} st uonyad
$,|00UDS JOUBYD By} PAIUSP JBY) JOUISIP JO0YIS By}

10 J19zZuoyine ay) ji ejep uonedo; jeaisAyd podal 0} aaey
Jou op ‘348 2y} Jo AJunod ay} Aq jeadde uo paaosdde
a1am Y] 40 ‘1oUISIp jooyos e AQ pazuoyne sjooyos
Jepeyo (g)(2)(1)20 g€z uonoas O3 0} juensing
[(w)(2))z0 822t uonoes D3] Juelb uoyesuadUod
44971 s.jooyos Jayeys ayy Buieino|eos jo sesodind

10} pasn aq ||im (s)uoneoo) [eaisAud jooyss Japey)

‘Blep uoyeoo) [eoisAyd say) ul

SJouIsSIp jooyos yjoq podal pinoys ‘1ouisip jooyds ybiy e
pue Aigjuawale Ue Ylog uiyim siie} Ajjioe)/uoneoo) J1ay}
USYM SE YONS ‘SIOUISIP [00Yyos ajdijnwl JO SaUepunoq ay)
UIUYIM S{[B} Jey) UONEOO] B Y)IM [00UDS JOLEBYD Y OUISIP
[ooyos Burzioyne s,j00ydS JOUBYD 8y} ‘WOl JaIp

1O ‘0] UONIpPPE Ui 8. JBY] SIOUISIP j00YdS apnpoul Aeww
siyL ‘Aujioe; [ooyos e sey 1o payeoo) AjjedisAyd st |ooyos
JaUBYD aY) 318UM (S)IOLISIP |00YDS |[B 40} SpIodal Jaju]

uoneso |edisAyd jooyss iaueyn



Algjuatus|3 uolun uewyoo|g

eleqieg ejues

isIg jooyos
Aunon

"Z-d Jo se Jeul aJe (s)uonedo; [eoisAyd

pauodal oy} (g)(2)(1)20'8cget uondas J3F o Juensind
‘Blep uoneooj [edisAyd poda. 1snw ‘AjoAioadsal
‘9'509.¥ 10 §'509/ Suonoeg O3F o} juensind

Japeyo apImMAIUNO? e Jo Japeyd weuboid AJunod

e S| Jey) [o0yDs Japeyd Y "paledo] AjjeoisAyd si jooyos
Joueyd 9y} aJoym Jousp [ooyos Ajuo auy si uoed
S,|00U9DS JaLEBYD By} Paluap Jeu} JoLISIp [ooYds 8yl

10 Jozuoyine ay} i ejep uoneoo; {edisAyd podal 0] aaey
10U Op ‘39S 2y} Jo AJunod ay) Aq [eadde uo pancidde
3J9M 1Y)} 1O ‘10UISIP |00UIS B AQ pSzUoyIne Sjooyos
Joueyo (g)(2)(1)20°8£zzt uoioas O3F 0} Juensing
Tw)2)1)z0 8ezzy uonoes O3] juelb uoneljusouod
4407 s.j00yos Jspeyd ay) Bugejnoles jo sesodind

Joj pasn a4 [(im (s)uoneoo| [eaisAyd joouyds Japeyd

‘gjep uoneoo) [eaisAyd ey} ui

SJOUISIP jooyds Yiog Hodal pinoys ‘ousip jooyos ubly e
pue AJBjusLSid Ue Yioq ulyim siie} AJlIe}/UONEDO] JIay}
USUYM SE UoNs ‘SIoL)sIp jooyds ajdnnw Jo sauepunog ay}
UlYliMm sjie} Jey) uoieodo| B Ylm Jooyds Japeyd v JoMISip
jooyos Buiziiouine s,J00yds Japeyd ay) ‘Wwodj Jayip

JO ‘0} UoIippe Ul 8Je Jey) sjoulsip jo0Yos apnjoul Aew
siy] -Aypioe} jooyos e sey Jo pajeooj AjjesisAyd si jooyos
JaueydD ay] alaym (S)IoLlsip {o0yds j[e Jo} Sp1ooal Jajug

uoneos0- |edsishAyd |[o0yos 1oueyd



SaA uoljepljeA ejeq passed

BUON :uoljesnp3 40 21O AJunoH 0 :sBujuiepp Jo JaquinN

WV Z1:92:01 220Z/LL/L - TUMOIGP :3o13sIa |90Y9S 0 :sioui3 jo JaqunN

WY L€:21:0L Z20Z/LL/L - ZSTBABUSH :JyBISIanQ J013sIq - |O0YDS J191eYD 9 :spJ023Y JO JaquInN
UOIJeWLIOU| UOIJRDIHIMDD uoIjeULIOJU| UOKEPI|BA

6€€£629at -dl eleq

Wd S¥¥S:C 2202/./1 -93eq uoljeplieA 3seT 661 43qWINN J3ueYy)
ZSIeAeysH] :Ag uoljepi|ep jse 1/8.£102LL69 Z¥ :@p0D SAD

Wd 65:16:2 2202/./1 ‘9jeq paAes jseT 2INUBADY JO0YDS JajeUD WniAl] jooyds
ZSieAeysH] :Ag paaeg jse eleqiegq ejueg :Ajunon

s|teyoq uonewuoju] Ayug

UONellIoju] p1oooy

|[oOy2S Jajey) 9oUBpuUdINY

JOOUDS JOUBYS SOUBPUSHY / SJNJUSAPY :|O0UOS JOLBYD WNIALL / |O0UoS Joyey) / Ajugejeq / SwoH

L-d 22-1202 :pouad Buioday ‘|-d 22-120Z 91240 Buissasold

(0a@vd) uonoajjo) ejeq juawuoipioddy jedidulid



D BG-Y

v

M - opy
_arv
BV

T vy

S qe-v
Bgv

¢V

pe-v

qc-v

ecv

]
]
O
0 oz-v
O
O

S qi-v

O el-v

‘6£c678AY

vt R |

9-Y SUIT 0} UO SAOW ‘SBA i
S A ¢leak jeasy jualiind ay) Buunp uononasut
Jo uonjesado asead |ooYyIs JapeYd 3y} pig

3 oell

a»>oell

O oed)

goell

Vv Yoel] poel] s|buig

pasuawwon) uonondysu] (AKAAppjuw) ajeqg

"G-y 8ul] 0} U0 8AOW ‘ON J|
ON
cuonesado Jo Jeak 3sily S} Ul JooYydS Japeyd Siy} st

-\ SUI] O} UO SAOW ‘SBA J|
S3A
suonelado jJo Jeak 3sil) s} Ul jooyds JaHeyd Sy} s|

3084
aeil
0 oel]
g>foeiL
v oel]

"palos|9s SO} ||B 10}

UONBULIOJUI UIBIUOID O} paau [[Im Ajus ejep jusnbasgns
:8]ON “19pJo [eonjaqeydje ul yoed jeuonippe

LOoB3 pue Y }orl] J0j XOq 3y} 3I3Y9 ‘|- ul

Pa3o3]9s SeM (MorIIINN) SIA J] (SHORIL [BUOHONIISU]
{joru] 9|buIg) ON & S)¥oe)) [eUOIIONIISUL

a|dinw ajesado jooyss Japeyd siy} saog

(1oenRINW) STA LSYORI} [eUOKONASUI
ajdiinw 8jesado jooyds Jeeyd Siy} seog

‘dl eleg

snje}s Japueyn



8-V

a8-v

eg-v

8-v

/v

p.-v

oLV

a.v

e/-v

9g-v

pPo-v

29V

q9-v

eg-v

9V

qG-v

uolBUIqUIOD
Paseq-wo0ISSeOUON
Paseq-wooISSe}D

uononsuj jo adA} auy ajesipu)
ERCET

a»oeiL

D oel|

g yoBlL

v Yoeil poel] aibuig

‘[enuuy Je s|jooyos Japeyod |[e 1o}

palinbay "1eaA jeasy ay) Buunp uoljelado pasead |ooyos
1l Z-d pue |-d Je paJinbai AjuQ “uonesadQ jo sheg

ER S

apelL

o pelL

a3oeil

Vv yoedipoel] oibuig

paseas uononaisuj Jo uoneiadQ (ARAA/ppjuw) ayeq
/-\/ @Uul7 O} U0 3AOW ‘ON J|

ON édeak easiy Jualing ayj Buunp uognoniysul
10 uonesado 9sead jooyas Japeyd ay) pig



0

0

A X4

L CTEY

1 79°0S HIL6 8L

10

[eloL

Cl-6 Sepeid

g-/ sepes

9-py Sepeld €MNL

SRLLANYL 218uls!

-0

S-d

-4

€-d

VYAV POSE]-WO0ISSEJOUON

suonNHISU| SUAIPIYD Pasuadl] - S|ooyos
uelejoasuoN ‘alqnduoy Jospue [(2)(e)99e9s O3]
S|O0YOS UBLIRJOSSUON ‘oljgnduop - uoieonp3 |epadg
(51 10SIAIQ) YOV POSBG-WOOISSB|OUON

[(e)a)syeas D3] uoneonp3 |eads Jesk papusixy

VvV Peseqg-woolisse|ouon Jejnbay

vav paseq-uoolSSe|OUON

(-8 uBnoiy
1-g Jo wing) yoel] 10} S[ejo] YQy paseq-woo.isse|)

(S/1 10sIn1Q) YAV POSBQ-LIO0ISSE|D SUOHNSU|
suaip|iyD pasuadl - S|O0YIS UBLIEJOISUCN ‘Ollgnduon
Jojpue [(£)(e)99€9S D3] slooydS uelEOASUON
‘olignduop - uonesnpd [eadg Jeap papusixgy

vav paseq

-UWI00ISSe|D SUOHNIISU| UdIp(IyD pasuadI] - S|ooyos
uepejoasuoN ‘olignduoN Jo/pue [(£)(e)99£9s O3]
s|o0yog UeLePasuop ‘olignduoy - uoeonpy jesds
(GZ1 JosinQ) vav paseq-wooissej)

[(e)a)sye9s D3] uoneonp3 |eads Jeax popusixg

VAV Peseq-wooisse;) jenbay

vay paseq-woolsse|)

Joel] |euononisuy

‘ge) uoledo|ly YAV oy}

9)o|dwoo os|e Jsnw (¥)509/ Uondas O3 03 Juensind
uoljeonpJ Jo pieog aiels ayy Aq panoidde siaueyo pue
9'609/% D3 0} uensind pazuoyine siapeys spimAuncd

-G ybnouyy g spiooal oy bunebiaeu Aq 3 ‘g ‘D ‘g

syoel] 10} YAy Hodes pue (G o | piodal) ¥ MH LML
ajbuIS Ul Y Yoel| Jo} YOV Hodal syoel) [eucnonlisul
a|dninw Buneiado sjooyos JoleyD "piodal Y MY IMHL
9|BuIg 8y} Ul YAV (e Hodal sjooyos Japeyd yoeJ) 9jbuis

vay papoday

vav



o 0 0
o 0 0

0 0
61 ) 0 o L1611
et | 1156€ | iTTEr 17908 L 168L M
0 0 110
0 R L0 L0

o o0 o B
zeTie FIS°6¢E P TTer | z908 iLesL
Z€TIT B LTTey 17908 LL6'8L
R R

3

s-a

-a

S-0

0

¢-3 Ui papnjoul
‘9'GY/LS pue (Q)5'ZL9.y O3 o) juensind ‘Buipuny
10} 9|qibije 10U YAV ApNIS Juapuadapuj paseg 9sinoD)

G-O Ul papnoul ‘G6v/ LG

D3 0} ucmstQ .<D< >U:«w ucwvcwamvc_ paseg asino)
G-0 Ul papnjoul

Jou pue 96/ LS pue (Q)5ZL9.1 D3 01 uensind
Buipuny Joj aiqibia 10U YOV POSEG-WOOISSE[OUON

(Aluo vavy sesp

18414 ‘uwinjo) €-MMHL ) §-Q duI Ul papnjoul 6OE9Y O3 0}
juensind usuebiapuny jeuoisuel] Ul SJUSPNIS Jo} YAV

vav Jsyio
(4@ ybnouyy L-a Jo wng) oeu} Joj sjelot vavy

(#-0 + -9) vav (S21 Josinig) suonnisy

SUBIP|IYD PasUddl - S|O0YIS UBLIBJOSSUON ‘Ollqnduon
Jo/pue [(2)(e)99£9G D3] S|00YOS UBLEIOASUON
‘aliqnduop - uoieonp3 |e1oadg Jea\ popudx] {ejol
(-0 + £-9) vav

SUOIINYISU| UBIPJIYYD Pasuadl] - S|oOYdS UBLIBJOSSUON
‘alignduon Jo/pue [(2)(e)99£9G D3] slooyos
ueleloasuop ‘oyqnduop - uoneonp3 jeloadg |ejot

(z-0 + z-9) (621 JosniQ) vYav

[(e)Xa)syeas O3] uoneonpy [ewads JESA popuslx3 [ejol

(1-2 + 1-9) vav seinbay jejot
)oel] 1o} s|ejol yav

(-0 ybnouy)
1-0) Jo wng) yoeli] Joj S[ejo) YAV POSEq-LO0ISSEJOUON

(G21 J0sInQ) VAV PASBG-LWOOISSEIOUON SUOiNSU|
SUaIp|IYD PAsuUadIT] - S|OOYDS UBLRIDASUON ‘oljgnduoN

Jojpue [()(e)99£9S O3] SI00UOS UBLEOSSUON
‘olignduon - uoneonpd [e1oads Jeat papusixy



L0

[eloL

¢l-6 Sspeig

g-/ sapeig

9-v sepelo

EAML

€9

¥4

Z-d

L-d

VAV PasSeq-wooIsSSejOUON

SUOINNISU| SUBIPJIYYD PasuadtT - S|ooyos
uelIelasuoN ‘ongnduon Jojpue [(2)(e)9acgs O3]
S|00U0S UBLBIDaSUON ‘Oignduop - uoneanp3 [ePsads
(S21 JosinQ) YAV Paseq-ulooISSBjOUON

[(e)(a)5¥e9g O3] uoheonp] [eroads JesA pepusixy

VAV Paseq-uiooissepuop Jejnbay

vaV paseq-wooiSSe[oUON

(-4 yBnouyy |-4 jo wng)

aouapISay JO 0UISI] 10} S|BlO) YAV Peaseq-looisse|)
(G/1 JosiAQ) yQV PaSeq-WOooISSel) Suolnisu|
SuaJpliyD pasuadlT - S|ooyoS ueleloasuopN ‘olignducN
Jopue [(£)(e)99£9S O3] SIO0YOS UBLIEJOBSUON
‘oijgnduop - uoneonpd [eads JesA pepuslx]

vav psseq

-LOOJSSB|D) SUOIN}iISUj suadp|iyD pasusoi] - Sjooyos
uelejoasuoN ‘olianduon Jo/pue [(£)(e)g9cas O3]
sjooyog ueLeasuop ‘olignduoN - uoieonp3 jeeds
(GZ1 JosiaiQ) QY Paseq-Wooisse|d

[(€)(a)ste9s O3] uoneonp3] |eadg JesA papua)xy

vV paseg-wooisse|) Jejnfay
vay Peseq-wooisse|)
aouapIsay Jo 1ouIsIq
2oudpisay jo AuUno)

‘pJo2ais Jusnbasqns yoea pue puoodss
ayj Joj 82uspISal JO JOLSIP [00YDS pue AQuUnod 108jas 0}
MBN PPV %0l|0 PUB ‘BABS ‘pJ0D3l ISy AU} Joj Blep Jajug

vav papoday

-saxe} Auadoud

JO N3IJ-Ui JO UOHEBINDIBD 10} §OUSPISAI JO JOLISIP [00YOS
Aq vav uodal 0} el uonedojly YQy au} s)ajdwod
1Snw (%)509. uonodas O3 0} juensund uoyeonpl

JO pieog ajels au) Aq paaoidde siepeyd pue 9’509,
uonoeg HJ 0} wens.ind panoidde sispeyd apmijunod

uoledoj|lvy vav



H

¢H

(¥H ybnoayy

L-H J0 wng) aouapIsay Jo Joulsiq 1o} s[elol Yav

(-9 + -3) vav (521 10siaig) suolnyisuy|

SUB.p|IYD PasSuUadi] - S|00YIS UBLEBOSSUON ‘OfignduoN
Jojpue {(£)(e)99€as D3] S|00YOS UBLIEIOSSUON
*aliqnduoy - uoneanp3 je1adg Jeas papusxd [ejoL

(-9 + ¢-4) vav

SUOHNIISU| SUSIPJIYD PISUS|T - S|O0YOS UBLIBJOOSUON
‘oliqnduon Jospue [(2)(e)99g9s O3l slooyos
ueleloasuop ‘oygnducy - uoeonpd [eeds |ejo]

(2-9 + z-4) (621 108MQ) Yav

[(€)a)se9s O3] uoneonp] [eads JESA popualxd [ejo]

(1-9 + 1-4) vav ‘e;nbay (ejol
aJuspisay J0 J0UISIQ 10§ S|ejol vav

(7~9 ybnouyy 1-9 o WNg) sduapisay
10 1011SI(] 40} S{e10] YOV PasSeq-WooJSSBIOUON

(g1 10SINIQ) YAV POSEG-WOOISSBIOUON SUORNUISU|
SUBIpJIYD POSUSILT - SJOOYDS UBLIBIOSSUON ‘O1jqnduoN
Jojpue [(2)(e)99£96 O3] S|00YIS uelIBIOaSUON
‘ojgnduop - uoneanp3 jeioads JeaL papuslxg



0 0 0 L0 o Coe (€-H spioo8y |V JO WNS) YAV
SUORNJISU} SUBIP|IYD PISUSd| - S|O0YIS UBLIEJOSSUON

‘ailgnduon Jospue [(7)(e)99¢9s O3] sjooyos

ueleasuoN ‘oliqnduop - uoleonp |e1osds [ejol

Z1 (2-H sp1029y |1y Jo wng) (G/ 1 Josiag) vav
[(e)a)syeas O3] uonesnp3 [eoads Jeap papudixd [ejoL

L1 (1-H spJodal e jo wns) Yy Jenbay |ejol

8oUapISaY 4O SIOUISIQ [IV 404 SIeIoL VAV

0 L0 0 £ 0 ) CTM (g-o spiodal ||
JO WNS) S1oUISI IV 10} Se10) YV POSEq-WO0ISSE|OUON

0 ) T 0 0 Y (-4 spiooal
/le Jo wns) sjouisiq | 10} S[elol V(Y PaSeq-Lo0ISSe|)

slayeyo paziuoyine
uojeoNp3 JO pJeog SIEIS pue 9°'G09/ O3 o} uensind
pazIIoYINe SjooYDSs J8LBYD apImAJUNoD 0} ajqeoljddy

92UapISIAY
Jo sjoISIg {1V 10} YAV pauoday jo Alewwng

ZETUT L T15°6¢ ey . 17905 1 L68L LG (p-r ybnouyy |- Jo wng) syoel] v 1o} sfelol YQav

r (¥~ spiooau jy JO wNG) YAV suonnisul
SUIP|IYD PISUSDIT - S|O0YIS UBLIBJIOSSUON ‘OllgnduoN

Jojpue [(/)(e)99£9S O3] SI00UIS UelleloasuoN

‘oijgnduop - uoieonpd [epadsg Jesp papusixy ejo)

0 0 0 ] L0 il e (£-Q sp1oday |IV Jo WNg) vav
SUONINIISU| SUSIPYD PasSuUadl] - S|OOYOS UBLIBJOOSUON

‘ongnduon Joypue [(7)(e)9geas O3] sfooyos

ueleoasuop ‘olgnduop - uoleonp [e1eds [elol

0 [0 0 0 o Loz (z-a spiooay |iv 40 WNS) Vav
[{eXa)sreas 53] uoneonp3 [eoadg JesA papusix] [ejol

L-r (1-q spJodsy IV jo wWNg) yavy Jeinbey [ejo)

o e

et L 15°6¢€ Ty fltoos  i68L

S)¥oed] |iv 10} S[ejol vav

ZeTIe L1668 LiTTey F 17908 L iL68L Loz (-0 spioosal ||
JO WNG) syoel| |1V 10} S[ej0) YAV POSEq-LWO0ISSEOUON

) 0 o 0 LA (5-g spiooal
l[e JO Wng) S}oB1L |1V 10} S|BIOL VAV POSEG-WO0.SSE|D

lejoL Zl-6SopeID  g-/ Sopein  g-p S9peID EMML syoel] |IV 10} YV PaHoday jo Airewuwng

Alewwing



0 ‘ .S (-1 yBnoayy 1-7 jo wNg) sjoLlsI |1V 40} SiejoL YAy

) 1 (p-H Spiooey IV Jo WNS) VAV (GLL JOSIA) SUORMSU|
SUSIP|IYD) POSUSII - S|00UDS UBLIBIOASUON ‘011gnduop

Jojpue [(2)(e)99£9S DI SI00YIS UBLIRIOSSUON
‘2)|qnduoN - uoneoNnp3 [eeds Jeas perusixd [ejoL




SOA :UoniepieA BlR(Q Passed

SUON :uoljeonp3 Jo asi0 AJuno) 0 :sBulutepp Jo JaquinN

Wd E0:L€:} 2202/LL/1 - TUMOIGP :3oM3sia [ooyds 0 :S10113 JO JaquInN

WY ¥Z:90:11 Z20Z/}L/) - ZSTEABUSH :3yBISIaAQ0 1013SIQ - [00YDS Japeyd ¥ 1SP1023Y JO JaquINN
UOIJBWLIOU] UOHEIIHS) uoijewloju] uoneplieA

4253vO34 ‘di eleq

Y Y0:G0:LL Z20Z/LL/) 938 uonepljeA ise 7661 :J9qUINN Japeyd
ZSTeReys :Ag uonepijep jse L/8LE10 ZTLL69 Z¥ :9POD SAD

WY Lib0:LL Z20Z/LL/) :93ed PaAes Jse 8INUBAPY :JO0YIS JOLIEBYD WNIALL (J00YDS
ZSIBABUSH) :Ag paAeg jse eieqieg ejueg :Ajuno)

s|iejoq uoneuwwoju] Ajpug

uonewIoju| piodoy

uonesoT jesisAyd jooyoas Japeysn

uoneaoT jeaIsAud [00YaS JOUBYD) [ SJNJUSAPY :JO0UDS JOUBYD WNIALLL [/ |00YOS Jauey) / Aujejeq / SWwoH

L-d ZZ-120¢ :pouad Buipoday ‘|-d ZZ-1202Z 21940 Buissadoid
(Davd) uonos|09 ejeq juswuopioddy jedidoulid



Aiejuawai uolun uewyosolg

eleqleg ejueg

puIsIq [ooyos
Auno)

"Z-d 0 se [euy ale (s)uoneoo) jesisAyd

papodal ay} (g)(2)(3)20°822 Uonoag O3 0} juensind
"ejep uoneooj [eaisAyd podau jsnw ‘Aj@anoadsal
‘9'609. 1 10 §'509/2 ¥ SUORORS O3 0} Juensind

Jaueyo apIMAUNoD e 1o Japeyd welbold Aunoo

e Sl Jey} jooyos Jopeyd v "pajedo| AjfesisAyd si jooyos
Japeyo ayj a1aym Joulsip jooyas Ajuo ayj st uoyijed
S,|00Y0S JaUBYD By} paluap Jey} 1oMIsSIp [ooyds 8y}

10 Jazuoyjne ay; Ji ejep uoneool |esisAyd Hodal 0} aaey
10U Op ‘JgS 2y} Jo Aunoo ay) Aq [eadde uo paaosdde
alam Jey) JO ‘JoUISIp JooYyos B AQ paziioyine sjooyos
Japeys (g)(2)(3)20"8eccy uondag O3 o} Juensind
Hw)(2)3)z0 8czey uonoes D] uelb uojesuaauod
44971 sijooyos Japeys ayy Buieinojes jo sesodind

10} pasn aq {m (s)uoneoo] [eoisAud jooyas Japeyd

"Blep uoneoo| [eaisAyd Jey) ut

S]oUISIp [00Y2s yloq podad pjnoys ‘1ousip jooyos ybiy e
pue Alejuswala Ue Yjoq uiyum sjiej Ajjioe)/uoneoo] syl
uaym se yons ‘sjousip jooyas ajdynw Jo sauepunoq syl
UlyuMm siie} 1ey} uoljedo| e Yim [00Yds Japeyd v "JoUIsIp
jooyaos Buizuoyine s,jooyds JaUBYD Y] ‘Wou) Jayip

o ‘0} UolIppe Ul dJe Jey) SJOLISIp [00YDs apnjoul Aew

siy L "Ajjioey jooyos e sey Jo pajeso| AjlesisAuyd si |ooyos
Jaueyo 8y} a19ym (S)1oulsIp |0oYIS ||B 10} SpJodal Jaju]

uoneso |edisAyd |[ooyos 1ayeysd



payiun sodwon

eieqieg ejueg

ouIsIg fooyos
Auno)

‘Z-d 10 se |euy a.e (s)uonedo) [eoisAyd

papodas ay} (9)(2)4)20°8€ZZ Y UoNoaS O3 0} Juensind
‘elep uoneoo| [esisAyd podal Jsnw ‘Ajpaioadsal
‘9'5094 ¥ 10 6609/ SUoRO9S O3 o) Juensind

J9UBYD 9pIMAILNOD B Jo Joueyo weiboid Ajunod

e sl Jey] [00yos Joyeyd Y "pajedo| AjjeoisAyd si jooyos
Jaueyo ay} a1aym JouisIp jooyos Ajuo ay) st uoijijad
S,|00Y0s JoUBYD 8Y) Paluap Jey] JoulsIp [0oYds au)

10 J8ZII0yine ay} 1 ejep uoleso] [eoisAud uodal o] aney
10U Op ‘JgS 2y} 40 AJunod ay) Aq |eadde uo panoidde
91oM 1BU] JO ‘IOU)SIP |00YDS B AQ pOZIOYINe SjooYos
Jsueyo (g)(2)1)20 8ezet uonoes O3 o3 juensind
(w)(2)1)Z0 82z uonoas D3] wuelb uoyeusouod
4497 s,Jooyos Japueyo ayy Buiejnojeos jo saesodind

10} pasn aq jm (s)uoneool jeaisAyd [ooyos Japeyd

"ejep uoneoo} jeoisAyd Jiayy Ui

SjouISIp |00Yos Uioq pwodas pinoys ‘1ousip [ooyds ybiy e
pue Aejuswale ue Yog Uiyim sjie} Aijioey/uoneso) J1ay)
usyM Se Yyons ‘sjouisip [ooyos aldninw Jo sauepunoq ay)
UM S|E} JBU} UOHEDO| B UIM [00UDS JSUBYD Y/ JOLISIP
|00Yy9s Buizuoyne s,[00y0S JOUBYD BU} ‘WOl JaYIP

10 ‘0] UOIIPPE Ul 8J8 J2y] SIOUISIP [00YDs apnjoul Aew
sIy] Ajjio.) [00Yos B sey 1o pajedo) AjjeaisAyd si jooyos
JouBYD 8] a1aym (S)1oUISIP [O0YDS [ 104 SPJ0o3al Jaju]

uoneso [esishAyd |ooyos 1aueyd



paylun olapedseny

adsigQ sin ueg

PuIsig |ooyds
Auno)

‘Z-d 10 se jeuy ale (s)uoneooj |esisAyd

peuodal ay} (g)(2)(3)20 882y UoioaS O3 o} Juensing
‘B)ep UoNe00]| |eoisAyd podal 1snw ‘Ajpapoadsal
‘9°5092¥ 10 G°509/ ¢ Suoas 53 0} juensind

Jayeyd apimAunod e Jo sepeyd weibosd Ajunod

B Si Jey) [O0Yos 1opeyd Y "pajedo| AjjedisAyd si jooyos
1aUBYD aY) a18ym 101SIp [ooyos Ajuo ay) s| uonijad
$,|00Y0S JSUBYD By} Palusp 1y} JouISIp [00YdS ay)

10 J9zuoyne ay} JI elep uofeosoy jeaisAyd podal 0] aaey
10U Op ‘IgS 9y} 10 AUNod oy} Aq [eadde uo paaoidde
219M 1Y) 10 ‘]OUISIp [00YDS B AQ pazuoyine s|jooyos
lsueyo (g)(2)(3)20"8czey uonoes O3 o3 juensing
)220 8czey uonoas DI ueld uoneluaduod
44707 s,|00yos Japeyo ay) Bupenojes jo sesodind

10} pasn aq |m (s)uoljedol jeaisAyd |jooyds seueyd

‘BJep uoneooj [eaisAyd J18y) ut

spSIp [00yos Yog podal pinoys ‘Jousip jooyos ybiy e
pue Aigjusws|s ue yjoq uiyim s|je; Aufioey/uonedol Jiay)
uaym Se |yons ‘sjoulsip jooyds a|dinw Jo salepunog ayj
Uiylm siie} Jeyl uoiedo| B Uiim |ooYds Jspeyd v JoMsIp
Jooyds Buizoyne s,j00yds JoUBYD 8y ‘WOol) JSiIp

10 ‘0} UCHIPPE Ul 9Je Jey] SJOUISIP |O0YDS apnjoul Aew
siyL "Ayjioey jooyss e sey Jo payedo) AjeoisAyd si jooyos
18Ry ay) a19ym (S)oLISIp |oOYDS (jB 10} SpJodal Jajud]

uoneso] |esishyd jooyoss Japeyd



paulun Jel en

odsiqo sin7 ueg

pusiq jooyos
Auno)

"Z-d JO se |euy aie (s)uoiieoso| jedisAyd

pauodal ay} (g)(2)(3)20°8€2el Uoioag D3 o} Juensind
‘Blep uoneoo| [eaisAyd podal ysnw ‘Ajaaioadse.
‘9°509.% 10 §'509. Suonoeg O3 0} Juensund

J8eYo apimAIUNoI e Jo Japeyo weiboid Alunoo

e ! Jey} jooyos Japeyd v "pajedo; AjjedisAyd si jooyos
JaueyD 8y} a1aym JoulsIp jooyas Ajuo ayj s uoniad
$,/00U0S JOUBYD 9y} paiusp ey} JoulsIp [ooyos ay)

Jo Jazuouine ay} jl ejep uoneoo| |esisAyd podai o) saey
10U Op ‘39S 2y} Jo Alunod ay; Aq jeadde uo panoidde
81oM 1BU] IO ‘JoUISIp |ooyds e AQ pazioyine Sjooyos
Jaueyo (8)(2)(3)20 8cgey uondag O3 o) uensing
[w)(2))z0 8cgey uonoas D3] uelb uonenusduod
4497 s.jooyos Jopeyd ayy Bunejnojeo jo sesodind

10} pasn ag |m (s)uoneooj |eatsAud |ooyos Jaueyd

"ejep uoneoso| [eaisAyd Jiayy ul

SJoU)SIP [00YoSs Yjog podal pinoys ‘Joulsip jooyods ybiy e
pue Aejuswala ue yjog Ulynm sije} Ajijioe/uonesol Jisyy
usym se yons ‘sjousip jooyos sjdijnw Jo salepunog aul
ulylim sjiej 1eyl uolledo| e Yiim jooyos Jsleyd v JoUIsIp
jooyos Buizuoyine s,ooyds JOHBYD 8y} ‘WOl JSYIp

10 ‘0] UCIlIpPE Ul 8Je Jey) SJoUISIp [o0Yos apnoul Aew
siy] “Aljioe) [ooyos e sey Jo pajeoo| AjjeoisAyd si jooyos
Japeyo ayy a1eym (S)IOUISIP [00YIS [je JO} spJods) Jajul]

uoljedso |edisAyd jooyss 1aueyd



SO\ UONEPIEA ejeq passed

SUON :uonesnpg jo 3o Ajunon 0 :sBuiuiepp jJo JagquinN

WV Z1:92:01 220¢Z/LL/L - LUMOIQp Jou3siq [ooYyds 0 :sJoui3 jo JaquinN

NV 6€:62:01 220Z/}L/1L - ESTeABUSH] :3YBISIanQ oS! - [00oYdS Japeyd L :Sp1023Y jo JaqWInN
uojewIou} UoIedINHDD uoljewioju] uotjepijeA

S99v6d8y ‘dl eleq

Nd L5:80:C ZC0¢/./| 8¥eq uoljepijeA jseq G666 daqunn Jayeyd
csieAeysH] :Ag uonepijea jse G688.EL0 CLL6G CP -9pOD SAD

Nd v2:G€:1 220¢2/./1 ‘9¥eq paAes jseT obeAOA :|00YDS. JayeyD WAL (jooyds
tSeaesy] :Ag paneg jse eseqeg ejues :Ajuno)d

s|ie)aQg uopewJoju) A}3uz

tUoneuwioju| pioodoy

[oOYoS Jajeyd asuepuapy

JoOY2g Jeley)) aouepually | oBeAOA :[00ysS JopeYD WNIALL / |00Ydg Jepey) / Aijujeeq |/ 9woH

L-d 22-120¢ :pouad Buipoday ‘|-d 22-120¢ :219AD Buissadsold

(o@vd) uonoajjon ejeq uswuoluoddy jedioulid



D EG-V

1wy
R -
w - oY

ar-v

1202/91/8 . erv

R a

s qe-v
eg-v

agv

pe-v

qc-v

BV

O
O
O
0 5z-y
O
O

S q-v

D el-v

W@@&&Dwv v,

9-V SUIT 0} UO SAOW ‘SBA J|
ST A &4k [Basy Jusuund ay} Buunp uoonyysut
10 uoljesado asead |[0oyos JaueYd ay) pid

3ol
aell
0.l
g oeil

v Yoeif poed) obuig

pasuawwon uononiysu] (AAAAppjww) ayeq

"G-y Ul 0} UO SAOW ‘ON J|

ON

¢uonelado jJo Jeak Jsai S} Ul [0OYDS JaHBYD SIY) S|

-\ SUIT O} UO SAOW ‘SBA J|

S3A

suonelado Jo Jeak 3s41) S ul |0OYIS JapeYD SIY) S|

I Noel]

a el

0 xoelL

g o8l

VAL

"pojoo|as SO ||e 10}

UONBWIOUI UIRJLOD O} paau |iim Aujue ejep jusnbasgns
:9JON “JapJo [eonjeqeydje uj yoed} jeuoippe

{oea pue y )oel] 10} XOq 3Yj 309Yd ‘|-y ul

Pa303]as sem (HoeiININ) SaA J :SHOrl] |[euolONIISU|
(foed] ajbuIS) ON ¢S)2BJ] jeuo1}ONIISUL

a|diynw ajesado jooyos Japeyd sy} saoQg

(foenBINI) SAA £S)HOB1) JRUCHONIISUI
ajdijjnw ajesado jooyos Jaueyd SIYy) ssoqg

‘at eieg

snjejs Japeyon



8-V

q98-v

eg-v

8-V

3.V

PL-vY

2LV

a.-v

e/v

9g-v

POV

209-vY

q9-v

eg-vy

9-v

q5-v

uoljeuiquwoD
PSSEg-WO0ISSE|OUON
paseq-wooIsse|D)

uononsu| jo adA| ayj} ajeaipuj
ERRLIN

aoell

O ¥oedl

goeil

Vv yoedipoel] sibuig

‘[enuuy Je Sjooyds JapeYd |je 1o}

paJinbay -1eak [eosy ay) Buunp uolelado pasesd |00yos
11 Z-d pue |-4 Je paJinbai AjuQ "uonesadQ jo sAeqg

3 yoedp

apelL

O ¥oedL

goell

v yoei poed] sibuig

peseasn uoponiisuj Jo uonesadQ (AAAA/ppjww) a3eq
/- 8ui 0] uo saAoOW ‘ON J|

ON é4eak [easyy Jualind ayj Bulnp uollonaisul
10 uonelado ISead |ooYds JaUPUD 3y} PIG



L0

raYal S

Cl-6 sopei9

ENMML

SALAAL 18Ws;

-0

S-4

-4

€4

cd

VvV POsSeq-wooISSEJOUON

SUOIINYISU| SUBJIP[IYD PasusdI - Sfooyss
uenelossuoN ‘alignduoN Jospue [(2)(e)g9gggs D3]
S|00U0g UBLEOaSUON ‘0llgnduop - uoieonpd [eads
(5/1 J0SING) YAV PeSBg-WO0ISSBIOUON

[(e)(a)sie96 D3] uonesnp3 jelweds Jesy papusixl

VAV POSEQ-WO0ISSBIOUON Jejnbay

VAV PosSeq-WoO0ISSBOUON

(+-g ybnosy

L-g JO WNG) Yorl| 10} S|BJ0} YOV POSeq-WooISse|)

(G2 Josing) vV paseq-wooisse|d suonniisuj
SuBIp[IyD PasuUadi] - S|00YIS uele}dasuoN ‘olgnduoN
Jlojpue {()(e)99¢9G O3] S|00YoS UBLIEIOBSUON
‘ollgnduop - uofeonp3 |e1vsadsg JesA pepusix]

vayv paseq

~-WOO0ISSE|D SUOIIN}ISU] UsIp|iy) pesuadl] - Sjooyos
ueleloasuoN ‘alignducy Jojpue [(2)(e)99e9s O3]
S|o0YoS UBLIBIaSUON ‘Olignduop - uoleanp] [eads

(521 1081NQ) YAV paseq-wooisse|)
[(e)(a)s¥e9s D3] uoneonp3 [e1oeds JesA popusix]

VAV paseq-wooisse|) Jeinbay

vV poseq-woolIsse|)

soel] Jeuononsu|

‘qel uoljedo|ly vayv ou}

a)o|dwos osje 1snw (3)G09/ ¢ UoIPag D3 o) Juensind
uoneonpd jo pieog alels oy Aq panocidde siapeyd pue
9°609/t D3 01 uensind pazuoyine sIapeyd apIMAIUNOD

-G ybnouyy z spiooal o} bunebineu Ag 3 ‘'q ‘D ‘9

syoel| 10} YAy Hodal pue (G JO | P1093l) ¥ MHI/MHL
s|buig U1 y Moel| Jo} yQy Hodal syoel} [euconssul
aidninw Bunelado sjooyds JaleyD pPIodal ¥ MHI/MHL
aIbulg 8y} Ul YQV || Hodal sjooyos Japeyo yoel} sjbulg

vav pauoday

vav



0 Bl 0 0

O T I 0 0

0 10 0 1o

b8 0 0 0 _ 8¢

STY6T L1607 LiSPIL LisveTl

0 0 ) Lo

0 0 0 |10

0 0 o L0 10

ST 6T 60V L8P ETl m
STW6T [ Trss 607 SYIL grezt

0 0 0 0 o

-3

ed

¥-a

70

¢-3 ul papnpul
‘9’672 1S pue (Q)5'ZL9/1 O3 o) Juensind ‘Buipuny
J0} 91qib1@ Jou YQV ApniS juapuadapu| pased 9S.N0Y

§-D ut papnul ‘'G'6¥LLS

03 0} juensind ‘yqv Apnis juapuadapu| paseg 8sinoD)
§-0 ul papnjoul

lou pue 9’6/ 1G pue (4)sZL9/¥ O3 o3 juensund
Buipuny Joy 91qib1fe J0U YOV POSEJ-WO0ISSEJOUON

(Ao vav seaA

1sd14 ‘uwin(od €-)L ) §-0 duln Ul papnjoul 00E9Y OF 0}
wensind usuebiapuny jeuonisuel] Ul SJUSPNIS 10} YAV

vav 1auio
(¥~ uBnouy; |-Q Jo wng) xoel) Joy slelo] YAy

(#-0 + ¥-9) vav (G| J0sIAIQ) suoinysul
SUBIP[IYD POSUBIIT - S|OOYDS UBLBJOISUON ‘OljqnduoN

Jopue [(2)(€)99€95 O3] SI00YOS UBLIEJOSSUON
‘ollgnduoy - uofeonp3 |eads JeSA papualxd |ejol

(¢-0 + £-9) vav
SUOIINJIJSU| UBIPJIYD POSUSDIT] -~ S|O0YOS UBLIBJOSSUON

‘atignduon Joypue [(2)(e)99c9s O3] slooyos
ueieasuop ‘oygnduop - uoneonpy [eads jejol

(z-0 + ¢-9) (S/1 J0sINQ) YAV
[(e)a)speas O3] uoyeonp] [e10adg Jesp papusix3 [ejol

(1-0 + 1-8) vav Jejnbay [ejol
)oel] o} s|ejol vav

(-0 ubnouy
L-0 0 wng) ¥oel] Jo} s|ejol. YAy paseq-WwooISSeoUoN

(gZ| Josing) vAv Paseq-WooISSBIOUON Suoiiniiisu|
SuBJp|IyD pPasuDIT - S|OOYIS UBLEJOSSUON OlgnducN
Jospue [()(e)99£95 D3] SI00YDS UeLIEIDASUON
‘onignduop - uojjeonp3l |eoadg Jeat papudixy



o

a0

jejoL

Cl-6 sepel

8-/ sepelo

9-1 sepeln

EAML

€9

[A9)

4

i-d

VAV paseq-wooisse|ouoN

SUOIINIISU| SUBJPJIYD Pasuall - SO0y
uepejoesuoN ‘aliqnduoN Jo/pue [(£)(e)99g9s D3l
S|00YDS UBLIRJOSSUON ‘Ollqnduop - uojjeanp3 |enads
(g/1 JosiAIQ) VAV PESEQ-WOOISSEJOUON

[(€)(@)s¥E9G O3] uopeonp3 [eoadg JBSA popus)x3

VAV Paseq-woo.sse|ouoN Jejnbay

VAV pPosSeq-wooSSe|ouoN

(¥-4 ybnouyy L-4 Jo wng)

a2UapISaY 1O 10UISI] 104 S|BI0] V(Y POSeq-WooIsse|D)
(G21 J0sINIQ) YAV POSEQ-WOOISSEID SUOHNSU|
SUBIP|IYD PasUBIT - S|OOYIS UBLIBJOSSUCN ‘OliqnduoN
Jojpue [(1)(e)99£95 O3] S|00YOS UBLEJOBSUON
‘o11qnduo) - uoneonp3 |eadg JesA papuaix3

Vvav paseq
-WOO0JSS.|D SUOIIN}ISU| SUaIp|IyD pasusdl - Sjooyos
ueyejoasuop ‘alignduoN Jospue [(7)(e)gaeas D3]
$]00Y9S UBLIBIO9SUON ‘Olignduop - uoieonpd jeoads
(621 Josing) vAV POSeq-WOooISSe|D

[(e)(q)syeas O3] uoneonp3 [eoads JesA papusix3y

VAV paseqg-wooisse|) Jeinbay
VAV paseq-woolsse})
20USpISaY JO PUISIQ
29uBpISaYy Jo AJUNC)H

"pJooal Juenbasgns oea pue puodss
8y} 10} 92UIPISI JO JOUISIP |00YIS puE AJUNOD JO8[as 0}
MON PPV Y2li0 pUe ‘9ABS ‘pIodal ISl B} 10} Blep Jaju]

vav paHoday

‘soxe] Auadoud

10 Naj|-Ul JO UOHBIND|BD 10} 8OUaPISal JO JoulSIp [00YoS
Aq v@v uodal 0} qel uone20|lY YaV 9y} slojdwod
1snw (3)509/ 1 Uooas O3 03 uensind uopeonp

10 pleog 9jels auy} Aq panoidde sioueyd pue 9°'Go9.LYy
uoyoeg HJ o} Juensind panoidde sioueyo apimAIUNOD

uoljedojlv vav



0 0 ) 0 Ce (€-H spJoday IV Jo WNnS) vav
SUOIINIISU| SUBIP|IYD POSUadIT - S|O0YIS UBLIBIOSSUON

‘aignduoN Jospue [(2)(e)99£95 O3] slooyos

ueLEaSUON ‘olgnduop - uoneonpd [eoads |ejo).

10 0 0 A (2-H spi029y |y jo wng) (621 Josing) vay
[(£)(9)5¥£9S O] uoneonp3 [ewadg Jeap papusixg |2joL

0 0 ‘0 0 RS (L-H spJo2al jje jo wns) Yy Jeinbay |ejo|

aouapIsay Jo S)oMISIQ IV 10} S[ejoL vav

0 L0 0 0 0 LT (5-© spiodau jje
1O WINS) spuIsiq IV 10} S|e10] YV POSBq-WO0ISSBOUON

0 S0 g [ | (G-4 spioday
[[e JO wns) s}ousIq Y 10} Sfejol YAV PeSeq-WooISSe|)

slapeyo pazuoyne

uonesnp3 jo pieog 8jels pue g'509/ ¢ O3 0} juensind
paziioyine S|ooyds Japeyd apimAluNod o} ajqed)ddy
9ouapisay

J0 sjouysiq 11V 10} vav pajoday jo liewwng

STY6T L Tr8s | 60p CISYIL Listezl - (-r ybnouyy 4-r jo wing) sHoeu] |1V 4o} siejol YAy

10 Copr (¥-Q spiooal |y JO WNS) YV SuoINISy|
sSuUalp|iyD pasuadl - S|O0YIS UBLIEIOSSUON ‘OfignduoN

Jo/pue [(2)(2)g99£95 DT] S100YOS UBLEJOBSUON

‘ollgnduop - uoieanp3 |eiosads Jes\ papusix] [ejol

0 ) (0 L0 ;0 S (¢-@ spiooay |l jo wWNS) VAV
SUORN}IISU| SUBIPHIYD PBsUadI - S|00YOS UBLEIOSSUON

‘olignduoN Jo/pue [(2)(e)99¢95 O3] siooyos
ueleoasuop ‘olgnduop - uoneonp3 |eioadsg |ejol

0 Lo 0 ; - zr (z-a spiooay |Iv Jo wns) vav
[(e)(a)syeas O3] uonesnp] |eweds Jes\ papusix3 [ejo)

[STY6T | Tr'gs 60y iSpIL - 8pECl L (1-Q SPJ099Y [IV JO WNS) YAV Jeinbey [ejol
sjoel] ||V 10} S|ejol Vav

1STY6T 1 lzrss L 60p BEan L 8pETl Loz (-0 spiodau (e
10 WING) syorl_ |y 10} S|E10] YAV PESEJ-WOOISSEIOUON

0 0 o 0 - L (G-g spiooal
IIE JO WNS) syoel] ||V Jo} S|el0] YAV Paseq-wooIsse})

fejoL ZL-6SepeRID 8-/ SepRID G- SepeiD E-MNIL syoeu] [V 10} YQV Pauoday jo Aiewwng

Arewwing



S (=71 yBnoays L-7 40 wng) souIsiq Iy 104 S[ejoL YAy

=1 (p-H SpJoo9y ||V jo wng) vay (/1 J0SIAIQ) suonniisul
SUAIPJIYD PasuUaIT - S|OOYDS UBLBIDASUON ‘Oljgnduopn

Joypue [(1)(e)99gas D3] S|00UOS UBLEIOISUON

‘01IgNduUoN - uoiedNpP3 |eioadg JesA panuaixd [ejop




S9A uonepleA ejeq passed

BUON :uoneanp3 jo adYO AQJuno) 0 :sBuluiepp jo JaquinN

Nd €0:1€:1 2202/LL/L - Lumolgp Jou3siq [ooyos 0 :slou3 jo laquinN

NV 82:25:0} 220Z/LL/) - ESTEABGSH] :3yBISIOAQ JoUISI] - [00Y3S JapeyD G :SP1033Y JO JaquInN
uoljewoju} UoIeIJIUDD uonewJojuj uonepijep

aod83.d4 ‘di e3eq

WY 82:95:01 Z220¢/LL/1 -91eQ uoljepijep jseq] G661 JaqunN Jayeys
TSIEAB(SH] :Ag uolnjepljen jse] 688/€102LI69 ¢V :9p0D SAD

NV 60:2G:01 220Z/11/1 -@)eq paAes jse’] abeAoA :JooyoS JapeyD WAL (jooyds
cSieAeysl] :Ag paAaesg ise eleqgleg ejueg :Ajuno)

s|ieaqg uonew.oju; Aypu3z

UONEWIoJU] p10Joy

uoijeso jesisAyd |ooyos Jajeyd

uoeo0T |BOISAUd [00UOS Jauey) ; o9BBAOA :j00OUDS JSLBYD WNIALML [ [00YDS Jopey) / Ajujejeg / SWOH

L-d 22-120¢ :pouad Buioday ‘|- zg-120¢ :919KD Buissaooid

(pa@vd) uonoajjon ejeqg yuawuoipoddy jedidund



AJejuawia|3 uoiun uewyoo|g

eieqleg ejueg

pusIg jooyos
Auno)

"Z-d J0 se Jeuy aJe (s)uoneoo| [eaisAyd

papodal sy} (g)(2)3)Z0 8cZey uondss D3 0) Juensing
‘ejep uonedoj |esisAyd poda. jsnw ‘Ajoanoadsal
‘9°'509/¥ 40 §°G09/¥ Suodes D3 0) Juensind

Jayeyo apImAuUnoo e 1o Japeyo weiboid Aunoo

e sl Jey} |ooyos Jaueyo y pajeoo] AjeaisAyd si jooyos
JaBYD 8y} a1aym Joulsip jooyos Ajuo ayy st uonied
$,J00YDS JaUBYD By} paludp Jeyl JoUISIp [00YIS By}

10 J8ZII0YyIne ay} JI elep uoneoo) |eaisAyd podal 0} aaey
10U Op ‘Jgs 9y} Jo AJunoo ayy Aq [eadde uo parosdde
alam 1Y} JO ‘JOUISIp [ooyos e AQ paziloyine sjooyos
Japeyo (g)(2)(3)20°8£22y uoORg 5F 0} Juensind

W) (2320 8czzy uonoes 53] uelb uoneusouod
4477 s.jooyos Jaueys ay; bupejnojes jo sesodind

10} pasn aq |jim (s)uoneoo] jeoisAud jooyos Japeyd

‘BJEp Uoneoso| jesisAyd Jioy} ui

sJolIsSIp |o0Yos yjoq podal pinoys ‘Jouisip jooyds ybiy e
pue Auejuswala UB Yloqg UiyIm sjje} AJIjioe}/uoneoo] J1ivyy
uaym se yons ‘sjousip jooyos o|dijn Jo sauepunoq ay}
UIYUM S|(e} 1B} UOBOO| B LYJIM [OOYIS JOUBYD V "OIISIp
Jjooyos Buizuoyne s,jo04os JSHBYD SU} ‘Wol) JOYIp

10 0} UoHippe Ul 8le Jey] S}ousIp JooYos apnjoul Aew
siyL “Ayoe) jooyos e sey Jo pajedo] A|jeaisAyd si jooyos
1aueys ay) alaym (S)1oU)SIp JoOYoS |[B 10} SP10dal Jajug

uonedso |edisAyd |ooyss 1aueyn



psiyiun elegleg ejueg

elegleq Ejuesg

puIsIq [ooyds
Auno)

‘Z-d 10 se |euy ale (s)uoneoo| jeaisAyd

papodas ayy (@)(2)(1)20"8€2Zy Uonoas O3 o} juensing
"ejep uoneoo| [eaisAyd podal jsnw ‘Aj@anoadsal
‘9'509. ¥ 10 G609/ SUoOPOSS O3 o} Juensind

Japeyd apimAIunod e Jo Japeyo weiboid Ajunoo

e S| Jey} jooyos Jaueyd vy ‘pajeso| AjjeaisAyd s jooyos
J8eyd ay] aJaym Jouisip jooyos Ajuo au} st uonjad
S,|00U0S JBUBYD 8y} pailuap 1ey} JoUISIP |o0Yyds a8y}

10 Jazuoyine ay} 4l ejep uoneoo] jeaisAyd podal o) saey
jJou op ‘39S 9y} Jo AJunod ay} Aq |eadde uo panoidde
2J8M 1BY]) JO ‘JOUISIP |O0YDS B AQ PaZIIOYINE S|O0YDS
Japeyo (a)(2)1)20"8eze Y UooeS O3 0} Juensing
[w)2)3)20'8c22y uoioes D3] jueld uolejuaouod
4407 s,Jo0yos Japeys sy Buienojes jo sesodind

Joj pasn aq Jm (s)uoneoo) |eaisAyd jooyss Jaueyn

‘Blep uoneoo| |eaisAyd Jiay) ui

S]0LISIP [00Y0s Ujoq podal pinoys ‘1ousip jooyos ybiy e
pue Algjuswajd UB yloq ulyim sjiel Alijioel/uonedo) Jisy)
usym se |yons ‘sjousIp jooyos ajdnnw Jo sauepunoq sy
UIYNIM S|[Bj JBY] UCIEOO| B UM |00YIS JoHeD VY “JOLISIP
jooyos Burzioyjne s,Jo0Yds JOUBYD BU} ‘Wol) JoyIp

10 ‘0] UOIIppE Ul 3Je Jey} SJoUISIp |00Yds apnjoul Aew
siy] "Aljoe) jooyos e sey Jo pajeso] AjlesisAyd si jooyos
Japeyo sy} aiaym (S)oU)sIp [00YDsS [[B JOj SpJodal Jsju]

uoijesor |edisAyd jooyoas Japeysd



payiun 0Japedsely

odsiqo sinT ueg

wusig [ooyds
Ajuno)

"Z-d 10 sk |euy ale (s)uonedo| [esisAyd

papiodal oy} (a)(2)(3)z0°8€2Zy uoROSS O3 0} Juensing
‘BJEp UOKEDO| feoisAyd Hodala jsnw ‘Ajaajoadsal
‘9'508/ % 10 §'G09/ ¥ SuodsS OF o} juensind

JBYEBYD 9pIMAIUNOI B Jo Japeyd weiboid Ajunod

B Sl ]ey} |ooyos Jaueyd v ‘pajedo| AjjeaisAyd si jooyos
J181BYD 8y} a19ym Joulsip [ooyos Ajuo ay) si uoiyad
$,Jo0Yos Japieyd ay) patuap Jey} J1oUIsIp |o0Yds au}

10 J9ZuoyIne ay} I ejep uoieoo| [eaisAyd Hodal o} aaey
10U Op ‘JgS 9y) Jo Aljunoo ay} Ag |eadde uo panoidde
81oM 1BY] JO ‘JOUISIp |00YIS B AQ PoazIIoyIne S|00yos
Japeud (g)(2)(3)z0'8czZy uonods D3 0} Juensind
w)(2)3)20°8cZzy uonoas D3] ueld uoienusouod
44907 s,Jooyss Japeyo ay) bunenoes jo sasodind

Joj pasn aq [m (s)uoneso] jeaisAyd jooyos Japeysn

‘Bjep uoyeoo| |esisAud Jisyy ul

SJoUISIP Jooyos yjog Wodal pinoys ‘1ouisip [ooyds ybiy e
pue AJejuswald ue yjog uiypm sjie} Ajjioe/uoiieso) Jjay}
usyM SB yons ‘sjoulsip [ooyos a|dinw Jo ssuepunoq ay}
Uluiim sje} Jey} uoyeoo] € yim [O0YIs JsHeYD v JolIsIp
jooyos Buiziioyine s,00y9s JaleYD 3Y) ‘Wol) JISYIp

Jo ‘0] UOIIPPE Ul dJe Jey) SIoUISIp [ooyos apnpoul Aew
sIy| "Aujioe) [ooyds e sey J0 pajedoj} AjjedisAyd st [ooyos
Jayieyo ay; a1aym (s)ioulsip |ooyos e Joj Splodal Jaju]

uoie20 jedishyd |ooyss Jayueysd



payiun ey eon

odsigo sin ueg

pusiqg jooyos
Aunon

‘Z-d 10 se |euy ase (s)uoneosoj jeaishAyd

pauodal ayy (g)(2)(1)20 8¢ ze uonoas O3 03 Juensing
‘elep uofjeoo) |eaisAyd podal Jsnw ‘Ajeaijoadsal
‘96092 10 G609/ SUONOS DT 0) Juensind

Jaleyd apIMAIUNOI e Jo Jaueyd weiboid Ayunod

€ Sl Jey) jooyos Japeyd y "pajedo) AjjeoaisAyd si jooyos
Japeyd ayj} alaym jousip [ooyds Ajuo ayy s uoiad
S,J00Y0S JauByD 3y} paluap Jey) JOLISIP |00YIs au)

10 Jazuoyine ay) JI ejep uoljeoo| jeaisAyd podal o) aaey
J0U op ‘39S 8y} 40 Junoa ay} Aq |eadde uo panoidde
alam ey JO ‘JOLISIp [o0YIs B AQ paziuoyIne s|ooyds
Jspeyd (g)(2)()20 8sgey uonoeg O3 o} juensind
[w)(2)1)z0 8¢Zey uonoeg D3] we.b uoyejuaauod
44907 s,|ooyos Japeyo ayy bunenojes jo sesodind

10} pasn aq |jim (s)uoneoo] [eaisAyd |ooyos JapeyD

‘BlEp uonedo| featsAyd siayy ul

SJoUISIp |00Yos Yioq podal pinoys ‘Jouisip [ooyos ybiy e
pue Aigjuswsale ue Yjoq ulyum sjie) Ajjioel/uoneso) Jiayy
uayM Se |ons ‘sjoLlsIp jooyos ajdijnw Jo saepunoq ay)
uiylim sjej Jey} uoieao| 8 Yim [00Yos Jaeyd y "PuIsIp
jooyos Buizuoyine s,[00ydS JaUBYD By} WO} JOYIP

1o ‘0} UORIPPE Ul 8le Jey} S}OL)SIp J00Yyds apn|oul Aew
siy} Ayjioe) jooyos e sey 1o pajedol AjleaisAyd siI jooyos
Jayeyo ay} araym (S)IouIsIp |00YIs [[B J0j SPJ0dal Jsju]

uoljeso1 jedisAyd jooyoss Japeysn



Aseyuswa|g adoyH

eleqleg ejueg

wusig [o0yYos
Aunon

*Z-d JO se |euy ale (s)uopnedso| [eaisAyd

papodas oy (a)(Z)(1)20"85ZZy UonOaS O3 0} juensing
“ejep uoneso| |eaisAyd podal Isnw ‘Ajpandadsaz
‘9'509/ ¥ 10 5609/ suonoss O3 o} juensind

Jspeyo apmAIUNOoI e Jo Japeyd welbosd Hunod

e sl Jey) Jooyos Japeyd v "pajeoso) AjjeaisAud si jooyos
Japeyo ay} aiaym JouIsIp jooyos Ajuo ay) st uonijad
$,J00Y2S JBURYD BY} paluap ey} JoUISIP |00Y9S du)

10 J8ZII0Yyine 2y} Ji Blep uoneoo| jesisAyd podas 0} aaey
10U Op ‘Jgs 9y} 40 Aunod ay} Aq |eadde uo psacidde
81aMm 1Y} JO ‘JOLISIP [00YIs B AQ pazioyine Sjooyds
Japeyo (g)(2)(1)20°8€zZ uonoas OF 0} juensing
Hw)(2))20°8ezzy uonoas D3] Juelb uopesusouod
4497 s.jooyds Japeys ayy Bupejnojes jo sssodind

10} pasn aq |m (s)uoneooy |eaisAyd jooyos Jepey)d

"B}ep uoneso| jeaisAyd Jiay} ul

S]oUISIP [00Y2s Yloq Hodal pinoys ‘ou)sIp jooyas ybiy e
pue Alejuswaje ue yjoq uiyum sjjej Aj|jioe/uonesol Jtoy}
UsyMm se Yans ‘sjouisip [0oyas s|dijnw jo sauepunoq ayl
ulylim sjie} jey} uoneaol e Yim jooyds JspPeyd v PouIsIp
|ooyas Buizuoyine s,|00yos JOHEYD Y} ‘WO JOYIP

10 'O} UORIPPE Ui 8Je Jey} SIouIsIp jooyss apnjoul Aew
siy] -Aljioe} |jooyas e sey Jo pajedo) AjjesisAyd sijooyos
Jaueyo sy} asaym (S)1oL1sIp jOOYIS [je 10} SpJodal Jajug

uoljeson [eoisAyd [ooyos Jaueyd






FAMILY PARTNERSHIP HOME STUDY CHARTER SCHOOL
CHARTER SCHOOL NUMBER 0763
COUNTY OF SANTA BARBARA
SANTA MARIA, CALIFORNIA

Audit Report
June 30, 2021 and 2020



FAMILY PARTNERSHIP HOME STUDY CHARTER SCHOOL

Table of Contents

June 30, 2021 and 2020

FINANCIAL SECTION

independent Auditors' Report

Audited Financial Statements:
Statement of Financial Position - June 30, 2021
Statement of Financial Position - June 30, 2020
Statement of Activities-For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021
Statement of Activities-For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020
Statements of Functional Expenses for Program and Support Services
Statement of Cash Flows-For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021
Statement of Cash Flows-For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020
Notes to the Financial Statements

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION SECTION

Organization

Schedule of Average Daily Attendance

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditors' Report on State Compliance

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS SECTION
Schedule of Audit Findings and Questioned Costs

Schedule of Prior Fiscal Year Audit Findings and Questioned Costs

10

16

17

18

20

22

25



FINANCIAL SECTION



Moss, Levy & Hartzheim LLP

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Governing Council of
Family Partnership Home Study Charter School

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Family Partnership Home Study Charter School (a
nonprofit organization) which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and
the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the fiscal years then ended, and
the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America: this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Complroller General of the United States, and the 2020-2021 Guide for Annual Audits of California K-12 Local
Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, prescribed by Title 5 California Code of Regulations,
Section 19810. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’'s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Family Partnership Home Study Charter School as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the changes in
its net assets and its cash flows for the fiscal years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

1
2400 Professional Parkway, Suite 205 Santa Maria, CA 93455 Tel 805.925.2579 Fax 805.925.2147 mihcpas.com

BEVERLY HILLS + CULVER CITY - SANTA MARIA



Emphasis of Matter

As more fully described in Note 10 to the financial statements, the District may be materially impacted by the
outbreak of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19), which was declared a global pandemic by the World Health
Organization in March 2020.

Other Matters

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
accompanying supplementary information listed in the table of contents on pages 16-21 is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated January 25, 2022, on
our consideration of Family Partnership Home Study Charter School's internal control over financial reporting
and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the resuilts of our
audit.

e, Kony & Fhctgheiin, £4P

Santa Maria, California
January 25, 2022



FAMILY PARTNERSHIP HOME STUDY CHARTER SCHOOL

Statement of Financial Position
June 30, 2021

Assets
Current assets
Cash
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and deposits

Total current assets

Fixed assets
Fixed assets, at cost
Less: Accumulated depreciation

Net fixed assets
Total assets

Liabilities and net assets
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued oversight fee

Total current liabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets
Without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions

Total net assets
Total liabilities and net assets

Without Donor  With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total
$ 1,517,447 $ 52,741 $ 1,570,188
312,959 312,959
9,654 9,654
1,840,060 52,741 1,892,801
12,796 12,796
(12,796) (12,796)
$ 1,840,060 $ 52,741 $ 1,892,801
$ 14,863 $ - $ 14,863
103,633 103,633
118,496 118,496
118,496 118,496
1,721,564 1,721,564
52 741 52,741
1,721,564 52,741 1,774,305
$ 1,840,060 $ 52741 $ 1,892,801

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

3



FAMILY PARTNERSHIP HOME STUDY CHARTER SCHOOL

Statement of Financial Position
June 30, 2020

Assets
Current assets
Cash
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and deposits

Total current assets

Fixed assets
Fixed assets, at cost
Less: Accumulated depreciation

Net fixed assets
Total assets

Liabilities and net assets

Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued oversight fee

Total current liabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets
Without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions

Total net assets
Total liabilities and net assets

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total
$ 775,250 $ 52,741 $ 827,991
610,043 610,043
9,654 9,654
1,394,947 52,741 1,447 688
12,796 12,796
(12,796) (12,796)
$ 1,394,947 $ 52,741 $ 1,447,688
$ 43,928 3 - 3 43,928
87,709 87,709
131,637 131,637
131,637 131,637
1,263,310 1,263,310
52,741 52,741
1,263,310 52,741 1,316,051
$ 1,394,947 $ 52,741 $ 1,447,688

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

4



FAMILY PARTNERSHIP HOME STUDY CHARTER SCHOOL
Statement of Activities

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Revenues:

LCFF sources
Property taxes
Federal sources
State sources
Local sources
Interest

Expenses:

Total revenues

Program services:
Charter school

Support services:

Management and genefal

Total expenses
Increase in net assets

Net assets at beginning of fiscal year

Net assets at end of fiscal year

Without Donor ~ With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total
$ 3,020,595 $ - $ 3,020,595
585,099 585,099
46,763 46,763
432,579 432,579
403,942 403,942
6,690 6,690
4,495,668 4,495,668
3,631,595 3,631,595
405,819 405,819
4,037,414 4,037,414
458,254 458,254
1,263,310 52,741 1,316,051
$ 1,721,564 $ 52,741 $ 1,774,305

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

5



FAMILY PARTNERSHIP HOME STUDY CHARTER SCHOOL
Statement of Activities
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Without Donor  With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total
Revenues:
LCFF sources $ 2,908,601 3 - $ 2,908,601
Property taxes 420,133 420,133
Federal sources 60,527 60,527
State sources 533,823 533,823
Local sources 599,476 599,476
Interest 10,203 10,203
Total revenues 4,532,763 4,632,763
Expenses:
Program services:
Charter school 3,484,878 3,484,878
Support services:
Management and general 398,368 398,368
Total expenses 3,883,246 3,883,246
Increase in net assets 649,517 649,517
Net assets at beginning of fiscal year 613,793 52,741 666,534
Net assets at end of fiscal year $ 1,263,310 $ 52,741 $ 1,316,051

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
6



FAMILY PARTNERSHIP HOME STUDY CHARTER SCHOOL
Statements of Functional Expenses for Program and Support Services

Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2021 & June 30, 2020

Salaries and wages
Payroll taxes
Employee benefits
Workers' compensation
Total personnel costs

Books and reference materials
Materials and supplies
Equipment

Travel and conferences

Dues and memberships
Insurance

Operations and housekeeping
Rents

Oversight fee

Professional services
Telephone

Postage

Total expenses

Percent of total expenses

2021 2020
Program Support Program Support
Services Services Services Services
Charter Management Total Charter Management Total
School and General Expenses School and General Expenses
$ 1,987,803 $ 245683 $ 2,233,486 $ 1,924,857 $ 237,904 $ 2,162,761
49,786 6,153 55,939 49,303 6,094 55,397
528,336 65,300 593,636 523,297 64,677 587,974
14,147 1,749 15,896 28,405 3,511 31,916
2,580,072 318,885 2,898,957 2,525,862 312,186 2,838,048
101,592 101,592 72,269 72,269
33,030 4,280 37,310 55,485 7,189 62,674
21,170 21,170 10,411 10,411
26,911 2,990 29,901 33,394 3,710 37,104
14,332 14,332 18,051 18,051
57,054 6,339 63,393 20,629 2,292 22,921
54,782 6,087 60,869 76,672 8,519 85,191
365,907 19,258 385,165 325,942 17,155 343,097
103,633 103,633 108,287 108,287
247,984 27,554 275,538 224,066 24,896 248,962
39,460 4,384 43,844 31,861 3,540 35,401
1,710 1,710 830 830
$ 3631595 $ 405819 $ 4,037414 $ 3484878 $ 398,368 §$ 3,883,246
89.95% 10.05% 100.00% 89.74% 10.26% 100.00%

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

7



FAMILY PARTNERSHIP HOME STUDY CHARTER SCHOOL
Statement of Cash Flows
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Cash flows from operating activities
Net increase in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile (increase) in net
assets to net cash provided by operating activities:
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
{Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable
Accrued oversight fee

Net cash provided by operating activities

Net increase in cash and equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of fiscal year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of fiscal year

Supplementary cash flow disclosure:
Cash paid for interest

Without Donor  With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

$ 458,254 $ - $ 458,254
297,084 297,084
(29,065) (29,065)
15,924 15,924
742,197 742,197
742,197 742,197
775,250 52,741 827,991

$ 1,517,447 $ 52,741 $ 1,570,188

$ - $ - $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,

8



FAMILY PARTNERSHIP HOME STUDY CHARTER SCHOOL
Statement of Cash Flows
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Without Donor  With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total

Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in net assets $ 649,517 $ - $ 649517
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net
assets to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in:

Accounts receivable (491,249) (491,249)
Increase (decrease) in:

Accounts payable 28,784 28,784

Accrued oversight fee (13,704) (13,704)

Net cash provided by operating activities 173,348 173,348

Net increase in cash and equivalents 173,348 173,348

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of fiscal year 601,902 52,741 654,643

Cash and cash equivalents at end of fiscal year $ 775,250 $ 52,741 $ 827,991

Supplementary cash flow disclosure:
Cash paid for interest $ - $ - 3 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
9



FAMILY PARTNERSHIP HOME STUDY CHARTER SCHOOL
Notes to the Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies followed in the preparation of these financial
statements. The policies conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
applicable to voluntary health and welfare organizations and have been consistently applied.

Nature of operations

Family Partnership Home Study Charter School (FPCS), is a direct-funded independent study charter schoal,
sponsored by the Blochman Union School District, and formed as a California nonprofit corporation. FPCS serves
students in grades K-12 that reside in Santa Barbara and San Luis Obispo counties in the central coast area of
California, using a personalized approach to learning. FPCS derives its revenue primarily through state, federal,
and local government agencies.

Description of programs

Charter school program - Offers non-classroom based instruction through learning centers that focus on
personalized blended learning and independent study, Montessori methods. All programs involve
building a partnership between the school, student, parent, and advisor to support student learning.

Management and General - Includes the functions necessary to maintain the Organization's support program;
ensure an adequate working environment; provide coordination and articulation of the Organization's program
strategy through the office of the executive director; secure proper administrative functioning of the board of
directors; maintain competent legal services for the program administration of the Organization; and manage the
financial and budgetary responsibilities of the Organization.

Basis of accounting
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and, accordingly,
reflect all significant receivables, payables, and other accruals.

Basis of presentation
Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed
restrictions as follows:

Net assets without donor restrictions are net assets not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

Net assets with donor restrictions are resources that are restricted by a donor for use for a particular purpose or in a future
period. Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, and the restriction will expire when the resources are
used in accordance with the donor's instructions or when the stipulated time has passed. Other donor-imposed
restrictions are perpetual in nature; the organization must continue to use the resources in accordance with the donor's
instructions.

When a donor's restriction is satisfied, either by using the resources in the manner specified by the donor or by the
passage of time, the expiration of the restriction is reported in the financial statements by reclassifying net assets

from net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions. Net assets restricted for acquisition of
buildings or equipment (or less commonly, the contribution of those assets directly) are reported as net assets with donor
restrictions until the specified asset is placed in service by the organization, unless the donor provides more specific
directions about the period of its use.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America includes the use of estimates that affect the financial statements. Accordingly, actual resuits
couid differ from those estimates.

Functional allocation of expenses

The costs of providing the various programs have been summarized on a functional basis in the statement of
activities and the statement of functional expenses. Accordingly, certain management and general expenses
have been allocated among the program and supporting services benefited.

10



FAMILY PARTNERSHIP HOME STUDY CHARTER SCHOOL
Notes to the Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Tax status

FPCS has been determined to be exempt from federal income tax under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code. FPCS qualifies for the charitable contribution deduction under Section 170(b)(1)(A) and has been classified
as an organization other than a private foundation under Section 509(a)(2). With few exceptions, FPCS is no
longer subject to U.S. federal and state income tax examinations by tax authorities for fiscal years before June

30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Cash

All short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less are considered to be cash equivalents.
FPCS maintains most of its cash in the Santa Barbara County Treasury. The County pools these funds with those
of other schools in the County and invests the cash. These pooled funds are carried at fair value. Interest earned is
deposited quarterly into participating funds. Any investment gains or losses are proportionately shared by ail funds
in the pool. The County is authorized to deposit cash and invest excess funds by California Government Code
Section 53648 et. seq.

Accounts receivable and allowance for doubtful accounts

Receivables are accounted for on the accrual basis and become past due after 30 days. No allowance for
uncollectable accounts has been provided, as FPCS typically collects all outstanding amounts. Trade receivables
are written off if all efforts at collection have failed and management determines that collection is unlikely.

Prepaid expenses and deposits

Prepaid expenses consists primarily of consulting fees, insurance, and rent paid in the current fiscal year for the
following fiscal year. Prepaid expenses are removed from the statements of financial position and charged to
expense in the fiscal year in which they are incurred. Deposits consist of cash held by landiords for learning
centers and office space that are refundable upon lease termination.

Fixed assets

Purchases of fixed assets costing $5,000 or more are capitalized. Donated fixed assets valued at $5,000 or more
are capitalized and recorded at fair value at the time of receipt. Expenditures for major renewals and betterments
that extend the useful lives of property and equipment are capitalized. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs
are charged to expense as incurred. The cost and accumulated depreciation of property sold or retired is removed
from the related asset and accumulated depreciation accounts and any resulting gain or loss is recorded in the
fiscal year of disposal. Depreciation is calculated utilizing the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives
of the assets, which range from five to ten years for furniture, fixtures, software, and equipment.

Donations of property and equipment
Donations of property and equipment (long-lived assets) that do not have donor-imposed stipulations about how
long the property must be used are recorded as contributions without donor restrictions in the fiscal year received.

Accrued oversight fee
An oversight fee calculated at three percent of FPCS' revenue is payable to Blochman Union School District each
fiscal year for supervisory activities. Any unpaid oversight fee is accrued at fiscal year end.

Deferred revenue

Cash received for federal and state special projects and programs are recognized as revenue to the extent that
qualified expenses have been incurred. Deferred revenue is recorded to the extent cash received on specific
projects and programs exceed qualified expenses.

Revenue recognition

Grants and contributions are recognized as revenue when received, or receivables if the amount to be received can
be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured, under the accrual method of accounting. All other
revenues are recorded when earned.

11



FAMILY PARTNERSHIP HOME STUDY CHARTER SCHOOL
Notes to the Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Contributed services

FPCS records the fair value of contributed services in the financial statements if the services either (a) create

or enhance a nonfinancial asset or (b) require specialized skills; are provided by persons possessing those skills;
and would need to be purchased if they were not donated as required by ASC 958. Certain volunteers have
donated significant amounts of time to FPCS' activities, that is not reflected in the accompanying financial state-
ments because these services did not meet the above criteria.

Restricted and unrestricted revenue
Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions
if the restrictions expire (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished)
in the reporting period in which the revenue is recognized. All other donor-restricted contributions are reported
as increases in net assets with donor restrictions. When a restriction expires, donor restricted net assets are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of activities as net assets
released from restrictions.
Advertising costs
Advertising costs intended to solicit revenue in an exchange transaction are recorded as management and general
expenses in the period incurred.
Reclassifications
Certain amounts in the prior fiscal year financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the presentation
in the current fiscal year financial statements.
Fair value measurements
FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, establishes a framework for measuring fair value. That
framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure value.
The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
(Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of
the fair value hierarchy under FASB ASC 820 are described as follows:

Level 1. Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets and liabilities in

active markets that FPCS has the ability to access.

Level 2. Inputs to the valuation methodology include:
Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets.
Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets,
Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability.

Inputs that are derived principally or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other
means. If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be
observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3. Inputs to valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement.

The fair value measurement leve! within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input
that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.
Future accounting pronouncements
In February 2016, FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases. The guidance in this ASU supersedes the leasing
guidance in Topic 840, Leases. Lessees are required to recognize lease assets and lease liabilities on the balance
sheet for all leases with terms longer than twelve months. Leases will be classified as either financing or operating,
with classifications affecting the pattern of expense recognition in the statement of operations and member's equity.
This ASU will be effective for the School for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023. The School is currently evaluating
the effect that the provision of ASU 2016-02 will have on the financial statements.

12



FAMILY PARTNERSHIP HOME STUDY CHARTER SCHOOL
Notes to the Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Note 2 - Liquidity and Availability

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restriction limiting their use,
within one year of June 30, 2021 are:

Financial Assets:

Cash on hand and in banks $ 1,570,188
Accounts receivable 312,959
Less amounts with donor restrictions 52,741
Amounts available for expenditure within one year $ 1,830,406

The table above reflects the assets that FPCS will have available over the next twelve months that will be
available for expenditure.

Note 3 - Cash

Cash is held in the Santa Barbara County Treasury and local bank accounts. Cash consisted of the following at
June 30, 2021 and 2020:

2021 2020
Santa Barbara County Treasury $ 1,217,976 $ 803,980
Wells Fargo Bank 352,212 24,011
Total operating cash $ 1570188 % 827,991

FPCS had investments in the Santa Barbara County Investment Pool and these investments are
measured under level 2.

Cash maintained in the Santa Barbara County Treasury is part of the common investment pool. FPCS is
considered to be an involuntary participant in the external pool. Interest is deposited quarterly to the funds of
participating entities. The County is restricted by Government Code Section 53635, pursuant to Section 53601,

to invest in time deposits, U.S. government securities, state registered warrants, notes or bonds, State Treasurer's
investment pool, bankers' acceptances, commercial paper, negotiable certificates of deposit, and repurchase

of reverse repurchase agreements.

Note 4 - Concentrations

Concentrations of receivables and revenues at June 30, 2021 and 2020, and for the fiscal years then ended,
consisted of the following:

2021 2020

Concentrations of receivables: Amount % of Total Amount % of Total
State receivables $ 239,270 7645% $ 548,027 89.83%
Federal receivables 61,790 19.74% 60,527 9.92%
All other receivables 11,899 3.81% 1,489 0.25%
Total accounts receivable $ 312,959 100.00% $ 610,043 100.00%

Concentrations of revenues: Amount % of Total Amount % of Total
State revenues $ 3,453,174 76.81% $ 3,442,424 75.95%
Property taxes 585,099 13.01% 420,133 9.27%
Federal revenues 46,763 1.04% 60,527 1.34%
All other revenues 410,632 9.14% 609,679 13.44%
Total revenues $ 4,495,668 100.00% $ 4,532,763 100.00%

Fifty-one percent of FPCS' employees are members of a bargaining unit, whose agreement with FPCS expires
on June 30, 2021.

13



FAMILY PARTNERSHIP HOME STUDY CHARTER SCHOOL
Notes to the Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Note 5 - Fixed Assets

Fixed assets activity for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, is as follows:

2020 2020 2021
Beginning Ending Ending
Balance Additions Balance Additions Balance
Software $ 12,796 $ - $ 12,796 $ - $ 12,796
Less: Accumulated depreciation (12,796) (12,796) (12,796)
Net fixed assets $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

Note 6 - Operating Leases

FPCS leases space for learning centers and the administrative office, and copier equipment under operating
lease agreements that mature during the next four fiscal years. The leases require monthly rental payments of
$30,188. Building space leases may be extended at lease end. Rent expense for the leases totaled $385,165
and $343,097 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Note 7 - Retirement Plans
State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS)

Plan description

FPCS contributes to STRS, a cost-sharing muitiple-employer public employee retirement system defined

pension plan administered by STRS. The Plan provides retirement, disability, and survivor benefits

to beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by State statutes, as legislatively amended, within the State
Teachers' Retirement Law. STRS issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information. Copies of STRS' annual financial report may be obtained
from STRS, 7667 Folsom Boulevard, Sacramento, California 95826.

Funding policy

Active plan members are required to contribute 8% of their salary, and FPCS is required to contribute an
actuarially determined rate. The actuarial methods and assumptions used for determining the rate are those
adopted by STRS Teachers' Retirement Board. The required employer contribution rate for the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2021 was 16.15% and 2020 was 17.10% of annual payroll. The contribution requirements of plan
members are established by State statutes. FPCS' contribution to STRS for the fiscal years ended June 30,
2021, 2020, and 20189, totaled $284,625, $290,778, and $274,389, respectively, and equals 100% of the

required contribution for those fiscal years. FPCS' contributions does not represent more than five percent of
total contributions to the plan. As of June 30, 2021, the plan was 71.82% funded.

California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS)

Plan description

FPCS contributes to the School Employer Pool under CalPERS, a cost-sharing multiple-employer public
employee retirement system defined benefit pension ptan administered by CalPERS. The Plan provides
retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members

and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by State statutes, as legislatively amended, within the
Public Employees' Retirement Law. CalPERS issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report

that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. Copies of CalPERS' annual financial
report may be obtained from the CalPERS Executive Office , 400 P Street, Sacramento, California 95815,

14



FAMILY PARTNERSHIP HOME STUDY CHARTER SCHOOL
Notes to the Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Note 7 - Retirement Plans (continued)

Funding policy

Active plan members are required to contribute 7% of their salary and FPCS is required to contribute an actuarially
determined rate. The actuarial methods and assumptions used for determining the rate are those adopted by

CalPERS Board of Administration. The required employer contribution rate for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021,

was 22.91% and for the fiscal year ended 2020 was 20.7% of annual payroll. The contribution requirements of plan
members are established by State statutes. FPCS' contribution to CalPERS for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021,
2020, 20189, totaled $59,584, $53,995, and $50,956, respectively, and equals 100% of the required contribution for those
fiscal years. FPCS' contributions do not represent more than five percent of total contributions to the plan. As of

June 30, 2021, the plan was 82% funded.

Note 8 - Contingencies

State and federal awards, contracts, and grants

FPCS received state and federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to compliance requirements by the
funding agencies, noncompliance with which could result in reimbursements of all, or portions of, these funds to
the funding government agencies.

Litigation
According to FPCS' staff and attorney, no contingent liabilities are outstanding, and no fawsuits are pending of any
significant financial consequence.

Note 9 - Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions consist of an amount received from the State of California for the California Clean
Energy Jobs Act (Prop 39).

Note 10 - Subsequent Events

On January 30, 2020, the World Health Organization ("WHO") announced a global health emergency because of a
new strain of coronavirus originating in Wuhan, China (the "COVID-19 outbreak") and the risks to the international
community as the virus spreads globally beyond its point of origin. In March 2020, the WHO classified the COVID-18
outbreak as a pandemic, based on the rapid increase in exposure globally.

The full impact of the COVID-19 outbreak continues to evolve as of the date of this report. As such, it is uncertain
as to the full magnitude that the pandemic will have on the School's financial condition, liquidity, and future results
of operations. Management is actively monitoring the global situation on its financial condition, liquidity, operations,
suppliers, and workforce. Given the daily evolution of the COVID-19 outbreak and the global responses to curb its
spread, the School is not able to estimate the effects of the COVID-19 outbreak on its results of operations, financial
condition, or liquidity as of the date of issuance of these financial statements.

16



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION SECTION



FAMILY PARTNERSHIP HOME STUDY CHARTER SCHOOL
Organization
June 30, 2021

Charter School Name: Family Partnership Home Study Charter School
Charter Number Authorized by the State: 0763

" Date of Granted Charter: May 15, 2006

Granting Authority: Blochman Union School District

Governing Council

Name Title Term Expires

Theresa Cappelletty President 2021

Jillian Harmon Trustee 2021

Laura Gonzalez Vice President/Secretary 2021

Eric Riddiough Trustee 2021
Administration

Name Title

Steve Torres Executive Director

Andrea Drake ’ Director of Business Operations

Kathy Grbac Director of Student Records and Operations

16



FAMILY PARTNERSHIP HOME STUDY CHARTER SCHOOL
Schedule of Average Daily Attendance
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Second Period Annual
Report Report
Elementary
Kindergarten through third N/A N/A
Fourth through sixth N/A N/A
Seventh and eighth N/A N/A
Elementary totals - -
Secondary:
Regular class N/A N/A
Secondary totals - -
ADA totals - -

Average daily attendance is a measurement of the number of pupils attending classes of FPCS. The purpose
of attendance accounting from a fiscal standpoint, is to provide the basis on which apportionments of State
funds are made to schools. This schedule provides information regarding the attendance of students at various
grade levels and in different programs. All attendance reported above is non-classroom based.

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, this schedule is not required for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.

17



Moss, Levy & Hartzheim LLP

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of
Family Partnership Home Study Charter School

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Family Partnership Home
Study Charter School (a nonprofit organization), and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the organization's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
January 25, 2022.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the organization's internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the organization’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the organization’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or,
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the organization’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The resuits
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

18
2400 Professional Parkway, Suite 205 Santa Maria, CA 93455 Tel 805.925.2579 Fax 805.925.2147 mlhcpas.com

BEVERLY HILLS + CULVER CITY - SANTA MARIA



Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely-to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Pfoza, Kamy & Locsghecin, £

Santa Maria, California
January 25, 2022

19



Moss, Levy & Hartzheim LLP

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCE

Governing Council
Family Partnership Home Study Charter School
Santa Maria, California

Report on State Compliance

We have audited the Family Partnership Home Study Charter School's compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the 2020-2021 Guide for Annual Audits of California K-12 Local Educational Agencies and State
Compliance Reporting, prescribed by Title 5 California Code of Regulations, Section 19810, that could have a direct and
material effect on each of the Organization’s state programs identified below for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.

Management’s Responsibility for State Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to
its state programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Family Partnership Home Study Charter School's
state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and the 2020-2021 Guide for Annual Audits of California K-12 Local Educational Agencies and State Compliance
Reporting, prescribed by Title 5 California Code of Regulations, Section 19810. Those standards and audit guide require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the state programs noted below occurred.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Family Partnership Home Study Charter School's compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of
Family Partnership Home Study Charter School's compliance with those requirements.

in connection with the audit referred to above, we selected and tested transactions and records to determine Family
Partnership Home Study Charter School's compliance with the state laws and regulations applicable to the following items:

Procedures in Audit Guide

Description Performed

Local Education Agencies other than Charter School:
Attendance reporting and distance learning Not applicable
Teacher certification and mis-assignments Not applicable
Kindergarten continuance Not applicable
Instructional time Not applicable
Instructional materials Not applicable
Ratios of administrative employees to teachers Not applicable
Classroom teacher salaries Not applicable
Early retirement incentive Not applicable
GANN limit calculation Not applicable
School accountability report card Not applicable
K-3 grade span adjustment Not applicable

20

2400 Professional Parkway, Suite 205 Santa Maria, CA 93455 Tel 805.925.2579 Fax 805.925.2147 mlhcpas.com

BEVERLY HILLS - CULVER CITY - SANTA MARIA



Procedures in Audit Guide

Description Performed
Apprenticeship: Related and Supplemental Instruction Not applicable
Comprehensive School Safety Plan Not applicable
District of Choice Not applicable

School Districts, County Offices of -
Education, and Charter Schools:

California clean energy jobs act Not applicable
Proper expenditure of education protection account funds Yes
Unduplicated local control funding pupil counts Yes
Charter Schools:

Independent Study-Course based Yes
Attendance Yes
Mode of instruction Not applicable
Non-classroom-based instruction/independent study Yes
Determination of funding for non-classroom-based

study . Yes
Facility grant program Not applicable

Opinion on State Compliance

In our opinion, the Family Partnership Home Study Charter School complied, in all material respects, with the compliance
requirements referred to above that are applicable to the statutory requirements listed in the schedule above for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2021,

Other Matters

The resuits of the auditing procedures disclosed an instance of noncompliance with the stautatory requirements for a
program noted above, which is required to be reported with the State’s audit guide, 2020-21 Guide for Annual Audits of
California K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, published by the Education Audit Appeals
Panel and which is described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as item 2021-001.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion of all the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance outside of the items tested
as noted above. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with the 2020-2021 Guide for Annual
Audits of California K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, prescribed by Title 5 California Code
of Regulations, Section 19810, in considering the entity's compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for
any other purpose.

Family Partnership Charter School's Response to Findings

Family Partnership Charter School's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. Family Partnership Charter School's response was not subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Vs, Ky & Jotghecin, £
Santa Maria, California
January 25, 2022

The term "not applicable” is used above to mean either the Schoo! did not offer the program during the current fiscal year
or the program applies to a different type of local education agency.

21



FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS SECTION



FAMILY PARTNERSHIP HOME STUDY CHARTER SCHOOL

Schedule of Audit Findings and Questioned Costs
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Section | - Summary of Auditors' Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditors' report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weaknesses identified?
Significant deficiencies identified not considered
to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

State Awards

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with Standards and Procedures
for Audits of California K-12 Local Education Agencies?

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for
state programs:

22

Unmodified
Yes
Yes
Yes
v Yes
Unmodified

No
None reported

No

No



FAMILY PARTNERSHIP HOME STUDY CHARTER SCHOOL
Scheduie of Audit Findings and Questioned Costs
June 30, 2021

Section ll - Financial Statements Findings

There were no financial statement findings or questioned costs.

23



FAMILY PARTNERSHIP HOME STUDY CHARTER SCHOOL
Schedule of Audit Findings and Questioned Costs

June 30, 2021

Section lll - State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Criteria:

FINDING 2021-1

Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts

40000

In accordance with Education Code Section 42238.02, Charter Schools should provide accurate California
Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System (CALPADS) to report aggregate English learner, foster youth, and
free or reduce-price meal eligibility pupil data according to regulations prescribed by the State Board of

Education.

Condition:

In testing pupils on the above report, it was noted that four students did not qualify for FRPM.

Cause:

Organization oversight.

Effect:
The Charter School over reported the School’s unduplicated pupil county by four.
Unduplicated Count Adjustment - Adjusted
Charter o Adjusted
School's | Certified Total Based on Eligibility for: Tjotal Charter
School Enroliment Unduplicated Unduplicated School's
Count Pupil Count EL FRPM and Pupil Count Enrollment
FRPM _ Funding EL P Count
Family
Partnership
Charter 481 164 -4 0 0 160 477
Total 481 164 -4 0 0 160 477

Questioned Costs: $2,219

Recommendation:
The Charter School should review the free or reduced priced meal eligibility applications to ensure that

supporting documentation matches the information submitted on the CALPADS report.

School’s Corrective Action Plan:
FPCS has established a protocol for clerical staff to compare information received from parents/guardians with
CALPADS before updating our school's student information system that links reports to CALPADS.

24




FAMILY PARTNERSHIP HOME STUDY CHARTER SCHOOL
Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings and Questioned Costs
June 30, 2021

Section Il - Financial Statements Findings

There were no prior year financial statement findings or questioned costs.

25



FAMILY PARTNERSHIP HOME STUDY CHARTER SCHOOL
Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings and Questioned Costs
June 30, 2021

Section il - State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

There were no prior year financial statement findings or questioned costs.

26






4269112 Blochman
Union Elem District

4949 Foxen Canyon Rd., Santa Maria, CA 93454-9666
Generated on 02/01/2022 11:29:02 AM  Page 1 of 1

Attendance/Membership Summary Report
Start/End Date: 01/01/2022 - 01/31/2022 School(s): 1 Calendar(s): 2

Grade:5,6,7,8,K,1,2,3,4, TK

SUMMARY  Total Schools: 1 Total Calendars: 2

StudentMembership Absent Present Unexcused Absences Percent In
Grade Count Days Days Days ADM ADA Days Avg. Daily Attendance

5 20 300 18 282 20.00 18.80 9 0.61 94.00%

6 17 255 19 236 17.00 15.72 9 0.61 92.55%

7 22 330 23 307 22.00 20.47 18 1.19 93.03%

8 18 268 53 215 17.87 14,32 39 2.60 80.22%

K 16 240 48 192 16.00 12.80 44 2.94 80.00%

1 15 225 34 191 15.00 12.74 24 1.59 84.89%

2 20 300 29 271 20.00 18.05 18 1.21 90.33%

3 23 345 29 316 23.00 21.05 23 1.54 91.59%

4 23 345 59 286 23.00 19.07 53 3.53 82.90%

TK 2 30 0 30 2.00 2.00 0 0.00 100.00%

Total 10 176 2638 312 2326 175.87 155.02 237 15.82 88.17%

School: Benjamin Foxen School

Calendar: 21-22 Blochman 5-8

StudentMembership Absent Present Unexcused Absences PercentIn
Grade Count Days Days Days ADM ADA Days Avg. Daily Attendance
5 20 300 18 282 20.00 18.80 9 0.61 94.00%
6 17 255 19 236 17.00 15.72 9 0.61 92.55%
7 22 330 23 307 22.00 20.47 18 1.19 93.03%
8 18 268 53 215 17.87 14.32 39 2.60 80.22%
Total 4 77 1153 113 1040 76.87 69.31 75 5.01 90.20%

School: Benjamin Foxen School

Calendar; 21-22 Blochman K-4

StudentMembership Absent Present Unexcused Absences PercentIn
Grade Count Days Days Days ADM ADA Days Avg. Daily Attendance
K 16 240 48 192 16.00 12.80 44 2.94 80.00%
1 15 225 34 191 15.00 12.74 24 1.59 84.89%
2 20 300 29 271 20.00 18.05 18 1.21 90.33%
3 23 345 29 316 23.00 21.05 23 1.54 91.59%
4 23 345 59 286 23.00 19.07 53 3.53 82.90%
TK 2 30 0 30 2.00 2.00 0 0.00 100.00%
Total 6 99 1485 199 1286 99.00 85.71 162 10.81 86.60%












Benjamin Foxen Elementary
2020—2021 School Accountability Report Card
Reported Using Data from the 2020—2021 School Year

California Department of Education

Address: 4949 Foxen Canyon Rd. Principal: Doug C Brown, Superintendent/Principal
Santa Maria, CA, 93454-9666

Phone: (805) 937-1148 Grade Span: K-8

By February 1 of each year, every school in California is required by state law to publish a School Accountability Report Card (SARC).The SARC contains information
about the condition and performance of each California public school. Under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) all local educational agencies (LEAs) are
required to prepare a Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP), which describes how they intend to meet annual school-specific goals for all pupils, with specific
activities to address state and local priorities. Additionally, data reported in an LCAP is to be consistent with data reported in the SARC,

* For more information about SARC requirements, see the California Department of Education (CDE) SARC web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/.
* For more information about the LCFF or LCAP, see the CDE LCFF web page at https;//www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/.

* For additional information about the school, parents/guardians and community members should contact the school principal or the district office.

DataQuest

DataQuest is an online data tool located on the CDE DataQuest web page at https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/ that contains additional information about this
school and comparisons of the school to the district and the county. Specifically, DataQuest is a dynamic system that provides reports for accountability (e.g., test
data, enrollment, high school graduates, dropouts, course enrollments, staffing, and data regarding English learners),

California School Dashboard

The California School Dashboard (Dashboard) https://www.caschooldashboard.org/ reflects California's new accountability and continuous improvement system and
provides information about how LEAs and schools are meeting the needs of California’s diverse student population. The Dashboard contains reports that display the

performance of LEAs, schools, and student groups on a set of state and local measures to assist in identifying strengths, challenges, and areas in need of
improvement.



About This School

Doug C Brown, Superintendent/Principal

Q Principal, Benjamin Foxen Elementary

About Our School

Welcome to Benjamin Foxen Elementary! This School Accountability Report Card (SARC) highlights our current achievements and outlines our plans for
improvement. We are committed to provide a quality education to meet the needs of our diverse population. All educational partners are encouraged to be
involved in the school's vision going forward. Benjamin Foxen Elementary prides itself in offering a rigorous academic program as well as a safe environment

in which children can thrive. We continue to update our facilities and look for ways to showcase our great school. Our highly qualified teachers do an outstanding
Job of bringing out the best in all students attending Benjamin Foxen. We extend our thanks to the families, the community, and our business partners for the
support of our programs and we invite their continued involvement.

Contact

Benjamin Foxen Elementary
4949 Foxen Canyon Rd.
Santa Maria, CA 93454-9666

Phone: (805) 937-1148
Email: dbrown@blochmanusd.org

Contact Information (School Year 2021—2022)

District Contact Information (School Year 2021-—2022)

District Name
Phone Number
Superintendent
Email Address
Website

Blochman Union Elementary
(805) 937-1148

Brown, Doug
dbrown@blachmanusd.org

http://blochmanusd.org

School Contact Information (School Year 2021—2022)

School Name
Street

City, State, Zip
Phone Number
Principal

Email Address
Website

County-District-School (CDS) Code

Benjamin Foxen Elementary

4949 Foxen Canyon Rd.

Santa Maria, CA, 93454-9666

(805) 937-1148

Doug C Brown, Superintendent/Principal
dbrown@blochmanusd.org
http://www.blochmanusd.org

42691126045264

Last updated: 1/12/22



School Description and Mission Statement (School Year 2021—2022)

The Blochman Union School District is a one school district that encompasses the unincorporated towns of Sisquoc, Garey and Tepusquet. The district's only
school, Benjamin Foxen Elementary, is a K-8 school with 208 students located in the Santa Maria Valley of Santa Barbara County. In addition, Blochman sponsors
four charter schools, Family Partnership Charter School (K-12), Trivium Charter School (K-12), Trivium Charter School: Adventure (K-12), and Trivium Charter
School: Voyage (K-12). All charter schools are independent study schools serving students in Santa Barbara and San Luis Obispo Counties.

After 8th grade promotion from Benjamin Foxen Elementary School, students attend the Santa Maria Joint Union High School District. Local industries include
farming, oil production, rock/sand/gravel production and vineyards/wine production. There are two universities and three community colleges located within a
65-mile radius of the District.

The mission of the Blochman Union School District is to ensure the educational success of all students by maintaining high expectations, a safe learning
environment, a commitment to excellence, and comprehensive programs which empower children to reach their fullest potential as responsible citizens in a
continuously changing world.

Last updated: 1/12/22

Student Enroliment by Grade Level (School Year 2020—2021)

Grade Level Number of Students » IR Number of Students
Grade 1 18 P
Grade 2 18 29
Grade 3 23 20
Grade 4 17 19
Grade 5 19 18
Grade 6 23 17 l .
Grade 7 20 16 - 1
(3(33 G(ade c.,rade Gxade Gtade’ gn)de Gtada
Grade 8 19
Kindergarten 16
Total Enrollment 173

Last updated: 1/12/22



Student Enrollment by Student Group (School Year 2020—2021)

Student Group

Percent of Total Enrollment

Student Group (Other)

Percent of Total Enroliment

Female

Male

Non-Binary

American Indian or Alaska Native
Asian

Black or African American

Filipino

Hispanic or Latino

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander
Two or More Races

White

44.50%

55.50%

0.00%

1.20%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

54.30%

0.00%

3.50%

41.00%

English Learners

Foster Youth

Homeless

Migrant

Socioeconomically Disavantaged

Students with Disabilities

6.90%

0.00%

1.70%

0.60%

55.50%

12.70%



A. Conditions of Learning

State Priority: Basic
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Basic (Priority 1):

* Degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the subject area and for the pupils they are teaching;
* Pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials; and
® School facilities are maintained in good repair



Teacher Preparation and Placement (School Year 2020—2021)

School School District District State State
Authorization/Assignment Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent

Fully (Preliminary or Clear) Credentialed for Subject and Student
Placement (properly assigned)

Intern Credential Holders Properly Assigned

Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (“ineffective” under
ESSA)

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (“out-of-field” under ESSA)
Unknown

Total Teaching Positions

Note: The data in this table is based on Full Time Equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff
members who each work 50 percent of full time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as a position that an educator is assigned to based on setting, subject, and
grade level. An authorization is defined as the services that an educator is authorized to provide to students.

Last updated:



Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (School Year 2020—2021)

Authorization/Assignment Number

Permits and Waivers

Misassignments

Vacant Positions

Total Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments

Last updated:



Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field
(considered "out-of-field" under ESSA) (School Year 2020—2021)

Indicator

Number

Credentialed Teachers Authorized on a Permit or Waiver
Local Assignment Options

Total Out-of-Field Teachers

Last updated:



Class Assignments (School Year 2020—2021)

Indicator Percent

Misassignments for English Learners (a percentage of all the classes with English learners taught by teachers that are misassigned)

No credential, permit or authorization to teach (a percentage of all the classes taught by teachers with no record of an authorization to teach)

Last updated:
Note: For more information refer to the Updated Teacher Equity Definitions web page at https.//www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/teacherequitydefinitions.asp.



Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials (School Year 2021—2022)

Year and month in which the data were collected: September 2021

From Most Percent Students

Recent Lacking Own Assigned
Subject Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials/year of Adoption Adoption? Copy

Reading/Language Grades K - 5: Journeys (Houghton Mifflin) Yes 0%

Arts Grade 6: Collections (Houghton Mifflin)

Grade 7: Collections (Houghton Miffiin)
Grade 8: Collections (Houghton Mifflin)

Mathematics Grades K - 5: My Math (McGraw/Hill) Yes 0%

Grade 6: Big Ideas Math, Course One (Big |deas Learning)
Grade 7: Big Ideas Math, Course Two (Big Ideas Learning)
Grade 8: Big Ideas Math, Course Three (Big |deas Learning)

Science Grades K - 6: National Geographic Exploring Science {Cengage) Yes 0%

Grades 7 - 8: Inspire Science California {McGraw-Hill)

History-Social Grade K: CA Impact-Learning & Working Now & Long Ago (McGraw-Hill) Yes 0%
Science Grade 1: CA Impact-A Child's Place in Time & Space (McGraw-Hill)

Grade 2: CA Impact-People Who Make a Difference (McGraw-Hill)

Grade 3: CA Impact-Continuity & Change (McGraw-Hill)

Grade 4: CA Impact-California: A Changing State (McGraw-Hill)

Grade 5. CA Impact-US History : Making a New Nation (McGraw-Hill)

Grade 6: CA Impact-World History & Geography, Ancient Civilizations (McGraw-Hill)

Grade 7: IMPACT CA - World History & Geography, Medieval & Early Modern Times (McGraw-
Hilly

Grade 8: IMPACT CA: United States History & Geography, Growth & Conflict (McGraw-Hill)
Foreign Language  Spanish instruction is provided on a class-by-class basis. 0%

Health Grade 8: Teen Health (McGraw-Hill) 0%

Teachers in other grades incorporate state-approved health related supplemental instructional
materials into the classroom curriculum.

Visual and The district contracts with Coehlo Music to provide music instruction to students. However, 0%
Performing Arts with the current pandemic restrictions, we are currently unable to provide this service.

Science Lab Egpmt  N/A N/A 0%
(Grades 9-12)

Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data.

Last updated: 1/20/22



School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements

Benjamin Foxen Elementary School provides a safe, clean environment for students, staff, and volunteers. The most recently collected Facilities Inspection Tool
(FIT) data show the school is in exemplary condition as defined by Education Code sections 17104, 17032.5, 17070.75(a), and 17089(b).

Last updated: 1/14/22



School Facility Good Repair Status
Using the most recently collected Facility Inspection Tool (FIT) data (or equivalent), provide the foliowing:

* Determination of repair status for systems listed

* Description of any needed maintenance to ensure good repair
¢ The year and month in which the data were collected

® The rate for each system inspected

® The overall rating

Year and month of the most recent FIT report: December 2021

System Inspected Rating Repair Needed and Action Taken or Planned
Systems: Gas Leaks, Mechanical/HVAC, Sewer Good
Interior: Interior Surfaces Good
Cleanliness: Overall Cleanliness, Pest/Vermin Infestation Good
Electrical: Electrical Good
Restrooms/Fountains: Restrooms, Sinks/Fountains Good
Safety: Fire Safety, Hazardous Materials Good
Structural: Structural Damage, Roofs Good

External: Playground/School Grounds, Windows/Doors/Gates/Fences Good



Overall Facility Rate

Year and month of the most recent FIT report: December 2021

Overall Rating Exemplary

Last updated: 1/14/22



B. Pupil Outcomes

State Priority: Pupil Achievement
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Pupil Achievement (Priority 4):

* Statewide assessments (i.e, California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress [CAASPP] System includes the Smarter Balanced Summative
Assessments for students in the general education population and the California Alternate Assessments [CAAs) for English language arts/literacy [ELA] and
mathematics given in grades three through eight and grade eleven. Only eligible students may participate in the administration of the CAAs. CAAs items are
aligned with alternate achievement standards, which are linked with the Common Core State Standards [CCSS] for students with the most significant cognitive
disabilities).

The CAASPP System encompasses the following assessments and student participation requirements:
1. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for ELA in grades three through eight and grade eleven.
2. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for mathematics in grades three through eight and grade eleven.
3. California Science Test (CAST) and CAAs for Science in grades five, eight, and once in high school (i.e., grade ten, eleven, or twelve),

® SARC Reporting in the 2020-2021 School Year Only

Where the most viable option, LEAs were required to administer the statewide summative assessments for ELA and mathematics. Where a statewide summative
assessment was not the most viable option for the LEA (or for one or more grade-level[s] within the LEA) due to the pandemic, LEAs were allowed to report
results from a different assessment that met the criteria established by the State Board of Education (SBE) on March 16, 2021, The assessments were required to
be:

o Aligned with CA CCSS for ELA and mathematics;

o Available to students in grades 3 through 8, and grade 11; and

© Uniformly administered across a grade, grade span, school, or district to all eligible students.

* Options: Note that the CAAs could only be administered in-person following health and safety requirements. If it was not viable for the LEA to administer the
CAAs in person with health and safety guidelines in place, the LEA was directed to not administer the tests. There were no other assessment options available for
the CAAs. Schools administered the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for ELA and mathematics, other assessments that meet the SBE criteria, or a
combination of both, and they could only choose one of the following:

o Smarter Balanced ELA and mathematics summative assessments;
o Other assessments meeting the SBE criteria; or
© Combination of Smarter Balanced ELA and mathematics summative assessments and other assessments.

¢ College and Career Ready: The percentage of students who have successfully completed courses that satisfy the requirements for entrance to the University of
California and the California State University, or career technical education sequences or programs of study.



CAASPP Test Results in ELA and Mathematics for All Students
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven taking and completing a state-administered assessment
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard

School School District District State State

Subject 2019-2020 2020-2021 2019-2020 2020-2021 2019-2020 2020-2021
English Language Arts / Literacy (grades 3-8 and 11) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Mathematics (grades 3-8 and 11) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Note: The 2019-2020 data cells with N/A values indicate that the 2019-2020 data are not available due to the COVID-19 pandemic and resulting summative test
suspension. The Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the assessment, accountability, and reporting requirements for the 2019-2020 school year.
Note: The 2020-2021 data cells have N/A values because these data are not comparable to other year data due to the COVID-19 pandemic during the 2020-2021
school year. Where the CAASPP assessments in ELA and/or mathematics is not the most viable option, the LEAs were allowed to administer local assessments.
Therefore, the 2020-2021 data between school years for the school, district, state are not an accurate comparison. As such, it is inappropriate to compare results of
the 2020-2021 school year to other school years.

Last updated: 1/14/22



CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group for students taking and completing a state-administered assessment

Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven

(School Year 2020—2021)

Percent Percent
Total Number Percent Not Met or
Student Group Enroliment Tested Tested Tested Exceeded

All Students 118 NT NT NT NT
Female 54 NT NT NT NT
Male 64 NT NT NT NT
American Indian or Alaska Native -- NT NT NT NT
Asian 0 0 0 0 0
Black or African American 0 0 0 0 0
Filipino 0 0 0 0 0
Hispanic or Latino 61 NT NT NT NT
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0 0 0 0
Two or More Races - NT NT NT NT
White 51 NT NT NT NT
English Learners -- NT NT NT NT
Foster Youth 0 0 0 0 0
Homeless

Military 0 0 0 0 0
Socieconomically Disadvantages 57 NT NT NT NT
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0 0 0 0 0
Students with Disabilities 21 NT NT NT NT

Note: N/T values indicate that this school did not test students using the CAASPP for ELA.
Note: Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for

statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy.

Last updated: 1/14/22



CAASPP Test Results in Mathematics by Student Group for students taking and completing a state-administered assessment
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven

(School Year 2020—2021)

Percent Percent
Total Number Percent Not Met or
Student Group Enroliment Tested Tested Tested Exceeded

All Students 118 NT NT NT NT
Female 54 NT NT NT NT
Male 64 NT NT NT NT
American Indian or Alaska Native - NT NT NT NT
Asian 0 0 0 0 0
Black or African American 0 0 0 0 0
Filipino 0 0 0 0 0
Hispanic or Latino 61 NT NT NT NT
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0 0 0 0
Two or More Races - NT NT NT NT
White 51 NT NT NT NT
English Learners - NT NT NT NT
Foster Youth 0 0 0 0 0
Homeless

Military 0 0 0 0 0
Socieconomically Disadvantages 57 NT NT NT NT
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0 0 0 0 0
Students with Disabilities 21 NT NT NT NT

Note: N/T values indicate that this school did not test students using the CAASPP for Mathematics.

Note: Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for

statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy.

Last updated: 1/14/22



Local Assessment Test Results in ELA by Student Group
Assessment Name(s): I-Ready
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2020—2021)

Percent Percent
Total Number Percent Not At or
Student Group Enrollment Tested Tested Tested Above Grade Level
All Students 118 118 100 0 57
Female 54 54 100 0 61
Male 64 64 100 0 53
American Indian or Alaska Native - - -- - -
Asian 0 0 0 0 0
Black or African American 0 0 0 0 0
Filipino 0 0 0 0 0
Hispanic or Latino 61 61 100 0 49
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0 0 0 0
Two or More Races - - -- . -
White 51 51 100 0 67
English Learners -- - - - --
Foster Youth 0 0 0 0 0
Homeless - -- - .- -
Military 0 0 0 0 0
Socieconomically Disadvantages 57 57 100 0 42
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0 0 0 0 0

Students with Disabilities - - - - -

*At or above the grade-level standard in the context of the local assessment administered.

Note: LEAs/schools will populate this table for schools in cases where the school administered a local assessment.

Note: LEAs/schools will populate double dashes (--) in this table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category is
too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy.

Note: In cases where the school administered only the CAASPP assessment, LEAs/schools will populate this table with "N/A” values in all cells, meaning this table is
Not Applicable for this school.

Last updated: 1/18/22



Local AssessmentTest Results in Mathematics by Student Group
Assessment Name(s): I-Ready
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2020—2021)

Percent Percent
Total Number Percent Not At or
Student Group Enroliment Tested Tested Tested Above Grade Level
All Students 118 118 100 0 31
Female 54 54 100 0 22
Male 64 64 100 0 39
American Indian or Alaska Native -- -- - - -
Asian 0 0 0 0 0
Black or African American 0 0 0 0 0
Filipino 0 0 0 0 0
Hispanic or Latino 61 61 100 0 18
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0 0 0 0
Two or More Races - - -- - -
White 51 51 100 0 47
English Learners -- -- - - -
Foster Youth 0 0 0 0 0
Homeless - - - - -
Military ‘ 0 0 0 0 0
Socieconomically Disadvantages 57 57 100 0 11
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0 0 0 0 0

Students with Disabilities - . - - -

*At or above the grade-level standard in the context of the local assessment administered.

Note: LEAs/schools will populate this table for schools in cases where the school administered a local assessment.

Note: LEAs/schools will populate double dashes (--) in this table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category is
too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy.

Note: In cases where the school administered only the CAASPP assessment, LEAs/schools will populate this table with "N/A” values in all cells, meaning this table is
Not Applicable for this school.

Last updated: 1/18/22



CAASPP Test Resuits in Science for All Students
Grades Five, Eight and High School
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard

School School District District State State
Subject 2019-2020 2020-2021 2019-2020 2020-2021 2019-2020 2020-2021
Science (grades 5, 8, and high school) N/A N/T N/A N/T N/A 28.72

Note: The 2019-2020 data cells with N/A values indicate that the 2019-2020 data are not available due to the COVID-19 pandemic and resulting summative testing
suspension. The Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the assessment, accountability, and reporting requirements for the 2019-2020 school year.
Note: For any 2020-2021 data cells with N/T values indicate that this school did not test students using the CAASPP Science.

Last updated: 1/18/22



CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group
Grades Five, Eight and High School (School Year 2020—2021)

Percent Percent
Total Number Percent Not Met or
Student Group Enroliment Tested Tested Tested Exceeded

All Students 36 NT NT NT NT
Female 13 NT NT NT NT
Male 23 NT NT NT NT
American Indian or Alaska Native - NT NT NT NT
Asian 0 0 0 0 0
Biack or African American 0 0 0 0 0
Filipino 0 0 0 0 0
Hispanic or Latino 19 NT NT NT NT
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0 0 0 0
Two or More Races - NT NT NT NT
White 15 NT NT NT NT
English Learners 0 0 0 0 0
Foster Youth 0 0 0 0 0
Homeless

Military 0 0 0 0 0
Socieconomically Disadvantages 19 NT NT NT NT
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0 0 0 0 0
Students with Disabilities -- NT NT NT NT

Note: N/T values indicate that this school did not test students using the CAASPP for Science.

State Priority: Other Pupil Qutcomes

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Other Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8):

* Pupil outcomes in the subject area of physical education

Last updated: 1/18/22



California Physical Fitness Test Results (School Year 2020—2021)

Grade Level

Percentage of
Students Meeting
Four of Six
Fitness Standards

Percentage of
Students Meeting
Five of Six
Fitness Standards

Percentage of
Students Meeting
Six of Six
Fitness Standards

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A

Note: Due to the COVID-19 crisis, the Physical Fitness Test was suspended during the 2020~2021 school year and therefore no data are reported.

Last updated: 1/14/22



C. Engagement

State Priority: Parental Involvement
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Parental Involvement (Priority 3):

* Efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions for the school district and each school site

Opportunities for Parental Involvement (School Year 2021-2022)

undefined

State Priority: Pupil Engagement
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Pupil Engagement (Priority 5):

* High school dropout rates; and
* High school graduation rates
¢ Chronic Absenteeism

Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group
(School Year 2020—2021)

Chronic
Absenteeism Chronic Chronic
Cumulative Eligible Absenteeism Absenteeism
Student Group Enroliment Enrollment Count Rate
All Students 187 183 4 2.2
Female 84 82 2 2.4
Male 103 101 2 20
American Indian or Alaska Native 0 0 0 2.0
Asian 2 2 0 0.0
Black or African American 0 0 0 0.0
Filipino 0 0 0 0.0
Hispanic or Latino 97 97 2 2.1
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0 0 0.0
Two or More Races 7 6 0 0.0
White 81 78 2 26
English Learners 12 12 1 83
Foster Youth 0 0 0 0.0
Homeless 3 3 0 0.0
Socieconommically Disadvantages 102 101 4 4.0
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 1 1 0 00
Students with Disabilities 26 26 1 3.8

Last updated:



State Priority: School Climate
The SARC provides the foltowing information relevant to the State priority: School Climate (Priority 6):

* Pupil suspension rates;
* Pupil expulsion rates; and
* Other local measures on the sense of safety



Suspensions and Expulsions
(data collected between July through June, each full school year respectively)

School School District District State State
Rate 2018-2019 2020-2021 2018-2019 2020-2021 2018-2019 2020-2021
Suspensions 0.46% 0.14% 347%
Expulsions 0.00% 0.00% 0.08%

Note: Data collected during the 2020-21 school year may not be comparable to earlier years of this collection due to differences in learning mode instruction in
response to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Suspensions and Expulsions for School Year 2019—2020 Only
(data collected between July through February, partial school year due to the COVID-19 pandemic)

School District State

Rate 2019-2020 2019-2020 2019-2020
Suspensions 0.90% 0.13% 2.45%
Expulsions 0.00% 0.00% 0.05%

Note: The 2019-2020 suspensions and expulsions rate data are not comparable to other year data because the 2019-2020 school year is a partial school year due to

the COVID-19 crisis. As such, it would be inappropriate to make any comparisons in rates of suspensions and expulsions in the 2019~2020 school year compared to
other school years.

Last updated: 1/14/22



Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group
(School Year 2020—2021)

Suspensions Expulsions
Student Group Rate Rate
All Students 1.6 0
Female 0 0
Male 2.91 0
Non-Binary 0 0
American Indian or Alaska Native 0 0
Asian 0 0
Black or African American 0 0
Filipino 0 0
Hispanic or Latino 2.06 0
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0
Two or More Races 0 0
White 1.23 0
English Learners 833 0
Foster Youth 0 0
Homeless 0 0
Socieconomically Disadvantages 1.96 0
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0 0
Students with Disabilities 7.69 0

Last updated:



School Safety Plan (School Year 2021-2022)

Benjamin Foxen Elementary School district administrators have the task and responsibility to ensure the safety of their students and staff in an emergency,
whether it's an earthquake, a flood or an act of terrorism. Developing emergency operafions plans and training staff in emergency response procedures is
required by law. The safety of students and staff is a primary concern of Benjamin Foxen School. The school complies with all laws, rules and regulations
pertaining to hazardous materials and state earthquake standards. The school's disaster preparedness plan includes steps for ensuring student and staff safety
during a disaster. Fire, disaster, and earthquake drills are conducted on a regular basis throughout the school year. The campus is closed and adult supervision is
provided before school, after school, and during recesses.

The Comprehensive School Safety Plan was developed by the school in consultation with local first responders in order to comply with Senate Bill 187 of 1997.
The plan provides students and staff a means to ensure a safe and orderly learning environment. Components of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan include
the following: child abuse reporting, procedures, teacher notification of dangerous pupil procedures, and disaster response procedures. Benjamin Foxen School
reviews the plan annually and updates it as needed. The plan was last reviewed by the School Site Council on October 26, 2021 and the Board of Education
November 9, 2021. A copy of the safety plan is available to the public at the school office and on the district website.

Last updated: 1/14/22



D. Other SARC information

The information in this section is required to be in the SARC but is not included in the state priorities for LCFF.

Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution (Elementary) School Year 2018—2019

Grade Level Average Class Size Number of Classes *1-20 Number of Classes *21-32 Number of Classes 33+

K 20.00 1

1 23.00 1

2 24.00 1

3 23.00 1

4 25.00 1

5 24.00 1

6 22.00 1

Other** 0

* Number of classes indicates how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class).
** "Other" category is for multi-grade level classes.

Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution (Elementary) School Year 2019—2020

Grade Level Average Class Size Number of Classes *1-20 Number of Classes *21-32 Number of Classes 33+

K 2200 1

1 18.00 1

2 23.00 1

3 26.00 1

4 23.00 1

5 26.00 1

6 22,00 6

Other**

* Number of classes indicates how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class).

** "Other” category is for multi-grade level classes.



Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution (Elementary) School Year 2020-2021

Grade Level Average Class Size Number of Classes *1-20 Number of Classes *21-32 Number of Classes 33+

K 16.00 1

1 18.00 1

2 18.00 1

3 23.00 1

4 17.00 1

5 19.00 1

6 23.00 4

Other**

* Number of classes indicates how many dlasses fall into each size category (a range of total students per class).

** "Other" category is for multi-grade level classes.



Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution (Secondary) (School Year 2018—2019)

Subject Average Class Size Number of Classes *1-22 Number of Classes *23-32 Number of Classes 33 +

English
Math
Science

Social Science

* Number of classes indicates how many classrooms fall into each size category (a range of total students per classroom). At the secondary school level, this
information is reported by subject area rather than grade level.

Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution (Secondary) (School Year 2019—2020)

Subject Average Class Size Number of Classes *1-22 Number of Classes *23-32 Number of Classes 33+
English 24,00 : 2
Math 24.00 2
Science 24.00 2
Social Science 24.00 2

* Number of classes indicates how many classrooms fall into each size category (a range of total students per classroom). At the secondary school level, this
information is reported by subject area rather than grade level.

Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution (Secondary) (School Year 2020-2021)

Subject Average Class Size Number of Classes *1-22 Number of Classes *23-32 Number of Classes 33 +
English 20.00 » 2
Math 20.00 2
Science 20.00 2
Social Science 20.00 2

Last updated: 1/14/22
* Number of classes indicates how many classrooms fall into each size category (a range of total students per classroom). At the secondary school level, this
information is reported by subject area rather than grade level.



Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor (School Year 2020—2021)

Title

Ratio

Pupils to Academic Counselor*

Last updated: 1/1/00

* One full time equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time.

Student Support Services Staff (School Year 2020—2021)

Title

Number of FTE* Assigned to School

Counselor (Academic, Social/Behavioral or Career Development)

Library Media Teacher (Librarian)

Library Media Services Staff (Paraprofessional)
Psychologist

Social Worker

Nurse

Speech/Language/Hearing Specialist
Resource Specialist (non-teaching)

Other

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.50

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

1.90

Last updated: 1/1/00

* One full time equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time.

Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries (Fiscal Year 2019—2020)

Total Expenditures Per

Expenditures Per Pupil

Expenditures Per Pupil

Average Teacher

Level Pupil (Restricted) (Unrestricted) Salary
School Site $11746.47 $9503.24 $2243.23 $59962.00
District N/A N/A $9503.24 $59962.00
Percent Difference — School Site and N/A N/A 0.00% 0.00%
District
State N/A N/A $8443.83 $72352.00
Percent Difference — School Site and N/A N/A 11.00% -21.00%

State

Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data.

Last updated: 1/18/22



Types of Services Funded (Fiscal Year 2020-2021)

We offer the targeted, researched based Step Up to Writing program and train teachers on the effective use of this program, provide an intervention teachers,
and a full- time instructional assistant for intervention. A dedicated intervention teacher and an instructional assistant will provide the additional support students
may need in order to improve their English Language Arts (ELA) and math skills.

Students in the low performing category for ELA receive intensive intervention provided by a certificated intervention teacher. The evidence-based methodologies
to be used are Orton Gillingham multi-sensory direct instruction (Project Read and Barton). as well as Lindamood Bell Seeing Stars Sensory Imaging, and Read
Naturally. The method used will depend on the characteristics and type of difficulty the student is manifesting.

Students in the low performing category for math are receiving intensive intervention provided by a certificated intervention teacher. We also have a math tutor
available for students needing additional math support.

An instructional strategy to promote reading is being implemented in grades K-5 consisting of a Reading Workshop using Responsive Teaching. This strategy uses
current best practices in teaching, while supporting the individual needs of every student. Furthermore, as a way to ensure the success of Reading Workshop, we
are providing the tools to set up a leveled classroom library at each grade level, as well as to utilize the Fountas & Pinnell Benchmark Assessment System for
reading assessment.

The school also provides numerous opportunities for field trips and on-site music instruction through a collaboration with Coelho Music. However, due to the
pandemic, we are not able to provide these services at this time.

Last updated: 1/14/22
Teacher and Administrative Salaries (Fiscal Year 2019—2020)

Category District Amount State Average For Districts In Same Category

Beginning Teacher Salary $42460.00 $47265.00

Mid-Range Teacher Salary $65985.00 $69813.00

Highest Teacher Salary $83581.00 $91237.00

Average Principal Salary (Elementary) $0.00 $113466.00

Average Principal Salary (Middle) $0.00 $115186.00

Average Principal Salary (High) $0.00 -

Superintendent Salary $136655.00 $131359.00

Percent of Budget for Teacher Salaries ' 30.00% 30.00%

Percent of Budget for Administrative Salaries 6.00% 7.00%

For detailed information on salaries, see the CDE Certificated Salaries & Benefits web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/.

BEBE District Amount S District Amount
85000 1.0
80000 08
75000 22
70000 02
65000 0
60000 -0.2
55000 'g-g
50000 08
45000 40
40000 : - o satery (E\eme““‘”’L acipal 5380 de) prncipa) SAaY (righ)
Beginning Teacher Salary  Mid-Range Teacher Salary Highest Teacher Salary Average Prncip? Average v aAverage
Last updated:

Professional Development

Measure 2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022

Number of school days dedicated to Staff Development and Continuous Improvement 3 4 4



Addendum

On July 14, 2021, the California State Board of Education (SBE) determined that the California Department of Education (CDE) will use the SARC Web Application as
the mechanism to conduct a one-time data collection of the LEA-level aggregate test results of all school’s local assessments administered during the 2020-2021

school year in order to meet the federal Every Students Succeeds Act (ESSA) reporting requirement for the Local Educational Agency Accountability Report Cards
(LARCs).

Each local educational agency (LEA) is responsible for preparing and posting their annual LARC in accordance with the federal ESSA. As a courtesy, the CDE prepares
and posts the LARCs on behalf of all LEAs.

Only for the 2020~2021 school year and the 2020-2021 LARCs, LEAs are required to report their aggregate local assessments test results at the LEA-level to the CDE

by populating the tables below via the SARC Web Application. These data will be used to meet the LEAs' federal requirement for their LARCs. Note that it is the

responsibility of the school and LEA to ensure that all student privacy and suppression rules are in place when reporting data in Tables 3 and 4 in the Addendum, as
applicable.

The tables below are not part of the SBE approved 2020~2021 SARC template but rather are the mechanism by which these required data will be collected from LEAs.

For purposes of the LARC and the following tables, an LEA is defined as a school district, a county office of education, or a direct funded charter school.



LEA-Level CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group
for students taking and completing a state-administered assessment
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2020—2021)

Percent Percent
Total Number Percent Not Met or
Student Group Enrollment Tested Tested Tested Exceeded

LEAwide 118 NT NT NT NT
Female 54 NT NT NT NT
Male 64 NT NT NT NT
American Indian or Alaska Native - NT NT NT NT
Asian 0 0 0 0 0
Black or African American 0 0 0 0 0
Filipino 0 0 0 0 0
Hispanic or Latino 61 NT NT NT NT
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0 0 0 0
Two or More Races -- NT NT NT NT
White 51 NT NT NT NT
English Learners - NT NT NT NT
Foster Youth 0 0 0 0 0
Homeless

Military 0 0 0 0 0
Socieconomically Disadvantages 57 NT NT NT NT
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0 0 0 0 0
Students with Disabilities 21 NT NT NT NT

Note: N/T values indicate that the schools in this LEA did not test students using the CAASPP for ELA.
Note: Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for

statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy.

Last updated: 1/18/22



LEA-Level CAASPP Test Results in Mathematics by Student Group
for students taking and completing a state-administered assessment
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2020—2021)

Percent Percent
Total Number Percent Not Met or
Student Group Enrollment Tested Tested Tested Exceeded

LEAwide 118 NT NT NT NT
Female 54 NT NT NT NT
Male 64 NT NT NT NT
American Indian or Alaska Native - NT NT NT NT
Asian 0 0 0 0 0
Black or African American 0 0 0 0 0
Filipino 0 0 0 0 0
Hispanic or Latino 61 NT NT NT NT
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0 0 0 0
Two or More Races .- NT NT NT NT
White 51 NT NT NT NT
English Learners -- NT NT NT NT
Foster Youth 0 0 0 0 0
Homeless

Military 0 0 0 0 0
Socieconomically Disadvantages 57 NT NT NT NT
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0 0 0 0 0
Students with Disabilities 21 NT NT NT NT

Note: N/T values indicate that the schools in this LEA did not test students using the CAASPP for Mathematics.

Note: Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category is too smali for

statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy.

Last updated: 1/19/22



LEA-Level Local Assessment Test Results in ELA by Student Group
Assessment Name/s: I-Ready
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2020—2021)

Percent Percent
Total Number Percent Not At or Above
Student Group Enrollment Tested Tested Tested Grade Level
LEAwide 118 118 100 0 57
Female 54 54 100 0 61
Male 64 64 100 0 53
American Indian or Alaska Native | - | - - - -
Asian 0 0 0 0 0
Black or African American 0 0 0 0 0
Filipino ’ 0 0 0 0 0
Hispanic or Latino 61 61 100 0 49
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0 0 0 0
Two or More Races - -- -- -- -~
White 51 51 100 0 67
English Learners - - - - -
Foster Youth 0 0 0 0 0
Homeless - - - - -
Military 0 0 0 0 0
Socieconomically Disadvantages 57 57 100 0 42
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0 0 0 0 0

Students with Disabilities - - - - -

*At or above the grade-level standard in the context of the local assessment administered.

Note: LEAs/schools will populate this table for schools in cases where the school administered a ocal assessment.

Note: LEAs/schools will populate double dashes (--) in this table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category is
too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy.

Note: In cases where all the schools in this LEA administered only the CAASPP for ELA assessment, LEAs/schools will populate this table with “N/A" values in all cells,
meaning this table is Not Applicable for this LEA.

Last updated; 1/19/22



LEA-Level Assessment Test Results in Mathematics by Student Group
Assessment Name/s: |-Ready

Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2020—2021)

Percent Percent
Total Number Percent Not At or Above
Student Group Enroliment Tested Tested Tested Grade Level
LEAwide 118 118 100 0 31
Female 54 54 100 0 22
Male 64 64 100 0 39
American Indian or Alaska Native - - - - -
Asian 0 0 0 0 0
Black or African American 0 0 0 0 0
Filipino 0 0 0 0 0
Hispanic or Latino 61 61 100 0 18
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0 0 0 0
Two or More Races - . - - -
White 51 51 100 0 47
English Learners - - - . -
Foster Youth 0 0 0 0 0
Homeless - - - - -
Military 0 0 0 0 0
Socieconomically Disadvantages 57 57 100 0 11
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0 0 0 0 0

Students with Disabilities - -- - - .

*At or above the grade-level standard in the context of the local assessment administered.

Note: LEAs/schools will populate this table for schools in cases where the school administered a local assessment.

Note: LEAs/schools will populate double dashes (--) in this table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category is
too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy.

Note: In cases where all the schools in this LEA administered only the CAASPP for Mathematics assessment, LEAs/schools will populate this table with “N/A” values in
all cells, meaning this table is Not Applicable for this LEA.

Last updated: 1/19/22






BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHOOL REOPENING PLAN
PUBLISHED AUGUST 4, 2020

REVISED MARCH 9, 2021

REVISED FEBRUARY 8, 2022



TABLE OF CONTENTS

GENERAL PLAN FOR EMPLOYEES
Worksite Specific Plan
Responsible Person
Employees
If You Don’t Feel Well
Training
Personal Protective Equipment (PPE)
Temperature Screening
Personal Health Certification
Shared Items
Washing/Sanitization Stations
Visitors and Volunteers
Postings
Medical Attention
COVID-19 Compliance Concerns
FACILITY CLEANING
Individuals Performing Cleaning
General Work Areas
Classrooms
Lunch/Break Room
Restrooms
REST AND MEAL PERIODS
Plan Outline
TEMPERATURE SCREENING
Before Coming to Work
COVID-19 Symptoms
VIRUS SPREAD PREVENTION
What is COVID-19 and How Does it Spread?
What is Social Distancing and Why is it Important?

Procedures to Increase Physical Distancing

1

O O &0 00 ® 31 3 N 9 N N9 Oy i kAR R R R WL LW W



Cover Coughs and Sneezes
Proper Use of Face Covering

Wash Your Hands!

REOPENING SCHOOL PLAN

Purpose and Intent

2020-2021 on Campus School Schedule
Student Screening Protocol
Symptomatic Student

Classroom Learning Protocols

Recess and Lunch

Grade Level Lunch Schedule

Recess Schedule

Arts/Electives/PE

Library

Field Trips

Promoting Healthy Hygiene and School Operations
Restroom Protocol

Social Emotional Support Plan

Remote Learning Plan

State Criteria for School Closure

APPENDIX A

10
10
10

10
11
12
13
13
14
15
15
15
15
15
16
17
18
20

21



GENERAL PLAN

Worksite Specific Plan

The purpose of this plan is to outline the district’s plan to safely reopen the district office and
Benjamin Foxen Elementary School to both staff and students amid the continuing Coronavirus
Pandemic, the virus that causes COVID-19. This plan is based on guidance issued by the
California Department of Education, The California Center for Disease Control, and the Santa
Barbara County Public Health Department. This plan is subject to change as government
guidelines for the response to the Coronavirus Pandemic change.

Responsible Person

Doug Brown, Superintendent is responsible for managing this plan. Any additional COVID-19
questions or concerns should be directed as follows:

Doug Brown, Superintendent
Blochman Union School District
4949 Foxen Canyon Rd.

Santa Maria, CA 93454
805-937-1148, ext. 114
dbrown@blochmanusd.org

Employees

Employees are asked to stay in their assigned areas to the extent possible. If there are no
students on campus, then employees will be asked to use the restroom facilities located in their
building. The front office restroom is for office employees only. All other employees located in
Rooms 1 —4 and the portables will use the restrooms located near the playground. Lunch and
break periods should be taken in each employee’s assigned area. Refrigerators and microwaves
will be placed in each classroom to reduce the amount of interaction in the break room. No more
than two people should be in the break room at one time. The picnic tables may be used by all
employees as long as proper social distancing is practiced.

Employees are asked to stay at home if they are not feeling well or experiencing any symptoms
of COVID-19.

We are contracting with an outside laboratory to periodically test staff to detect asymptomatic
infections. Unvaccinated staff will be tested weekly.

If You Don’t Feel Well

If you don’t feel well do not come to work. Call ahead to your primary healthcare professional if
you develop a fever and symptoms of respiratory illness, such as cough or difficulty breathing,



and have been in close contact with a person known to have COVID-19 or if you live in or have
recently traveled to an area with ongoing spread. Tell your healthcare professional about your
recent travel or contact. Your healthcare professional will work with your local public health
department to determine if you need to be tested for COVID-19.

Training

All employees will receive training on the provisions of this plan. Additionally, all employees
must complete the COVID-19 training on the Get Safety Trained website and provide a copy of
the certificate of completion prior to returning to work.

Personal Protective Equipment (PPE)

All individuals onsite will be required to wear protective equipment and follow sanitation
protocols. Masks have been provided to all employees and contract labor. Masks must be worn at
all times unless you are alone in your personal office space. In lieu of gloves we will be
following the CDC recommendation of proper hand washing; this includes soap and water when
possible. If soap and water are not readily available, use isopropyl alcohol at a concentration of
70%, or a hand sanitizer that contains at least 60% alcohol.

Temperature Screening

Employees are expected to check their temperature each day at home before reporting to work.
All employees will sign a Personal Health Certification Form (Appendix A) attesting that they
are complying with this requirement. If an employee cannot check their temperature at home
then they must come to the front office to have their temperature checked prior to reporting to
their assigned work area.

Personal Health Certification

All employees will be asked to complete and return a Personal Health Certification form
(Appendix A).

Shared Items
Employees are asked to avoid sharing items, including but not limited to the following:
1. Telephones
2. Office supplies such as pens, staplers, scissors, etc.
3. Work tools and office machines (if they must be shared then disinfect before and after
each use

Washing/Sanitization Stations

Stations with hand sanitizer have been set up throughout the campus. Soap and water for hand
washing is available in each restroom, the front office, and the cafeteria.



Visitors and Volunteers

All visitors entering the campus must wear a facial covering and practice appropriate social
distancing procedures. Posters will be placed around the campus reminding visitors of the
appropriate protocols. Volunteers will not be allowed on the campus until the mask wearing
requirement has been lifted by the public health department.

Postings

Posters outlining proper social distancing, mask usage, hand washing, and Covid-19 symptoms
will be posted in high traffic areas. Posters will also be displayed in restrooms and lunch areas to
remind and instruct employees how to effectively wash their hands.

Medical Attention

If an employee begins to exhibit COVID-19 symptoms while at work, they will need fill out a
workman’s Compensation injury form and instructed to go to the facility designated below. Call
the facility first to let them know you have COVID-19 symptoms. If an employee tests positive
for Covid-19, we will alert the local Health Department including all areas, dates, and times the
employee was working.

Industrial Medical Group
2070 Skyway Dr. #106.
Santa Maria, CA 93455
(805) 922-8282
FACILITY CLEANING

All cleaning procedures will be instituted according to guidelines published by CDC
(Center for Disease Control) and EPA (Environmental Protection Agency).

Individuals Performing Cleaning

Employees cleaning high touch surfaces will use PPE and receive training about the chemicals
they are using. PPE to be worn and topics covered are as follows:



g

Wearing gloves.

Safely using cleaners and disinfectants on surfaces and objects.

Ensuring cleaners and disinfectants are used in a manner that does not endanger
employees.

Assessing the hazards of all cleaners and disinfectants used at the worksite
Carefully following label directions

Avoid touching eyes and face

Cleaning Guidelines

1.

Disinfection using EPA-approved disinfectants against COVID-19 can also help
reduce the risk. Frequent disinfection of surfaces and objects touched by multiple
people is important.

When EPA-approved disinfectants are not available, alternative disinfectants can be
used (for example, 1/3 cup of bleach added to 1 gallon of water, or 70% alcohol
solutions). Do not mix bleach or other cleaning and disinfection products together--
this can cause fumes that may be very dangerous to breathe in.

3. Keep all disinfectants out of the reach of children.

The following will be cleaned a minimum of 2-times per day unless otherwise indicated:

General Work Areas

R S

Copy machine

Printers: keypads and handles
Hole punches

Paper cutters

Other high touch objects

Door handles/doorknobs

Light switches

Computer keyboards and mouse
Telephones

10. Cabinet handles

Classrooms

ok wbheE

Door handles
Light switches
Sink handles
Tables
Student desks
Chairs



Lunch/Break Room
The lunch/break room will be cleaned after each use

1. Disinfecting tables

2. Chairs, seat and back

3. Countertops

4. Door handles

5. Water dispenser buttons

6. Coffee filter handle, carafe handles, and hot water dispenser handles
7. Refrigerator and microwave handles

Restrooms
1. Toilet stall handles
2. Urinal flush handles
3. Faucets and countertops

4. Door handles
5. Soap and towel dispensers will be monitored and filled as needed

REST AND MEAL PERIODS
Plan Outline

Lunch and break periods should be taken in each employee’s assigned area. Refrigerators and
microwaves will be placed in each classroom to reduce the amount of interaction in the break
room. No more than two people should be in the break room at one time. The picnic tables may
be used by all employees as long as proper social distancing is practiced. Employees should
adhere to the following guidelines:

e Lunch and breaks may be taken in the break room, outdoor picnic tables, offsite, or in the
employee’s vehicle.

e Break room and picnic table occupancy: Break room — 2 people maximum at any one
time; Picnic tables — maintain a distance of six feet.

e Employees should observe proper physical distancing and sanitation practices during
breaks and lunch. Employees are asked to wash hands with soap and water for a
minimum of 20 seconds before and after eating.

e Employees should not share their personal food or utensils with anyone.

TEMPERATURE SCREENING

Before Coming to Work:

Make sure you perform a self-check before coming into work, take your
temperature (if possible) before leaving home. If you are not able to take your
temperature at home, please report to the front office to have your temperature



taken before reporting to your work area. We encourage workers who are sick or
exhibiting symptoms of Covid-19 to please STAY HOME and call your supervisor
immediately.

COVID-19 Symptoms

People with COVID-19 have had a wide range of symptoms* reported — ranging
from mild symptoms to severe illness.

Symptoms* may appear 2-14 days after exposure to the virus. People with these
symptoms may have COVID-19:

Cough, congestion, and/or runny nose
Shortness of breath or difficulty breathing
Fever, chills, fatigue

Nausea or vomiting, diarrhea

Muscle pain, fatigue, headache

Sore throat

New loss of taste or smell

* This list is not all possible symptoms. Other less common symptoms have been
reported, including gastrointestinal symptoms like nausea, vomiting, or diarrhea.

VIRUS SPREAD PREVENTION

What is COVID-19 and How Does it Spread?

Infection with SARS-CoV-2, the virus that causes COVID-19, is an illness caused
by a virus that can spread from person to person. The virus that causes COVID-19
is a new coronavirus that has spread throughout the world. The best way to prevent
illness is to avoid being exposed to this virus.

The virus is thought to spread from person to person in the following manner:

o Between people who are in close contact with one another (within about 6
feet).

o Through respiratory droplets produced when an infected person
coughs, sneezes or talks.

o These droplets can land in the mouths or noses of people who are nearby
or possibly be inhaled into the lungs.

o Itmay also spread by people who are not showing symptoms.



What is Social (Physical) distancing and Why is it Important?

Social distancing, also called “physical distancing,” means keeping space between
yourself and other people outside of your home. To practice social or physical
distancing;:

e Stay at least 6 feet (about 2 arm’s length) from other people
e Do not gather in groups
¢ Stay out of crowded places and avoid mass gatherings

In addition to everyday steps to prevent COVID-19, keeping space between you and
others is one of the best tools we have to avoid being exposed to the virus and
slowing its spread.

Limit close contact with others outside your household in indoor and outdoor
spaces. Since people can spread the virus before they know they are sick, it is
important to stay away from others when possible, even if you—or they—have no
symptoms. Social distancing is especially important for people who are at higher
risk for severe illness from COVID-19.

Procedures to Increase Physical Distancing

Employees are asked to practice distancing outdoors including, but not limited to the
following:

o Before starting work shift

e After the work shift

¢ Coming and going from vehicles

e Entering, exiting, or working in buildings or other structures

¢ During breaks and lunch periods

Cover coughs and sneezes

e Ifyou are in a private setting and do not have on your cloth face covering, remember
to always cover your mouth and nose with a tissue when you cough or sneeze or use
the inside of your elbow.

e Throw used tissues in the trash.

e [mmediately wash your hands with soap and water for at least 20 seconds. If soap and

water are not readily available, clean your hands with a hand sanitizer that contains at
least 60% alcohol.

Proper use of face cover

A face mask/covering is a tool to help avoid and/or contain illness. Face



coverings do not protect the wearer and are not PPE (Personal Protective
Equipment). A face cover protects the people near the wearer. The district is
providing each employee with masks to be worn any time social distancing is
not possible. If you forget to bring your face mask, please go to the front office
and a disposable mask will be given to you for the day.

Wash your hands!

e Wash your hands often with soap and water for at least 20 seconds especially after
you have been in a public place or after blowing your nose, coughing, or sneezing.

e After you have touched a surface that might have been touched by many others.

e If soap and water are not readily available, use a hand sanitizer that contains at
least 60% alcohol. Cover all surfaces of your hands and rub them together until
they feel dry.

¢ Avoid touching your eyes, nose, and mouth with unwashed hands.
REOPENING SCHOOL PLAN

Purpose and Intent

The purpose and intent of this re-opening plan is to provide a smooth and safe reentry for
students to the Blochman Union School District’s Benjamin Foxen Elementary School (BUSD)
campus.

2020-2021 on Campus School Schedule

BUSD will offer a daily instructional model for all students. Significant schedule changes will
include staggered recesses, breakfast and lunch eaten in classrooms, social distancing in
classrooms, outdoor learning when possible, and handwashing stations located throughout the
campus.

The daily schedule is as follows:

10



8:00-8:30
8:30
9:40-9:50
9:55-10:05
10:10-10:20
10:25-10:35
11:20-12:00
12:05-12:45
2:10

2:25

2:40

K-8th Grade Daily Schedule

Drop off and optional breakfast
Instruction Begins

K, 1st & 2nd Grades Break

3rd & 4th Grades Break

5th & 6th Grades Break

7th & 8th Grades Break

K - 4th Grades Lunch and Break
5th - 8th Grades Lunch and Break
K - 3rd Dismissal

4th - 5th Dismissal

6th - 8th Dismissal

K-8th Grade Minimum Day Schedule

8:00-8:30
8:30
9:40-9:50
9:55-10:05
10:10-10:20
10:25-10:35
11:15-11:55
12:00-12:40
12:10

12:25

12:40

Drop off and optional breakfast
Instruction Begins

K, 1st & 2nd Grades Break

3rd & 4th Grades Break

5th & 6th Grades Break

7th & 8th Grades Break

K - 4th Grades Lunch and Break
5th - 8th Grades Lunch and Break
K - 3rd Dismissal

4th - 5th Dismissal

6th - 8th Dismissal

Student Screening Protocol

The following protocols should be followed when students return to campus.

Step 1: Morning Home Assessment

Parents are to screen students before leaving for school and should not send student to school if
any of the following conditions exist:

e The student has a temperature above 100.4 degrees Fahrenheit;
o The student is exhibiting symptoms of COVID-19

O

O

Cough

Congestion or runny nose

Shortness of breath or difficulty breathing

Fever

Chills

Fatigue

Headache

Diarrhea

Muscle pain

Sore throat

New loss of taste or smell

Nausea or vomiting

11




Step 2: Morning Arrival on Campus

e No bussing will be provided.
e Students will wash their hands before sitting down at their desk.

¢ Students will wear masks while indoors. A mask will be provided to any student who
does not have one.

¢ Students must wear masks while inside a restroom.

Symptomatic Student

In the event that a student develops symptoms consistent with the COVID-19
virus while he or she is on campus or during the school day, BUSD staff shall
adhere to the following protocols:

e The student should be immediately separated from all students and safely
isolated in an area away from student and staff paths of travel.

e The teacher will phone the office for a staff member to escort the student and
any sibling to the outside pick-up/drop-off zone until they can be transported
home or to a healthcare facility.

e The teacher and/or staff member escorting the student shall wear a mask and
gloves The student shall also wear a mask at all times until picked-up by a
parent or guardian.

e The parent or guardian of the student shall be advised that the ill student and
any siblings shall not return until they have been seen and cleared by a
health care professional and have met SBC Public Health criteria to
discontinue home isolation.

e School staff should report interaction with a symptomatic person to the
Superintendent/Principal for appropriate follow-up and documentation,
including appropriate notification to Santa Barbara County Public Health
(SBCPH).

e Any area used by the individual student that is symptomatic shall be
immediately isolated and disinfected in accordance with the protocols in this
Plan or those provided by the Centers for Disease Control (CDC) and SBCPH.

12



Classroom Learning Protocols

BUSD will maintain small class sizes and work to minimize the mixing of student groups
throughout the day.

The movement of students and employees will be minimized throughout the school day.

Classrooms will be arranged to maximize student separation. When feasible, desks will
be arranged to be 6 feet apart.

Outdoor instruction will be provided when possible.

Teachers should attempt to keep each student’s belongings separate and train students to
not share their belongings with other students.

Any classroom item that cannot be easily sanitized will be removed from the classroom
and stored until the items are safe to use again.

Recess and Lunch

Morning and afternoon recesses will involve grade level play only. Masks are not
required while outdoors as long as students remain six feet apart.

Students must wash their hands before and after eating lunch.

Students will engage in lunch and recess per the schedule provided.

Students should be taught games that allow for social distancing.

Any equipment used must only be used by one student and must be sanitized before used
by a different student.

13



Grade Level Lunch Schedule

Kinder Playground

Primary Playground

Kindergarten

Eat 11:20-11:40

Play 11:40 —12:00

Grade 1

Eat 11:20-11:40

Play 11:40-12:00

Grade 2

Eat 11:20-11:40

Play 11:40-12:00

Grade 3

Play 11:20-11:40

Eat 11:40-12:00

Grade 4

Play 11:20-11:40

Eat 11:40- 12:00

Grade S

Eat 12:05-12:25

Play 12:25-12:45

Grade 6

Eat 12:05-12:25

Play 12:25-12:45

Grade 7

Play 12:05-12:25

Eat  12:25-12:45

Grade 8

Play 12:05 -12:25

Eat  12:25-12:45

14




Recess Schedule — Morning

Kinder Playground | Primary Playground
(Classes Separated)

Kindergarten 9:40 — 9:50

Grade 1 9:40 — 9:50

Grade 2 9:40 —~ 9:50

Grade 3 9:55 - 10:05

Grade 4 9:55 - 10:05

Grade 5 10:10 - 10:20
Grade 60 10:10 —10:20
Grade 7 10:25 -10:35
Grade 8 10:25 - 10:35

Arts/Electives/PE

e When possible, art and other electives will be held outside.
e Artand elective supplies will be kept in individually labeled containers or cubbies.
e Physical Education will be limited to activities that do not involve physical contact with

other students. Any equipment used will be sanitized after each use.
Library

e The library will be repurposed while implementing physical distancing procedures for
book checkout.

Field Trips

¢ Field trips may be considered at a future time based on SBCDH guidelines and BUSD’s
ability to minimize the risk to students and staff.

o All field trips will be dependent on the field trip location’s commitment to follow
California Department of Health and SBCDH guidelines.

e The CDC recommends virtual activities in lieu of field trips and intergroup events. When
practicable, teachers will explore virtual field trips conducted in the classroom to
supplement learning.

Promoting Healthy Hygiene and School Operations

e Teach and reinforce washing hands, avoiding contact with one's eyes, nose, and mouth,
and covering coughs and sneezes to all student groups.

e Teach students to use a tissue to wipe their nose and to cough/sneeze inside a tissue or
their elbow. Students wash their hands before and after eating; after coughing or
sneezing; after being outside; and before and after using the restroom.

¢ Students should wash their hands for 20 seconds with soap, rubbing thoroughly after
application, and use paper towels to dry hands thoroughly.

15



» Staff will model and practice handwashing. For example, for lower grade levels, use
bathroom time as an opportunity to reinforce healthy habits and monitor proper
handwashing.

» Students and staff will use fragrance-free hand sanitizer when handwashing is not
practicable. Sanitizer must be rubbed into hands until completely dry. Note: frequent
handwashing is more effective than the use of hand sanitizers.

¢ Ethyl alcohol-based hand sanitizers are preferred and will be used when there is the
potential of unsupervised use by children. Isopropyl hand sanitizers are more toxic and
can be absorbed through the skin.

e Children under age 9 will use hand sanitizer under adult supervision.

¢ Portable handwashing stations throughout the site and near classrooms to minimize
movement and congregations in bathrooms will be used to the extent practicable.

e BUSD will teach and reinforce use of cloth face coverings, masks, or face shields when
practical. Face coverings are most essential when physical distancing is not practicable

o Teachers can use face shields, if available, which enable younger students to see their
teachers’ faces and to avoid potential barriers to phonological instruction.

» Students should be encouraged to use cloth face coverings when practicable. Cloth face
coverings are most essential in settings where physical distancing cannot easily be
maintained.

¢ Students should be frequently reminded not to touch the face covering and to wash their
hands frequently.

¢ Information should be provided to all staff and families in the school community on
proper use, removal and washing of cloth face coverings.

e BUSD will ensure adequate supplies to support healthy hygiene behaviors, including
soap, tissues, no-touch trashcans, face coverings and hand sanitizers with at least 60
percent ethy] alcohol for children who can safely use hand sanitizer.

e Water fountains will not be operational on campus. Students may bring their own water
bottles and refill them on campus.

Restroom Protocol

* Scientists have warned us that what goes in the toilet doesn’t always stay there. All that
bubbling, swirling, and splashing can aerosolize fecal waste, sending tiny particles
airborne. Urination is NOT the issue, but rather, fecal waste particles. In order to provide
some protection from COVID-19 when using a public restroom, any student who visits a
school restroom shall wear a face covering at all times while in the restroom.

* Restroom surfaces can harbor the virus. Students will be trained to touch as few
surfaces as possible when visiting the restroom. Upon completion of using the restroom,
thorough handwashing with soap and water, for 20 seconds, will be mandated.



* Restrooms are enclosed areas-thus more dangerous for disease spread. Limiting the
amount of time in the restroom, for each person, is very important to prevent the spread
of illness. Unless it’s an emergency need, students will visit the restroom every 2 hours,
with their class, as organized by their teachers or Instructional Aide, so as to supervise
appropriate restroom use as defined by the California Department of Public Health. This
will limit unnecessary and repetitive ‘play visits’ to the restroom during the school day.

* Grade levels will be ‘assigned’ to a specific restroom for daily use. This will assist the
school with any ‘tracing’ efforts should there be a COVID-19 diagnosis in a classroom.

» Kindergarten would use the facility located in their classroom
e Grades 1 through 4 would use the library wing restrooms

* Grades 5 through 8 would use the office wing restrooms

Social Emotional Support Plan

BUSD fosters a culture that promotes the health, safety, and well-being of
scholars, staff, and parents. In an effort to continuously support this effort, the
school reminds families of the mental health service available through our
school psychologist and through CALM.

Our school psychologist, is available five days a week to consult with parents and
teachers to find ways to support children who may need additional social emotional
supports at school. For more information of the confidential support available to
students or to request services, please contact Samuel Orozco, our school
psychologist, at sorozco@blochmanusd.org

CALM is confidential support available to children and families by phone and
virtually using a computer through Telehealth. For more information or to request
services, please call (805) 614-9160.

Community members and organizations interested in training, presentations or
support via webinar, please contact Manager of Clinical Training, Mariana Harms,
LMFT at (805)965-2376 ext. 251 or mharms@calm4kids.org

CALM is maintaining a significant presence in local households and schools to
ensure the health and well-being of their clients in the Central Coast.

CALM takes into account all types of private insurance including MediCal,
Medicaid, and Medicare, and those that have no insurance.

17



BLOCHMAN’s MULTI-TIERED SYSTEM OF SUPPORT(MTSS)

TIER 3
e Highly targeted intervention plan
e Behavior intervention
e Teacher-student-parent-school-psychologist-principal conference
e Behavior intervention plan created; alternate learning areas developed
e Suspension, if legally appropriate
e Social/emotional interventions
e Individual counseling

TIER 2
e Targeted student intervention and support behavior intervention
e Teacher-Student-Parent conference
e Restorative approaches
e Problem solving plan/behavior contract
e Social emotional interventions
e small group counseling Individual counseling
e Play therapies

TIER 1
e All students participate in school-wide expectations
e Teacher to student classroom management plans
e Teacher check-ins with students

Remote Learning Plan

In the event that it has been determined that it is not safe for students to be physically
present on campus the district will revert to a distant learning (DL) schedule. Each student
will be issued a tablet or Chromebook. All necessary books and supplies will be sent home
with each student. The district’s technology department will work with families to make
sure they have the necessary internet access. Students will receive daily instruction (Monday
through Friday) from their teachers based on the following schedule.

18



Kindergarten 15t Grade through 5% Grade

8:30am —9:30am 8:30am —9:45am Language Arts

Break Break

9:40am - 10:25am 9:55am —-11:10am Math

Break 11:10am —12:00pm Social Studies/Science

10:35am —11:20am

6" Grade through 8t Grade

6TH 7TH 8TH
8:30AM - 9:30AM MATH SOCIAL LANGUAGE
STUDIES ARTS
9:35AM - 10:35AM SOCIALSTUDIES LANGUAGE MATH
ARTS
10:40AM - 11:40AM LANGUAGE MATH SOCIAL
ARTS STUDIES
LUNCH

12:10PM - 1:10PM SCIENCE SCIENCE SCIENCE

Distance Learning Expectations:

Teachers

Objective: Identify clear learning objectives for all assignments; provide clear
directions; and, check for understanding.

Responsibility: Use multimedia materials to impart instruction, create interactive
lessons, and ensure the continuation of the learning progression.

Expectation: Specify assignment requirements & length contained in a Google
Classroom, Weekly, and Daily Schedule.

Organization: Organize your time and let students know when you are
providing instruction and/or available online.

19



Students

Objective: Ensure you understand the learning objectives.
Responsibility: Complete tasks and assignments using your best efforts.
Expectation: Monitor your learning to meet expectations and submit work on time.

Organization: Organize your time; follow the learning schedule provided by your
teacher(s).

Parents
Objective: Provide a dedicated learning space for your child/children.

Responsibility: Help your child follow the online learning schedule; Provide essential
support to your child during the morning hours to complete assignments.

Expectation: Check tasks & learning objectives on Google Classroom, Weekly/ Daily
Schedule.

Organization: Expect your child to complete tasks and
assignments on time by utilizing their best efforts.

Key learning principles:
e Break learning into smaller chunks.
e Be clear about expectations for online participation.
e Provide immediate (or at least frequent) feedback through online
knowledge checks, comments on collaborative documents, and chat to
keep students motivated and moving forward.

¢ Include virtual meetings, live chats, or video tutorials to maintain a human
connection.

20



Appendix A — Personal Health Certification

PERSONAL HEALTH CERTIFICATION

l'am providing the following certification to support the Company’s efforts to protect the workplace
from the spread of COVID-19:

1.

I certify that:

I have experienced none of the three primary symptoms of the COVID-19 virus —
fever, coughing, shortness of breath for a period of at least fourteen (14) days.

OR

I have a pre-existing condition that causes either shortness of breath or coughing, but
I have not experienced fever, or I have been without fever for a period of fourteen
(14) days.

[ agree to take my temperature each day prior to coming to work and I will not report to work
if I have a temperature over 100.4 or [ am experiencing any symptom of the COVID-19 virus.

I agree that if I experience these symptoms in the future, I will report it to my supervisor
immediately.

I certify that I will notify my supervisor, and not knowingly come to work if I have been
diagnosed with COVID-19 or have come in contact with anyone else known to have COVID-
19.

I certify that I have not traveled on a cruise or to a high-risk location as designated by the
Center for Disease Control (www.cdc.gov).

I understand that the Company will protect my medical information and hold it confidential as
much as possible in light of current COVID-19 conditions. I further understand that the
Company is obligated to report any suspected case of or exposure to COVID-19 in the
workplace but will make every effort to maintain the confidentiality of employee names as
much as possible in light of current COVID-19 regulations or governmental recommendations.

My signature below indicates that these are true statements made in good faith for the purpose of
preserving the health and well-being of everyone who comes to the Company during the current
pandemic.

Date:

Sign Name:

Print Name:

21






Moss, Levy & Hartzheim LLP

Certified Public Accountants

January 28, 2022

Board of Trustees

Blochman Union School District
4949 Foxen Canyon Road
Santa Maria, CA 93454

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide Blochman Union School District for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. We will audit the financial statements of the governmental activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information, including the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the basic financial statements of Blochman Union School District as of and for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2022, Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America provide for
certain required supplementary information (RSI), such as management's discussion and analysis (MD&A), to
supplement Blochman Union School District’s basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. As part of our engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to Blochman
Union School District's RSI in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. These limited procedures will consist of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management'’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We will
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. The following RSI is required by
generally accepted accounting principles and will be subjected to certain limited procedures, but will not be audited:

1) Management’s Discussion and Analysis

2) Budgetary Comparison Schedule

3) Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability
4) Schedule of Pension Contributions

We have also been engaged to report on supplementary information other than RSI that accompanies Blochman
Union School District’s financial statements. We will subject the following supplementary information to the auditing
procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, and we will provide an opinion on it in relation
to the financial statements as a whole:

1) Organization
2) Additional Schedules and Related Notes
Audit Objectives

The objective of our audit is the expression of opinions as to whether your financial statements are fairly presented,
in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and to report on the fairness
of the supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph when considered in relation to the financial
statements as a whole. Our audit will be conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, and will include tests of the accounting records of Blochman Union
School District and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such opinions. We will issue
a written report upon completion of our audit of Blochman Union School District’s financial statements. Our report

2400 Professional Parkway, Suite 205 Santa Maria, CA 93455 Tel 805.925.2579 Fax 805.925.2147 mlhcpas.com

BEVERLY HILLS « CULVER CITY - SANTA MARIA



will be addressed to the Board of Trustees of Blochman Union School District. We cannot provide assurance that
unmodified opinions will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our
opinions or add emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraphs. If our opinions are other than unmodified, we will
discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to
form or have not formed opinions, we may decline to express opinions or issue reports, or may withdraw from this
engagement.

We will also provide a report (that does not include an opinion) on internal control related to the financial statements
and compliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with
which could have a material effect on the financial statements as required by Government Auditing Standards. The
report on internal control and on compliance and other matters will include a paragraph that states (1) that the
purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal control and compliance, and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control on compliance, and (2)
that the report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. The paragraph will also state that the report is not suitable
for any other purpose. If during our audit we become aware that Blochman Union School District is subject to an
audit requirement that is not encompassed in the terms of this engagement, we will communicate to management
and those charged with governance that an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards
and the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards may not satisfy the relevant
legal, regulatory, or contractual requirements.

Audit Procedures—General

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to be examined and the
areas to be tested. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial
reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable
to the government or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the government. Because the
determination of abuse is subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to provide reasonable
assurance of detecting abuse.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control, and
because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material misstatements
may exist and not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards. In addition, an audit is not
designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a
direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, we will inform the appropriate level of management
of any material errors, fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets that comes to our attention. We
will also inform the appropriate level of management of any violations of laws or governmental regulations that come
to our attention, unless clearly inconsequential, and of any material abuse that comes to our attention. Our
responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to later periods for which
we are not engaged as auditors.

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the accounts,
and may include tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables and certain
other assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected individuals, funding sources, creditors, and financial
institutions. We will request written representations from your attorneys as part of the engagement, and they may
bill you for responding to this inquiry. At the conclusion of our audit, we will require certain written representations
from you about your responsibilities for the financial statements; compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements; and other responsibilities required by generally accepted auditing standards.

Audit Procedures—Internal Control

Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the government and its environment, including internal control,
sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design the nature, timing,
and extent of further audit procedures. Tests of controls may be performed to test the effectiveness of certain
controls that we consider relevant to preventing and detecting errors and fraud that are material to the financial
statements and to preventing and detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance
matters that have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. Our tests, if performed, will be less in



scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on internal control and, accordingly, no opinion will be
expressed in our report on internal control issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards.

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses. However, during the audit, we will communicate to management and those charged with governance
internal control related matters that are required to be communicated under AICPA professional standards and
Government Auditing Standards.

Audit Procedures—Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement,
we will perform tests of Blochman Union School District's compliance with the provisions of applicable laws,
regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants. However, the objective of our audit will not be to provide an opinion
on overall compliance and we will not express such an opinion in our report on compliance issued pursuant to
Government Auditing Standards.

Other Services

We will also assist in preparing the financial statements and related notes of Blochman Union School District in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles based on information provided by you. These
nonaudit services do not constitute an audit under Government Auditing Standards and such services will not be
conducted in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. We will perform the services in accordance with
applicable professional standards. The other services are limited to the financial statement services previously
defined. We, in our sole professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to perform any procedure or take any
action that could be construed as assuming management responsibilities.

Management Responsibilities

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal controls, including evaluating and
monitoring ongoing activities, to help ensure that appropriate goals and objectives are met; foliowing laws and
regulations; and ensuring that management and financial information is reliable and properly reported. Management
is also responsible for implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with applicable laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements. You are also responsible for the selection and application of accounting principles,
for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and all accompanying information in conformity
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and for compliance with applicable laws and regulations and
the provisions of contracts and grant agreements.

Management is also responsible for making all financial records and related information available to us and for the
accuracy and completeness of that information. You are also responsible for providing us with (1) access to all
information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements, (2) additional information that we may request for the purpose of the audit, and (3) unrestricted access
to persons within the government from whom we determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence.

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and for confirming
to us in the written representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during
the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the
aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, and
for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government involving (1) management, (2)
employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud could have a material effect
on the financial statements. Y our responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud
or suspected fraud affecting the government received in communications from employees, former employees,
grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that the government
complies with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants and for taking timely and appropriate
steps to remedy fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts or grant agreements, or
abuse that we report.

You are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information, which we have been engaged to report
on, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles- You agree to include our report on the
supplementary information in any document that contains and indicates that we have reported on the supplementary
information. You also agree to include the audited financial statements with any presentation of the supplementary
information that includes our report thereon or make the audited financial statements readily available to users of
the supplementary information no later than the date the supplementary information is issued with our report thereon.



Your responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the written representation letter that (1) you are responsible for
presentation of the supplementary information in accordance with GAAP; (2) you believe the supplementary
information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with GAAP; (3) the methods of
measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period (or, if they have changed, the
reasons for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed to us any significant assumptions or interpretations
underlying the measurement or presentation of the supplementary information.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit findings and
recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report copies of previous financial
audits, attestation engagements, performance audits or other studies related to the objectives discussed in the
Audit Objectives section of this letter. This responsibility includes relaying to us corrective actions taken to address
significant findings and recommendations resulting from those audits, attestation engagements, performance audits,
or other studies. You are also responsible for providing management’s views on our current findings, conclusions,
and recommendations, as well as your planned corrective actions, for the report, and for the timing and format for
providing that information.

You agree to assume all management responsibilities relating to the financial statements and related notes and any
other nonaudit services we provide. You will be required to acknowledge in the management representation letter
our assistance with preparation of the financial statements and related notes and that you have reviewed and
approved the financial statements and related notes prior to their issuance and have accepted responsibility for
them. Further, you agree to oversee the nonaudit services by designating an individual, preferably from senior
management, with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of those services;
and accept responsibility for them.

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other

We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, or other confirmations we request
and will locate any documents selected by us for testing.

We will provide copies of our reports to the school district; however, management is responsible for distribution of
the reports and the financial statements. Unless restricted by law or regulation, or containing privileged and
confidential information, copies of our reports are to be made available for public inspection.

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Moss, Levy & Hartzheim, LLP, and constitutes
confidential information. However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation and appropriate
individuals will be made available upon request and in a timely manner to its designee, a federal agency providing
direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. Government Accountability Office for purposes of a quality review of the audit,
to resolve audit findings, or to carry out oversight responsibilities. We will notify you of any such request. If requested,
access to such audit documentation will be provided under the supervision of Moss, Levy & Hartzheim, LLP,
personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of selected audit documentation to the
aforementioned parties. These parties may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information contained
therein to others, including other governmental agencies.

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of seven years after the report release
date. If we are aware that a federal awarding agency or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the
party(ies) contesting the audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation.

We expect to begin our audit on approximately July 1, 2022 and to issue our reports no later than December 15,
2022. Ronald A. Levy, CPA, is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and
signing the reports or authorizing another individual to sign them.

Our fee for these services will be at our standard hourly rates plus out-of-pocket costs (such as report reproduction,
word processing, postage, travel, copies, telephone, etc.) except that we agree that our gross fee, including
expenses, will be $5,345. Our standard hourly rates vary according to the degree of responsibility involved and the
experience level of the personnel assigned to your audit. Our invoices for these fees will be rendered each month
as work progresses and are payable on presentation. In accordance with our firm policies, work may be suspended
if your account becomes 30 days or more overdue and may not be resumed until your account is paid in full. If we
elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to have been completed upon
written notification of termination, even if we have not completed our report. You will be obligated to compensate
us for all time expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket costs through the date of termination. The above
fee is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that unexpected circumstances
will not be encountered during the audit. If significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with you and
arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur the additional costs.



In accordance with State law, ten (10) percent of the fee for the annual audit will be withheld until the audit report
has be certified by the state controller as conforming to the reporting provisions of subdivision (a) of EC Section
14503. if the audit report for any year is not certified by the state controller as conforming to the reporting provisions
of subdivision (a) of EC Section 14503, fifty (50) percent of the audit fee for any subsequent year will be withheld.
The withheld amount will not be released until the state controller certifies that the audit report for the subsequent
year conforms to the reporting provisions of subdivision (a) of EC Section 14503, or payment is ordered by the
California Board of Accountancy. This contract is null and void if a firm or individual is declared ineligible to audit
K-12 school districts pursuant to Subdivision (c) of EC Section 41020.5.

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Blochman Union School District and believe this letter accurately
summarizes the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let us know. If you agree
with the terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the enclosed copy and return it to us.

Very truly yours,
Pirsa, Ky 8 Jodghecin, £1P
Moss, Levy & Hartzheim, LLP

RESPONSE:

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Blochman Union School District.

Management signature:

Title:

Date:

Governance signature:

Title:

Date:







California Department of Education Consolidated Application

Blochman Union Elementary (42 69112 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: Doug Brown
Date: 1/31/2022 12:16 PM

2021-22 Title |, Part A LEA Allocation and Reservations
report LEA required and authorized reservations before distributing funds to schools.

CDE Program Contact:

Sylvia Hanna, Title | Policy, Program, and Support Office, SHanna@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0948
Rina DeRose, Title | Policy, Program, and Support Office, RDerose@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-0472

2021-22 Title |, Part A LEA allocation (+) $19,428
Transferred-in amount (+) $0
Nonprofit private school equitable services proportional share amount (-) $0
2021-22 Title |, Part A LEA available allocation $19,428

Required Reservations

Parent and family engagement $0

(If the allocation is greater than $500,000, then parent and family
engagement equals 1% of the allocation minus the nonprofit private school
equitable services proportional share amount.)

School parent and family engagement $0
LEA parent and family engagement $0
Local neglected institutions No

Does the LEA have local institutions for neglected children?

»al neglected institutions reservation

Local delinquent institutions No

Does the LEA have local institutions for delinquent children?

Local delinquent institutions reservation

Direct or indirect services to homeless children, regardless of their school $1,500
of attendance

Authorized Reservations

Public school Choice transportation $0
Other authorized activities $0
2021-22 Approved indirect cost rate 7.65%
Indirect cost reservation $1,381
Administrative reservation $1,533

Reservation Summary

Total LEA required and authorized reservations $4,414
School parent and family engagement reservation $0
Amount available for Title I, Part A school allocations $15,014

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and
other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a

Report Date:1/31/2022 violation of both state and federal law. Page 1 of 2



California Department of Education
Blochman Union Elementary (42 69112 0000000)

Consolidated Application

Status: Certified
Saved by: Doug Brown
Date: 1/31/2022 12:16 PM

2021-22 Consolidation of Administrative Funds

2quest by the local educational agency (LEA) to consolidate administrative funds for specific programs.

CDE Program Contact:

Hilary Thomson, Fiscal Oversight and Support Office, HThomson@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-0765

SACS Code 4124

Title I, Part A Basic No
SACS Code 3010

Title I, Part C Migrant Education No
SACS Code 3060

Title I, Part D Delinquent No
SACS Code 3025

Title Il, Part A Supporting Effective Instruction No
SACS Code 4035

Title Ill English Learner Students - 2% maximum No
SACS Code 4203

Title 1l Immigrant Students No
SACS Code 4201

Title IV, Part A Student Support - 2% maximum No
" "CS Code 4127

1tle IV, Part B 21st Century Community Learning Centers No

**Warning***

The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and
other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a

Report Date:1/31/2022

violation of both state and federal law.

Page 2 of 2



Z Jo | ebed

"ME] [eJapa) pue a1e1s Hlog JO UOIIB[OIA
e 9Jn)isuod Aew ejep siy} jo Buueys 1o ssaooe pazuoyineun ‘sme| Aoeald ejep sjqeoslidde iayjo
pue (vdy34) 10V Aoeald pue siybiy |euoneonp3 Ajwiey ayy Aq pejosjoid aq Aew podai siy ui ejep ay]

zzoz/Le/Le1eq Hoday

Wd 91:21 ¢2oc/Le/L ‘eeq
umoug bnoq :Aq paneg

payis)d sniejg

uonesjjddy | 2pijosuo’n

V31 9y UIYIA

Wdyd

Aejuswsy:
v €L0SL 0$ 0$ yr'eL0GL | 6€'951L L . . 81'GS 96 €Ll L ¥925709 uaxo4 ujwefusg
Ll
juaw -G saby
abebugy % syuapnig
uonesojy | Apweq uonedojjy| juepnis paAiag pamiag | juapnig | swoouj dnoug
apo) jooyosg pue |[soachuien| |ooyos awoodu| aq o} aq o} awoou| Mo juswiyosuy| uedg apo)
uonaIdsIq lejol waied | 12-0202 VIL |mo7iad §| Bunjuey | pasnbay | aiqibyg [ mo7 | aqibiz | juspms | speig| jooyos aweN |ooyog

0$ uonealasal Juswobebus Ajwe} pue Jualed ojqejieay
¥1L0'GL$ SUONEJO|[E [00YDS  Hed ‘| 3liL SIqe|ieAY
%61°55 9%, WOl MO| BPIM-YYT"

1somo 0} 1saybiy sjooyos bBunjuey

alnsesw saWooul MO~

uleyed Jopaa -
uoisinoid Jayiejpuels) -

3|y uo ueld uonebaibasap e 1o} JsAIBAA - |
BWOOUI MO} JUSPNJS 9%GE 9A0QR JO Je pue abeloae Y3 mojag - ¢

S9pP07) UOIIISI] ITEeMO|X

*Ajuo 8sBD JOMO| 8SM "9pP0) UOoIRIOSI B 19jud ‘s|qedidde 4

000°L UBY)] SS8| S|O0UOS || IO} [B10} JUSLI[|OJUD SBf

v31 jooyos olbuis e s
:Buimojos 8y} Jo yjoq J¢

8UO SJoaW Y37 Ay} ‘SJUNOD JUSPNIS |00YIS W HEd ‘| SIL Ul paIsjud ejep 8y} pue isi
[O0UOS 8y} Uo paseq ‘)l Y37 Jlews e se pauyap si (y37) Aouabe |euoneonps [e20] \

"BlI9}LID Y3 [jews S}99dW Y3~

Z.v0-£2E-916 ‘NODED” muo@wmo_wom onO Hoddng pue ‘weiboid ‘Adljod | 91 ‘osoyaq eury
[ONiL* @2 Hoddng pue ‘weiboid ‘Asjjod | 9L

:3oB3UO0D Weubolud 347

"sjooyos 8|qibije 0} PaJeso||e 9q O} SPUN) VY Led ‘| SiIL JO Junowe sy} sayiuapl Hodal siy |

sSuoied0||y |00YOS V Hed ‘| 8311 22-1202

(0000000 21169 Z¥) ABuswalg UoIUN UBWYOO|E
uoilesnp3 jo juswy 3 elUIOji|es



Z oz sbed zzoz/Le/L-oreq Hodey
‘M| [BJOpD) pUB 9)BIS Yjog JO uone|olA
B 9)n}iisuoo Aew ejep siy} jo Buueys Jo ssaooe pazuoyineun ‘smej Aoealud ejep ajqeoidde Jayjo
pue (ydy3d) 10V AoeAld pue siybry [euoneonp3 Ajiwed ayy Aq pajosjold aq Aew podal sy} ul ejep ay|
aBUILIEM,,

"s|ooyos 9|qibije 0} pajeco|je 8q 0} SPUN} Y LEd ‘| 9L JO JUNOWe sy} Saliusp! Loda Siy |

suoljedo}|y |ooYyds v Med ‘] 3L ¢2-120¢
Nd 9L:2L 220¢Z/LeE/L -8led
umo.g bnoq :Aq peaeg
(0000000 ZL 169 Z) Aejusws|3 uotun UBWYDO|g

payiuaD snjejg
uonediddy f  :pljosuo) uoljesnp3 Jo Judwy 3 elusoyijes



| Jo | abed

Wd 91:¢l 22oc/LE/L 8red
umolg Bnoq :Aq paneg

paygIa) snieig
uonesijddy ¢

*ME| [BJ9opd) pue 3le)s Yjog JO UoHe[OIA
e 9)nsuoo Aew ejep siy) jo Buueys 1o ssadoe pazuoyineun ‘smej Aoeaud elep s|qesidde ayjo
pue (Vdy34) 19V Aoeaud pue sjyby jeuoneonp3 Ajiwe4 ay) Aq pejosjoud aq Aew podal siy ul elep ayL

wnDUILIBAA

z20z/Lg/L-8reQ Hoday

Aeyuswaj:
96 €L b 8 M 7925109 uax04 ulwefuss
L1-§ saby sjuepmg
awiosu] mo 3|qiIby3 | juswijjoiug juspms dnolg uedg apein paiayQ apeds ybiy paJayQ apeio moT apo |ooyds aweN [ooyoss

pIjOSU0)

Wddd

V37 34} UIYIA

"ejep Jeak Joud jo 9oe[d ul ejep Jeak jusun:
Jajua Ajjenuew 0} 8000 Aew Y3 9y "SUOHEDO]E [00YDS ¥ Wed ‘| a1 1o} Bunjue.
pue AjjIqiBie 81e|nojes 0} elep Jeak Jualind Jo ejep Jeak Joud asn Aew y37 ay] 9o

"uolssILQNS elep | [led SAVd VD Wol ejlep payuad (12020 189/
[e9s14) JesA HOIHd Unm peleindod-aid siam ‘sjunod /-G sebe sjuapnis awooul Mo

9|qibije pue syuNoo JuaLWIjoIUS Juspn}s [ejo} Bululeluod ‘wioy siy) Ul Spil ejep ay |

sjuno? juapnig paje|ndod-aid jo uoneuejdx:

aInsesu aLWooUl MO| B J09]9¢

poujew Bupjuel jooyos }samo) o} 1saybly ayj 109ja¢

suondo Bupjuel jooyos

Z/v0-£2€-91 6 ‘NODBI 3poas0Ia(y ‘20O Hoddng pue ‘welboid ‘Adljod | 8L ‘@soya(Q Bul}

SJUNOD Jusapnig |ooYdS V Med ‘| @131l 22-120¢

:Jorju0) weisboid 3Qs

‘suones0jje |ooYos ¥ Hed ‘| ajil Joy bunjue.
pue Anjiqibije a1enojes 0y (Y37) Aousbe jeuoneanpa |Booj aY) AQ pasn aq [|im uoijOd]|0d Blep SIY) Ul UOIIeLLIojul 8U L "elep Juapnis [9AS|-|00YOS Sulejuod UOoIJ0d||00 BlEp SiY |

(0000000 Z1 169 Zt) Aeuswsiz uolun uewydo|g

uoljesanp3 Jo Juswy

@ eluojijes



| Jo | abed

e oIN)IsuoD Aew ejep sy} jo Buleys 10 ssaooe pazuoyineun sme| Aoeaud ejep ajqgesijdde 1ayjo
pue (Vd¥34) 10V AoeAud pue siybiy |euoneonp3 Ajlwe syl Aq pajosjosd aq Aew podal siyl Ul Blep sy

‘Me| [B1apa) PUB 91e)S Y)oq JO Uohe|olA

EmC_C._N;:k

zzoz/LelL:ereq yoday

1202/20/e0 %8S A 7925709 Areyuswialg usxod uielusg
(AAA/QQ/NIN) | (AAAA/QQ/NI)
(AAAA/QQ/WIW) I9AIBM IMS ueld dMS
ajeq ajeq |eaosddy | a3eq jeaosddy
jeacuddy og pieog [e207 pieog jes07] 9, awoouj mo |dMS pazuoyiny | spod [ooyss awepN jooyss

Z.¥0-€2€-916 ‘AOD BO 9po@asoIa(ly ‘a0 woddng pue ‘weibold ‘Aoljod | 8] ‘8soyeq eun
- ‘ACDBD8pIm)eNIL - 92O Hoddng pue ‘weiboig ‘Adljod | oL

:jJoeU0) weuboid 3Q:

‘welbold apimjooyos

se podal pue Japun ajesado 0] jeaocidde pieoq |20} pue ANjqible s,j004os e Jo uoneonpd Jo Juswpedaq elulojie ay) 0} uoiledyliou sepiaoid podal siy_

pPsyiUag smejs

weiB0.1d apIM[OOYDS JO UONJEZLIOYINY JO UCIIEIIION W Med ‘| 9RIL Z22-1202

Nd 9L:¢l ¢2¢0Z/LE/L Bted
umolg Bno( :Aq paaeg

uc Hiddy pajepijosuon

(0000000 ZL 169 zt) Aejusws|g uolun UBWYDOlE
uolesnp3 Jo judwy

3@ elulojijes






Resolution No.: 2022-02-08

Resolution of the Governing Board

of the Blochman Union School District
To Designate Authority for Disposition of Assets

Whereas, the governing board of the Blochman Union School District is desirous of
streamlining the asset disposition process of the district; and

Whereas, the district accumulates obsolete property on an on-going basis. The
Superintendent is seeking a “blanket” authorization to dispose of surplus property without needing
a new agenda item for each disposal and in keeping with the guidelines of the California Education
Code; and

Whereas, California Education Code Sections 17545 and 17546 allow the Governing
Board to sell surplus or obsolete property through public sale, private sale, or to donate such
property to a charitable organization, or to dispose of such property at a public dump. Public sale is
the district’s preferred method for disposing of obsolete property (excluding e-waste). Where
items are of insufficient value to be accepted for sale, the district may sell items by private sale or
to a recycler or donate items to a non-profit organization. Should the condition or utility of value of
the items preclude these methods, the items may be disposed of at a public dump; and

Now, Therefore Be It Resolved that the governing board of the Blochman Union School
District hereby awards a “blanket” authorization for the Superintendent to dispose of old, obsolete
property in the manner deemed to be in the best interest of the district throughout the 2021/2022
fiscal year.

Approved, Passed, and Adopted by the governing board of the Blochman Union School
District, this 8th day of February 2022 by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Signed:

Board Clerk/Secretary



	DOC020222
	DOC020222-001
	DOC020222-002

